
 

 

 

Rutland County Council                   
 
Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP. 
Telephone 01572 722577 Email governance@rutland.gov.uk 

        
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
A meeting of the CABINET will be held via Zoom https://zoom.us/j/93555388232 
commencing at 10am when it is hoped you will be able to attend. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
Mark Andrews 
Interim Chief Executive 
 
Meeting:   CABINET 
 
Date and Time:  Tuesday, 16 February 2021 at 10.00 am 
 
Venue:   https://zoom.us/j/93555388232 

 
Governance   Emma Powley 01572 720991 
Officer to contact:  email: governance@rutland.gov.uk 
 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1) APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2) ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIRMAN AND/OR HEAD OF THE PAID 
SERVICE  
 

 

3) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

  
In accordance with the Regulations, Members are required to declare any 
personal or prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of those 
interests in respect of items on this Agenda and/or indicate if Section 106 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them. 
 

 

4) RECORD OF DECISIONS  

 To confirm the Record of Decisions made at the meeting of the Cabinet held 
on 12th January 2021. 
 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:corporatesupport@rutland.gov.uk
https://zoom.us/j/93555388232
https://zoom.us/j/93555388232
mailto:governance@rutland.gov.uk


 

 

5) ITEMS RAISED BY SCRUTINY  

 To receive items raised by members of scrutiny which have been submitted to 
the Leader and Chief Executive. 
 

 

6) EMERGENCY POWERS - COVID 19  

 Report no: 28/2021 
(Pages 5 - 8) 

 

7) PUBLIC BUS SERVICE CONTRACT AWARD  

 Report no: 25/2021 
(Key Decision) 
(Pages 9 - 20) 

 

8) INTEGRATED TRANSPORT CAPITAL PROGRAMME  

 Report no: 25/2021 
(Key decision) 
(Pages 21 - 30) 

 

9) HOME TO SCHOOL TRANSPORT AWARD  

 Report no: 26/2021 
(Key decision) 
(Pages 31 - 46) 

 

10) QUARTER 3 - FINANCE REPORT  

 Report no: 27/2021 
(Pages 47 - 76) 

 

11) UPDATE ON CHILDREN'S SERVICES IMPROVEMENT PLAN  

 Report no: 29/2021 
(Pages 77 - 94) 

 

12) CLEANING SERVICES CONTRACT FOR COUNCIL PROPERTIES  

 Report no: 31/2020 
(Key decision) 
(Pages 95 - 98) 

 

13) ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES RE-PROCUREMENT PROJECT  

 Report no: 33/2021 
(Key decision) 
(Pages 99 - 122) 

 

14) FINAL BUDGET 2021/21  

 Report no: 34/2021 



 

 

(Key decision) 
(Pages 123 - 170) 

 

15) SCHOOL CAPITAL PROGRAMME  

 Report no: 35/2021 
(Key decision) 
(Pages 171 - 292) 

 

16) ANY ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 To receive items of urgent business which have previously been notified to the 
person presiding. 
 

 
---oOo--- 

 
  
MEMBERS OF THE CABINET: Mr O Hemsley Chairman 

 Mr G Brown 
Mrs L Stephenson 
Mr A Walters 
Mr D Wilby 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Or iPhone one-tap :  
United Kingdom: +442034815240,,93555388232#  or 
+442039017895,,93555388232#  
Or Telephone: 
Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
United Kingdom: +44 203 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report No: 28/2021 
PUBLIC REPORT 

CABINET 

16th February 2021 

COVID 19 UPDATE AND APPROACH TO CONTINUED USE OF 
EMERGENCY POWERS  

Report of the Interim Chief Executive 

Strategic Aim: All 

Key Decision: No Forward Plan Reference: FP/170420 

Exempt Information No 

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible: 

Mr O Hemsley, Leader and Portfolio Holder for Rutland 
One Public Estate & Growth, Tourism & Economic 
Development, Resources (other than Finance) 

Contact 
Officer(s): 

Phillip Horsfield – Deputy Director 
Corporate Governance (Monitoring 
Officer) 

01572 758154 
phorsfield@rutland.gov.uk 
 

Ward Councillors All 

 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Cabinet: 

1. Notes the present position in Rutland in respect of COVID 19 

2. Notes the continued applicability of the Civil Emergency Delegation. 

 

1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 At the Cabinet meeting held on the 21st April 2020, it was agreed that Cabinet 
would keep under review the use of Emergency Powers. 

1.2 At the meeting held on 15th September 2020 Cabinet requested continued reports 
to provide updates on the present COVID position.  

2 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS - COVID POSITION 

2.1 A further national lockdown was put in place from 6th January 2021. This was 
verbally reported to Cabinet at the meeting on 12th January 2021.  

2.2 The key message is to stay at home as much as possible, and only go out for the 
following reasons: 

5

Agenda Item 6

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS
http://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=300&Year=0


2.2.1 Shopping for necessities. 

2.2.2 Going to work or to volunteer or provide charitable services if you can't work from 
home. 

2.2.3 Exercising with your household (or support bubble) or one other person, once a 
day and within your local area. 

2.2.4 To meet support or people in the childcare bubble (only if you're legally able to 
form one). 

2.2.5 To seek medical assistance (like going to your GP surgery or to a pharmacy). 

2.2.6 To avoid injury, illness or risk of harm (such as domestic violence). 

2.2.7 To go to school or other education or childcare settings (if eligible). 

2.3 People who are extremely clinically vulnerable to COVID-19 have been instructed 
(once again) to shield to protect themselves. This includes anyone classed as 
clinically extremely vulnerable by their GP, or anyone with certain health 
conditions which increase their vulnerability to COVID 19. 

2.4 People in this group should minimise time spent outdoors, only going out for 
medical appointments or exercise. Wherever possible, other tasks like shopping 
should be carried out on their behalf, to minimise the risk of a vulnerable person 
catching coronavirus. 

2.5 Throughout January and at the time of writing there is significant pressure on the 
health care system. For this reason the Prime Minister announced that there 
should be no expectation that restrictions will be changed until 8th March. It was 
also made clear that any changes from this date will be gradual with priority being 
given to education provision. Again the changes to the rules in relation to 
education are expected to be phased in slowly.  

2.6 At the time of writing cases in Rutland stand at 185 per 100,000 of Population.  

2.7 Most importantly there continues to be a significant pressure on the health care 
system. While nationally and in Rutland there has been a fall in the number of 
cases this will take some significant time to translate in to fewer cases in hospitals 
including those that serve Rutland.  

2.8 As in previous reports a small number of decisions continue to be made under 
emergency powers to enable a timely response. These relate predominantly to 
business grants, the vaccination centre and more recently the asymptomatic 
testing centre. The vast majority of decisions are being made through the 
Council’s democratic decision making structures. The Decision Log is regularly 
made available to all Councillors to ensure accountability and transparency in the 
use of the emergency powers.  

2.9 The Council continues working closely with partners to ensure that we support the 
delivery of the vaccination programme. 

2.10 In addition to the vaccination centre the Council is now also working to provide an 
asymptomatic testing centre to enable the provision of targeted testing to people 

6



who cannot work from home during lockdown.  

3 CONSULTATION 

3.1 Through the Member briefings all Councillors have been kept abreast of the 
position in relation to the Pandemic. 

3.2 Parish Council briefings were also activated weekly once again through the period 
of national lockdown and are now being delivered every 2 weeks. 

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

4.1 The report provides an update on information regarding the actions taken and the 
Constitutional position. 

5 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 

6 LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS  

6.1 These are contained in the Report  

7 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 None arising from the report. 

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

8.1 An Equality Impact Questionnaire is not required for this report. 

9 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  

9.1 There are no community safety implications arising from this report. 

10 HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no health and wellbeing implications arising from this report. 

11 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

11.1 That Cabinet note the current present position in Rutland regarding COVID 19 and 
the continued use of the Civil Emergency Delegation.  

12 BACKGROUND PAPERS   

12.1 There are no background papers for the report. 

13 APPENDICES  

13.1 None 

 

7



A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.  

 

8



Report No:14/2021 
PUBLIC REPORT 

CABINET 

16th February 2021 

LOCAL BUS SERVICE CONTRACT AWARD 

Report of the Strategic Director for places 

Strategic Aim: All 

Key Decision: Yes Forward Plan Reference: FP/250920 

Exempt Information N/A 

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible: 

Mrs L Stephenson, Portfolio Holder for Culture & 
Leisure, Highways & Transportation and Road Safety 

Contact 
Officer(s): 

Emma Odabas, Transport 
Operations Manager 

01572 720923 
eodabas@rutland.gov.uk 

Ward Councillors All 

 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Cabinet: 

1. Approves the procurement model and criteria for the award of public bus service 
contracts 12 & 47.  

2. Delegates authority to the Strategic Director for Places, in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member with portfolio for Culture & Leisure, Highways & Transportation and 
Road Safety, to award the contract resulting from this procurement. 

 

  

9

Agenda Item 7

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS
http://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=300&Year=0


1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

1.1 This report sets out the process and proposed award criteria for the procurement of 
local bus service contracts 12 & 47, along with recommendations for approval and 
delegation of final award. 

2 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS 

2.1 The service 12 bus service is a 2-hourly bus service which operates Monday-
Saturday between 7am – 7pm, to the timetable below: 

 
SERVICE 12         

Monday - Saturday         

S Saturday only      MF S  

Stamford College - - - - - 1645* - - 

Stamford Bus Station 0735 0930 1130 1330 1530 1655 1640 1740 

Tinwell, Church 0739 0933 1133 1333 1533 1658 1643 1743 

Ketton, The Fountain 0743 0938 1138 1338 1538 1703 1648 1748 

Edith Weston, Manton Rd 0752 0947 1147 1347 1547 1712 1657 1757 

North Luffenham, Digby Dr 0757 0953 1153 1353 1553 1718 1703 1803 

South Luffenham 0800 0957 1157 1357 1557 1722 1707 1807 

Barrowden, Village Green 0803 1001 1201 1401 1601 1726 1711 1810 

Morcott 0807 1004 1204 1404 1604 1729 1714 1812 

Glaston, Bus Stop 0811 1008 1208 1408 1608 1733 1718 1815 

Uppingham North St East 0815 1015 1215 1415 1615 1740 1725 1820 

Uppingham Comm College 0820*        

         

Uppingham Comm Coll - - - - - 1535* - 

Uppingham NSE 0740 0835 1030 1230 1430 1540 1650 

Glaston, Bus Shelter 0745 0840 1035 1235 1435 1545 1655 

Morcott 0749 0844 1039 1239 1439 1549 1659 

Barrowden, Village Grn 0753 0848 1043 1243 1443 1553 1703 

South Luffenham 0757 0852 1047 1247 1447 1557 1707 

North Luffenham 0800 0855 1050 1250 1450 1600 1710 

Edith Weston 0806 0901 1056 1256 1456 1606 1716 

Ketton, Village Shop 0816 0911 1106 1306 1506 1616 1724 

Tinwell, Church 0822 0917 1112 1312 1512 1622 1730 

Stamford, Bus Station 0829 0924 1119 1319 1519 1629 1735 

Stamford College 0839* - - - - - - 

         

    

  

         
Service 47 is a 1 return journey service which transport fare-paying non-entitled 

students to Peterborough and offers an early employment link to residents.  

   

SERVICE 47    

Monday - Friday    

Whissendine, Oakham Road 0625 Peterborough, The Kings School 1600* 

Langham, Melton Road 0629 Peterborough, Queensgate Bus Station 1605 

10



Oakham, John Street Bus Station 0635 Thorpe Road, The Session House 1611 

Preston 0643 Longthorpe, Fox & Hounds 1615 

Belton 0650 Castor, Royal Oak 1619 

Wardley, A47 Lay-By 0653 Ailsworth, Wheatsheaf 1621 

Uppingham, Leicester Rd/Shepherds 
Way 

0701 Wansford, Old North Road Bus Shelter 1627 

Uppingham, North Street East (arr) 0703 Duddington 1633 

Uppingham, North Street East (dep) 0705 Barrowden, Main Street/Kings Lane 1640 

Glaston 0709 South Luffenham, Stamford Road 1643 

Morcott 0713 Morcott 1647 

South Luffenham, Stamford Road 0717 Glaston 1651 

Barrowden, Main Street/Kings Lane 0721 Uppingham, North Street East 1656 

Duddington 0727 Uppingham, Leicester Road/Shepherds 
Way 

1659 

Wansford, Old North Road Bus 
Shelter 

0733 Wardley, A47 Lay-By 1706 

Ailsworth, Wheatsheaf 0741 Belton 1709 

Castor, Royal Oak 0743 Preston 1717 

Longthorpe, Fox & Hounds 0750 Manton 1720 

Thorpe Road, The Session House 0757 Oakham, John Street Bus Station 1728 

Peterborough, Queensgate Bus 
Station 

0800 Langham, Melton Road 1733 

Peterborough, The Kings School 0805* Whissendine, Oakham Road 1738 

    

* Schooldays Only    

 

2.2 Rutland Council first introduced both service 12 and service 47 bus services in 
2001 after receiving grant funding awarded by the Department for Transport for  
rural bus kick-start projects.  The services were set up and subsidised fully via the 
grant funding for a period of 3 years.   

2.3 For the period covering 2004 – 2019, the routes have been re-tendered 3 times 
and service 12 has continued to operate without timetable reductions whereas 
service 47 was reduced due to lack of passenger usage in 2011. The current 
contracted operator of both services is Centrebus Ltd.   

2.4 The services are 100% subsidised by Rutland Council’s public transport budget. 

2.5 The annual passenger usage on these bus services are approximately:  

Service 12 – 29,600 passenger journeys per annum of which 7,660 journeys made 
by concessionaires. 

Service 47 – 10,600 passenger journeys per annum with zero use by 
concessionary pass holders.   

2.6 The current fixed annual subsidy of service 12 is £127,712.  The average annual 
concessionary travel reimbursement cost is £9,600. This works out as a per trip 
subsidy of £4.64. 

The current fixed annual subsidy of service 47 is £38,147. The average annual 
concessionary travel reimbursement cost is £0.00. This works out as a per trip 

11



subsidy of £3.60. 

2.7 As Rutland County Council no longer supports entitled transport on 
denominational grounds, there are no scholar movements on the service for which 
the authority has a responsibility for despite 99.5% of the usage being made by 
students travelling to the Kings School in Peterborough by parental choice. 

2.8 The service 12 contract is due to expire in August 2021 and service 47 is due to 
expire in September 2021. 

2.9 These services are to be reviewed, along with all subsidised bus services as part 
of Passenger Transport Strategy project where service provision and best value 
will be investigated in detail.  

2.10 A procurement exercise must take place in spring 2021 with contract award 
completed by June 2021 in case alternatives are not approved in that time frame. 

2.11 A minimum period of 45 days is required for the Traffic Commissioners registration 
process and therefore last minute alterations are not an option. 

2.12 Contracts would be offered for a period of 5 years to encourage interest from 
bidders but be subject to our standard local bus service contract notice of 
termination by either party of 3 months to ensure the best price if the service/s 
remain.  

3 CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 

What is being procured? 
 

3.1 The service 12 and service 47 bus services – as outlined in 2.1. The service 
timetables will not be amended at this point to avoid making changes to the 
service twice in close succession (as a result of the retendering and as a result of 
the Passenger Transport Strategy implementation). Therefore we are looking to 
procure a like for like service at this time to ensure continuity for passengers.  
 
Contract length 
 

3.2 Local bus contracts tend to be offered for a period of 5 years wherever possible as 
this attracts more interest and more reasonable subsidy prices from operators, but 
routes can be offered anywhere between 1 year up to 5 years dependant on the 
purpose and/or funding available for the route.  
 

3.3 In this instance, due to the pending review of passenger transport service support, 
service 12 & 47 will be offered for a period of 5 years each and be subject to the 
standard local bus contract notice of termination by either party of 3 months.  The 
contract will be offered on a minimum subsidy basis only which ensures fixed 
payments with the operator retaining on-board revenue.  

 

Notice of termination 
 

3.4  This contract may be terminated by either party providing that they give a 3-month 
notice period. This should give some assurance that the contract can be ended 
within the 5-year period. 

12



 
Contract value 
 

3.5 The estimated contract value over the lifetime of the contracts estimated is 
£829,295.  This value represents 5 years of fixed minimum subsidy contract costs 
combined.   

 
4 PROCUREMENT MODEL 

4.1 The procurement will follow the OJEU process in line with the Council’s Contract 
Procedure Rules as the value of the contract combined is above the EU threshold. 

4.1.1 The timetable for the process is set out in Appendix A and the award criteria are set 
out in Appendix B. 

5 AWARD CRITERIA 

Initial screening/ qualifying criteria 

5.1 Companies must meet quality criteria (initial screening) in order to be eligible to 
tender. These have been developed with support from the Welland procurement 
unit and are shown in Appendix A.  To obtain and retain a PSV operator’s license 
(O’ License) involves meeting criteria relating to operator financial standing, good 
repute and strict operational standards.  Compliance checks are carried out by 
both the DVSA and the relevant Traffic Commission in the form of initial screening 
and on-going checks and therefore quality standard checks to hold an O’ licence 
are in place externally. This removes the requirement for RCC to further stipulate 
localised quality standards for tendering other than the pass/fail criteria of holding 
the correct license/s. Further information on the criteria for obtaining transport 
licensing is available online: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/psv-
operator-licensing-a-guide-for-operators-psv437 

Basis of award 

5.2 Contracts will be awarded on the basis of cost. The contract specification will 
therefore state that contract will be awarded to the lowest priced bidder that is able 
to deliver the contract having met all the qualifying criteria. 

6 CONSULTATION  

6.1 Developed in conjunction with portfolio holder. No public consultation required at 
this point as no changes to service levels.  Full public consultation on any potential 
changes to public bus services will be undertaken as part of the passenger 
transport review.  

7 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

7.1 The contract awards could be brought back to Cabinet for approval rather than 
delegated to the Portfolio Holder and Strategic Director for Places. However the 
award will be made in line with the criteria within this report and therefore the 
outcome should not differ. This approach would delay the award and may lead to a 
gap in service provision. 

7.2 Not approving procurement and award – this would result in a loss of available 

13

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/psv-operator-licensing-a-guide-for-operators-psv437
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/psv-operator-licensing-a-guide-for-operators-psv437


public transport services to residents until an alternative could be agreed, procured 
and put in place. 

8 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 The contract to be awarded will be funded via the existing public transport budgets 
with no requirement for additional resource.  

9 LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS  

9.1 The Local Bus Service procurement process has been drawn up with the Welland 
Procurement Unit, in line with the requirements of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 and the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. 

10 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

10.1 An EIA screening form has been completed and a full assessment is not required.  

11 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 The Council is required by Section 17 of the Crime & Disorder Act 1998 to take 
into account community safety implications. No implications have been found.  

12 HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS  

12.1 None. 

13 ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS  

13.1 None.   

14 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS  

14.1 A data protection impact assessment has not been completed as there are no data 
protection implications. 

15 SOCIAL VALUE IMPLICATIONS 

The nature and scale of the contract means that local and national operators are 
will be able to submit a tender price.  

16 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

16.1 Having a bus service in place gives people an alternative to driving via private car 
which may have environmental benefits. Enabling people to choose to use the car 
over the bus is therefore likely to have a positive impact on climate change. 

17 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

17.1 In order for the procurement process to commence, the award criteria needs to be 
approved by Cabinet. The criteria have been carefully considered to ensure that 
providers successful in the process are capable of meeting the requirements and 
can deliver appropriate quality services in Rutland. 

14



17.2 It is recommended that power to award the contract is delegated to the Strategic 
Director for Places in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Culture & Leisure, 
Highways & Transportation and Road Safety. This will speed up the process and 
decisions will be made in line with criteria in this report. 

18 BACKGROUND PAPERS  

18.1 There are no background papers relevant to this report.  

19 APPENDICES 

19.1 Appendix A – Procurement Timetable  

19.2 Appendix B – Award Criteria  

 

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.  

 

15



Appendix A.  Procurement Timetable 

 

Local Bus Service Contracts 2021 

Action By When 

Cabinet Approval for Award Criteria 16th February 2020 

[ OJEU Notice published /PIN published ]  

Invitation to Tender published   

Deadline for questions from bidders  

Deadline for responses to questions  

Tender submissions deadline  

Evaluation of Tenders   

Clarification meetings (if required)  

Approval of Contract Awards  

Notification of award/start of standstill  

End of standstill  

Contract award  

Contract start date  

 

16



Appendix B.  Award Criteria 

 

Criteria Weighting 

1.Price 100% 

2 Quality  PASS/FAIL  

 

1. Price – Best value annual subsidy price. Based on daily rate x 305 operational days per 
annum.  

CRITERIA FOR ASSESSING QUALITY (Selection questions) 
 

Question 

No. 
Section Headings and Sub-Headings 

Maximum 

Available 

Section 

Score  

Weighting 

Within Sub-

Heading 

1.1 

1.1 (a) 

1.1 (b) (i) 

1.1 (b) (ii) 

1.1 (c) 

1.1 (d) 

1.1 (e) 

1.1 (f) 

1.1 (g) 

1.1 (h) 

1.1 (i) (i) 

1.1 (i) (ii) 

1.1 (j) (i) 

 

1.1 (j) (ii) 

1.1 (k) 

1.1 (m) 

1.1 (n) 

1.1 (o) 

1.1 (p) 

Potential Supplier Information 

Full name 

Registered office 

Registered website address 

Trading status 

Date of registration 

Company registration number 

Charity registration number 

Head Office DUNS number 

Registered VAT number 

Appropriate professional/trade registration 

If yes, details 

Legal required for professional/trade registration 

If yes, details 

Relevant classifications 

SME 

Persons of Significant Control 

Details of immediate parent company 

Details of ultimate parent company 

0% 0% 

1.2 

1.2 (a) (i) 

 

1.2 (a) (ii) 
1.3 (a) (iii) 

1.2 (b) (i) 

1.2 (b) (ii) 

Bidding Model 

Bidding as lead contact for a group of economic 

operators 

Name of group of economic operators 

Proposed legal structure 

Use of Sub-Contractors 

Sub-Contractor details 

0% 0% 

17



Question 

No. 
Section Headings and Sub-Headings 

Maximum 

Available 

Section 

Score  

Weighting 

Within Sub-

Heading 

1.3 

1.3 (a)-(h) 

Contact Details and Declaration 

Details completed 
0% 0% 

2 

2.1 (a) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.1 (b) 

Grounds for Mandatory Exclusion 

Regulations 57(1) and (2): 

Criminal organisation 

Corruption 

Fraud 

Terrorist offences 

Money laundering 

Child labour/human trafficking 

Breach of environmental obligations 

Breach of social obligations 

Breach of labour obligations 

Bankrupt/insolvency or winding-up proceedings 

Grave professional misconduct 

Agreements with other economic operators to 

distort competition 

Conflict of interest 

Preparation of procurement procedure 

Early termination of contract 

/damages/comparable sanctions 

In breach of obligations re: tax/social security 

contributions  

Measures taken 

Pass/Fail Pass/Fail 

2.2 Self-cleaning measures Pass/Fail Pass/Fail 

2.3 (a) 

2.3 (b) 

Breach of tax/social security obligations 

If yes, further details 
Pass/Fail Pass/Fail 

3 

 

3.1 (a) 

3.1 (b) 

3.1 (c) 

3.1 (d) 

3.1 (e) 

3.1 (f) 

3.1 (g) 

3.1 (h) 

3.1 (i) 

3.1 (j) 

3.2 

Grounds for Discretionary Exclusion 

Regulation 57 (8) 

Breach of environmental obligations 

Breach of social obligations 

Breach of labour obligations 

Financial administration 

Guilty of grave professional misconduct 

Distorting competition 

Conflict of interest 

Involved in preparation of procurement 

Significant or persistent deficiencies 

Statement response 

If yes, self-cleaning 

Pass/Fail Pass/Fail 

18



Question 

No. 
Section Headings and Sub-Headings 

Maximum 

Available 

Section 

Score  

Weighting 

Within Sub-

Heading 

Question 

No. Section Headings and Sub-Headings 

Maximum 

Available 

Section Score  

Weighting 

Within Sub-

Heading 

4 and 5 

4.1 

 

4.2 

5.1 

5.2 

5.3 

Economic and Financial Standing 

Audited accounts or alternative means of 

demonstrating financial status 

Minimal financial threshold 

Parent company accounts 

Parent company guarantee 

Bank guarantee 

Pass/Fail Pass/Fail 

6 

6.1 

 

 

6.2 

Technical and Professional Ability 

Details of up to three contracts 

Evidence of healthy supply chains maintained 

with sub-contractors 

Sub contract supply chain management 

0% 0% 

7 

 

7.1 

7.2 

Requirements under Modern Slavery Act 

2015 

Relevant commercial organisation 

Compliant with annual reporting requirements 

Pass/Fail Pass/Fail 

8 Additional Questions:   

8.1 Insurance  Pass / Fail Pass/Fail 

 

CRITERIA FOR ASSESSING TENDER RESPONSES 

Only those Bidders which pass the Selection Questions will have their tenders evaluated using this 

scheme. 

Section Headings and Sub-Headings 
Maximum Score 

Available 

Weighting Within 

Sub-Heading 

Quality 

Company vehicle compliance 

Employee licensing  

0% 

 

Pass/Fail 

Pass/Fail 

* Price (exclusive of VAT)   

Route pricing 100% 100% 

   

Total 100%  

Pricing should be shown day or operation. Unit rates and prices must be quoted in pounds and 

decimals of a pound. Such decimals need to be restricted to two decimal places.  

19



For the purpose of giving feedback to bidders at the end of the process, pricing will be converted to 

a percentage score using the following formula: 

Lowest price for this route        x   100% 

Bidder’s price for this route 

So if the lowest price offered for a given route is from Bidder A at £20.00, and the price offered by 

Bidder B is £40.00: 

Then Bidder A will score  £20.00    x   100%  =  100%   Contract awarded 
         £20.00 
 
And Bidder B will score    £20.00    x   100%  =   50% 
         £40.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20



Report No: 25/2021 
PUBLIC REPORT 

CABINET 

16 February 2021 

INTEGRATED TRANSPORT CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

Report of the Strategic Director for Places  

Strategic Aim: All 

Key Decision: Yes Forward Plan Reference: FP/091020 

Exempt Information No 

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible: 

Mrs L Stephenson, Portfolio Holder for Culture & 
Leisure, Highways, Transportation & Road Safety and 
Environment 

 

Contact Officer(s): Emma Odabas, Transport 
Operations Manager and Interim 
Senior Transport Manager 

01572 720923 
eodabas@rutland.gov.uk 

Ward Councillors All 

 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Cabinet: 

1. Note the current programme of work and timeframe for updating the programme. 

2. Approve the request to allocate £900,000 towards the 2021/22 Integrated Transport 
Capital Programme.  

3. Approve the decision making proposals and requested delegated powers. 

  

21

Agenda Item 8

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS
http://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=300&Year=0


1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

1.1 This report sets out: 

1.2 The current Integrated Transport Capital Programme (ITCP) of work and 
timeframe for updating the programme,  

1.3 The current and proposed funding allocated to the ITCP, and 

1.4 The decision making process and delegated powers relating to the Integrated 
Transport Block funding. 
 

2 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS  

2.1 This report follows on from a report taken to Cabinet on 12th January 2021 
(Cabinet report number 134/2020) which set out revisions to the Highway and 
Transport Concern Process, along with clarifications surrounding timeframes and 
distinctions between: 

2.2 The Highway and Transport Concern Process (HTCP) – a mechanism for our 
communities to highlight any concerns they may have regarding traffic 
management, walking and cycling infrastructure, parking provision or public 
transport infrastructure.  This is a responsive process: analyzing concerns and 
(where possible and reasonable) offering engineering solutions to address them.  

2.3 The Highway and Transport Working Group - a sounding board to discuss any 
contentious or complex highway or transport matters. 

2.4 The Integrated Transport Capital Programme - the name given to the programme 
of works delivered through funding received from the Department for Transport 
under the Integrated Transport Block. 
 

3 PROGRAMME OF WORKS 

SCOPE 

3.1 For transparency purposes, an ITCP of work will be published on our website – 
identifying schemes due to be taken forward to construction or delivery and funded 
via the Integrated Transport Block (discussed in section 5). 

3.2 The ITCP will include capital schemes emanating from the following sources: 

3.3 Community concerns raised through the HTCP. 

3.4 Safety schemes resulting from the identification and review of: 

- Accident cluster sites 

- Fatal and serious accident sites 

- Pro-active road safety engineering programmes 

3.5 Strategically identified schemes, relating to Member priorities and within the remit 

22



of Highways and Transport services, including but not limited to:  

- Highway safety schemes (for example speeding and standardised traffic 
calming programmes) 

- Integrated transport schemes (including sustainable travel infrastructure),  

- Parking schemes,  

- Passenger transport infrastructure,  

- In-house fleet,  

- Public rights of way schemes and 

- Accessibility schemes. 

 
PUBLISHING FREQUENCY 

3.6 Schemes identified through the HTCP are demand / response led initiatives 
requiring feasibility work to ascertain the matters that can be addressed with 
engineering solutions. As such, schemes are not ‘off the shelf’ and have to be 
reviewed before being programmed in for delivery (if appropriate). Therefore the 
Integrated Transport Capital Programme of works is constantly updating. 

3.7 To ensure officer time and funding is prioritised where it is most needed, it is 
proposed that the programme of works be updated on a quarterly basis (and 
reviewed at quarterly HTWG meetings), as per the schedule below: 

2020/2021 

3.8 Period 4: by 31st March 2021 – in Cabinet report (identifying key areas of focus for 
the year 2021/2022 (appendix A)). 

2021/2022 

3.9 Period 1: by 30th June 2021 

3.10 Period 2: by 30th September 2021  

3.11 Period 3: by 31st December 2021  

3.12 Period 4: by 31st March 2022 – in Cabinet report (identifying key areas of focus for 
the year 2022/2023). 
 

COMMUNITY CONCERNS 

3.13 Within the January 2021 report to Cabinet, a categorisation process was approved 
as follows, enabling funding to be directed towards those schemes most in need. 

3.14 Through the initial assessment, works to address community concerns will be 
classified as one of the four categories below: 

23



3.15 Essential – a scheme that must be delivered as soon as possible to address actual 
harm to persons i.e. serious injuries 

3.16 Necessary – works that are required to address sites that historically have injury or 
maintenance harm but are not currently occurring, but may occur again if not acted 
upon. 

3.17 Beneficial – works that would provide benefit to the current situation but are not 
addressing a recorded history of harm. These will be schemes where the concerns 
or perception relating to a location feeling unsafe can be addressed.  

3.18 Amenity – works that would provide amenity opportunities only. 

3.19 When preparing the ITCP, community concern schemes identified as ‘essential’ or 
‘necessary’ will be prioritised over those identified as ‘beneficial’ or ‘amenity’. 
Indeed, community concern schemes identified as ‘beneficial’ or ‘amenity’ are 
unlikely to receive funding through the Integrated Transport Block, but will be kept 
on a list for consideration should grant funding or developer contributions become 
available in the future. 

3.20 Alternatively, within any given financial year where all essential and necessary 
community concerns, safety schemes and strategically identified schemes have 
been, or are being addressed and there is an underspend then a list of ‘beneficial’ 
or ‘amenity’ community concern schemes will be technically assessed by officers. 
Officers will report their recommendations to the HTWG, and approval to add 
schemes to the ITCP will be sought via the decision making protocols and 
delegations outlined in sections 5 and 6. 
 

4 FUNDING ALLOCATIONS 

4.1 In recent years funding allocations have been split across a number of areas, each 
with a budget limit and relevant approval delegations. 

4.2 As time has progressed, the number of ‘pots’ from which schemes are approved 
has increased – making it harder to keep track of available funding and efficiently 
use the budget available. 

4.3 To simplify matters and ensure funding is spent where it has most benefit, it is 
proposed that moving forward, Highway and Transport schemes are funded from 
one pot (the remit and scope of which is outlined in section 3). It is requested that 
during 2021/22 this pot consists of £900,000 – to be taken from the current 
remaining balance of £1,109,493 (table 1). 

4.4 Up to the end of this current financial year, schemes will be funded and approved 
utilising the existing delegations in place as set out in Cabinet report 120/2019. At 
the end of the financial year, any outstanding approved capital projects will be 
closed down (approved capital projects currently stand at £944,700). Funds left 
over from these budgets will go back into the central pot, with approval to spend 
these sought in next year’s report to Cabinet. 

4.5 Each year, any underspend will be rolled forward.  
 

 

 

24



Table 1 – Current IT budget (as of January 2021) 

Opening balance as at 1st April 2020 £1,596,193 

Confirmed grant income 2020/21 £458,000 

Capital projects already approved (£944,700) 

Grant award 2021/22 Currently unknown 

Remaining balance £1,109,493 

Requested for use during 2021/22 £900,000 

 

5 DECISION MAKING 

5.1 To simplify and speed up scheme delivery, it is requested that the following 
decision-making protocols be agreed in relation to the ITCP: 

5.2 Under £10,000: Schemes up to a value of £10,000 per scheme, up to a total value 
of £300,000, to be approved by the budget manager for the ITCP (currently the 
Senior Highway Manager). 

5.3 Between £10,001 and £200,000: £600,000 to be allocated to schemes with a 
value between £10,001 and £200,000. Schemes to be approved via the delegated 
approvals requested in section 6. For clarification, this would cover the need for an 
additional £80,000 to deliver the second phase of our in house fleet replacement 
programme, as identified in Cabinet paper 120/2019 and secure circa £50,000 for 
consultancy support to complete our Local cycling and walking infrastructure plan 
(which will be used to identify future walking and cycling infrastructure priorities).  

5.4 Larger projects with an estimated value over £200,000 will be brought to Cabinet 
(and Council where required) separately for consideration. 

5.5 It should be noted that the HTWG is not a decision making body. Schemes and 
concerns may be highlighted to the Group for consideration, however they do not 
have authority to approve schemes. 
 

6 DELEGATIONS 

6.1 To help speed up approval of schemes, it is requested that Cabinet approve the 
following requests for delegated power:  

6.2 Delegate authority to the Strategic Director for Places in consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder for Culture and Leisure, Environment, Highways & 
Transportation & Road Safety to: 

- Approve the design, construction/ implementation and spend of/ on ITCP 
schemes with a value between £10,001 and £200,000. 

- Create or modify traffic regulation orders in order to deliver schemes or 
works associated with the Highway and Transport teams (and sub areas 
– including but not limited to parking), subject to the Traffic Regulation 

25

https://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/mgExecPostDetails.aspx?ID=290
https://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/mgExecPostDetails.aspx?ID=290


Order (TRO) complying with DfT guidance. 
 

7 CONSULTATION  

7.1 This report has been developed in consultation with the Strategic Director for 
Places and the Portfolio Holder for Culture and Leisure, Environment, 
Highways & Transportation & Road Safety, along with senior officers from 
transport and highways. 

7.2 Consultation and communications associated with the HTCP can be found in 
cabinet report 134/2020. 
 

8 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS   

8.1 A - Move to a programme of work that is approved yearly – this approach was 
historically utilised but steered away from due to the impact it had on delivery 
timescales. 

8.2 B – Do not allocate any of the funding to the ITCP.  The funding would be 
available to allocate to another council project. This option would inhibit us from 
undertaking our statutory duties outlined in section 10. 

8.3 C – Roll all funds over to 2022/23 – this would delay the implementation of 
schemes that have been identified as Highways concerns by local communities. 
 

9 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

9.1 Approved schemes identified on the ITCP will be funded through the Integrated 
Transport Capital Block grant, which is provided to highway authorities by the 
Department for Transport (DfT) to enable them to: 

9.2 Deliver the programme of works and policies set down within the Local Transport 
Plan (Transport Act 2000); and  

9.3 Carry out studies into accidents arising out of the use of vehicles on the highway 
and take appropriate measures to prevent such accidents (Road Traffic Act 1988). 

9.4 Although this funding is not ring fenced this report proposes using it to fulfil these 
purposes.  

9.5 It should be noted that no indication has currently been received regarding future 
funding allocations from 2021/22 onwards. 

9.6 Use of the budget may lead to revenue savings as a result of implementing traffic 
calming and road safety schemes that reduce the number of accidents on our 
roads, and in turn, reduce damage to highway furniture - thus saving on 
maintenance costs. 
 

10 LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS 

10.1 Cabinet approval is sought regarding the decision making process and delegated 

26

https://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/mgExecPostDetails.aspx?ID=290
https://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/mgExecPostDetails.aspx?ID=290


powers outlined in sections 5 and 6 respectively.  

10.2 The DfT states that Integrated transport (IT) funding is provided to enable the 
Council to fulfil the following statutory duties: 

10.3 Deliver the programme of works and policies set down within the local transport 
plan (Transport Act 2000); and 

10.4 Carry out studies into accidents arising out of the use of vehicles on the highway 
and take appropriate measures to prevent such accidents (Road Traffic Act 1988). 
 

11 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 A Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) has not been undertaken for this 
report as one was previously completed for Cabinet report 134/2020 (relating to 
the process). 
 

12 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

12.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not been completed as a screening 
Equality Impact Questionnaire was completed for Cabinet report 134/2020 
(relating to the process) and no adverse or other significant issues were found that 
required a full Equality Impact Assessment to be carried out. 
 

13 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  

13.1 Road Safety is one of the Safer Rutland Partnership’s key priorities, particularly 
combating speeding and anti-social driving in the County’s villages and market 
towns.  Linked to this the Road Safety Partnership promotes a number of 
initiatives and campaigns to improve road safety including community speed 
watch. 

13.2   The Council and its partners also investigate KSI (killed or seriously injured) 
accident sites to identify if there is scope to undertake improvements that may 
reduce the number of accidents at these sites. 

13.3 Some schemes may result in road safety improvements. 
 

14 HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS  

14.1 Some schemes emanating from the ITCP may encourage walking and cycling, 
which in turn has the potential to improve health.  

14.2 A number of the schemes being considered could improve wellbeing due to 
improvements that tackle both perceived and actual speeding and traffic problems. 
 

15 ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS  

15.1 Environmental implications 

27



15.2 Where engineering works take place, consideration will be given to the impact on 
the environment and climate. In larger schemes, where necessary, the need for an 
environmental assessment and/ or habitat regulation assessments will be 
considered. 

15.3 Human Resource implications 

15.4 Should the number of concerns continue to increase, additional resourcing may be 
required. 
 

16 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS   

16.1 The recommendations are put forward with a view to: 

16.2 Providing funding to enable us to fulfil our statutory duties, 

16.3 Enable us to continue delivering schemes that have the potential to improve 
perceived and actual road safety. 

16.4 Speeding up the process and ensuring a more responsive service, and 

16.5 Ensure the most efficient use of funding. 
 

17 BACKGROUND PAPERS  

17.1 Cabinet report: 120/2019 

17.2 Cabinet report: 134/2020 
 

18 APPENDICES  

18.1 Appendix A: Integrated Transport Capital Programme of work (2020/21 – period 4) 

 

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.  

 

 

 

28



Reference Location  Category Concern Funding commiteEstimated cost
ITCP/2017/13 Lyndon Top, Manton Beneficial Lack of dedicated cycle route Y £45,000
ITCP/2018/01 Northern footway on the A6121, Ketton - approximately between Chater Lodge and TBeneficial Safety concerns for cyclists and pedestrians N £5,000
ITCP/2018/03 the A6121 (Main Street) and Casterton Lane, Tinwell Beneficial Speeding vehicles causing concern for safety Y £3,000
ITCP/2018/04 Church Road and Empingham Road, Ketton Beneficial Traffic management and civil enforcement revieN £5,000
ITCP/2019/07 Manor Road, Stocken Hall Road and Clipsham Road, Stretton Beneficial Speeding traffic Y £21,000
ITCP-2019-31 Road between Toll Bar towards Little Casterton, Little Casterton Necessary Speeding traffic Y £5,000
ITCP-2019-32 Village entrances on A6121 from Bourne and Stamford, Ryhall Necessary Speeding traffic Y £4,000
ITCP-2019-45 40mph buffer zones on the A606, Empingham Necessary Speeding Traffic and pedestrian safety Y £3,500
ITCP-2019-46 Various locations within Edith Weston Beneficial Speeding traffic and inconsiderate / dangerous Y £6,200
ITCP-2020-02 Junction of Woodside and Cottesmore Road, Ashwell Beneficial Junction visibility - road safety concern Y £1,000
ITCP-2020-05 Main Street outside village shop/village green, Greetham Beneficial Safety concerns over chicane priority sign N £5,000
ITCP-2020-06 Geeston settlement carriageway Beneficial Road Safety - lack of footway N £10,000
ITCP-2020-17 North side of Rogues Lane, opposite the recently installed bus stop/shelter, Cottesm Beneficial Accessibility - lack of dropped kerb N £2,000

Reference Location Concern Funding commiteEstimated cost
ITCP-2020-26 A6003, eastern village entrance, Caldecott N/A Road safety N £20,000

Reference Location Concern Funding commiteEstimated cost
NA NA N/A Fleet replacement programme cost N £80,000

NA Rutland - various N/A
Consultancy support to complete RCC's Local 
cycling and walking infrastructure plan N £50,000

Community concern schemes (those below relate to schemes agreed prior to process change)

Appendix A: Integrated transport capital programme of works (quarter 4 - as of January 2021)

Road safety schemes

Strategically identified schemes

29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report No: 30/2021 
PUBLIC REPORT 

CABINET 

16th February 2021 

HOME TO SCHOOL TRANSPORT CONTRACT AWARD 

Report of the Strategic Director for Places  

Strategic Aim: All 

Key Decision: Yes Forward Plan Reference: FP/250920 

Exempt Information No 

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible: 

Cllr L Stephenson, Portfolio Holder for Culture & 
Leisure, Highways & Transportation and Road Safety 

Contact 
Officer(s): 

Emma Odabas, Transport 
Operations Manager 

01572 720923 
eodabas@rutland.gov.uk 

Ward Councillors All 

 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Cabinet: 

1. Approves the procurement model (section 4 and appendix C) and criteria for the 
award of home to school transport (section 5 and appendix D) contracts for academic 
year 21/22. 

2. Delegates authority to the Strategic Director for Places in consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder for Culture & Leisure, Highways & Transportation and Road Safety 
to award the contracts resulting from this procurement. 

  

31

Agenda Item 9

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS
http://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=300&Year=0


1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

1.1 This report sets out the process and proposed award criteria for the procurement 
of home to school transport contracts, along with recommendations for approval 
and delegation of final award. 
 

2 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS 

2.1 Rutland County Council provides a range of transport services including:  home to 
school transport; transport for children with special educational needs; transport 
for children looked after; post-16 education transport; and public transport services 
in line with statute and Council policy.  

2.2 Alongside provision through the Council’s in-house commissioned transport fleet, 
this transport is also provided by a number of external organisations (bus, minibus 
and taxi) via a range of long term, short term and emergency contracts.   

2.3 Service requirements are reviewed each year alongside contract expiration dates. 
This takes place each year because contract requirements change on an annual 
basis. Some contracts (particularly those for SEND transport and children looked 
after where needs can change very regularly) are only awarded for 1 year, whilst 
others are awarded for up to 5. The contract review takes into account any 
changes to student distribution, school location, start or finish times, and school 
holidays.  

2.4 The transport team uses admissions data to ascertain which students will be likely 
to require transport for the next academic year, and their destination. This data is 
used to decide whether existing routes are appropriate, or whether efficiencies can 
be realised via route changes and alterations to vehicles.  Furthermore, the need 
for lone transport and passenger assistants on SEND routes is also reviewed to 
ensure the services specified are what is actually required.  This helps to reduce 
legacy arrangements when service user needs have changed over time and 
transport can now be delivered in a more economically advantageous way whilst 
still meeting the needs of service users. 

2.5 All potential contracts are sent out to tender, including those that will probably be 
operated by the Council’s in house-fleet. This enables the transport team to 
compare costs of providing the services in-house versus outsourcing and ensures 
the in-house fleet continues to offer good value for money. 

2.6 Although transport contracts are subject to continual review throughout the year to 
ensure best use of resources, the main review of requirements for the next 
academic year takes place between February and June.  Additions and 
amendments to existing transport contracts are usually lower in cost than 
introducing a new contract/route so this is considered first for new applicants.  For 
students with SEND and enhanced needs cases are dealt with on a case by case 
basis.  An outline of the steps taken in allocating transport is provided in Appendix 
A.  

 

 

32



3 CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 

What is being procured? 
 

3.1 Three types of service are being procured – broken down into procurement lots, as 
follows: 

 

 Lot 1 (school bus contracts)  

 Lot 2 (specialist transport taxis/minibuses) 

 Lot 3 (pence per mile taxis & buses)  
 
 

Contract length 
 

3.2 Each individual route has its own contract length based on the requirements of the 
students.  
 

3.3 Mainstream school bus contracts tend to be offered for a period of 5 years 
wherever possible as this attracts more interest from operators, but routes with 
fewer students can be offered anywhere between 1 year up to 5 years dependant 
on the future transport needs of the students concerned.   
 

3.4 Contracts are offered for the longest period possible to secure the best price.  
However sometimes this is only one year as funding is only secured for one year, 
or the student’s placement may be changing after one year.  Offering contracts for 
longer than necessary could increase costs and the administrative burden as each 
contract would still need reviewing year on year, and we are likely to end up 
paying operators during their notice periods when we may not be using the 
transport. 
 

3.5 Notice to terminate by both parties is 1 calendar month for all home to school 
transport contracts.  
 
Contract value 
 

3.6 The estimated contract value (over the lifetime of all contracts included in the 3 
lots) is £795,840. The breakdown is shown in appendix B. Only 2 of the contracts 
are of a value that would usually require cabinet approval, however details of all 
contracts that may require re-tendering this year are provided for context. The total 
value of these contracts is £302,100. 
 

3.7 Previous years advertised costs were: 
 

 2018/19 - £1,286,115.00 

 2019/20 - £1,122,500.00 

 2020/21 - £1,258,461.00 

3.8 A low number of school bus contracts are due to expire in 2021 which in turn 
lowers the overall estimated contract value. This value is estimated because the 
contracts tendered may change during the review process, and prices are based 
on previous tender prices and as such are subject to change during the tender 
process.  

33



 

4 PROCUREMENT MODEL 

4.1 Following the annual review of transport requirements an invitation to tender is 
issued in adherence with the OJEU process, with support from the Welland 
Procurement Unit. The procurement process will follow the OJEU process in line 
with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. The value of the contracts combined 
is above the EU threshold. 

4.2 Services usually operated by the Council’s in-house fleet are also advertised to 
provide assurance that in-house operation of those services demonstrates best 
value for money. 

4.3 The OJEU process also collects “pence per mile” quotes from operators in order 
that requests for quotations can be sent out to the bidders that are likely to provide 
the service at the lowest price for new or revised service requirements that occur 
during the course of the academic year. 

4.4 The timetable for the process for the academic year 2021/2022 is set out in 
Appendix C and the award criteria are set out in Appendix D. 

5 AWARD CRITERIA 

Initial screening/ quality criteria 

5.1 Companies must meet quality criteria (initial screening) in order to be eligible to 
tender. These have been developed with support from the Welland Procurement 
Unit.  The majority of them are fixed, however section 8 of the table in Appendix D 
allows for additional quality criteria that can be changed on a contract by contract 
basis depending on any specific contract requirements. Examples of this might 
include: being able to meet necessary specific insurance levels; being able to 
demonstrate vehicles are adequately maintained; and /or having passenger 
assistants with an appropriate level of training. To obtain and retain a PSV 
operator’s license (O’ License) involves meeting criteria relating to operator 
financial standing, good repute and strict operational standards.  Compliance 
checks are carried out by both the DVSA and the relevant Traffic Commission in 
the form of initial screening and on-going checks and therefore quality standard 
checks to hold an O’ licence are in place externally. This removes the requirement 
for RCC to further stipulate localised quality standards for tendering other than the 
pass/fail criteria of holding the correct license/s. Further information on the criteria 
for obtaining transport licensing is available online: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/psv-operator-licensing-a-guide-for-
operators-psv437 

Basis of award 

5.2 Contracts will be awarded on the basis of cost to a bidder who meets the quality 
criteria. Contract specifications will therefore state that contracts will be awarded to 
the lowest priced bidder that is able to deliver the contract. 

Power to award contracts 

5.3 Cabinet approval is sought to delegate authority to the Strategic Director for 

34

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/psv-operator-licensing-a-guide-for-operators-psv437
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/psv-operator-licensing-a-guide-for-operators-psv437


Places in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Culture & Leisure, Highways & 
Transportation and Road Safety to award the contracts resulting from this 
procurement. 

6 CONSULTATION  

6.1 This report has been developed in consultation with the portfolio holder.  

7 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

7.1 The contract award could be brought back to Cabinet for approval rather than 
delegated to the Portfolio Holder and Strategic Director for Places. However this 
approach would delay the award and may impact the Council’s ability to deliver its 
statutory obligations. 

8 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 The contracts to be awarded will be funded via the existing budget allocations for 
transportation of mainstream, special educational needs, post-16 and children 
looked after and will not require additional resource allocation.  

8.2 However most years special educational needs transport and children looked after 
transport report budget pressures due to overspend.  This is due to increasing 
demand and/or complexity of cases year on year in a demand led statutory service 
area. 

9 LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS  

9.1 The Home to School Transport procurement process has been drawn up with the 
Welland Procurement Unit, in line with the requirements of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 and the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules. 

9.2 Contained within the award process are 31 separate contracts. Many of these 
contracts would ordinarily fall within the delegated powers to award the lower 
value contracts. Officers, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder, have chosen not 
to exercise those powers in this case to ensure that Cabinet is able to fully 
consider matters and have a full picture when considering whether to authorise 
delegation of award or not.  

10 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

10.1 An EIA screening form has been completed and a full assessment is not required.  

11 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 The Council is required by Section 17 of the Crime & Disorder Act 1998 to take 
into account community safety implications. No implications found.  

12 HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS  

12.1 None. 

13 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS  

13.1 A data protection impact assessment has not been completed as there are no data 

35



protection implications. 

14 ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS  

14.1 TUPE (Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006) 
and subsequent amendments will not apply to the Home to School Transport 
procurement.   

15 SOCIAL VALUE IMPLICATIONS 

15.1 Many of the operators who bid for tenders are local companies meaning that 
income generated through the contracts is fed back into local communities.  By 
letting each contract as a separate contract smaller operators are not excluded 
from the process meaning that SMEs can fully participate in bidding for work. 

16 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

16.1 Children travelling on school buses are likely to have less of an environmental 
impact than those being driven to school.  Where possible, children are placed on 
public service vehicles hence their transport does not increase emissions because 
the vehicle is already traveling. As such school bus provision is likely to have a 
positive impact on climate change.  

17 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

17.1 All potential alternative options to deliver these statutory services have been 
considered, and the recommendation below to tender and award contracts 
represents the best option to enable us to deliver statutory services.    

17.2 Therefore in order for the procurement process to commence the award criteria 
(appendix D) needs to be approved by Cabinet. The criteria have been carefully 
considered to ensure that providers successful in the process are capable of 
meeting the necessary requirements and can deliver appropriate quality services 
in Rutland. 

17.3 It is recommended that power to award the contract is delegated to the Strategic 
Director for Places in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Culture & Leisure, 
Highways & Transportation and Road Safety. This will speed up the process and 
decisions will be made in line with criteria in this report. 

18 BACKGROUND PAPERS   

Transport Contract Award Criteria (33/2018), 20th February 2018.  

Home to school transport tenders (95/2019), 16th July 2019.  

19 APPENDICES  

19.1 Appendix A – Transport allocation process  

19.2 Appendix B – Contract Value  

19.3 Appendix C – Timetable  

36



19.4 Appendix D– Award Criteria 

 

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.  

37



Appendix A.  Transport allocation process 

Mainstream Transport – No enhanced need 

Stage 1:  

Is students home address within walking distance of an existing school bus contract or 
local bus service or could the route of an existing contract be amended to incorporate a 
new pick up point for the student?  Journey length and suitability of route to be 
investigated for compliance.  

Stage 2:  

If no existing bus transport, is there any availability to add student to an in-house run or to 
an existing taxi contract if revisions were possible? Contractual considerations and journey 
length would need to be investigated.  

Stage 3:  

If there is more than one option available for the student and the transport requirements, a 
comparison of costs takes place to compare the subsidy per student on for each option 
and provided the transport meets need, the transport option with the lowest subsidy for the 
student would be implemented.  

Enhanced need & SEND 

Stage 1:  

Can the student travel with others? Does the student require any assistive equipment? 
Does the student require a passenger assistant? 

Stage 2:  

As with mainstream students, the existing transport provision is looked at in detail to 
establish whether anything is in place which meets the transport requirement and student 
need and if more than 1 option available, a comparison of subsidy would take place.  

Stage 3:  

All new transport requirements that do not fit with existing provision are sent out to 
quotation/tender and price submissions are then compared against a price to operate with 
our in-house resource. This could include the recruitment of new staff, utilising staff car 
scheme vehicles either end of the day to achieve low operation costs or short term lease 
of an additional vehicle if it represents best value compared to external tender prices. 

In some cases, the investment of staff resource and funds into travel training can widen 
transport options and potentially reduce cost going forwards and the allocation of a 
personal travel budget will be considered with the approval of parents/guardians if this 
represents best value and the parent / guardian is willing to provide transport. 
 

38



Appendix B.  – Estimated Contracts List – expiring July 2021  

Contract Route Current 20/21 
contract cost 
per annum 

Overall 
contract 
cost 

Contract 
length 

SN2 Harington School £12,350 £12,350 1 Yr 

SN4 Isebrooke College £14,456 £72,280 5 Yrs 

SN10 Brooksby Melton College £7,841 £7,841 1 Yr 

SN11 Sustainable Land Trust £15,077 £15,077 1 Yr 

SN12 Red Kite School £14,300 £14,300 1 Yr 

SN13 Brooksby Melton College £3,876 £3,876 1 Yr 

SN14 Catmose College £20,800 £20,800 1 Yr 

SN16 Cambian School £19,791 £17,971 1 Yr 

SN18 Kingswood Academy £6,350 £6,350 1 Yr 

SN19 Wilds Lodge £15,834 £15,834 1 Yr 

SN23 Millgate School £9,085 £9,085 1 Yr 

SN24 Willowbank £14,280 £14,280 1 Yr 

SN25 Sketchley School £13,650 £13,650 1 Yr 

SN27 The Garth School £11,781 £11,781 1 Yr 

SN33 North Luffenham Primary £14,577 £14,577 1 Yr 

SN34 Willowbank School £16,172 £16,172 1 Yr 

SN37 Uppingham Community 
College 

£8,763 £8,763 1 Yr 

SN40 Longfield Acad/John 
Ferneley Sch 

£18,995 £18,955 1 Yr 

SN42 Casterton College £10,400 £10,400 1 Yr 

SN43 New College Stamford £3,600 £3,600 1 Yr 

SN56 Catmose College £6,500 £6,500 1 Yr 

SN61 Uppingham Community 
College 

£3,048 £3,048 1 Yr 

39



Contract Route Current 20/21 
contract cost 
per annum 

Overall 
contract 
cost 

Contract 
length 

MS361 Uppingham Community 
College 

£23,736 £118,680 5 Yrs 

MS368 Uppingham Community 
College 

£19,780 £98,900 5 Yrs 

MS340 Casterton College £36,684 £183,420 5 Yrs 

MS400 Catmose College £39,000 £39,000 1 Yr 

MS401 Catmose College £38,350 £38,350 1 Yr 

 

40



Appendix C.  Procurement Timetable 

 

Action By When 

Cabinet Approval for Award Criteria 16th February 2021 

[ OJEU Notice published /PIN published ]  

Invitation to Tender published   

Deadline for questions from bidders  

Deadline for responses to questions  

Tender submissions deadline  

Evaluation of Tenders   

Clarification meetings (if required)  

Approval of Contract Awards  

Notification of award/start of standstill  

End of standstill  

Contract award  

Contract start date  

 

41



Appendix D.  Award Criteria 

 

Criteria Weighting 

1.Price 100% 

2 Quality  PASS/FAIL  

 

Pricing based on price per day of operation.  

CRITERIA FOR ASSESSING QUALITY (selection questions) 
 

Question 

No. 
Section Headings and Sub-Headings 

Maximum 

Available 

Section 

Score  

Weighting 

Within Sub-

Heading 

1.1 

1.1 (a) 

1.1 (b) (i) 

1.1 (b) (ii) 

1.1 (c) 

1.1 (d) 

1.1 (e) 

1.1 (f) 

1.1 (g) 

1.1 (h) 

1.1 (i) (i) 

1.1 (i) (ii) 

1.1 (j) (i) 

 

1.1 (j) (ii) 

1.1 (k) 

1.1 (m) 

1.1 (n) 

1.1 (o) 

1.1 (p) 

Potential Supplier Information 

Full name 

Registered office 

Registered website address 

Trading status 

Date of registration 

Company registration number 

Charity registration number 

Head Office DUNS number 

Registered VAT number 

Appropriate professional/trade registration 

If yes, details 

Legal required for professional/trade registration 

If yes, details 

Relevant classifications 

SME 

Persons of Significant Control 

Details of immediate parent company 

Details of ultimate parent company 

0% 0% 

1.2 

1.2 (a) (i) 

 

1.2 (a) (ii) 
1.3 (a) (iii) 

1.2 (b) (i) 

1.2 (b) (ii) 

Bidding Model 

Bidding as lead contact for a group of economic 

operators 

Name of group of economic operators 

Proposed legal structure 

Use of Sub-Contractors 

Sub-Contractor details 

0% 0% 

1.3 Contact Details and Declaration 0% 0% 

42



Question 

No. 
Section Headings and Sub-Headings 

Maximum 

Available 

Section 

Score  

Weighting 

Within Sub-

Heading 

1.3 (a)-(h) Details completed 

2 

2.1 (a) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.1 (b) 

Grounds for Mandatory Exclusion 

Regulations 57(1) and (2): 

Criminal organisation 

Corruption 

Fraud 

Terrorist offences 

Money laundering 

Child labour/human trafficking 

Breach of environmental obligations 

Breach of social obligations 

Breach of labour obligations 

Bankrupt/insolvency or winding-up proceedings 

Grave professional misconduct 

Agreements with other economic operators to 

distort competition 

Conflict of interest 

Preparation of procurement procedure 

Early termination of contract 

/damages/comparable sanctions 

In breach of obligations re: tax/social security 

contributions  

Measures taken 

Pass/Fail Pass/Fail 

2.2 Self-cleaning measures Pass/Fail Pass/Fail 

2.3 (a) 

2.3 (b) 

Breach of tax/social security obligations 

If yes, further details 
Pass/Fail Pass/Fail 

3 

 

3.1 (a) 

3.1 (b) 

3.1 (c) 

3.1 (d) 

3.1 (e) 

3.1 (f) 

3.1 (g) 

3.1 (h) 

3.1 (i) 

3.1 (j) 

3.2 

Grounds for Discretionary Exclusion 

Regulation 57 (8) 

Breach of environmental obligations 

Breach of social obligations 

Breach of labour obligations 

Financial administration 

Guilty of grave professional misconduct 

Distorting competition 

Conflict of interest 

Involved in preparation of procurement 

Significant or persistent deficiencies 

Statement response 

If yes, self-cleaning 

Pass/Fail Pass/Fail 

Question 

No. Section Headings and Sub-Headings 

Maximum 

Available 

Section Score  

Weighting 

Within Sub-

Heading 

43



Question 

No. 
Section Headings and Sub-Headings 

Maximum 

Available 

Section 

Score  

Weighting 

Within Sub-

Heading 

4 and 5 

4.1 

 

4.2 

5.1 

5.2 

5.3 

Economic and Financial Standing 

Audited accounts or alternative means of 

demonstrating financial status 

Minimal financial threshold 

Parent company accounts 

Parent company guarantee 

Bank guarantee 

Pass/Fail Pass/Fail 

6 

6.1 

 

 

6.2 

Technical and Professional Ability 

Details of up to three contracts 

Evidence of healthy supply chains maintained 

with sub-contractors 

Sub contract supply chain management 

0% 0% 

7 

 

7.1 

7.2 

Requirements under Modern Slavery Act 

2015 

Relevant commercial organisation 

Compliant with annual reporting requirements 

Pass/Fail Pass/Fail 

8 Additional Questions:   

8.1 Insurance  Pass / Fail Pass/Fail 

 

CRITERIA FOR ASSESSING TENDER RESPONSES 

Only those Bidders which pass the Selection Questions will have their tenders evaluated using this 

scheme. 

Section Headings and Sub-Headings 
Maximum Score 

Available 

Weighting Within 

Sub-Heading 

Quality 

Company vehicle compliance 

Employee licensing  

0% 

 

Pass/Fail 

Pass/Fail 

* Price (exclusive of VAT)   

Route pricing 100% 100% 

   

Total 100%  

Pricing should be shown per day of operation. Unit rates and prices must be quoted in pounds and 

decimals of a pound. Such decimals need to be restricted to two decimal places.  

For the purpose of giving feedback to bidders at the end of the process, pricing will be converted to 

a percentage score using the following formula: 

44



Lowest price for this route        x   100% 

Bidder’s price for this route 

So if the lowest price offered for a given route is from Bidder A at £20.00, and  

the price offered by Bidder B is £40.00, 
Then Bidder A will score  £20.00    x   100%  =  100%   Contract awarded 
         £20.00 
 
And Bidder B will score    £20.00    x   100%  =   50% 
         £40.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

45



This page is intentionally left blank



Report No: 27/2021 
PUBLIC REPORT 

CABINET 

16th February 2021 

QUARTER 3 FINANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT 

Report of the Strategic Director for Resources 

Strategic Aim: All 

Key Decision: No Forward Plan Reference: FP/100920 

Exempt Information No 

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible: 

Mr G Brown, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for 
Planning and Finance 

 

Contact Officer(s): Saverio Della Rocca, Strategic 
Director for Resources (s.151 
Officer) 

01572 758159 
sdrocca@rutland.gov.uk 

 Andrew Merry, Finance Manager 01572 758152 
amerry@rutland.gov.uk 

Ward Councillors N/A 

 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Cabinet: 

a) Notes the projected revenue outturn for 20/21 and the uncertainty that remains; 

b) Notes the financial impact of COVID-19 on the Council’s finances and the risks 
that remain. 

1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 To inform Cabinet and all Members of the projected outturn for 20/21 including the 
impact of COVID-19 on the Councils finances and the Medium Term Financial 
Plan. 

1.2 In November, the Council reported on the Quarter 2 finance position. This report 
brings Members up-to-date with the current financial position at Quarter 3. 

 

47

Agenda Item 10

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS
http://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=300&Year=0


2 2020/21 REVENUE OUTTURN 

2.1 Background 

2.1.1 The purpose of this section is to give an update on the performance against the 
revenue budget and in doing so to present the financial impacts of COVID-19.   

2.1.2 Figures shown in this report include a combination of actual costs incurred and 
estimates based on our knowledge as at the end of December. As reported at 
Quarter 2, forecasting likely expenditure during the pandemic is proving 
challenging.  New duties and requirements emerge weekly, issues can change 
very quickly and new funding is being received.  The above factors added to local 
issues (e.g. health and capacity of the workforce) mean that the position is 
variable. 

2.1.3 The Government originally committed to meet extra costs arising and to cushion 
the impact of the pandemic.  The Government has continued to make funding 
available that support these intentions.  This position has not changed.   

2.1.4 Whilst there remains concern that there will not be sufficient funding to cover all 
impacts beyond 20/21 (e.g. income losses and the impact of additional costs in 
certain sectors such as Leisure) the Government has promised additional funding 
for 21/22 which has been highlighted in the Budget for 21/22 (17/2021). 

2.1.5 The impact described in this report in respect of 20/21 covers:  

a) One off costs;  

b) Additional service costs which will increase as the crisis continues, and may 
end as we return to normal;  

c) Lost income from fees and charges; and 

d) The effect of new grants awarded. 

2.2 Overall position against budget 

2.2.1 The Council approved a budget in February 2020 which has been updated at 
Quarter 3.  All approved changes since Quarter 2 are detailed in Appendix A.  

2.2.2 In overall terms, the Council is coming in under budget compared to the budget 
position.  This is a very strong position compared to many other local authorities 
who are reporting significant over spends.  Section 2.3 covers the position and 
movement in more detail. 

2.2.3 The table below summarises the position against the Council’s revised budget. 

48



 
Revised 
Budget 

Q2 
Forecast 
Outturn 

Q3 
Forecast 
Outturn 

COVID 
variance  

Non 
COVID 

variance   
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

People 19,139 19,031 19,058 351 (432) 

Places 13,407 14,573 14,540 1,211 (78) 

Resources 7,504 7,439 7,471 240 (273) 

Directorate Totals 40,050 41,043 41,069 1,802 (783) 

COVID costs 4,223 2,676 2,118 (2,105) 0 

COVID grants  (4,223) (3,708) (4,223) 0    0 

Pay Inflation 98 0 0 0 (98) 

Needs management 130 0 0 0 (130) 

Net Cost of Services 40,278 40,011 38,964 (303) (1,011) 

Depreciation (2,344) (2,344) (2,344) 0 0 

Capital Financing 1,647 1,647 1,647 0 0 

Interest Receivable (300) (247) (254)   46 0 

Net Operating 
Expenditure 

39,281 39,067 38,013 (257) (1,011) 

Financing (38,619) (38,554) (38,660) 0 (41) 

Transfers to/(from) 
reserves 

(716) (553) (385) 0  331 

Revenue Contribution 
to Capital 

44 0 44 0    0 

(Surplus)/Deficit (10) (  40) ( 988) (257) (721) 

General Fund 1 
April 20 

(9,171) (9,171) (9,171)   

General Fund 31 
March 21 

(9,181) (9,211) (10,159)   

2.3 Key messages  

2.3.1 The Directorate forecasts are detailed in Appendix B.  Over and underspends 
have been split, where possible, according to whether they are COVID-19 related.  
Where there are other risks that are causing overspends outside of COVID-19, 
these are discussed in Appendix C. The forecast is largely in line with the position 
reported at Q2.  

2.3.2 Within the Covid forecast there has been a number of changes. A full analysis of 
the changes to forecasts are shown in appendix E. The main changes within the 
forecast, from Quarter 2, is a £400k reduction across Adult and Children social 
care. It was expected that we would see an increase in the need for help towards 
the back end of the year but this has not materialised.  It is very likely that the 
impact of additional need will be soon in 21/22 as restrictions are relaxed and we 
return to “normal”.  The overall Covid-19 budget is underspent but the Council has 

49



still been able to maintain an appropriate response to the pandemic. 

2.3.3 The Council have also been allocated £400k from the Contain Outbreak 
Management Fund, and expects a further c£600k if current restrictions are funded 
as they have been in the past. A large proportion of this response has been 
delivered via existing resources. The Council are still working on the exact costs to 
be allocated against this funding. As a result the costs are still shown in either the 
directorates or Covid, but no forecast has been assumed for this expenditure to 
avoid double counting the expenditure.  

2.3.4 Lost income - Lost income arising from closedown of services is shown in 
Directorate budgets but has been itemised separately in Appendix F.  The Council 
has submitted a claim from Government for lost income. 

 Places Directorate £790k– the key areas that have lost income as a result 
of the pandemic are Parking Services £437k, Highways £127k, Registration 
Services £85k, Libraries, Museum and Castle £22k, Planning £70k and 
Leisure Service £39k.  

 Resources Directorate £30k – Court Fee Income. 

2.3.5 In summary, the underspend position is positive.  It is possible that this 
underspend will increase further by the year end but this will depend on the work 
Council needs to undertake as part of its pandemic response.  Notwithstanding the 
comment, any underspend at the year-end will either boost the Council’s General 
Fund reserves or will be used to support the Council’s pandemic response 
(including funding the continued use of agency staff in some areas and responding 
to any further pressures that may emerge in 21/22 not budgeted for). 

2.4 Use of COVID funding 

2.4.1 The Total amount COVID grants received is £4.898m of which general COVID 
grants make up £2.310m including £874k received in late 19/20, of which £848k 
was unused as at 31st March and transferred to an Earmarked Reserve. This 
reserve will be drawn down in 2021/22 as per Budget Report (17/2021). On top of 
the general funding, there has been specific funding for various initiatives. A full 
breakdown is given in Appendix D; 

2.4.2 Costs associated with COVID-19 are shown in a separate cost centre but some 
are also shown in Directorate budgets.  Appendix E gives more information on 
additional costs already incurred and a forecast for the remainder of the financial 
year. 

2.4.3 The overall position shows that the grants from Government (including £848k held 
with reserves from the allocation received in 19/20) are likely to be sufficient to 
cover all 20/21 costs based on current forecasts.  A summary of the COVID impact 
is given below.  

 

50



 £000 Notes 

Additional costs   

Directorates 952 Generally covers additional costs within existing 
contracts (see 2.3.3, review of existing costs to be 
allocated against Contain grant is likely to increase this 
figure). 

Covid cost centre 
(see Appendix E) 

2,118 Covid specific expenditure including ringfenced grants 
e.g. infection control fund. 

Lost income 849 Impact of the council having to close venues and the 
decision made to reduce car parking fees. 

Total costs 3,919  

Grants 4,223 Includes anticipated grant income for lost income 

Total 20/21 net 
impact 

(304) Any surplus grant for 20/21 will go towards future 
losses 

2.5 MTFP update 

2.5.1 The Council has updated its MTFP as part of the annual budget process. The draft 
budget was presented to cabinet on 12th January 2021 (Report 08/2021). There 
are no updates to those presented as part of the draft budget report. The Final 
Budget Report (17/2021) will update the MTFP further. 

3 OTHER UPDATES 

3.1 Capital programme 

3.1.1 The approved capital programme was £28.695m as set out in Report 141/2020. 
Further to various approvals the net change to the capital programme is £673k, 
therefore giving a revised capital programme of £29.369m.  The detailed position 
for each project is shown in Appendix G.  

Portfolio Project 
Amount Amount  

£000 £000 

Approved Capital Programme (Q2 141/2020) 28,695 

Approval since Q2 Monitoring Report 

Asset Management 
Requirements 

School Capacity & Feasibility Study 
(Delegation) 

17   

Asset Management 
Requirements 

Emergency Active Travel Project (Ring 
Fenced - Tranche 2) 

29   

Strategic Aims and Priorities Disabled Facilities Grant (Ring Fenced) 32   

Strategic Aims and Priorities Affordable Housing (Report 03/2021) 650  

 728 

Reprofiling since Q2 Monitoring Report 

Strategic Aims and Priorities Duplicate Project (S106 Delegation) (43)  

Strategic Aims and Priorities 
Empingham GP (Emergency 
Delegation & cabinet paper) 

(8)   

Asset Management 
Requirements 

Barleythorpe Road Car Park (Closed) (3)  

Total Approved since September Update 673 

Revised Capital Programme 2020/21 (At Q3) 29,369 

51



3.2 Schools Funding 

3.2.1 Schools are funded from ring fenced grants, the most notable of which is the 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). This funding cannot be used for any other 
Council function, and essentially schools operate within their own fund with any 
under or over expenditure being taken forward into future years. 

3.2.2 The table below shows the forecasted outturn on the DSG. 

  
Schools    

£000 

High 
Needs 
£000 

Early 
Years   
£000 

Central 
Schools 

£000 

Total 
£000 

Surplus/(Deficit) Carry 
Forwards from 2019/20 19 (458) 135 37 (267) 

DSG Allocations  25,261 4,224 1,833 166 31,484 

Transfer between blocks (126) 126     0 

Academy Recoupment (23,288) (234)     (23,522) 

Expenditure in Year (1,847) (4,636) (1,825) (159) (8,330) 

Under/(Over) spends in 
2020/21 0 (520) 8 7 (367) 

Surplus/(Deficit) Carried 
Forward to 2021/22 19 (978) 143 44 (634) 

Percentage of DSG 0.06% 3.11% 0.45% 0.14%   

3.2.3 As reported consistently, the main area for concern is around the High Needs 
element of the DSG. At Q3 there were 259 Education, Health and Care plans, this 
is a 10% increase on the beginning of the financial year. The recovery plan is 
currently being updated in line with the projects progress and considering the 
impact of Covid-19. The surplus of £19k on the Schools Block is being allocated to 
schools via the 2021/22 funding process. 

3.2.4 The Early Years Block expenditure forecast has decreased from Q2; however, this 
area is high risk area due to potential changes with the Covid-19 pandemic. The 
Early Years settings are paid based on actual hours during the month, with the 
fluctuations we see during lockdowns the actual amount paid to settings will be 
estimated. The Funding for the Early Year block is also unknown as the funding 
will be based on January 2020 Census (9/12) and January 2021 (3/12). With the 
census being completed at the start of the lockdown period numbers are difficult to 
predict. The Council have been liaising with settings regularly to ensure settings 
record all children correctly on the census. 

4 CONSULTATION  

4.1 Formal consultation is not required for any decisions being sought in this report. 
Internal consultation has been undertaken with all officers regarding forecasts. 

5 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS  

5.1 The report is for noting.  At this stage, there are no alternative options.  

52



6 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

6.1 The report highlights the impact on the MTFP for 20/21 and future years.   

7 LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS  

7.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

8.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not been completed because there are 
no service, policy or organisational changes being proposed. 

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 A data protection impact assessment has not been completed as there are no data 
protection implications. 

10 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no community safety implications. 

11 HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 There are no health and wellbeing implications. 

12 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS   

12.1 To inform Cabinet and all members of the projected outturn for 20/21 including the 
impact of COVID-19 on the Councils finances and the Medium Term Financial 
Plan.  The Council will need to address the funding gap in due course. 

13 BACKGROUND PAPERS  

13.1 None 

14 APPENDICES  

Appendix A: Approved Budget Changes 20/21 
Appendix B: Directorate forecasts 
Appendix C: Functions > £25k overspent 
Appendix D: COVID funding 
Appendix E: COVID additional costs 
Appendix F: Lost income 
Appendix G: Capital programme 
 

 

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.  

53



Appendix A - Approved Budget Changes 

This Appendix shows changes to functional budgets and other budget changes.  In accordance with FPR’s, Cabinet can approve virements 
in any functional budget of up to £250k in any one year to a cumulative value of £500k across all functions. Changes above £500k must 
be approved by Council on a recommendation from Cabinet. In approving requests, Cabinet or Council may agree the use of earmarked 
reserves (ER), use the General Fund (GF) or make virements between directorates. For the purposes of the rules, Cabinet is allowed to 
use earmarked reserves (approved by Council) in an unlimited way as long as they are used for their intended purpose and is allowed to 
carry forward unused budget from one period to the next so use of these reserves are not counted against the delegated limit for functional 
budget changes and shown as “Cabinet Other”. 

Description 
 

Net Cost 
of Services 

£000 

Capital 
Financing 

 
£000 

Funding 
 
 

£000 

Transfer 
to/(from) 
Reserves 

£000 

Spend on 
Capital 
£'000 

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 

 
£000 

Cabinet* 
£500k 
Limit 
£000 

Cabinet 
Other 

 
£000 

Council 
 
 

£000 

Ch Exec. 
s151 

Officer 
£000 

Q2 Budget (141/2020) 40,228 (997) (38,619) (716) 0 (104) 0 285 0 (101) 

(i) Waste Procurement Project 50 0 0 0 0 50 0 0 50 0 

(ii) Additional Covid Grant (515)     (316)    (316) 

(iii) Additional Covid Budget 515     316    316 

Approved Budget at Q3 40,278 (997) (38,619) (716)    0 (54)    0  285   50 (101) 

 
(i)  Additional Budget approved by Council to support the re-procurement of the Waste Contract (143/2020) 
(ii) & (iii) new Covid-19 budgets funded by grants received in Quarter 3 (see Appendix D). 

54



Appendix B1 - People Budget Monitoring Summary 

Function 

Outturn 
2019/20 

Approved 
Budget 

Revised 
Budget 

Q2 
Forecast 

Q3 
Forecast 

Q3 Forecast 
variance to 

current 
budget 

Q3 Forecast 
Variance 
Covid-19 
Related 

Q3 
Forecast 
Variance 

Other 

Directorate 
Management 

1,886,462 1,700,800 1,688,800 1,835,600 1,829,200 140,400 51,000 89,400 

Business 
Intelligence 

151,138 148,300 147,900 138,300 147,700 (200)   (200) 

Total Directorate 
Costs 

2,037,600  1,849,100  1,836,700  1,973,900  1,976,900  140,200  51,000  89,200  

Public Health 8,938 101,500 101,500 80,500 34,500 (67,000)   (67,000) 

BCF Programme 
Support 

82,034 92,600 96,000 90,900 93,200 (2,800)   (2,800) 

BCF Unified 
Prevention 

339,606 363,300 394,000 384,500 346,600 (47,400)   (47,400) 

BCF Holistic 
Management of 
Health & Wellbeing  

840,468 721,300 956,000 899,800 944,000 (12,000)   (12,000) 

BCF Hospital 
Flows  

1,017,718 1,010,300 999,000 978,000 978,800 (20,200)   (20,200) 

Adults and Health 
(Ringfenced) 

2,288,764  2,289,000  2,546,500  2,433,700  2,397,100  (149,400) 0  (149,400) 

Non BCF Contract 
& Procurement 

456,257 473,200 469,700 439,300 434,300 (35,400)   (35,400) 

ASC Community 
Inclusion 

1,151,670 1,031,200 1,004,100 1,066,000 1,144,000 139,900 139,900 0 

ASC Prevention & 
Safeguarding 

125,782 183,300 176,100 92,100 25,100 (151,000)   (151,000) 

ASC Prevention & 
Safeguarding - 
Staffing 

261,680 269,500 267,600 269,300 271,300 3,700   3,700 

ASC Housing 72,074 165,500 163,700 140,700 145,400 (18,300) 12,500 (30,800) 

55

file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Directorate%20Management'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Directorate%20Management'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Business%20Intelligence'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Business%20Intelligence'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Public%20Health'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'BCF%20Programme%20Support'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'BCF%20Programme%20Support'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'BCF%20Unified%20prevention'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'BCF%20Unified%20prevention'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'BCF%20Holistic%20Man'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'BCF%20Holistic%20Man'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'BCF%20Holistic%20Man'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'BCF%20Hospital%20Flows'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'BCF%20Hospital%20Flows'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Non%20BCF%20Contracts'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Non%20BCF%20Contracts'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20Community%20Inclusion'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20Community%20Inclusion'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20P&S'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20P&S'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20P&S%20staffing'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20P&S%20staffing'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20P&S%20staffing'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20Housing'!A1


Function 

Outturn 
2019/20 

Approved 
Budget 

Revised 
Budget 

Q2 
Forecast 

Q3 
Forecast 

Q3 Forecast 
variance to 

current 
budget 

Q3 Forecast 
Variance 
Covid-19 
Related 

Q3 
Forecast 
Variance 

Other 

ASC Support & 
Review - Daycare 

193,425 218,400 199,100 198,700 16,400 (182,700)   (182,700) 

ASC Support & 
Review - Direct 
Payments 

866,368 860,400 806,100 925,600 936,300 130,200   130,200 

ASC Support & 
Review - 
Homecare 

1,747,710 1,949,100 1,919,700 1,733,300 1,805,100 (114,600)   (114,600) 

ASC Community 
Income 

(414,740) (371,300) (323,700) (353,400) (393,900) (70,200)   (70,200) 

ASC Support & 
Review - Other 

364,930 438,100 441,500 445,300 416,900 (24,600)   (24,600) 

ASC Support & 
Review - 
Residential & 
Nursing  

3,237,793 3,401,000 3,445,900 3,444,300 3,527,300 81,400   81,400 

ASC Support & 
Review - Staffing 

497,644 562,900 515,500 497,700 497,300 (18,200)   (18,200) 

ASC Hospital & 
Reablement 

284,464 390,100 439,400 441,500 466,900 27,500   27,500 

Adults and Health 
(Non Ringfenced) 

8,845,056  9,571,400  9,524,700  9,340,400  9,292,400  (232,300) 152,400  (384,700) 

Safeguarding 229,072 350,500 348,700 329,600 330,600 (18,100)   (18,100) 

Referral, 
Assessment and 
Intervention 
Service  

225,379 231,200 222,800 288,800 308,200 85,400 66,000 19,400 

Permanency and 
Protection Service  

543,085 518,500 514,000 680,900 655,900 141,900 82,000 59,900 

56

file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20S&R%20Day%20Care'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20S&R%20Day%20Care'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20S&R%20DPs'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20S&R%20DPs'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20S&R%20DPs'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20S&R%20Home%20care'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20S&R%20Home%20care'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20S&R%20Home%20care'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20Community%20Income'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20Community%20Income'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20S&R%20other'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20S&R%20other'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20S&R%20Resi%20-%20Nursing'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20S&R%20Resi%20-%20Nursing'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20S&R%20Resi%20-%20Nursing'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20S&R%20Resi%20-%20Nursing'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20S&R%20Staffing'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20S&R%20Staffing'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20Hospital%20&%20Reabl'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'ASC%20Hospital%20&%20Reabl'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23Safeguarding!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Children%20RAIS'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Children%20RAIS'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Children%20RAIS'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Children%20RAIS'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Children%20PAPS'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Children%20PAPS'!A1


Function 

Outturn 
2019/20 

Approved 
Budget 

Revised 
Budget 

Q2 
Forecast 

Q3 
Forecast 

Q3 Forecast 
variance to 

current 
budget 

Q3 Forecast 
Variance 
Covid-19 
Related 

Q3 
Forecast 
Variance 

Other 

Fostering, 
Adoption and Care 
Leaver Service  

1,845,492 1,921,400 1,918,800 1,935,800 2,124,700 205,900   205,900 

Early Intervention - 
Targeted 
Intervention 

1,099,301 1,183,200 1,286,000 1,058,200 1,099,000 (187,000)   (187,000) 

Early Intervention - 
SEND & Inclusion  

260,571 386,900 393,600 393,700 394,800 1,200   1,200 

Early Intervention - 
Universal and 
Partnership 

430,260 490,200 326,600 354,300 252,900 (73,700)   (73,700) 

Childrens 4,633,160  5,081,900  5,010,500  5,041,300  5,166,100  155,600  148,000  7,600  

Schools & Early 
Years 

330,454 199,000 221,500 245,000 180,700 (40,800)   (40,800) 

Rutland Adult 
Learning & Skills 
Service (RALSS)  

(49,118) (28,300) (1,400) (3,000) 45,000 46,400   46,400 

Learning and 
Skills 

281,336  170,700  220,100  242,000  225,700  5,600  0  5,600  

Total People - GF 
(Ringfenced) 

2,288,764  2,289,000  2,546,500  2,433,700  2,397,100  (149,400) 0  (149,400) 

Total People - GF 
(Non Ringfenced) 

15,797,152  16,673,100  16,592,000  16,597,600  16,661,100  69,100  351,400  (282,300) 

Total People 
(Excluding DSG) 

18,085,915  18,962,100  19,138,500  19,031,300  19,058,200  (80,300) 351,400  (431,700) 

 

57

file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Children%20FACL'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Children%20FACL'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Children%20FACL'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Early%20Int%20-%20Targeted'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Early%20Int%20-%20Targeted'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Early%20Int%20-%20Targeted'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Early%20Int-%20SEND%20&%20Inc'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Early%20Int-%20SEND%20&%20Inc'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Early%20Int%20-%20Universal'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Early%20Int%20-%20Universal'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Early%20Int%20-%20Universal'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Schools%20&%20Early%20Yrs'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23'Schools%20&%20Early%20Yrs'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23RALSS!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23RALSS!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/60AA005E.xlsx%23RALSS!A1


Appendix B2 - Places Budget Monitoring Summary  

 

Function 
 

Outturn 
2019/20 

Approved 
Budget 

Revised 
Budget 

Q2 
Forecast 

Q3 
Forecast 

Q3  
Forecast 
Variance to 
Budget 

Q3 Forecast 
Variance 
Covid-19 
Related 

Q3 
Forecast 
Variance 
Other 

Directorate 
Management 

263,208 227,100 224,700 224,700 122,700 (102,000) 0 (102,000) 

Directorate 
Management 
Costs 

263,208  227,100  224,700  224,700  122,700  (102,000) 0 (102,000) 

Development 
Control 

(18,148) 199,900 195,300 313,700 273,800 78,500 94,200 (15,700) 

Drainage & 
Structures 

181,861 210,700 210,700 209,500 210,000 (700) 0 (700) 

Emergency 
Planning 

33,475 35,200 35,200 35,200 33,500 (1,700) 0 (1,700) 

Crime Prevention 173,364 146,800 145,800 110,700 115,700 (30,100) 0 (30,100) 

Environmental 
Maintenance 

1,177,766 1,168,000 1,165,000 1,397,600 1,400,400 235,400 0 235,400 

Forestry 
Maintenance 

116,215 103,400 103,400 116,800 110,000 6,600 0 6,600 

Highways Capital 
Charges  

1,613,500 1,720,200 1,720,200 1,720,200 1,720,200 0 0 0 

Highways 
Management 

240,210 171,600 191,900 350,100 346,100 154,200 149,500 4,700 

Commissioned 
Transport 

1,959,012 1,803,700 1,800,900 1,885,100 1,877,200 76,300 93,500 (17,200) 

Lights Barriers 
Traffic Signals  

124,956 134,300 134,300 128,300 128,700 (5,600) 0 (5,600) 

Parking (299,838) (305,100) (307,300) 15,000 129,500 436,800 436,800 0 

Pool Cars & Car 
Hire 

106,965 111,400 111,400 113,800 95,500 (15,900)   (15,900) 

58

file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Directorate%20Management'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Directorate%20Management'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Development%20Control'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Development%20Control'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Drainage%20&%20Structures'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Drainage%20&%20Structures'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Emergency%20Planning'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Emergency%20Planning'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Crime%20Prevention'!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Environmental%20Maintenance'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Environmental%20Maintenance'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Forestry%20Maintenance'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Forestry%20Maintenance'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Highways%20Capital%20Charges'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Highways%20Capital%20Charges'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Highways%20Management'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Highways%20Management'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Commissioned%20Transport'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Commissioned%20Transport'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Lights%20Barriers%20Traffic%20Signals'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Lights%20Barriers%20Traffic%20Signals'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23Parking!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Pool%20Cars%20&%20Car%20Hire'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Pool%20Cars%20&%20Car%20Hire'!A1


Function 
 

Outturn 
2019/20 

Approved 
Budget 

Revised 
Budget 

Q2 
Forecast 

Q3 
Forecast 

Q3  
Forecast 
Variance to 
Budget 

Q3 Forecast 
Variance 
Covid-19 
Related 

Q3 
Forecast 
Variance 
Other 

Public Protection 382,455 387,800 387,800 404,600 403,400 15,600 10,000 5,600 

Public Rights of 
Way 

62,659 94,600 94,600 92,500 66,900 (27,700) 0 (27,700) 

Public Transport 818,828 859,500 859,500 775,600 754,300 (105,200)   (105,200) 

Road 
Maintenance 

302,382 414,100 414,100 325,700 326,000 (88,100) 0 (88,100) 

Transport 
Management 

284,515 364,100 387,600 403,500 403,600 16,000 49,000 (33,000) 

Waste 
Management 

2,435,278 2,429,500 2,479,100 2,587,100 2,640,500 161,400   161,400 

Winter 
Maintenance 

205,201 268,700 268,700 268,700 268,700 0 0 0 

Environment, 
Planning  and 
Transport 

9,900,657  10,318,400  10,398,200  11,253,700  11,304,000  905,800  833,000  72,800  

Planning Policy  484,671 516,600 598,900 628,400 657,500 58,600 58,600 0 

Tourism 2,859 15,800 16,200 16,200 16,200 0 0 0 

Health & Safety 39,651 70,000 70,000 40,700 40,900 (29,100)   (29,100) 

Property Services  1,135,063 1,149,600 1,145,100 1,101,500 1,037,600 (107,500)   (107,500) 

Building Control (30,187) (38,100) (38,100) (36,400) (36,400) 1,700 1,700 0 

Commercial & 
Industrial 
Properties 

(99,631) (270,100) (271,000) (165,700) (135,700) 135,300   135,300 

Economic 
Development 

131,197 168,600 166,700 118,400 111,800 (54,900)   (54,900) 

Culture & 
Registration 
Services  

109,126 117,600 115,800 205,600 204,800 89,000 85,500 3,500 

Libraries  453,504 486,600 483,700 472,800 477,700 (6,000) 0 (6,000) 

Museum Services  392,246 409,100 406,800 444,500 449,900 43,100 32,200 10,900 

59

file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Public%20Protection'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Public%20rights%20of%20way'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Public%20rights%20of%20way'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Public%20Transport'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Road%20Maintenance'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Road%20Maintenance'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Transport%20Management'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Transport%20Management'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Waste%20Management'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Waste%20Management'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Winter%20Maintenance'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Winter%20Maintenance'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Planning%20Policy'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23Tourism!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Health%20&%20safety'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Property%20Services'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Building%20Control'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Commercial%20&%20Industrial%20Prop'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Commercial%20&%20Industrial%20Prop'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Commercial%20&%20Industrial%20Prop'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Economic%20Development'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Economic%20Development'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Culture%20&%20Registration%20Services'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Culture%20&%20Registration%20Services'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Culture%20&%20Registration%20Services'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23Libraries!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Museum%20Services'!A1


Function 
 

Outturn 
2019/20 

Approved 
Budget 

Revised 
Budget 

Q2 
Forecast 

Q3 
Forecast 

Q3  
Forecast 
Variance to 
Budget 

Q3 Forecast 
Variance 
Covid-19 
Related 

Q3 
Forecast 
Variance 
Other 

Sports & Leisure 
Services  

51,057 66,600 89,500 268,700 289,400 199,900 199,900 0 

Development 
and Economy 

2,669,558  2,692,300  2,783,600  3,094,700  3,113,700  330,100  377,900  (47,800) 

Total Places 12,833,423  13,237,800  13,406,500  14,573,100  14,540,400  1,133,900  1,210,900  (77,000) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

60

file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Sport%20&%20Leisure%20Services'!A1
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/5B15A56D.xlsx%23'Sport%20&%20Leisure%20Services'!A1


 

Appendix B3 - Resources Budget Monitoring Summary 

 

Function Outturn 
2019/20 

Approved 
Budget 

Revised 
Budget 

Q2 
Forecast 

Q3 
Forecast 

Q3 Forecast 
variance to 

current 
budget 

Q3 Forecast 
Variance 
Covid-19 
Related 

Q3 Forecast 
Variance 

Other 

Chief Executives 
Office 

177,281 206,000 253,200 272,220 281,800 28,600 0 28,600 

Directorate 
Management 

289,741 309,600 306,400 305,800 304,800 (1,600) 0 (1,600) 

Communications 224,348 224,300 297,300 273,260 310,300 13,000 16,300 (3,300) 

Corporate Costs 149,137 157,000 157,000 150,800 151,500 (5,500) 0 (5,500) 

Pensions 210,576 200,000 796,200 791,200 791,200 (5,000) 0 (5,000) 

Audit Services  155,832 157,300 157,300 160,700 180,900 23,600 23,600 0 

Insurance 248,902 263,800 263,800 257,700 257,700 (6,100) 0 (6,100) 

Accountancy & 
Finance 

634,623 636,600 631,500 573,300 612,000 (19,500) 20,000 (39,500) 

Information 
Technology  

1,409,519 1,492,500 1,491,800 1,482,000 1,609,800 118,000 126,700 (8,700) 

Business Support 
Services  

792,676 899,900 817,100 755,000 718,400 (98,700)   (98,700) 

Members Services  189,349 223,000 270,200 265,500 260,400 (9,800)   (9,800) 

Customer Services 
Team 

288,224 332,700 407,000 374,970 255,400 (151,600) 0 (151,600) 

Elections 100,815 123,500 123,400 126,500 126,500 3,100 0 3,100 

Legal & Governance  707,692 584,200 580,700 758,920 729,200 148,500 13,000 135,500 

Human Resources 545,306 514,300 510,300 469,640 466,800 (43,500) 11,000 (54,500) 

Revenues & Benefits 266,439 407,500 401,200 386,230 379,100 (22,100) 29,300 (51,400) 

Financial Support 39,866 40,000 40,000 35,000 35,000 (5,000) 0 (5,000) 

Total Resources 
Directorate 

6,430,326 6,772,200 7,504,400 7,438,740 7,470,800 (33,600) 239,900 (273,500) 

61

file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23'Chief%20Executive%20Office'!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23'Chief%20Executive%20Office'!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23'Directorate%20Management'!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23'Directorate%20Management'!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23Communications!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23'Corporate%20Costs'!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23Pensions!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23'Audit%20Services'!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23Insurance!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23'Accountancy%20&%20Finance'!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23'Accountancy%20&%20Finance'!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23'Information%20Technology'!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23'Information%20Technology'!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23'Business%20Support%20Services'!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23'Business%20Support%20Services'!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23'Members%20Services'!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23'Customer%20Services%20Team'!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23'Customer%20Services%20Team'!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23Elections!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23'Legal%20&%20Governance'!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23'Human%20Resources'!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23'Revenues%20&%20Benefits'!Print_Area
file:///C:/Users/amerry/AppData/Local/Packages/oice_15_974fa576_32c1d314_2e04/AC/Temp/A2764D28.xlsx%23'Financial%20Support'!Print_Area


Appendix C – Variances against budget >£25k (Non 
COVID related) 

Ref Function Reason for Overspend 

1 Directorate 
Management 

Costs 

 

Underspends in Adult Social Care due to the Director 
being appointed to the interim Chief Executive position 
(£45k). Overspend in Childrens due to Agency managers 
with Covid-19 (£51k), Ofsted work support and in Q3 staff 
changes within management (£89k). Forecast allocations 
updated from Q2 following a review of all Children’s 
Service agency staff. 

Budget £1,688k 

Forecast 
£1,829k 

2 Fostering, 
Adoption and 
Care Leaver 

Service 

Whilst the increase in the number of children in Foster 
care and independent agencies has only increased by 2 
the forecast costs have increased by £65k on Q2 
placement costs. There has also been a further increase 
in accommodation forecast for supported accommodation 
of £170k. This will be closely monitored. It is expected 
this will be a short-term measure.  

Budget £1,921k 

Forecast 
£2,124k 

3 

 

Referral, 
Assessment 

and 
Intervention 

Service  

Overspend on Contact and Referral Team due to use of 
agency workers covering posts. Of the forecast 
overspend £66k relates to Covid-19 agency posts and 
£19k non Covid-19 agency. 

Budget £223k 

Forecast £298k 

4 Permanency 
and Protection 

Service  

Overspend in staffing due to agency workers covering 
posts accounts for £111k of the variance, of which £82k 
is Covid-19 related. Unaccompanied Asylum Seekers 
forecast a current overspend of 25k, however a review is 
underway to ensure UASC placements are allocations 
are updated between Care Leavers and Over- 18.  

Budget £514k 

Forecast £656k 

5 ASC Support & 
Review 

Residential and 
Nursing  

Overspend due to fewer service users being assessed as 
being able to fund their residential care 

Budget £3,446k 

Forecast £3,527 

62



Ref Function Reason for Overspend 

6 ASC Support & 
Review – Direct 

Payments 

Increased demand for direct payments as service users 
opt for different methods for the delivery of their 
packages of care.  As a result there has been a decrease 
in expenditure to offset this overspend, within the 
Homecare budget. Budget £806k 

Forecast £936k 

7 ASC Hospital 
and 

Reablement 

Overspend due to use of agency staff to cover for long 
term sickness and maternity leave 

Budget £439k 

Forecast £467k 

8 Environmental 
Maintenance 

Grounds maintenance contract adjusted to incorporate 
rural grass verge cutting, depot and admin costs and has 
created a pressure of c£149k.  The remainder of the 
variance is related to Interim Cover for the Head of 
Environmental Services £86k. 

Budget £1,165k 

Forecast 
£1,400k 

9 Waste 
Management 

The variance includes £50k under spend in respect of 
waste retendering consultancy costs. The over spend of 
£211k predominantly relates to increased residual waste 
tonnages and increased Dry Mixed Recycling (DMR) 
gate fees being experienced. 

Budget £2,429 

Forecast  
£2,641 

10 Commercial 
Properties 

The variance is partly due to the mothballing of Unit 5 at 
Oakham Enterprise Park due to building compliance 
issues and additional costs in relation relocating existing 
tenants and the loss of income from the unit c£43k, and 
the balance is due to vacant units, Covid-19 being the 
key factor. 

Budget (£273k) 

Forecast 
(£215k) 

11 Legal & 
Governance 

The forecast on this budget is volatile and costs 
associated with Adult Social Care cases, SEN tribunal 
claims, Children’s social care cases and Planning 
Litigation are increasing. In particular some complex 
Children’s social care cases have incurred high costs. Q3 
showed a reduction in the use of external Solicitors 
following a service review with the new Solicitor in post. 

Budget £581k 

Forecast £729k 

 

63



Appendix D - COVID-19 Funding received  

The table below shows the funding the Council has received in relation to Covid-19 (this excludes business grants).  Grants awarded in 
quarter are either new grants (not included at Quarter 2) or revisions to estimates of grants expected as at Quarter 2. 

Funding Allocation  Summary of Use Grant 
Awarded 
in Quarter 

RCC End 
Recipient 

Grants Received 2019/20 

Covid 19 
Emergency Funding 

873,497 To support Local Government response to Covid.  £848k is held in an 
earmarked reserve and will be drawn down when required, likely to be 
in 2021/22 

 Yes 

Total Paid 2019/20 873,497      

Grants received 2020/21 

Emergency support 
for rough sleepers  

- Claimed through North West Leicestershire  No 

Covid 19 
Emergency 
Funding** 

£1,436,761 General funding to support Local Government response to Covid. 
Allocations are £1.106m, £0.231m and £0.1m. The Council received 
the same allocations as small district Councils in the last allocation of 
funding. 

 Yes 

Infection Control 
Fund 

£458,233 Each care home should receive an amount per CQC registered bed, 
representing 75% of the funding. The remaining 25% must be used for 
infection control measures based on need. This may involve support for 
domiciliary care workforce measures. 

 No 

Bus Services 
Support Grant 

£94,239 Paid over to Bus Operators for loss of income  No 

64



Funding Allocation  Summary of Use Grant 
Awarded 
in Quarter 

RCC End 
Recipient 

Early Discharge £0 CCGs have received funding to reimburse costs in relation to early 
discharges. Additional costs are being reclaimed from the CCG, zero 
shown as additional expenditure not included in forecast.  

 Yes 

Reopening High 
Streets Safely Fund 
guidance  

£35,627 Funds to allow local authorities in England to put in place additional 
measures to establish a safe trading environment for businesses and 
customers, particularly in high streets, through measures that extend to 
the end of March 2021. 

 Yes 

Test, Track and 
Trace Funding 

£120,148 Provide support towards expenditure lawfully incurred or to be incurred 
in relation to the mitigation against and management of local outbreaks 
of COVID-19 

 Yes 

New Burdens – 
Business Grants 

£209,000 To recompense local authorities for administering the various Business 
Grant Schemes 

 Yes 

Emergency 
Assistance Grant 

£23,000 To use to support people who are struggling to afford food and other 
essentials due to COVID-19 

 Yes 

Loss of Income £467,917 Estimated grant for loss of income due to COVID-19.  Yes 

Local Authority 
Compliance and 
Enforcement 

£13,000 The funding made available is ringfenced for any activity which will 
support compliance and enforcement of measures to control the spread 
of COVID-19 across individuals, businesses and in the community. 

 Yes 

Cultural Recovery 
Fund** 

£132,100 To Support cultural organisations that were financially stable before 
Covid-19. 

 Yes 

Contain Funding* £399,270 See para 2.3.3 £95,270 Yes 

65



Funding Allocation  Summary of Use Grant 
Awarded 
in Quarter 

RCC End 
Recipient 

New Burdens - 
Local Authority 
Discretionary Grants 

£79,000 To recompense local authorities for administering the Local Authority 
Discretionary Grant Scheme 

£69,000 Yes 

New Burdens NNDR 
Discount & Council 
tax hardship 

£18,231 To recompense local authorities for administering the various grant 
assistance schemes 

£18,231 Yes 

Clinical Extremely 
Vulnerable Support 

£17,577 Payments to support the Clinically Extremely Vulnerable £17,577 Yes 

Test and Trace 
Support Payments** 

£44,125 To be used for the implementation of the Test and Trace Support for 
those self-isolating 
 
£21k for cost of payments to applicants (demand Led will have to repay 
if not spent in full) 
£20k for cost of administering the scheme 
£3k Discretionary Payment (Demand Led) 

 Partially 

Infection Control 
Fund Round 2** 

£438,774 See comments above.  Further allocation of grant received in early 
lockdown. 

 No 

Covid Winter Grant £63,022 Support for the Vulnerable during winter months £63,022 Yes 

Self-Isolation 
Payments 

£50,577 Payments to those self-isolating £50,577 No 

Workforce Capacity 
Fund 

£67,860 Boost staffing levels within the Care Sector £67,860 No 

66



Funding Allocation  Summary of Use Grant 
Awarded 
in Quarter 

RCC End 
Recipient 

Adult Social Care 
Rapid Testing Fund 

£133,141 Support the social care sector, including care homes and domiciliary 
care providers, by increasing workforce capacity and increasing testing. 

£133,141 No 

Grants 2020/21 £4,223,202   £514,678   

*Estimated 
 
 
Other Grants paid to Rutland County Council not reflected directly in the Councils MTFP 

Council Tax - Covid-19 
Hardship Fund 

 121,611  The hardship fund was used to provide council tax relief, alongside existing local 
council tax support schemes. This is payable to the Council Tax Collection fund. 

Business Support 
(Additional Restrictions 
Grant)  
 
 

1,153,214 
 
 
 
 
 

Billing authorities will receive £20 per head “to enable councils to support 
businesses over the coming months more broadly”.  Allocations will use the 2019 
mid-year population estimates.  Funding is intended to be used to provide 
discretionary support to local businesses.  Funding allocated was in two tranches 
£798k November 2020 and £355k January 2021. 

Business Grants for 
closed business 

786,276 Billing authorities will administer the mandatory grants payable to closed 
businesses.  The amounts payable to businesses are set out below. 
 

 For properties with a rateable value of £15k or under, grants to be £1,334 
per month, or £667 per two weeks; 

 For properties with a rateable value of between £15k-£51k grants to be 
£2,000 per month, or £1,000 per two weeks; 

 For properties with a rateable value of £51k or over grants to be £3,000 per 
month, or £1,500 per two weeks. 

Christmas Support for 
Wet Led Pubs 

£32,000 Support for Wet Led Pubs 

67



Appendix E - COVID cost breakdown (includes costs shown in Directorate budgets) 

  

F
u

ll
 Y

e
a

r 

Im
p

a
c

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

w
it

h
in

 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

w
it

h
in

 

C
o

v
id

 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

S
p

e
n

t/
L

o
s

t 

to
 D

a
te

 

  Q
2

 P
o

s
it

io
n

 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

o
n

 

m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

Adult Social 
Care – 
additional 
demand for care 
packages 

0 0  0 0   300,000 -300,000 

Although significant 
demand is expected, 

further restrictions and 
shielding mean 

demand may be 
deferred until 21/22.  

Adult Social 
Care – 
supporting the 
market  

1,203,033 

  
 
 
 
 

0 1,203,033 702,878 

Tranche 2 of Infection 
Control received but not yet 
Paid Over in full - Expected 
to be paid over by 31 March 
in line with Grant 
Conditions. 
 
New funding awarded for 
Lateral Flow Testing and 
supporting the Workforce.  

1,002,032 201,001 

Change relates to new 
funding for testing and 

supporting the 
workforce. The funding 

will be passported to 
providers when the 

grant conditions are 
confirmed. 

Adult Social 
Care – 
workforce 
pressures   

137,000 112,000 25,000 112,000 
Will be required to keep to a 
preventative model.   

85,000 52,000 

With hospital capacity 
stretched, social care 

teams working on early 
discharge from 

hospitals.  

Adult Social 
Care - Personal 
protective 
equipment 
(PPE) 

80,000 

  
 

0 
 
 

80,000 53,532   100,000 -20,000 

Reflecting the current 
expenditure and 

expectation that the 
level of expenditure 

will continue 

68



  

F
u

ll
 Y

e
a

r 

Im
p

a
c

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

w
it

h
in

 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

w
it

h
in

 

C
o

v
id

 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

S
p

e
n

t/
L

o
s

t 

to
 D

a
te

 

  Q
2

 P
o

s
it

io
n

 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

o
n

 

m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

Children’s Social 
Care – 
workforce 
pressures 

199,000 199,000 0  106,720 Agency staff in post 156,000 43,000 
Agency workers 

continued  

Children's Social 
Care Demand 

0  

 
 
 

0 
 
 
 

0  

  
 
 

0 
Demand not yet come 
through, still expecting to 
see some increase 

100,000 -100,000 

Although additional 
“need” is expected, 
further restrictions 

mean this is not 
materialising at this 

stage.   

Education - 
Home to school 
transport 

88,000 88,000 0  44,000 

Additional expenditure from 
September to adhere to 
government guidance to 
keep school children off 
public transport and 
additional pressures from 
existing providers 

85,000 3,000 
Costs now known as 
services are running. 

Public Health - 
Testing, contact 
tracing and 
outbreak 
planning 

120,148 

  
 

0 
 
 

120,148 2,200 

Current forecast matched to 
grant award in relation to 
the mitigation against and 
management of local 
outbreaks.  

120,148 0 

Forecast not changed 
as work ongoing in 

setting up lateral flow 
testing and some 

recharges confirmed 
from Public Health.  

Housing 52,500 12,500 40,000 31,107   40,000 12,500 
Expectation to 

continue support to 
rough sleepers 

Environment & 
regulatory - 

40,000 0  40,000 40,000 Cost to re-open CA Site 40,000 0 
Additional costs in 

relation to demands 

69



  

F
u

ll
 Y

e
a

r 

Im
p

a
c

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

w
it

h
in

 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

w
it

h
in

 

C
o

v
id

 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

S
p

e
n

t/
L

o
s

t 

to
 D

a
te

 

  Q
2

 P
o

s
it

io
n

 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

o
n

 

m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

waste 
management 

from suppliers not 
materialised 

IT, Remote 
Working 

133,900 126,700 7,200 114,895 Cost of remote working 100,000 33,900 
Revised based on 

review of expenditure 
incurred 

Shielding 175,000 

  
 

0 
 

175,000 150,420 

Provide essentials to the 
most vulnerable – cost of 
delivering food boxes prior 
to Government scheme 
being fully implemented 

175,000 0 
Support for second 

wave if needed 

Bus Operators 94,239 0  94,239 94,239 
Paid to bus operators from 
grant award to reflect loss of 
income. 

94,239 0   

Emergency 
Assistance 
Grant 

23,000 

  
 

0 23,000 18,000 

Spend on a contribution 
towards the work of the 
Food Bank and CAB and 
some funds set aside to 
support the most vulnerable 

23,000 0   

Catmose Sports 170,000 170,000 
  

0 123,000 
Contractor has indicated 
additional support required 
to maintain service delivery.   

170,000 0   

Local Plan 58,600 58,600 
  

0 15,000 
Covid delayed local plan 
timeline, so additional costs 
expected 

30,000 28,600 
Reassessed 

implications and 
revised timeline 

Safety 
Partnership 

40,000 40,000 
 

 0 0 
Additional funding request 
from the road safety 
partnership 

40,000 0   

70



  

F
u

ll
 Y

e
a

r 

Im
p

a
c

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

w
it

h
in

 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

w
it

h
in

 

C
o

v
id

 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

S
p

e
n

t/
L

o
s

t 

to
 D

a
te

 

  Q
2

 P
o

s
it

io
n

 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

o
n

 

m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

Records Office 10,000 10,000 0  10,000 
Additional fee agreed with 
LCC for the provision of the 
records office 

10,000 0   

Other Staff 
Costs 

135,210 90,210 45,000 45,038   100,000 35,210 
Reflection of moving 

into the second wave 
response 

Readying 
Council Services  

60,000 0  60,000 50,772 

Ensuring Council Services 
are Covid Compliant. 
Majority of spend relates to 
Premises Costs 

40,000 20,000 

Costs of readying 
council services to re-

open/operate in a 
different way 

Contain Funding 0 0  0 0  

To support local test, trace 
and contain activities as well 
as wider measures to 
protect public health and 
local economies. 

304,000 -304,000 

The Councils response 
to Covid has largely 

been redeploying 
existing resource. The 
expenditure in relation 

to this is currently 
shown within the 

directorates with work 
ongoing to identify the 

exact recharge that will 
be required 

Additional Audit 
Costs 

23,600 23,600 0  23,600 
Additional costs to complete 
the Councils statutory Audit 
of the accounts. 

0  0    

Covid Marshalls 21,500 5,500 16,000 9,644 
Ensuring Compliance to 
Government Guidelines 

0 21,500 

Additional support 
required when the 
tiering system was 

introduced 

71



  

F
u

ll
 Y

e
a

r 

Im
p

a
c

t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

w
it

h
in

 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 

w
it

h
in

 

C
o

v
id

 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

S
p

e
n

t/
L

o
s

t 

to
 D

a
te

 

  Q
2

 P
o

s
it

io
n

 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

o
n

 

m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

Cultural 
Recovery Fund 

132,100  0 132,100  0 

To Support Cultural 
Organisations that were 
financially stable before 
Covid-19. 

132,100 0 New funding awarded 

Test and 
Support 
Payment 

24,000  0  24,000 11,500 
Payments to those who 
qualify if they are instructed 
to self isolate. 

0 24,000 New Funding awarded  

Communications 50,000 16,300 33,700 25,443 

Additional communication 
campaigns during pandemic 
and key communications 
around council services.  

50,000 0 

Communications will 
continue to be crucial 

as we move into the 
second wave 

Total 
Additional 
Expenditure 

3,070,830 952,410 2,118,420 1,862,652 

  

3,296,519 -249,289   

 
 

72



Appendix F – Lost Income 
 

Full Year 
Budget 

Full Year 
Impact 

Amount 
Lost to 
Date 

Details 

Parking services 
losses 

615,800 436,800 
 

226,600 The position reflects the period where the Car Parks were free to park and 
assumption made about car park usage while additional restrictions are still 
in place. Trends will be monitored and this may change. Losses to date are 
to the end of November. 

Highways and 
Transport losses 

247,300 126,600 82,900 
 

Traffic Regulation Orders, licencing and New Roads and Street Works, 
Section 38  

Licensing 66,000 10,000 10,000 Compared to this point in 2019/20 income is £10k lower 

Registration 
Services 

165,700 85,000 78,500 Fees taken over summer months (2019/20 64% of income was in by period 
4) 

Museum & Castle 36,700 22,200 20,000 Full Year impact – with no income planned at the Castle for the year. 

Active Rutland 
Hub 

46,000 20,000 12,000 Licenses for clubs being drawn up, majority of income already lost 

Building Control 38,100 2,000 0 
 

Schools Sports 
Service 

28,700 9,900 9,000 
 

Planning Income 
losses 

408,800 70,000 0 The expected loss is predicted over the full financial year, the profiling of 
income is difficult to predict and varies each year based on demand. The 
Council would have incurred some of the losses already, but this is difficult 
to quantify.  

Court Fee Income 
- Rev's and Bens 

47,300 29,300 20,000 
 

Day Opportunities 112,000 28,000 21,000 Lost income as a result of the service being closed 

Bikeability 13,500 9,000 9,000  

Total Income 
Losses 

1,825,900 848,800 489,000 
 

 

73



The Government have announced a scheme where Councils can reclaim some lost income. The Council submitted a claim at the end of 
November for £401k covering the period 1st April – 30th November.  Final Claim and reconciliation April 2021 (Data Return 1st December 
– 31st March).     

74



Appendix G: Capital Programme 

Project Description 

Approved 

Budget at 

Q2 

New 

Projects 

approved 

Total 

Project 

Budget 

Prior Year 

Outturn 

Estimated 

2020/21 

Outturn 

Estimated 

Project 

Outturn 

Project 

Over / 

(Under) 

Spend 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Oakham Enterprise Park 270  0 270  66  204  270  0 

Investment Properties (ON HOLD) 10,000  0 10,000  0  0 0  (10,000) 

Invest to Save (ON HOLD) 200 0 200 0 0 0 (200) 

Total Commercialisation Capital 
Programme 

10,470 0 10,470 66  204 270 (10,200) 

School Maintenance 36  0 36  16  20  36  0 

School Capacity & Feasibility 36 17 53 0 53 53 0 

Increase School Places (ON HOLD) 3,001 0 3,001 34 0 34 (2,967) 

Highways Capital Projects 3,252 0 3,252 0 3,252 3,252 0 

Integrated Transport Block 1,082 0 1,082 137 945 1,082 0 

Emergency Active Travel 2 29 31 0 2 2 0 

Schofield Road Culvert Works 86 0 86 0 86 86 0 

Barleythorpe Road Car Park 6 (3) 3 3 3 6 0 

Oakham Town Centre (ON HOLD) 428  0 428  342   0 342  (86) 

Museum Roof 102 0 102 90 12 102 0 

Future Maintenance Requirements 85 0 85 0 85 85 0 

Total Asset Management 
Requirements Capital Programme 

8,116 43 8,159 622 4,484 5,106 (3,053) 

Devolved Formula Capital 11  0 11  0  11 11  0 

Remote Learning Programme 3 0 3 0 3 3 0 

Disabled Facilities Grant 486 32 518 176 342 518 0 

Empingham GP Surgery 112 (9) 103 0 104 104 0 

SEND 1,049  0 1,049  381 668  1,049  0 

Sports Grants (ON HOLD) 500  0 500  343  0  343  (157) 

75



Project Description 

Approved 

Budget at 

Q2 

New 

Projects 

approved 

Total 

Project 

Budget 

Prior Year 

Outturn 

Estimated 

2020/21 

Outturn 

Estimated 

Project 

Outturn 

Project 

Over / 

(Under) 

Spend 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Oakham Castle Restoration 2,400  0 2,400  2,306  94  2,400  0 

Digital Rutland 5,066  0 5,066  2,230  2,836  5,066  0 

S106 – Third Part Payment 85 (43) 42 22 21 43 0 

Gt Casterton C of E Primary S106 43 0 43 0 43 43 0 

Ketton Centre (Library & Hub) 7 0 7 0 7 7 0 

North Luffenham Recycling Centre 23 0 23 0 23 23 0 

Cashless Car Parking 29 0 29 0 29 29 0 

Affordable Housing 0 650 650 0 650 650 0 

9 Buckingham Road – Extension 225 0 225 169 56 225 0 

IT Projects 70 0  70  0 70  70  0 

Total Strategic Aims and 
Priorities Capital Programme 

10,110 630 10,740 5,627 4,957 10,584 (157) 

Total Capital Programme 28,696 673 29,369 6,315 9,645 15,960 (13,410) 

 

76



Report No: 29/2021 
PUBLIC REPORT 

CABINET 

16th February 2021 

UPDATE ON CHILDREN’S SERVICES IMPROVEMENT PLAN  

Report of the Director for Children’s Services 

Strategic Aim: Protecting the vulnerable  

Key Decision: No Forward Plan Reference: FP/021020 

Exempt Information No 

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible: 

Mr D Wilby, Portfolio Holder for Lifelong Learning, Early 
Years, SEND, Inclusion, Safeguarding Children & Young 
People 

Contact Officer(s): Dawn Godfrey, Interim Director of 
Children's Services 

01572 758358 
dgodfrey@rutland.gov.uk 

 Emma Sweeny, Head of Children’s 
Social Care 

01572 722577 
esweeny@rutland.gov.uk 

Ward Councillors  

 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Cabinet: 

1. Notes the update on the Children’s Services Improvement Plan and offers comment 
on any areas where they feel progress is slower than expected. 

 

 

1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

1.1 The purpose of the report is to inform Cabinet on the actions taken and progress 
made in response to the areas for improvement identified by Ofsted.  
 

1.2 Further, the Cabinet is invited to share their views on any areas where they feel 
progress is slower than expected and any further action they believe is required. 
 

2 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS (MANDATORY) 

2.1 The strategic improvement plan was submitted to Ofsted in June 2020, who 
confirmed that they had reviewed the action plan and agreed “that it demonstrates 
an accurate understanding of the findings of the inspection.” 

2.2 A new approach to the governance of improvement was put in place immediately 
following the Ofsted inspection.  The Children’s Services Improvement Board 

77

Agenda Item 11

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS
http://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=300&Year=0


reports directly to Cabinet on progress, reviewing and challenging practice quality 
in key areas identified by Ofsted.  The Board is chaired by the portfolio holder for 
children’s services and includes the member champion for children in care and care 
leavers, and also the Deputy Director, Legal and Governance, to add an additional 
level of independent scrutiny and challenge.   

2.3 The Children’s Improvement Board have continued to meet monthly since the end 
of March 2020, and this is supplemented by the monthly Children’s Practice 
Oversight Group which informs the Board monitoring of the improvement plan. This 
complements the existing performance management and quality assurance 
frameworks.   

2.4 The governance structure is available at Appendix A. 

3 PROGRESS OF IMPROVEMENT PLAN  

3.1 The most recent improvement plan tracker is attached at Appendix B. 
 
MANAGEMENT OVERSIGHT AND DECISION-MAKING TO ENSURE THAT 
CHILDREN’S CASES ARE COMPREHENSIVELY OVERSEEN AND THAT THEIR 
PROGRESS IS CLOSELY REVIEWED. 

3.2 Management oversight remains a key focus for the service.  Robust management 
oversight and direction underpins all good practice and is a key element of all 
improvement actions. 

3.3 Recent practice reviews undertaken show an improvement in management 
oversight and robustness in child protection and child looked after cases and 
evidence follow up of actions and tracking of progress which is positive. We also 
commissioned an independent report from Ingson Consultancy to look at our 
progress which found that there has been some progress across the board but that 
improvements are still required.  

3.4 To embed further the changes all team managers will be offered a coaching and 
mentoring programme to uplift and embed their management skills.  Due to the 
current national lockdown this will now take place in March 2021.   

3.5 A key focus is for supervision to be evidenced on all case files. This is a recurring 
theme, and this is being closely monitored by the Service Manager and Head of 
Service through monthly dip sampling of cases. Recommendation is for supervision 
to be included in Children’s Social Care performance data so this can be monitored 
robustly. 

3.6 We are introducing a Through Care Team focussing on our looked after children 
and care leavers to allow for more robust management oversight and to give 
managers the capacity to give clear oversight and be able to track and follow up 
actions to make sure plans for young people are achieved.  Introducing the Through 
Care Team will make the workload within the current permanence and protection 
team to be more manageable and will allow our improvement journey to progress 
further.    These changes have been achieved through a re-distribution of existing 
resources. 

3.7 We have re-focussed our quality assurance activity and the Head of Service 
moderates this activity to ensure compliance and quality of audit is embedded.  This 

78



is now a feature of the monthly performance meetings with the focus on identifying 
themes arising and working with the Principal Social Worker to share learning with 
staff.  Our quality assurance framework has been reviewed and we will be using a 
dynamic approach using our data to analyse trends and areas for quality assurance 
analysis.  An example of this was an audit of our low number of Child Protection 
Plans. Having identified this issue we completed an audit of our Child in Need cases 
to ensure that we were applying thresholds correctly, once satisfied in relation to 
this we then analysed our threshold decision making at the front door and found that 
there were some instances of over optimism where we should have progressed as 
child protection.  We have taken this learning and the Team Manager and Service 
Manager continue to monitor and analyse decision making to ensure this is robust 
and appropriate.  

3.8 Feedback from parents/carers and children needs to become better embedded in 
this learning loop and the participation and engagement lead is working with social 
care to embed this.  We have recently implemented the MyView App for our children 
in our care and allows them to communicate in alternative ways with our service and 
offer feedback. We are looking at how this can be utilised more fully across our work 
with all children and families and how we can develop this to gain feedback to our 
work completed.   

THE QUALITY OF ASSESSMENTS AND PLANS TO ENSURE THAT THEY 
IDENTIFY NEEDS AND LEAD TO IMPROVEMENTS IN CHILDREN’S WELL-
BEING. 

3.9 We have taken a back-to-basics approach with our staff to revisit essential skills and 
re-emphasise good quality practice in relation to assessments and planning.  
Moving from a focus purely on timeliness, we have implemented a series of 
workshops, led by the Principal Social Worker and Service Manager, starting with 
writing and using chronologies in assessments. This gives a clear focus to social 
workers in considering past and current events and how this fuller picture has 
impacted on the families they are working with.  

3.10 In the last year we have made progress in relation to assessments and plans, and 
this is reflected in our performance data.  An example of this is the significant 
improvement in pathway plans being reviewed on time which last year was 25% and 
this year has risen to 95%.  We have also ensured that our assessments have 
become more timely, while 93% were completed within the 45 days statutory 
timescales the majority of these were completed at day 44.  This year, 96% have 
been completed within this time frame with 51% of assessments completed in under 
40 days, which had led to more focussed and timely intervention for families.   

3.11 Quality of assessments require ongoing work however we share good practice with 
staff as case exemplars to encourage peer support and help others with examples 
of what good looks like.  We are role modelling to staff that we require a quality of 
practice that is also timely, and this is a key focus for us.  We are utilising our Signs 
of Safety1training to ensure that our assessments and plans are clear and use family 
friendly language. When we know that there have been deficits in our practice, we 
take the opportunity to look at what we could have done differently and put actions 
in place to ensure that this does not happen in the future.  An example of this is 

                                                           
1 Signs of Safety is a strength based, safety focused approach to working with children and families.  It is the 

preferred model of practice in Rutland. 

79



when a concern was raised regarding how robust an assessment was in relation to 
a family member who wanted to care for their nephew.  We reviewed the 
assessment and the processes we had in place and identified that as well as 
ensuring robust supervision was in place, we would ensure that a mid-way meeting 
was held between all professionals involved to ensure that any areas of concern 
were being addressed and that we were putting the correct support in place, if 
needed, at an early stage.  This approach has led to more robust assessments 
which has been commented upon positively within the court arena.         

3.12 A key focus is to embed the philosophy of ‘doing the basics well’ and progress from 
compliance to quality in the work we undertake. Professional curiosity is key to this 
and how we evidence that practitioners are having challenging discussions with 
families; evidence of transparent and honest conversations where practitioners are 
voicing their concerns and what needs to change; and what will happen if concerns 
continue.   The voice of the child needs to be more visible on casefiles and evidence 
creative direct work with the child, capturing the words of the child without 
paraphrasing. 

COMMISSIONING AND CONTRACT MONITORING ARRANGEMENTS, TO 
INCREASE THE SUFFICIENCY AND QUALITY OF COMMISSIONED SERVICES, 
INCLUDING PLACEMENT MATCHING FOR DISABLED CHILDREN AND 
THOSE WITH COMPLEX NEEDS. 

3.13 Contract monitoring meetings are taking place monthly with, Lincolnshire County 
Council (Adoption), Peterborough City Council (Legal Services) and Leicestershire 
County Council (Out of Hours Service). 

3.14 We have a much-improved relationship and communication with the out of hours 
service and have provided training in relation to recording of contacts.  There is 
weekly contact between Service Manager and Team Managers across Rutland and 
Leicestershire to ensure progress is maintained.  

3.15 There is good communication between Rutland and Lincolnshire, and Rutland 
benefits from the high-quality adoption services Lincolnshire offer.  The issue raised 
by Ofsted in relation to the Agency Decision Maker (ADM) role has been addressed 
and from October 2020 the role of ADM has returned to Rutland.  

3.16 The legal services contract works well for Rutland.  The head of children’s legal 
services and head of children’s social care meet monthly and there has been 
constructive challenge on both sides regarding the quality of work.  The current 
service level agreement has been expanded to include legal advice for Rutland 
Agency Decision Maker regarding adoption cases as this was identified as a gap. 

3.17 The children’s commissioning group meets six weekly, chaired by the Interim 
Director of Children’s Services.  This group has reviewed and simplified the 
operating protocol for the commissioning of placements (including children with 
complex needs and disabled children) and clarified the role of the commissioning 
team, social care and SEND panel.  Work is ongoing with Leicestershire about the 
quality assurance of placement providers on the Framework, and Rutland have 
identified a manager who will be the Rutland link to this work. 

THE HOUSING OFFER FOR VULNERABLE YOUNG PEOPLE AND CARE 
LEAVERS, INCLUDING ADDRESSING THE USE OF BED AND BREAKFAST 

80



ACCOMMODATION. 

3.18 We are clear that bed and breakfast accommodation is not an option for our young 
people.  There is a new housing protocol for homeless 16/17-year-olds in place and 
being adhered to.  There is now clarity about the offer to vulnerable young people 
about their housing options and management sign off on this decision.  The service 
manager completes a quarterly audit to ensure that the housing protocol is being 
adhered to.  

3.19 At the time of the Ofsted inspection, there was one young person living in bed and 
breakfast accommodation.  This young person has been supported into his own flat 
in an area of his choice, he has secure employment and is thriving in his 
environment.  His Personal Advisor has worked hard to build a positive working 
relationship with him and enable this change in circumstance. Currently all of our 
Care Leavers are appropriately housed, and we continue to closely monitor this to 
ensure that they have the support needed to ensure they can maintain their 
tenancies.  

3.20 We want to increase the number of children who benefit from ‘Staying Put’2 
arrangements with their foster carers and have updated our staying put policy to 
make this offer clearer to all involved.  We are already looking at 2 more staying put 
arrangements this year and with a number of young people reaching 18 we are 
being proactive in having these discussions with carers around this.    A key focus 
for us is the need to recruit more local foster carers to achieve this. COVID-19 has 
impacted on our recruitment campaign planning.  We now have a plan in place to 
commission a campaign and ensure this is launched by 10th May 2021 to coincide 
with foster carer fortnight.      

3.21 We are looking at how Rutland responds to the local issue of housing and linking in 
with work in the local plan regarding affordable, single occupancy housing for our 
young people leaving care and in need of housing support.  This work initially stalled 
due to the response to Covid-19 being a priority but is progressing now. 

THE USE OF THE PRE-PROCEEDINGS PHASE OF THE PUBLIC LAW 
OUTLINE, TO ENSURE THAT PARENTS CAN MAKE CHANGES WITHIN A 
LEGAL FRAMEWORK AND THAT CHILDREN COME INTO CARE WHEN THEY 
NEED TO. 

3.22 When a social worker is concerned about the welfare of a child, they may invite 
parents to a Public Law Outline Meeting (PLO)3 or a pre-proceedings meeting. 
These meetings are called if the Local Authority and the Social Worker are 
concerned about the care that a child is receiving and they may make an application 
to the Court to see if the Court will make orders to protect the child.  

3.23 Ofsted identified that the use of these pre-proceedings’ meetings were not 
consistent or always timely enough.  Since Ofsted, all previous cases in PLO have 
stepped down from PLO, and we currently have no cases within a PLO arena.   

                                                           
2 ‘Staying Put’ refers to an arrangement where young people remain with their foster carers following their 

18th birthday.  They are not ‘looked after’ by the Local Authority but remain with their foster carers on a 
supported living basis. 
3 The Public Law Outline (PLO) sets out the duties local authorities have when thinking about taking a case 

to court to ask for a Care Order to take a child into care or for a Supervision Order to be made.   

81



3.24 We have discussed with legal the learning from the last year in relation to our care 
proceedings cases and are looking at some learning events regarding threshold for 
care proceedings. In addition to this our new managers have more robust 
management challenge and scrutiny in relation to legal planning. 

3.25 We have reduced the number of care proceedings we have had this year and of the 
care proceedings we have had the care planning has been focused.  It is positive 
that despite the Covid-19 pandemic, the timeliness of our care proceedings has 
been good.   

 
Case Example – Child B was a child who came into the care of the Local Authority 
following his mother being very unwell and no longer able to care for him and his 
father stating he did not want to care for him. Despite Covid-19 our social workers 
were able to work closely with the family to secure a long-term family placement 
for him with a special guardianship order being made to his aunt. In her judgement 
in concluding the care proceedings the judge noted the robust assessment and 
approach of the Local Authority and the positive outcome achieved for B.  
 

 
EARLY PERMANENCE PLANNING FOR CHILDREN. 

3.26 Permanence planning meetings have been taking place monthly and have allowed 
the service manager to have robust oversight of cases and plans.  A permanence 
tracker is used to ensure no child is allowed to ‘drift’ in care.   This is updated weekly, 
and the head of service has oversight of this. We continue to work hard to ensure 
that we have good long-term plans in place for a looked after children who have 
been in our care for some time and are working towards ensuring all have 
permanent homes. The Service Manager meets weekly with the Team Manger to 
support progress on priority cases and ensure that action plans are clear and 
management rationale is on file regarding the progress.   

3.27 We have revised the role of the ‘children in care/ at risk of care’ panel, chaired by 
the head of service, and this panel follows up all new or potential placements to 
ensure there is no delay in planning for permanency, and that children are 
appropriately matched with carers. 

3.28 We have concluded a number of care proceedings and have reunified children into 
parental or family care.  There is robust oversight of the plans for children in our 
care and progress is being made with securing permanency.  We are ensuring that 
our care proceedings conclude with clear plans in place for our children. We have 
secured adoption for one child this year with a second placed with adopters.  We 
have also had care plans of adoption for 4 more children to be placed before the 
court - this is a significant change for Rutland who have had limited numbers of 
adoptions historically.  

THE TIMELINESS OF FOSTER CARER ANNUAL REVIEWS. 

3.29 All foster carer reviews are completed within timescales and the Fostering Panel 
has robust oversight of these.  Foster carers are invited to attend Panel for their 
reviews and the Panel offers constructive challenge to ensure quality of fostering 
assessments and reviews remains good. We have ensured that our panel have had 
appraisals this year and we continue to develop the robust approach of our panel.  

82



 

4 CONSULTATION  

4.1 This report is for information only. 
 

5 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS  

5.1 No Applicable  

6 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

6.1 None identified- the plan is delivered within the children’s services budget.  

7 LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS  

7.1 There are no legal or governance considerations. 
 

8 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 A Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) has not been completed. 

9 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

9.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has not been completed as it is not deemed 
relevant to this report. 
 

10 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 None Identified  

11 HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 None Identified  

12 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

12.1 There has been much progress made since the Ofsted inspection in March.  It is 
acknowledged that children’s services are not yet consistently good and there 
remains a challenge in continuing to improve and sustain those improvements. 
 

12.2 Workforce planning is central to our improvement and is a key risk to sustaining 
improvement.   Whilst we have recruited to our vacancies during the Covid 
pandemic, virtual recruitment has been challenging and has not always led to the 
right people being in post.  We have taken swift action to address this and while our 
social work stability has improved this is a still a key area of focus for us, particularly 
at management level.  Working remotely is a challenge in terms of building a 
supportive team culture and environment and helping staff to feel secure around 
taking steps to improve practice and, more importantly, offering stability and 
consistency to children, young people and their families.  
 

12.3 Recruitment to the remaining vacant posts is ongoing; we currently have one agency 
Social Worker in the service, which is an improved position for us, but we want to 

83



move to a position with no agency workers in the service.  Our Frontline4 students 
are now in post and have integrated well into the team.  They will be qualified social 
workers in our service from September 2021 which will give us stability and 
resilience in terms of social work staffing.  In joining the Frontline programme and 
employing some newly qualified social workers we are growing our own social 
workers who are clear on the service expectations in Rutland and the standards that 
are expected.    
 

12.4 It is clear that the pandemic has impacted upon our rate of progress and hindered 
plans at different times throughout the last 10 months. We are however proud of the 
work our social workers have undertaken and how they have adapted to a 
challenging working environment.  We have ensured that our vulnerable children 
and young people have continued to be seen, face to face and receive a service 
from us to ensure their safety and wellbeing.  
 

12.5 We have used external challenge from Ingson Consultancy and our regional peer 
challenge conversations, to test ourselves, to inform our self-assessment, and to 
test that our own analysis is accurate.  We are confident that we are making 
progress and that we know the areas that require attention to improve.  
 

12.6 Our Ofsted Annual Engagement Meeting took place on 21st January 2021 during 
this meeting we were able to highlight the areas we have improved upon this year 
and areas that require further improvement. Ofsted are likely to undertake a 
focussed visit to Rutland in April/May 2021 and we will be able to evidence further 
our improvement.  Following our meeting with Ofsted we will be refreshing the 
improvement plan to focus down on stubborn areas of practice which require 
improvement as well as quality assurance.  
 

 
12.7 The challenge moving forward is to build a strong and stable management team 

who can lead and inspire our social workers to improve practice and to maintain 
this.  The support programmes in place will assist our managers in this task as well 
as clear role modelling by senior management.    

 

12.8 While we still require improvement to be good, we have made good progress in our 
improvement journey. We know that there is still work  to do to continue to improve 
and sustain improvement, and we have a sharp  focus  on improving the quality of 
practice and robust management support.    

12.9 It is recommended that the Cabinet notes the actions taken in response to the areas 
for improvement identified by Ofsted and offers comment on any areas where they 
feel progress is slower than expected. 
 

13 BACKGROUND PAPERS  

13.1 There are no additional papers to the report. 
 

                                                           
4 The Frontline programme is a nationally recognised programme for high potential university leavers and career changers to qualify as 

Social workers. The two-year programme offers a route into a career in children's social work. 

 

84



14 APPENDICES  

14.1 Appendix A – Improvement Governance Arrangements 
 

14.2 Appendix B – Children’s Services Improvement Plan Tracker 
 

 

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.  

 

 

85



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Children’s Services Improvement Board 
 

Terms of Reference 
 
 
Underpinning Principles  
 
Understanding where the key risks and issues are across the whole system of 
support and protection for children. 
 
Understand the journey of a Rutland child from the first point they need help, care 
and protection, and through all the different stages after that. 
 
Understanding what difference we are making and focusing our improvements where 
we can have most impact. 
 
 
Aims and Purpose  
 
To address the findings from the Ofsted inspection of Children's Services and to 
ensure delivery of improvements against those findings.  
 
To achieve this aim, the Board will:  
 
1. Ensure services for children and families in Rutland are fit for purpose and 

subject to continuous improvement to ensure that children and young people are 
safe, healthy, aspiring and achieving.  

 
2. Take ownership of the Improvement Plan with clear accountability, scrutiny and 

reporting lines.  
 
3. Challenge the delivery and direction of the actions contained within the 

Improvement Plan to ensure that improvements are timely and sustainable.  
 
4. Monitor the delivery of the Improvement Plan to agreed quality standards and 

timescales.  
 
5. Give assurance that improvements can be evidenced and monitored to maintain 

high standards of performance across all agencies.  
 
6. Give assurance that the culture of improvement is embedded across all those 

agencies beyond the life and work of the Improvement Plan. Closely monitor the 
Improvement Plan.  

 
7. Report progress against the Improvement Plan to Cabinet, Chief Executive and 

the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee. 
 

87



8. Engage frontline staff, children, young people and families in developing and 
monitoring improvement activity to ensure that children and young people's 
voices are heard.  

 
9. Work within the existing strategic governance, accountability and challenge 

framework, including the Safeguarding Children Partnership, Health and 
Wellbeing Board, Children and Young People’s Partnership, Corporate Parenting 
Board and relevant Scrutiny Committee(s), and seek to complement and 
enhance the work done by these bodies.  

 
 
Membership  
 
Chair:  Portfolio Holder for Lifelong Learning, Early Years, SEND, Inclusion, 
Safeguarding Children & Young People 
 
The membership of the Board will be:  
 

 Elected Member  - Children in Care and Care Leavers Champion 

 Strategic Director for People and Deputy Chief Executive 

 Deputy Director of Children's Services  

 Deputy Director, Resources 

 Head of Service, Children’s Social Care 
 
 
Other Matters  
 
Quorum: There will be no quorum for the meeting  
 
Voting: All members have equal voting rights. The Chair does not have a second or 
casting vote. It is expected that the Board will, as far as possible, reach decisions by 
consensus.  
 
Frequency of Meetings: Meetings will be monthly, unless otherwise agreed by the 
Board  
 
Changes to Membership: Changes to membership can be agreed by the Board. 
The Board may invite anyone who it believes will be useful in achieving its aims and 
purpose to attend meetings or join the Board as a full member with voting rights or a 
co-opted member without.  
 
 
 

88



 
Appendix A – Governance Structure 

 

 

 

Children’s Services Improvement Board 

Children’s Practice 

Oversight Group 

Children Looked 

After/Children at 

Risk Panel 

Corporate 

Parenting Board 

Children’s 

Commissioning 

Group 

Education 

Improvement Board 

People’s Q 

Performance and 

Quality meeting 

Children’s Monthly 

Performance and 

Quality meeting 

Send Panel 

Cabinet 

Improvement 

Plan Delivery 

Group (CS DMT) 

Scrutiny 

89



T
his page is intentionally left blank



CHILDREN'S SERVICES IMPROVEMENT PLAN

What Needs to Improve Action Action Person Responsible By When Progress to Date RAG Impact Assurance

1 Permanent recruitment to management roles is ongoing- we 

have reviewed and changed our recruitment processes to 

ensure that our recruitment is more specific about the skills 

and knowledge required for the role and includes practical 

skills tests as well as a formal interview.    

Emma Sweeny 28 August 2020 Completed G

2 Utilisation of management practice standards to induct new 

staff and emphasise good practice.

Emma Sweeny 28 August 2020 Completed G

3 The head of service and service manager continue to closely 

monitor the frequency and quality of supervision and will take 

swift performance management action as necessary.

Emma Sweeny / Heidi Baron 31 March 2021 Centralised point for storing supervision has been 

created dipsampling is taking place monthly

G

3a Supervision continues to be monitored by the service manager 

and Head of Service. Monthly audit of quality of supervision to 

be undertaken by HoS, PSW and SM.   

Emma Sweeny/Heidi 

Baron/Sarah Nichols 

31 March 2021 Supervision qulaity remains a key focus and wok is 

ongoing with managers around this. 

G

3b Recording and reporting of supervision on liquid logic is being 

explored to allow for more robust recording.  

Heidi Baron/Jonathan Wellar 31 March 2021 Ongoing work with BI to look at best recording 

formats 

G

4 All team managers will receive First line Management training 

which has a strong focus on supporting managers to become 

more confident to challenge staff when appropriate.

Emma Sweeny / Lydia 

Bennett

31 March 2021 Ann-Marie and Sami wil be on the spring cohort 

beginning 24th March 2021

G

5 A new governance approach to children’s improvement has 

been established including a children’s service improvement 

board, chaired by the Portfolio Holder for Lifelong Learning, 

Early Years, SEND, Inclusion, Safeguarding Children & Young 

People, Children’s Practice Oversight group and Children’s 

Commissioning Group

Dawn Godfrey 08 April 2020 Completed G

6 Re-focus our quality assurance activity and use our moderation 

process to ensure compliance and quality of audit is 

embedded.  

Kevin Quinn 31 March 2021 Ongoing work being led by Kevin to redesign the 

QA framework in collaboration with staff

G

6a QA focus on identifying themes arising and working with the 

principal social worker to share learning with staff and devlop a 

learning loop.  Feedback from parents/carers and children 

needs to become embedded in this learning loop.  

Sarah Nichols/ Heidi Baron 31 March 2021 Work has already begun on embedding learning 

into staff briefing traning sessions. Impact 

Chronology traning has been complted this month.   

G

6b Compliance with practice reviews is treated as a performance 

issue. Management expectations are clear on bottom line 

expectations that these are completed each month without 

exception. 

Emma Sweeny/Heidi Baron 31 March 2021 There are issues with compliance and these are 

being addressed without exception 

G

7 Audit compliance to be monitored by the service manager and 

the revised quality assurance tool used to improve practice. 

Audits not completed to be managed as a performance issue 

each month. 

Emma Sweeny / Lydia 

Bennett

30 June 2020 Audits are reviewed every month and compliance 

is managed robustly/ 

G

Management oversight and 

decision-making to ensure that 

children’s cases are 

comprehensively overseen and 

that their progress is closely 

reviewed

New permanent management team in place- offering 

stability and consistency 

Clear management oversight on all children’s files

Management oversight adds clarity and actions are 

progressed for children and young people. 

Managers are confident in their roles and remit and 

can articulate this

Senior managers and leaders are clear on practice 

issues and the steps being taken to address these 

91



CHILDREN'S SERVICES IMPROVEMENT PLAN

What Needs to Improve Action Action Person Responsible By When Progress to Date RAG Impact Assurance

Management oversight and 

decision-making to ensure that 

children’s cases are 

comprehensively overseen and 

that their progress is closely 

reviewed

New permanent management team in place- offering 

stability and consistency 

Clear management oversight on all children’s files

Management oversight adds clarity and actions are 

progressed for children and young people. 

Managers are confident in their roles and remit and 

can articulate this

Senior managers and leaders are clear on practice 

issues and the steps being taken to address these 

8 All single assessments are monitored at 10 and 20 days to 

respond to the child’s timeframe and maintain progress in this 

area.

RAIS TM 31 July 2020 Timley assessments remain a focus in the service 

and the team manager is driving forward this 

performance. 100% of assessments were 

completed in timescales in June.  

G

9 Team managers to identify exemplars of good practice to help 

support others to understand what good assessments look like

Team Managers / Heidi Baron 31 March 2021 PSW continues to work with TM's to collate good 

exemplars of practice. 

G

9a Exemplars of good practoce to be used in staff workshops to 

develop skills and help set expectations of what good looks like 

Team Managers/ Heidi Baron/ 

PSW 

31 March 2021 PSW is in the process of building our own 

knowledge bank of good practice 

G

10 IRO and PSW to conduct workshops on how to formulate good 

plans

Denise Wynter / Sarah 

Nichols

31 March 2021 Ongoing work with teams  around good plans is 

taking place- this will be an ongoing process and 

form part of the omgoing signs of safety 

implementation 

G

11 Review of Liquid logic capability to look at management sign 

off to enable more robust practice oversight and ensure staff 

are no longer able to sign off their own plans and plans must 

now be signed off by their team manager prior to being shared 

with families and professionals.

David Wylie / Heidi Baron / 

Team Managers

31 October 2020 Completed Team Managers now have oversight of 

plans and sign thes off- Next step action is to 

improve quality of plans and uplift practce through 

QA procesess. 

G

12 Progression of plans is discussed routinely in supervision to 

ensure appropriate level of management oversight including 

challenge and reflection, and evidence progress being made.

Team Managers  26 June 2020 Completed. Supervision is in place with clear focus 

on progression of plans

G

13 Principal social worker and Service Manager to analyse audits 

monthly and highlight the actions for learning and report to the 

Performance meeting.  

Lydia Bennett / Sarah Nichols 26 June 2020 Completed G

14 PSW to add actions for learning to their work plan and this is to 

be shared across the service and evidence collated around 

how this impacts on practice. 

Sarah Nichols 30 June 2020 Completed G

15 Formal monthly contract monitoring meetings take place and 

quality assurance measures for all contracts reviewed.

Emma Sweeny / Lydia 

Bennett

29 May 2020 Completed. Meetings take place every month with 

comissioned services.  

G

16 Clear policy document to be created and shared with staff 

around the process for commissioning placements. 

Karen Kibblewhite / Simon 

Barnett

31 July 2020 Commissioning team to brief social care on 

process. Briefings to be completed by 31st August- 

completed  

G

16a Review of how comissioning arrangments are implemented 

wiithin social care and action plan around ensuring robust 

arrangements around comissoning process in place 

Kevin Quinn 31 January 2021 G

17 Review corporate commissioning strategy for children’s 

placements

Karen Kibblewhite / Simon 

Barnett

31 July 2020 Completed. Standard operating protocol revised 

and in place.  Suggest new action around quality 

assurance of placements

G

17a Children's social care to ensure that robust processes are in 

place for the quality assurance of placements for CLA and all 

placements have appropriate monitoring in place. 

Heidi Baron/Kevin Quinn 31 December 2020 Ongoing work with Leicestershire around the 

quality assurance of placements on the framework- 

discussions are being held around an East 

Midlands QA framework that we are involved in.

G

The quality of assessments and 

plans to ensure that they identify 

needs and lead to improvements 

in children’s well-being

Audits will show improvement in assessments and 

plans 

Higher level of satisfaction with service offered will be 

recorded 

Complaints in relation to the service will reduce

Data will show continued improvement in timeliness of 

assessments 

Commissioning and contract 

monitoring arrangements, to 

increase the sufficiency and 

quality of commissioned 

services, including placement 

matching for disabled children 

and those with complex needs 

Clarity around all commissioned services and actions 

plans around any issues raised to be presented to 

children’s commissioning group

All staff are clear and follow the right processes for 

commissioning services for more complex needs. 

92



CHILDREN'S SERVICES IMPROVEMENT PLAN

What Needs to Improve Action Action Person Responsible By When Progress to Date RAG Impact Assurance

Management oversight and 

decision-making to ensure that 

children’s cases are 

comprehensively overseen and 

that their progress is closely 

reviewed

New permanent management team in place- offering 

stability and consistency 

Clear management oversight on all children’s files

Management oversight adds clarity and actions are 

progressed for children and young people. 

Managers are confident in their roles and remit and 

can articulate this

Senior managers and leaders are clear on practice 

issues and the steps being taken to address these 

18 A new housing protocol for homeless 16/17 year olds to be put 

in place with expectation around offer of S20/S17 support and 

management sign off of this decision.

Emma Sweeny / Simon 

Barnett

29 May 2020 Completed. Housing protocol in place and being 

adhered to, being revised to make more young 

person friendly

G

19 Fostering offer to be developed to ensure that staying put is in 

place. 

Alison Sharp / Heidi Baron 30 November 2020 Draft care leaver offer in place including staying 

put. This has yet to be share by the service 

manager for sign off but is expected by 01.12.20.  

This will help focus the upcoming fostering 

recruitment campaign to ensure staying put is a 

key focus. 

R

20 Quarterly audit of homeless 16/17 years to ensure compliance 

with procedure. 

Heidi Baron 01 March 2021 This has been completed for Q1 and Q2- Q3 to be 

reviewed in Januray 2021

G

21 Corporate review of how Rutland responds to the local issue of 

housing and link with work in the local plan regarding 

affordable, single occupancy housing for our young people 

leaving care and in need of housing support

Dawn Godfrey / Penny Sharp 31 December 2020 Work on this had stalled due to Covid related 

priority activity.  Is now underway led by K Quinn.

A

22 PLO tracker in place and updated weekly by PAPS team 

manager 

Team Manager PAPS 15 May 2020 Completed G

23 Monthly meetings with legal services to discuss PLO cases 

and ensure progression

Emma Sweeny / Lydia 

Bennett

29 May 2020 Completed G

24 Monthly PLO reports to practice oversight group and 

improvement board  

Emma Sweeny / Lydia 

Bennett

31 July 2020 Completed G

The housing offer for vulnerable 

young people and care leavers, 

including addressing the use of 

bed and breakfast 

accommodation 

No young people will reside in bed and breakfast 

accommodation

Clear policy in place and followed with clear audit/data.  

Increase in numbers of those in staying put 

arrangements 

The use of the pre-proceedings 

phase of the public law outline, 

to ensure that parents can make 

changes within a legal framework 

and that children come into care 

when they need to 

Pre-proceedings work will increase- a robust tracker 

will be in place that can evidence the improvement in 

this work 

Fewer immediate issue cases will be recorded

High level scrutiny of this area of practice by the 

children’s practice oversight group and improvement 

board. 

Impact will be measured through our quality assurance 

system.

93



CHILDREN'S SERVICES IMPROVEMENT PLAN

What Needs to Improve Action Action Person Responsible By When Progress to Date RAG Impact Assurance

Management oversight and 

decision-making to ensure that 

children’s cases are 

comprehensively overseen and 

that their progress is closely 

reviewed

New permanent management team in place- offering 

stability and consistency 

Clear management oversight on all children’s files

Management oversight adds clarity and actions are 

progressed for children and young people. 

Managers are confident in their roles and remit and 

can articulate this

Senior managers and leaders are clear on practice 

issues and the steps being taken to address these 

25 Head of Service will have oversight of all permanence planning 

at Children Looked After and At Risk Of Care Panel and 

permanence tracker reviewed at fortnightly practice oversight 

group with progress reported to improvement board

Emma Sweeny 28 April 2020 Completed G

26 Service Manager to review the permanence planning 

procedure to ensure that this is fit for purpose and can drive 

changes requires. 

Lydia Bennett 31 July 2020 Completed G

27 New data set around Permanence and matching to be agreed 

and run monthly

Emma Sweeny/Heidi Baron 31 December 2020 BI have incorporated the permanace planning 

documents into liquid logic which will allow for 

reporting in relation to permanace and matching to 

be drawn fromn the system- this is in testing and 

due to go live next week. 

G

28 IRO practice standards to be embedded to ensure that they 

champion and meet those standards for CLA.  Additional IRO 

post to support with this emphasis. 

Emma Sweeny / Lydia 

Bennett

30 June 2020 Completed. New IRO has been recruited and the 

IRO is clear around challenge as evidenced in 

practice reviews. 

G

29 IRO practice alerts are followed up and monitored for 

progression  

Lydia Bennett 30 June 2020 This is completed and ongoing.  G

30 IRO challenge/oversight is evident on case files and challenge 

is responded to by Team and Service Manager 

IRO/Team and Service 

Managers

31 December 2020 IRO midway review form has now been designed 

and followingdiscussion with the service and some 

changes to the sign off will be ready to go live w/c 

7/12

G

31 Panels are scheduled and clear on expectations to sustain 

progress already made

Fostering Manager / Service 

Manager

Completed G

32 Annual report from panel chair is completed and used to inform 

fostering plan

Panel Chair / Fostering 

Manager

31 March 2021 Not due to until end of March 2021 G

Early permanence planning for 

children

All children have a clear permanence plan 

Permanence is achieved for children without delay 

Data around timeliness of permanence improves

IRO challenge and footprint is evident and assists in 

progressing children’s plans swiftly

The timeliness of foster carer 

annual reviews

All carers are reviewed on time

Panel annual report is able to show challenge and 

scrutiny of carers 

94



Report No: 31/2021 
PUBLIC REPORT 

CABINET 

16th February 2021 

CLEANING CONTRACT – EXTENSION REQUEST AND 
PROCUREMENT OF NEW CONTRACT 

Report of the Strategic Director Places 

Strategic Aim: Customer Focussed Services 

Key Decision: Yes Forward Plan Reference: FP/271120 

Exempt Information No 

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible: 

Cllr Oliver Hemsley - Cabinet (Chair)Leader and 
Portfolio Holder for Rutland One Public Estate & 
Growth, Tourism & Economic Development, 
Communications, Resources (other than Finance) and 
Property 

Contact Officer(s): Mona Walsh 

Head of Property Services 

Tel: 01572 7208391 

MWalsh2@rutland.gov.uk 

 Diane Grattage 

Senior Building Surveyor 

Tel: 01572 7208254 

Dgrattage@rutland.gov.uk 

Ward Councillors Not applicable  

 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Cabinet: 

1. Approves the extension of the existing cleaning contract of Council properties to 31 
March 2022 at an estimated cost up to £157,180, including consumables and laundry 
but excluding exceptional events such as deep cleaning following a Covid_19 event.  

2. Authorises the Strategic Director Places in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Rutland One Public Estate & Growth, Tourism & Economic Development, 
Communications, Resources (other than Finance) and Property and the Director for 
Resources to determine a procurement route, award criteria and if a suitable supplier 
or suppliers are identified, move forward and award a contract.  

  

95

Agenda Item 12

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS
http://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=300&Year=0
mailto:Dgrattage@rutland.gov.uk


1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

1.1 This report seeks approval to extend the existing cleaning contract with S4 
Facilities Ltd (t/a Extra Fresh) for cleaning of RCC properties, pending 
procurement of a new cleaning contract, as set out in the recommendations 
above. The approvals requested will ensure the contract can be placed with the 
minimum delay and service disruption. 

2 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS  

2.1 Cleaning of all Council properties is provided by S4 Facilities Ltd (t/a Extra Fresh). 
The existing contract commenced on 1 Dec 2017 and expires on 31 March 2021. 
RCC wish to extend the existing contract from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022, 
whilst a new cleaning contract is procured, at an estimated cost up to £157,180, 
including consumables and laundry which are charged based on supply and 
usage. The estimated cost is exclusive of exceptional events such as deep 
cleaning following a Covid_19 outbreak.  

2.2 Procurement of the new cleaning contract will be through an existing ESPO 
Framework (Total Cleaning Services Framework No 263), meeting Public 
Procurement Regulations 2015 and RCC Financial Regulations and providing a 
secure, robust and simplified process. The ESPO Framework has been updated 
reflecting statutory obligations and recommended Covid_19 cleaning protocols.   

2.3 The new contract will be structured to be flexible and enable the Council to amend 
or flex cleaning requirements to reflect property use, occupation and 
environmental events as they occur. This flexibility will be particularly important as 
the Council makes decisions on future use, ownership and occupation of 
properties over the lifetime of the new contract.  

2.4 Extension of the existing contract to 31 March 2022 is estimated to incur a total 
contract spend of up to £561,495, including consumables and laundry but 
excluding exceptional events related to Covid_19.   In accordance with CPRs 
Regulation 17.3.9 contracts with a total value above £500,000 can only be 
extended with the authorisation of Cabinet. 

3 CONSULTATION  

3.1 Informal consultation has taken place with the Portfolio Holder for Property, 
Strategic Director Places and Deputy Director Corporate Governance (Monitoring 
Officer) and the Council’s Commissioning Manager about the contract extension 
and planned procurement. 

3.2 Consultation was also undertaken with S4 Facilities Ltd who have confirmed their 
agreement to the contract extension.  

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS  

4.1 Not extending the contract would result in the Council’s properties remaining 
uncleaned and therefore not safe for use. This would result in properties, currently 
occupied, being closed and the Council unable to provide required services and 
support to residents and service users. 

5 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

96



5.1 The contract sum of £157k can be met within existing budgets. 

5.2 Exceptional costs in relation to Covid will continue to be met from the Councils 
Covid budget 

6 LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS  

6.1 As referred to in Section 2 above procurement of the new cleaning contract will be 
through an existing ESPO Framework (Total Cleaning Services Framework No 
263), meeting Public Procurement Regulations 2015 and RCC Financial 
Regulations and providing a secure, robust and simplified process. In accordance 
with CPRs Regulation 17.3.9 contracts with a total value above £500,000 can only 
be extended with the authorisation of Cabinet. 

7 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS  

7.1 A Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) has been completed. No adverse 
or other significant risks/issues were found. A copy of the DPIA can be obtained 
from Mona Walsh, Head of Property Services. 

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

8.1 An Equality Impact questionnaire has been completed. No adverse or other 
significant risks / issues were found. As such, a full Equality Impact Assessment 
(EqIA) has not been completed. 

9 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  

9.1 Extension of the contract, pending procurement of a new contract, will ensure that 
all Council properties are cleaned regularly, providing a safe environment to all 
users. 

10 HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 Provision of clean properties will ensure workers and visitors to the properties are 
able to carry out their daily activities safely.   

11 ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 Environmental implications 

11.2 Environmental implications will be responsibly managed in accordance with 
COSHH and waste management obligations associated with use of chemicals in 
the cleaning activities and proper disposal of waste materials generated as part of 
the process.  

11.3 Human Resource implications 

11.4 We are advised existing S4 Facilities Ltd’s staff are self-employed and no TUPE 
implications are expected. The Council 3 members of cleaning staff, currently 
working 24hrs per week hours in total. They will continue to operate as direct 
employees during the interim solution but will be subject to consultation processes 
as part of any new transition contract arrangements in accordance with TUPE law. 

11.5 Procurement Implications 

97



11.6 The extension of the existing contract and procurement of the new contract will be 
in accordance with the Councils RCC Financial Regulations. The Council’s 
Commissioning Manager will continue to be closely involved in all aspects of this 
matter. 

12 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS   

12.1 It is vital that the Council continues to have clean and safe properties for its staff 
and other service users. The proposals set out in this report will ensure that the 
Council maintains the required level of cleaning at its properties whilst procuring a 
new and robust cleaning contract reflecting the current and future needs.  

13 BACKGROUND PAPERS  

13.1 There are no additional background papers to this report. 

14 APPENDICES  

14.1 There are no appendices.  

 

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.  

 

 

 

98



Report No: 33/2021 
PUBLIC REPORT 

CABINET 

16th February 2021 

Environmental Services Re-procurement Project 

Report of the Strategic Director for Places 

Strategic Aim: Delivering Sustainable Development 

Key Decision: Yes Forward Plan Reference: FP/201120 

Exempt Information No 

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible: 

Cllr. Lucy Stephenson, Portfolio Holder for Culture & 
Leisure, Environment, Highways, Transportation and 
Road Safety 

Contact 
Officer(s): 

Penny Sharp, Strategic Director-
Places 

psharp@rutland.gov.uk 

 Steve Sprason, Interim Senior 
Environmental Services Manager 

ssprason@rutland.gov.uk 

Ward Councillors N/A 

 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Cabinet: 

1. Authorises the Strategic Director-Places to form a Project Board and associated 
structures in order to undertake a re-procurement of the Environmental Services 
functions as detailed herein 

2. Approves the related documentation comprising Project Initiation Document, Project 
Governance and Project Board Terms of Reference as attached at Appendix A 

3. Notes the progress on associated pre-procurement activities as detailed herein 

4. Notes the contents of the of the Risk & Issues Log and associated Project Timetable 
as attached at Appendix B1 and B2 of the report. 

5. Notes the budget available to support the projects, paragraph 6.1 

  

99

Agenda Item 13

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS
http://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=300&Year=0


1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 To seek approval to the establishment of the required formal project structures to 
allow the undertaking of the re-procurement of a variety of waste and street scene 
services as detailed herein. 

1.2 To update Cabinet as to the progress to date in relation to required pre-
procurement activities including waste analysis and review of the waste strategy 
and associated infrastructure and the project timeline generally. 

2 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS  

2.1 At its meeting held on the 9th November 2020 Council approved the principle of 
the extension of the Council’s four principal waste contracts to bring each to a co-
terminus contract date of 31st March 2024. The rational to this being that would 
then enable sufficient time to undertake managed re-procurement, including 
essential required pre-procurement activities, to enable a newly procured 
contract(s) to run from 1st April 2024  

2.2 Council also approved a thorough review of the Council’s Waste Strategy and 
associated Options Appraisal work to be undertaken as part of that pre-
procurement work. 

2.3 Members are aware that Street Cleansing activities form part of the existing 
Integrated Services contract with Biffa and will form part of the future procurement 
exercise.  

2.4 Resource Futures, an Environmental Consultancy, have been retained by the 
Council to support this work. 

3 REPORT 

3.1 Approval is being sought to establish the formal project structures (in line with the 
Council’s Project Management Framework) to allow the re-procurement of the 
Environmental Services as detailed below. These comprise: 

3.1.1 Residual waste haulage and treatment, waste collection, treatment of dry 
mixed recyclables, green waste treatment and street cleansing 

3.2 An assessment of the Project against the Council’s Project Management 
Framework was undertaken within the Project Board and which has deemed the 
project to be one of high risk. The implications of this are as detailed below. 

3.3 The related documentation now submitted for approval comprises the Project 
Initiation Document, Project Governance and Project Board Terms of Reference 
as attached at Appendix A. Cabinet is also asked to note the contents of the Risk 
and Issues log and project timetable as attached at Appendix B1 and B2. In 
relation to the project timetable, detailed milestones are provided for stages M0-
M16 (pre-procurement). Headline milestones only are provided at this point for 
stages M17-M22 (procurement and mobilisation/decommission phases) and those 
will be fleshed out as the project progresses. 

3.4 Progress to date on pre-procurement activities is as set out below: 

100



3.4.1 Waste Analysis (commenced December 2020) 

3.4.1.1 Fieldwork has been completed and a draft report has been received which 
is in the process of being finalised. The results will inform the subsequent 
Strategy Review work 

3.4.2 Waste Infrastructure Review (commenced December 2020) 

3.4.2.1 Initial data collection and analysis has commenced. Issues and 
dependencies are being identified.  

3.4.3 Strategy Review (commenced December 2020) 

3.4.3.1 An initial stakeholder workshop was held on the 14th January. A road map 
is now being finalised which will set the stages necessary in meeting the 
aims and objectives of the Council. 

4 CONSULTATION  

4.1 Consultation has been undertaken with the Portfolio Holder and relevant Officers. 
Consultation will be undertaken with key stakeholders as part of the development 
and adoption of the new Waste Strategy 

5 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS  

5.1 A number of alternative options for waste collection and disposal have been 
considered as a part of the contract extension considerations, and as appropriate 
explored, and that detail was reported to the 9th November 2020 meeting of 
Council 

5.2 The waste analysis, waste strategy/infrastructure and options appraisal work will 
develop a range of options for consideration, and a preferred option for a future 
service delivery model that will form the basis of the procurement exercise will 
emerge in due course 

6 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

6.1 Contract Budget 

6.1.1 Based on the draft 2021/22 budgets (report 34/2021) for waste collections, 
waste haulage & treatment, HWRC operations, and street cleansing, the 
annual cost totals approx. £3.9m.  

6.1.2 Whereas the project sets an ambition to achieve savings of c.10% when 
compared to current contracts pricing, options to achieve savings in 
excess of that figure will also be presented to Members for consideration 
in due course. The level of any savings to be achieved has the potential to 
be impacted by, amongst other things, both the detail of future legislative 
change and the Council’s preferred option for Service delivery. 

 

 

 

101



 

 

6.2 Project Budget  

6.2.1 The table below shows the current position regarding the cost of the 
project (both pre-procurement and procurement work) 

Description Approved 
(Report 
Number) 

Legal Technical 
Advisor 

Total 

2020/21 Budget 39/2020 £30,000 £50,000 £80,000 

Additional 2020/21 Budget 143/2020 £0 £50,000 £50,000 

Included within Draft 
Budget 2021/22 Budget 

(34/2021) £90,000 £125,000 £215,000 

Total  £120,000 £225,000 £345,000 

 

6.2.2 It is expected that over the life of the estimated project legal fees are 
likely to be broadly split 40% pre-procurement, 30% procurement and 
30% post procurement. 

6.2.3 The exact requirements for a Technical Advisor are still being reviewed 
with the budget expected to reflect actual requirements. It will be no more 
than the stated value within the above table. Final budget requirement 
may be different to that stated in the table. 

7 LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1 As per the Council’s agreed project management framework, this project was 
analysed against the risk matrix and it was deemed a High risk project – this 
requires a governance structure of a project team, reporting into a project board 
and with Cabinet as the primary decision making body 

8 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are no data protection implications arising out of this report. 

9 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

9.1 There are no equality impact issues arising out of this report 

10 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no community safety implications arising out of this report 

11 HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 There are no health and wellbeing implications arising out of this report 

102



 

 

12 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

12.1 That approval be given to the formal initiation of the project and the associated 
project structure, governance arrangements and documentation. This will underpin 
decisions on the future shape of related Services, allow the project to proceed and 
in accordance with the indicative project timeline. Formal re-procurement in due 
course gives assurance to future Service delivery, the undertaking of the pre-
procurement activities will give comfort in the selection of the preferred option.  

13 BACKGROUND PAPERS  

13.1 There are no additional background papers to the Report 

14 APPENDICES  

14.1 Appendix A comprising Project Initiation Document, Project Governance and 
Project Board Terms of Reference. 

14.2 Appendix B1 -  comprising Risk & Issues Log and B2 - associated Project 
Timetable. 

 

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.  

 

103



Appendix A:  comprising Project Initiation Document, Project Governance and Project Board 
Terms of Reference. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rutland County Council 

Environmental Services Re-procurement Project  

Project Initiation Document (PID) 

 

 

 

 

 
Document Owner:  Steve Sprason 

Rutland County Council 
 

Author:  Steve Sprason 
 

Version:  V1.00 
 

Date:  December 2020 
 

Classification  NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED  
 

 

  

104



Appendix A:  comprising Project Initiation Document, Project Governance and Project Board 
Terms of Reference. 

 

 

Contents 

 

Contents ............................................................................................................................ 7 

Document Control, Approval and Distribution .................................................................... 7 

Version Control.................................................................................................................. 7 

Document Approval ........................................................................................................... 7 

Document Distribution ....................................................................................................... 7 

Project Details ................................................................................................................... 8 

 

Document Control, Approval and Distribution Version Control 

This document should be updated with any amendments: 

Version Date Notes 

V0.01 Nov 2019 Draft Document Created for Project Board Review  

V0.02 Dec 2020 Updated document 

V0.03 Dec 2020 Updated by Resource Futures 

V0.04 Dec 2020 Updated by Resource Futures 

V0.05 Dec 2020 Updates from project team 

V1.00 Dec 2020 Approved by Project Board 

 

Document Approval 

This document requires the following approvals: 

Sponsor Approval Name Date 

Sponsor    

Project Board    

 V.01 Approved by project Board  

Document Distribution 

This document will be distributed to: 

Name Method Date 

Project Team, Project Board    

   

 

  

105



Appendix A:  comprising Project Initiation Document, Project Governance and Project Board 
Terms of Reference. 

 

 

Project Details 

Project Environmental Services Re-procurement Project  

Background 

The Council has recently secured extensions to its Environmental Services contracts 

until 31 March 2024, with new contracts due to commence on 1 April of the same 

year. Many of these contracts are fulfilling statutory duties, whilst some elements, e.g. 

bulky waste collections, are discretionary. 

The intention is to: 

 Commence a pre-procurement exercise. This will include a full review of the 

service in readiness for commencing a re-procurement exercise for the 

Environmental Services contracts in 2022. There have been significant 

recent developments in national policy and corresponding developments in 

legislation that the Council will need to ensure compliance with, in readiness 

for its new contracts. The Council must also ensure its waste infrastructure 

is fit for purpose to support the future service.  

 Following completion of the pre-procurement exercise, commence the re-

procurement exercise of the Environmental Services contracts. 

 

Project 

Objectives 

 To identify the direction of travel for the Council to ensure legislative compliance 

with emerging national policy changes. 

 To identify the infrastructure improvements necessary to support the service in 

the medium to long term.  

 To identify the costs and implications of decommissioning/vacating existing waste 

infrastructure as necessary 

 To identify the necessary improvements to the waste collection service in 

readiness for a new service to commence from 1 April 2024, when the new 

contracts commence. 

 To enable residents to offer their views on the new waste strategy and on the 

preferred option for the waste collection service profile. 

 To provide a comprehensive and robust suite of supporting tender documents to 

enable future bidders for the Environmental Services contracts to provide value 

for money bids. 

 To realise any service efficiencies from undertaking this project prior to re-

tendering the service. 

 To re-procure the service contracts in a resource efficient manner, adopting the 

most suitable procurement route for the Council to take. 

 Minimising the extent of Bidder’s risk-pricing the contracts by producing high 

quality specification outputs and robust supporting documentation. 

 Ensuring the contracts are lotted to maximise efficiencies for the Service. 

 To deliver the project in a timely, planned and co-ordinated approach to ensure 

the new contracts can be awarded and mobilised (and the incumbent contractors 

demobilised) within the timescales specified. 

106



Appendix A:  comprising Project Initiation Document, Project Governance and Project Board 
Terms of Reference. 

 

 

 To achieve savings of c.10% when compared to current (extended) contracts 

pricing 

Activities / 

Scope 

Key pre-procurement activities: 

 An infrastructure review, to include street cleansing services, to assess the 

requirement and possible locations of a new facility (or facilities) that may be 

required. 

 A review of the existing Waste Strategy and a re-write of the strategy to bring it 

up to date following national policy and legislative changes. 

 A public consultation on the new Waste Strategy. 

 An options appraisal exercise to identify a preferred option for the kerbside waste 

collection service. 

 A public consultation on the preferred option identified from the options appraisal 

exercise. 

 

Key re-procurement activities: 

 Determine the correct procurement route to take. 

 Develop specifications for the new contracts. 

 Develop the evaluation criteria for bidders (quality and financial). 

 Go out to tender. 

 Evaluate bidder submissions. 

 Appoint the successful bidder(s). 

 Commence contract mobilisation / demobilisation. 

 

Key post-procurement activities: 

 Manage the transition between the incumbent and the new supplier. 

 

Deliverable

s 

The overall project will be split into six key phases: (see table below for 

deliverables) 

1a) HWRC and waste/street cleansing infrastructure review  

1b) Waste strategy review 

2) Public consultation on the waste strategy 

3) Options appraisal 

4) Public consultation on the preferred option  

5) Re-procurement 

107



Appendix A:  comprising Project Initiation Document, Project Governance and Project Board 
Terms of Reference. 

 

 
6) Manage the transition 

 

Timing 

See table below: 

 

 

Exclusions 

 Forestry work/tree maintenance  

 Dog warden/kenneling services 

 Abandoned vehicles-removal, storage and disposal 

 Public protection and regulatory services 

 Managing unauthorized encampments 

 Grounds maintenance 

 Play area management 

 

Dependenci

es & 

Assumption

s 

Dependencies 

 Availability of resources 

 Availability of budget to deliver 

 Appropriate levels of technical consultancy and legal support being available 

 RCC Governance process 

Assumptions 

 Cabinet/Council approve this pre-procurement project 

108



Appendix A:  comprising Project Initiation Document, Project Governance and Project Board 
Terms of Reference. 

 

 

 Emerging national policy/strategies and legislation are progressed and 

mandated 

 RCC Waste Strategy is approved 

 Sufficient time is available to carry out all required activities 

 Sufficient number of potential suppliers interested in bidding for the work 

 

Resources 

The staff involved in this project will primarily be the following officers, providing 

support in addition to their day jobs: 

 Steve Sprason (Overall project lead) 

 Emily Frikha (Project Support) 

 Louise Gallagher (Contracts/Procurement) 

 Dee Rajput (Project Manager) 

 Amy Myers (Welland Procurement) 

Additional support will be provided by officers from waste, finance and legal teams, 

but external consultants Resource Futures will be brought in to provide technical 

support and Anthony Collins will be brought in to provide legal input for the overall 

process. 

 

Estimated 

Cost 

Based on the 2019/20 budgets for waste collections, waste treatment, HWRC 

operations and transport, grounds maintenance and street cleansing, totalling approx. 

£3.58m, and applying an assumed indexation factor of 2% per annum, this gives a 

maximum estimated revenue cost of £90.30m over a 20 year period. 

In addition, there will be project costs involved for utilising external consultants 

(c£220k) and external legal partners (c£120k). 

 

 

  

109



Appendix A:  comprising Project Initiation Document, Project Governance and Project Board 
Terms of Reference. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rutland County Council 

Waste Contract Project – Governance Structure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Document Owner:  Steve Sprason -  

Interim Senior Environmental Services 
Manager 
Rutland County Council 
 

Author:  Dee Rajput 
Rutland County Council  
 

Version:  V1.00 
 

Date:  December 2020 
 

Classification  NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED  
 

  

110



Appendix A:  comprising Project Initiation Document, Project Governance and Project Board 
Terms of Reference. 

 

 
Contents 

Contents .......................................................................................................................... 13 

Document Control, Approval and Distribution .................................................................. 13 

Version Control................................................................................................................ 13 

Document Approval ......................................................................................................... 13 

Document Distribution ..................................................................................................... 13 

Introduction ..................................................................................................................... 14 

Project Details ................................................................................................................. 14 

Next Steps .......................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

 

Document Control, Approval and Distribution Version Control 

Version Control 

This document should be updated with any amendments: 

Version Date Notes 

0.01 Nov 2020 First Draft 

0.02 Dec 2020 Updated with comments from Project Team 

0.03 Dec 2020 Comments from Project Board 

1.00 Dec 2020 Baselined version for Cabinet 

14.3  

Document Approval 

This document requires the following approvals: 

Sponsor Approval Name Date 

   

 

Document Distribution 

This document will be distributed to: 

Name Method Date 

   

 

  

111



Appendix A:  comprising Project Initiation Document, Project Governance and Project Board 
Terms of Reference. 

 

 
Introduction 

This document outlines the governance structure to be deployed for the Waste Contract project.  

The governance of the project is important as it allows the project to ensure the correct decisions 

are being made and communicated accordingly. 

 

Project Details 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

112



Appendix A:  comprising Project Initiation Document, Project Governance and Project Board 
Terms of Reference. 

 

 
Governing Body Responsibilities (in relation to the project) 

Waste Project – Project Team Operational group to deliver the project managing actions, 
issues and risks 

Waste Project – Project Board Strategic group to oversee the delivery of the project to 
ensure due process is being followed and to provide 
support/guidance for decision making 

Cabinet Formal Council governance body to provide decisions on 
project progress 

Council Formal Council governance body to provide decisions on 
project progress, outside of the remit of Cabinet (as per the 
Project Management Framework) 

SMT Senior Management Team to provide support/guidance on 
operational risks and issues, ensuring blockers to progress 
are removed 

Scrutiny Scrutiny to be used as part of the formal decision making 
process where they require further review of the work being 
done 

 

 

 

  

113



Appendix A:  comprising Project Initiation Document, Project Governance and Project Board 
Terms of Reference. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rutland County Council 

Consolidated Waste Contract (CWC) Project  

 

Project Board - Terms of Reference (ToR) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Document Owner:  Steve Sprason 

Rutland County Council 
 

Author:  Dee Rajput 
Rutland County Council  
 

Version:  V1.00 
 

Date:  December 2020 
 

Classification  NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED  
 

  

114



Appendix A:  comprising Project Initiation Document, Project Governance and Project Board 
Terms of Reference. 

 

 
Contents 

Contents .......................................................................................................................... 17 

Document Control, Approval and Distribution .................................................................. 17 

Version Control................................................................................................................ 17 

Document Approval ......................................................................................................... 17 

Document Distribution ..................................................................................................... 17 

Introduction ..................................................................................................................... 18 

Membership & Chairing ................................................................................................... 18 

Frequency of the Board ................................................................................................... 18 

Responsibilities of the Board ........................................................................................... 18 

Reporting ......................................................................................................................... 19 

Papers ............................................................................................................................. 19 

 

Document Control, Approval and Distribution Version Control 

This document should be updated with any amendments: 

Version Date Notes 

V0.01  Jan 2020 Draft Document Created 

V0.02 Feb 2020 Updated Governance 

V0.03 Dec 2020 Updated  

V0.04 Dec 2020 Comments from project team 

V1.00 Dec 2020 Baselined version for Cabinet 

 

Document Approval 

This document requires the following approvals: 

Sponsor Approval Name Date 

Project Sponsor   

Project Board    

 

Document Distribution 

This document will be distributed to: 

Name Method Date 

Project Team, Project Board    

   

 

115



Appendix A:  comprising Project Initiation Document, Project Governance and Project Board 
Terms of Reference. 

 

 
Introduction 

The purpose of this terms of reference document is to state the responsibilities of the Consolidated 

Waste Project Board and to provide leadership in delivering the project required within the Council. 

The project includes for a review of the Council’s Waste Strategy, Options Appraisal, required 

consultation, consideration of associated infrastructure requirements and the procurement of 

supplier(s) to provide waste services on behalf of the Council. 

Membership & Chairing 

The Board will be chaired by the Director of Places, Penny Sharp.  In the absence of the Chair, the 

meeting membership may elect any other member to act as Chair for that meeting. 

Membership of the Board has been agreed by Rutland County Council.  The composition of this 

Board and team members: 

- Penny Sharp (Director Places + Chair + Sponsor) 

- Cllr. Lucy Stephenson (Portfolio Holder) 

- Cllr Gordon Brown (Portfolio Holder for Planning and Finance) 

- Sav Della Rocca (Director for Resources) 

- Steve Sprason (Interim Senior Environmental Services Lead + Project Lead) 

- Phil Horsfield (Head of Legal) 

- Karen Kibblewhite (Head of Commissioning) 

- Dee Rajput (Project Manager) 

Members may send deputies by exception only.  Dee Rajput will support the provision and running 

of this Board as the project manager.  

Frequency of the Board 

Meetings are held monthly Ad-hoc meetings may be held by agreement of the Chair as and when 

required. Meetings may, exceptionally, be cancelled by the Chair. 

Responsibilities of the Board 

The board fulfils their leadership role by: 

 Taking strategic decisions on the project and how it will impact on the Council 

 Effectively allocating and managing resources for the project implementation and delivery 

 Communicating the purpose of the board to staff and other stakeholders 

 Monitoring the implementation, procurement and delivery of the project to improve its 

effectiveness  

 Overview of project budget 

 Management of change 

 Issues and risk management 

 
  

116



Appendix A:  comprising Project Initiation Document, Project Governance and Project Board 
Terms of Reference. 

 

 
Reporting 

The board members shall draw to the attention of this Board, any issues that require further action 

or disclosure to the relevant management structures.  In exceptional cases any RCC members of 

the Board may escalate issues to the Senior Management Team.  

The minutes of these meetings will be formally recorded and available to Board members. When 

approved by the Board the minutes will be published to all. 

Papers 

Agenda items may be raised by any member of the Board and should be communicated to the 

Project Manager at least 7 working days in advance of any meeting. 

Draft minutes of each meeting will be circulated within 2 working days of the next meeting to Board 

Members for comment and will provide a clear record of decisions reached and actions agreed. 

Minutes will be formally approved by the Board at the subsequent meeting. The Project Manager will 

maintain an Action Log, which will be reviewed at each meeting. 

 

117



 

 

 
 

118



Ref Date Raised Risk or Issue Description

Ri
sk

 o
r I

ss
ue

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Im
pa

ct

Se
ve

rit
y

Mitigation or Action Plan Owner Status Date Closed

CWC-RI-012 29/01/20
There is a risk of an excessive amount of clarification 
questions coming through towards the end of the 
clarification period and not being answered in time

R 2 4 8

29/01 - Develop a process to ensure questions are 
answered as quickly as possible to ensure there is as 
much spare time as possible towards the end of the 
period

Commissioning 
Manager (Places & 

Resources)
Open

CWC-RI-015 25/02/20 Risk of the revenue budget being too low for some 
potential bidders

R 2 3 6 25/02 - Soft marketing testing process will help to 
determine how much of a potential risk this is

Strategic Director - 
Places

Open

CWC-RI-016 25/02/20 Risk of the contract costing more than has been 
planned for

R 2 4 8 25/02 - Soft marketing testing process will help to 
determine how much of a potential risk this is

Strategic Director - 
Places

Open

CWC-RI-017 04/03/20 The data for the measurements of the roads is not 
available

I
04/03 - ML to chase Highways as they were doing a 
camera survey

Senior Environmental 
Services Manager

Open

CWC-RI-021 11/03/20 Procurement support and all resources are at risk from 
the Coronavirus

R 4 5 20

11/03 - Significant impact to project should the virus 
impact the Council and the country - timescales may 
have to be rethought
04/11 - Re-procurement to commence after current 
contracts have been extended but there may still be 
some impact of a second wave

Strategic Director - 
Places

Open

CWC-RI-022 09/09/20
That the costs suggested by the suppliers will have to 
be accepted to get the contracts agreed (could be 
c£500k/pa)

I

23/09 - Report to be taken to Cabinet 06/10 to set out 
the costs and arrangements for the contract 
extensions
04/11 - Report going to Council 09/11

Environment Services 
Lead

Open

CWC-RI-025 04/11/20 The waste strategy will need to go out for public 
consultation which could be affected by Covid

R 3 5 15 Open

CWC-RI-026 18/11/20 The Environment Bill, expected in 2023 will impact the 
RCC Waste Strategy

R 3 5 15
18/11 - The work being carried out by Resources 
Future around the development of the Waste Strategy 
will attempt to mitigate this as much as possible

Environment Services 
Lead

Open

CWC-RI-027 18/11/20
As we progress through the project, and further 
legislation is released, this could increase the project 
costs

R 3 4 12 Strategic Director - 
Places

Open

CWC-RI-028 14/12/20
The costs for the specialist consultants is likely to 
exceed budgets available - risk of work not getting 
done as required

R 2 5 10 14/12 - Review the proposal sent by Resources Future 
to determine if this can be reduced

Strategic Director - 
Places

Open

CWC-RI-029 14/12/20
The costs for the legal consultants is likely to exceed 
budgets available - risk of work not getting done as 
required

R 2 5 10
14/12 - Unfortuntately, we may be stuck with these 
costs, but potential for some of the work to be in 
house will need to be considered

Legal Director Open

CWC-RI-030 06/01/20 The FCC contract has yet to be extended as they have 
raised an issue with the waste transfer process

I 06/01 - alternative options are being explored
Environment Services 

Lead
Open

Project Name: Consolidated Waste Contract
Risk & Issues 
Last Reviewed: 6th Jan 2020
Risk refers to the combined likelihood the event will occur and the impact on the project if it does occur

119



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Environmental Services Procurement - Project Milestones Plan

Ref Milestones Start dates End dates Comments
Pre-Procurement
M0 Project Approval (Governance Gateway) Nov-20 Feb-21 Going to Cabinet Feb 2021
M1 Waste Analysis Dec-20 Feb-21
M2 Waste Infrastructure Review Dec-20 Mar-21
M3 Waste Strategy Review Dec-20 Mar-21
M4 Waste Strategy Consultation Mar-21 May-21 inc. Scrutiny
M5 Waste Strategy Sign Off (Governance Gateway) Jun-21 Jun-21 inc. Council.  Financial framework developed
M6 Options Appraisal for Collections Jun-21 Jul-21
M7 Develop Options Model Sep-21 Sep-21
M8 Public Consultation Oct-21 Dec-21 Around the Options Model
M9 Option Sign Off (Governance Gateway) Dec-21 Jan-22 inc. Council.  Financial framework approved
M10 Lessons Learned Jan-22 Feb-22
M11 Procurement Procedure Options Appraisal Feb-22 Feb-22
M12 Decide on Procurement Route (Restricted) Mar-22 Mar-22 Competitive, Restricted, Open - TBC
M13 Develop Outline Specification (inc. sign off) Mar-22 May-22
M14 Complete Soft Market Testing Jun-22 Jul-22
M15 Procurement Approval (Governance Gateway) Aug-22 Aug-22 inc. specification
M16 Pre-Qualification Exercise Aug-22 Sep-22
Procurement
M17 Tender Process (Finance + Quality) Sep-22 Aug-23
M18 Award Contract (Governance Gateway) Aug-23 Aug-23 inc. Council
M19 Standstill Sep-23 Oct-23
Mobilisation/Decommission
M20 De-mobilisation Oct-23 Apr-24
M21 Mobilisation Oct-23 Apr-24
M22 New Contracts Go-live Apr-24 Apr-24

Risks (to the above timeline):
- Elections (Purduh)
- Resources
- Budgets
- Looking attractive to bidders

121



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 47 
 

Report No: 34/2021 
PUBLIC REPORT 

CABINET 

16th February 2021 

REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET 21/22 

Report of the Strategic Director for Resources 

Strategic Aim: All 

Key Decision:  No Forward Plan Reference: FP/100920 

Exempt Information No 

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible: 

Mr G Brown, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder 
for Planning and Finance 

 

Contact 
Officer(s): 

Saverio Della Rocca, Strategic 
Director for Resources (s.151 
Officer) 

01572 758159 
sdrocca@rutland.gov.uk 

 Andrew Merry, Finance Manager 01572 758152 
amerry@rutland.gov.uk 

Ward Councillors Not Applicable 
 

 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Cabinet RECOMMENDS TO COUNCIL that it: 

 Approves the Revenue Budget of £42.6m for 2020/21 detailed in Section 
3 

 Notes that the Revenue Budget includes a £2.4m use of Reserves 
assuming a 3% Council tax rise (in the event that the Council approves 
a different level of Council tax, the use of Reserves will vary accordingly) 

 Approves the capital programme as detailed in Section 6 

 Approves the creation of a new Earmarked Reserve for Ash Dieback 
(£500k) as per para 3.5.9 

 Approves the minimum reserve level be increased from £2m to £3m to 
reflect the changing risk profile 

 Notes the Medium Term financial outlook and commits to taking action 
in 21/22 to address the deficit position 

 Notes that additional revenue or capital expenditure may be incurred in 
2021/22 funded through 2020/21 budget under spends to be carried 
forward via earmarked reserves. The use of reserves for budget carry 

123

Agenda Item 14

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS
http://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=300&Year=0


forwards is not currently shown in the budget but will have no impact on 
the General Fund 

 Approves a deficit of c£186k on the Collection Fund as at 31 March 2021 
(Section 4.2) of which £160k is the Rutland share 

 Notes the responses to consultation (section 3) 

 Notes the updates since the draft budget was approved (section 2.2) 

 Delegates authority to the s151 Officer to make any necessary changes 
to the budget arising from the Council tax decision and/or any additional 
funding received 
 

 

1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

1.1 The Council is required to set a balanced budget and agree the level of 
Council tax for 2021/22 in the context of its Medium Term Financial Plan. 
This report presents the final budget for approval. 

2 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS 

2.1 Director for Resources: Section 151 Officer overview 

2.1.1 The 21/22 local government finance settlement gives the council no more 
government funding than in 20/21 despite all the talk of “new funding”. The 
21/22 draft Revenue budget for Rutland therefore relies on a £2.4m 
contribution from reserves to balance the books.  This is not good practice 
and is not sustainable.  Like many other Councils, Rutland is living beyond 
its means and has to take action quickly to address the position. For context, 
the Local Government Association say the national gap is an eye watering 
£5.4bn. 

2.1.2 In short, the £2.4m gap arises from ongoing pressures and real term funding 
reduction cuts at a time when demand and spending on key services 
continues to increase. 

2.1.3 The Government defines the amount of core funding that councils have 
available as “spending power”.  Since 2013/14 the Council’s spending power 
has increased by 21% in absolute terms but government funded spending 
power has reduced by 35% and Council tax spending power has gone up by 
53% since 2013/14 with nearly 81% of our funding now coming from Council 
tax.  Spending power assumes that Councils raise council tax by the 
maximum allowable, which is 5% in 21/22.  

2.1.4 For a long time the Government offered a government grant if Councils did 
not raise council tax.  The Government approach changed in 2015/16. 
Government assumed in its calculations of Spending power that councils 
would raise council tax by the maximum (usually 2% but 4% when the social 
care precept was introduced).  This assumption, in effect, forced Councils to 
raise council tax or lose funding. 

2.1.5 The reduction of 35% in government funding is compounded by the fact that 

124



Rutland receives much less than other Councils with the same functions as 
ours.  In 20/21 for example we received £120 per head less than similar 
councils.  If Rutland were to receive the average funding of Unitary 
Authorities in England we would receive an extra £4m.  The Government 
formula gives us less funding because our “needs” are less and our relative 
resources are greater i.e. we have a greater ability to generate more from 
council tax than other areas.  This assumption only holds true under the 
existing referendum rules. Equalising the position would require significant 
changes to council tax rates across the country. 

2.1.6 Since 2013/14, the spending power increase of 21% is broadly in line with 
inflation. More importantly, legislation, regulations and policy decisions that 
impact what we have to do alongside demand for services have led to above 
inflation spending increases. For example, if a child is at risk of harm and we 
have to take them into care, we have to do it whether we have the money or 
not to comply with the statutory duties. 

2.1.7 The Housing, Communities and Local Government Select Committee 
published a report on Local Government Finance and the 2019 Spending 
Review on 21st August 2019.  It made two impactful conclusions: 

2.1.8 “Local government has coped with a prolonged period of real-terms 
spending reduction which is without parallel in modern times. This large fall 
in local authorities’ resources has been primarily caused by very significant 
cuts in central government grants”. 

2.1.9 “The demand for costly and essential services which local authorities 
provide, such as adult and children’s social care, has increased during this 
period of funding cuts. Some of these demands are being caused by failures 
or spending reductions in other parts of the Government, such as benefit 
reforms and changes”. 

2.1.10 The above issues have not been addressed in the Spending Review 2020 
and are unlikely to be addressed over the medium term.  So, despite making 
savings of £8m since 2013/14 and proposing to raise Council Tax by 3%, the 
Council will still have to balance the budget with reserves. 

2.1.11 Whilst future funding is unclear, various reforms will take place in the next 
year and there are lots of risks including the long term impact of Covid-19 
which could have an impact on the Council’s financial position.  
Nevertheless, the Council cannot assume that the financial gap will reduce 
without strong action. 

2.1.12 The Council must commit to producing a balanced budget i.e. one that 
does not rely on reserves by 23/24.  The Council must start work now 
to close the gap. It should aim to make savings in year and be 
underspent against its 21/22 budget by at least £1m.  It should also 
commence work on other projects that will enable it to reduce reliance 
on reserves to a minimum of £1m by 22/23.  The proposal to raise 
Council tax in 20/21 by only 3% rather than the 5% allowed, increases 
the financial gap by £555k (Section 4.1) and will require further savings.  

125



In this context, my professional judgement is that a 5% increase in 
council tax is advisable. Furthermore, I am recommending that the 
minimum reserve level is increased to £3m to reflect the changing risk 
profile (Section 3.5.5).  

2.2 Updates since the draft Budget 

2.2.1 Cabinet approved a draft budget for consultation (Report 08/2021) on 12th 
January. The paragraphs below provide an update on key issues. 

2.2.2 Use of Reserves – various changes to business rates (para 2.2.5) mean that 
the projected deficit for 21/22 is now £2.4m.  In the draft budget, Council was 
advised to take action to reduce that deficit by at least £500k.  This has been 
increased to £1m given that indications from Government is that there will be 
no increase in the overall settlement. 

2.2.3 Council tax rise – Cabinet has confirmed that following consultation, they will 
proceed with a 3% council tax proposal (2% general and 1% for adult social 
care). 

2.2.4 Funding settlement – While the Final Settlement will be tabled in Parliament 
on 10th February, to date there has been no indication as to any changes to 
the quantum or distribution of the Settlement. Any such changes with be 
subject to an addendum to this report being issued prior to the Cabinet 
meeting. 

2.2.5 Business Rates - the Council has completed its NNDR1 return and business 
rates estimates to Government.  Business rate estimates indicate an 
increase of £201k due to the growth in the property tax base from new 
business (e.g. McDonalds) and existing businesses now being brought into 
the rating system by the Valuation Office Agency. 

2.2.6 Spending plans - no changes have been made to detailed Directorate 
budgets.   

2.2.7 Pay settlement - The pay settlement negotiations are still ongoing with an 
agreement unlikely to be reached by 1 April. 

2.2.8 Early Years - The Early Years funding rates have been confirmed with £5.36 
for 2 year old provision and £4.25 for 3 and 4 year olds. 

2.2.9 The Government is introducing a compensation scheme for Council tax and 
business rate losses.  The Council’s view is that likely compensation will be 
less than £70k and at this stage no amount has been built into the MTFP. 

2.2.10 MTFP - minor adjustments totalling £16k to align the tax base to that 
proposed in the Council Tax report. 

2.2.11 Council tax base - Section 4 of the report set out potential “losses” of 
different council tax increases relative to the maximum possible increase of 
5%.  The draft report indicated losses were for a five year period (this has 
been clarified as the loss covers the current year plus five years).  The 

126



volatility of the tax base, in the economic circumstances, means that the loss 
figures are now expressed as being within a range i.e. between £1.5m - 
£2m.  The annual loss figure for 21/22 has not changed. 

2.2.12 Consultation responses – these are included in Section 9. 

2.2.13 Appendices – Members should note that the only Appendix to have changed 
is Appendix 1 – MTFP for the minor changes outlined above. 

2.3 Structure of this report 

2.3.1 This report is structured as follows: 

 Section 3 - the context for the budget, Medium Term Financial Outlook, 
Risks and Reserves 

 Section 4 - details of the draft Revenue Budget for 21/22 

 Section 5 - Council tax and information pertinent to the decision to be 
made by Elected members 

 Section 6 - capital spending plans 

 Section 7 - treasury management  

 Section 8 - school funding 

3 CONTEXT FOR 21/22 BUDGET 

3.1 Spending Review 2020 

3.1.1 The 21/22 revenue and capital budget is set in the context of Spending 
Review 2020 (SR2020) and the local government finance settlement.  In the 
current climate, SR2020 covers one year only allowing the Government to 
undertake a multi-year review when more certainty exists. 

3.1.2 The Covid-19 pandemic has posed an unprecedented challenge to the UK 
economy and to economies around the world.  In response, the effect of 
Covid-19 on the public finances has been considerable, to say the least. 
Total Managed Expenditure (TME) in 2020/21, has increased from £883bn in 
2019-20 to £1,164bn in 2020/21.  

3.1.3 Some of this is caused by Covid-19 – but some of the increase was already 
evident in earlier fiscal announcements with extra spending in adult social 
care and the NHS following the Government indicating a move away from 
austerity. Whilst SR2020 indicates spending will increase again in 21/22, 
spending projections are lower from 2022/23 onwards (than had been 
forecast in the March 2020 Budget) reflecting part of the action required to 
close the financial gap.  These plans also beg question about whether 
austerity is really over for local authorities. 

3.1.4 Higher expenditure translates into much larger public sector net borrowing 

127



(with lower taxation receipts being the other contributory factor).  The deficit 
in 2020/21, peaked at almost £400bn (or 19% of GDP, a substantially higher 
level than following the financial crash in 2008/09). The scale of the deficit is 
on a completely different level from previous years and puts the debate 
about previous deficits into perspective.   

3.1.5 As a result, levels of public debt will be much higher relative to GDP, and 
more importantly will continue to grow after 2020/21. Public sector debt will 
exceed 100% of GDP and will remain at that elevated level for the 
foreseeable future. In fact, debt continues to climb until 2022/23 (peaking at 
109.4% of GDP), before starting a very slow decline. Higher levels of public 
debt are something that we will have to get used to, although the on-going 
cost to finance the debt is low compared to historic rates. 

3.1.6 In 21/22, the Government is increasing spending power for local authorities, 
and states that it will provide over £3 billion of additional support for Covid-19 
pressures. In addition, core Government funding is marginally higher than 
the prior year with £300m new funding for adult and children’s social care but 
has been recycled from New Home Bonus legacy payments.  

3.1.7 Fundamentally, the Government continues to place an increasing burden for 
funding local services on the local council tax-payer with local 
authorities given the power to levy a 3 per cent adult social care precept.  
This accounts for the majority of the spending power increase of 4.5%. 

3.1.8 2021/22 will be a significant year for reforms that impact local authorities.  
SR2020 references the following: 

 “The government is undertaking a fundamental review of the business 
rates system and is currently considering responses to the call for 
evidence. A final report setting out the full conclusions of the review will 
be published in spring 2021”.  

 “Earlier this year, the government announced that it would delay the 
move to 75 per cent Business Rates Retention and the implementation 
of the fair funding review. This decision allowed local authorities to 
focus on meeting the public health challenge posed by the pandemic. 
In order to provide further stability to the sector, the government has 
decided not to proceed with a reset of business rates baselines in 
2021/22”  

 “The government will consult on reforms to the New Homes Bonus 
shortly, with a view to implementing reform in 2022/23”. 

 “The government is committed to sustainable improvement of the adult 
social care system and will bring forward proposals next year”. 

3.1.9 From the point of view of infrastructure a major new £4bn “Levelling Up 
Fund” has been announced, but it is not clear how the funding will be 
allocated or how much local authorities will be involved in developing and 
submitting bids but “It will be open to all local areas in England and prioritise 

128



bids to drive growth and regeneration in places in need, those facing 
particular challenges, and areas that have received less government 
investment in recent years. The government will set out further details on 
how to support levelling up across the UK in the New Year.” 

3.1.10 In summary, what does SR2020 mean for local authorities and future 
funding?  Whilst the impact for 21/22 is known, we can only speculate 
beyond that: 

 The national deficit and high debt levels mean that taxation and 
spending will need to be controlled. 

 Whilst various reforms will take place in 21/22, spending in non-priority 
areas (of which local government is one) is likely to decrease as the 
Government seeks to control spending.  Whilst the LGA talks of a £5bn 
funding gap, it is unlikely that funding will be forthcoming in the short 
term.  

 SR2020 is silent on what we can expect in terms national taxation 
schemes but it does state that local authorities spending power will 
increase in part from 2% council tax rises and the flexibility for councils 
to raise a 3% social care precept.  The shift towards local taxation 
continues and further flexibility is likely to be the only way for the 
Government to “increase” local government spending power whilst 
holding national expenditure. 

3.1.11 Against this backdrop, the Council has updated its MTFP and refreshed its 
future outlook.  This is covered in Section 4. 

3.2 Funding available in 21/22 and future funding outlook 

The Local Government Finance Settlement  

3.2.1 Using Government figures, core spending power (figure used by 
Government to compare available core funding) of local authorities in 
England is £51.2bn in 21/22 compared to £49.1bn in 20/21.  Overall the 
picture for Rutland is slightly better with core spending power at £36.7m in 
20/21 compared to £35.2m in 20/21.   

3.2.2 In 21/22 nationally 61% of spending power comes from council tax 
compared to 60% in 20/21.  In 21/22 81% of Rutland’s spending power 
comes from Council tax, significantly higher than the national average. 

3.2.3 The increase is core spending power can be attributed to council tax and not 
government funding which is similar to the prior year as can be seen from 
the table below.   

 

 

 

129



Overall funding available 16/17 – 21/22 (1)  

 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 

RSG 2.354 0.889 0 0 0 0 

Transitional Grant 0.340 0.337 0 0 0 0 

Rural Service 
Delivery Grants 

0.843 0.681 0.849 0.849 0.849 0.890 

Tariffs relating to 
Business Rates  

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Core government 
funding  

3.537 1.907 0.849 0.849 0.849 0.890 

Misc grants (2) 0.310 0.351 0.392 0.875 1.039 0.964 

New Homes Bonus 
(3) 

1.230 1.214 1.231 1.148 0.966 0.518 

Better Care Fund 
(4) 

2.046 2.061 2.306 2.215 2.330 2.705 

Business rates (5) 4.770 4.786 4.963 5.244 5.532 5.638 

Total government 
funding 

11.893 10.319 9.741 21.047 10.716 10.715 

Council tax (inc 
collection fund and 
adult social care 
precept) 

22.172 23.412 24.800 26.496 27.863 28.426 

Total resources 
available 

34.065 33.731 34.541 47.543 38.579 39.141 

Use of Council 
earmarked reserves 

(0.079) 0.288 1.295 (0.384) (0.292) (1.288) 

1 - Funding represents amounts available at budget setting.  Additional grants 
received in year for specific items (e.g. Brexit) are not included. 

2 - Includes Social care grants of £746k 

3 - NHB income for 21/22 is known but is assumed to be abolished from 23/24 

4 - The Better Care Fund is to continue in 2021/22, with the allocation increasing 
by 5.3% (up £125k to £2.706m in Rutland). This includes £0.135m transferred to 
BCF funding from Winter Pressure funding included within Misc Grants. 

5 - In Rutland, 50% of business rates are paid to Government, 1% is paid to the 
Fire Authority, and 49% is retained by the Council. Of the 49% retained, the 
Council pays a further tariff to the Government (valued at £1m).  The estimates can 
be impacted by factors that reduce rates due (appeals, business failure, and 
greater discounts) or increase rates due (new business). 

3.2.4 Additional grant funding has been announced for Social Care although the 
vast majority of it has been funded from New Homes Bonus funding 
previously undistributed. The Council received £712k in 20/21 which has 
been confirmed as remaining in the base for 21/22 with an additional amount 
of £34k.  Nationally the increases were £0.3bn in 2021/22, £0.8bn in 2020/21 

130



and £0.41bn in 2019/20.  

3.2.5 The Council tax principles allow a 2% increase in “core” council tax plus a 
further 3% increase in the Adult Social Care precept which is available over 
2 years.  The funding available above assumes a 3% total tax increase for 
21/22.  The decision around Council tax is discussed further in Section 4. 

3.2.6 The Council has received £299k for indexation. This has two elements: 
inflation for Revenue Support Grant (RSG), and the effect of cap 
compensation on business rates income and baselines.  This is included in 
the Business rate figures. 

3.2.7 Rural Services Delivery Grant (RSDG), has increased from £848k in 
2020/21 to £890k.  

3.2.8 The Council will receive an Improved Better Care Fund of £212k which 
includes winter pressure grant that was previously received separately. 

3.2.9 The Council will receive £518k in New Homes Bonus.  This includes two 
payments in respect of years 8 and 9 of the scheme, and a further one-off 
payment (year 11) will be calculated and paid on a one-off basis (i.e. no 
future legacy payments).  

3.2.10 The Council will receive a Lower Tier Services Grant of £44k.  This grant 
has been used to provide a “floor” increase for every authority (i.e. to ensure 
that no authority’s Spending Power is lower in 2021/22 than it was in 2020/21).  

3.2.11 In summary, the Council has less Government funding available compared 
to 20/21 and in overall terms a 3% council tax increase means the Council 
has only £662k more funding available. 

3.2.12 Outside of core funding, the Council has made various Covid-19 
announcements.   

3.2.13 We will receive a general grant of £724k to support Covid-19 work in 21/22. 
We will also receive £211k of funding in recognition of the increased costs of 
providing local council tax support following the pandemic. This grant will 
offset the cost of any additional council tax support in the Collection Fund. 

3.2.14 The government will compensate local authorities for 75% of irrecoverable 
losses in council tax and business rates income in respect of 2020/21.  
The Council believes the compensation will be in the region of £60k but has 
not budgeted for this amount. 

3.2.15 The Sales, Fees and Charges compensation scheme will also be continued 
for 3 months of the 21/22 financial year. 

3.2.16 The Government has also set aside £15m to support the implementation of 
the Redmond review which will increase cost pressures in the audit market.  
The Council has increased the cost of external audit in the budget and any 
additional funding will offset that. 

131



Beyond 20/21 and MTFP assumptions 

3.2.17 As explained in Section 3, beyond 20/21 the Government funding position is 
still unknown.  In the context of the current economic position, the Council 
has refreshed its assumptions about future funding.   

Assumption Description Details 

Pension 
contribution 
rates 

Employer rates set by 
Pension Fund.   

No change. Still assumed 1% 
increase per year.  Next 
triennial review due in 21/22. 

Staff pay award Pay award for Chief 
Officers and other staff 
negotiated nationally.   

Reduced from 2% to 0% (with 
funds set aside for those on 
lowest pay levels) for 21/22 
following SR2020, then 2% for 
22/23 onwards. 

Social care 
grant 

Specific grants given 
by Government 

Assume that extra funding 
received in 21/22 will continue 
given pressures on social 
care. 

Rural Delivery 
grant 

Grant for rural 
authorities 

Assume it will continue but be 
paid via Business Rates 
Retention from 22/23. 

Council tax 
base 

Number of Band D 
properties  

Assume a small increase in 
21/22 to reflect a lower 
collection rate and greater 
number of council tax support 
cases following impact on the 
pandemic (see risk 8, 4.3.1) 

Council tax rate Rate set by elected 
members  

3% in 21/22 but 4% thereafter 
assume Government 
continues to allow 2% general 
council tax increases and 2% 
for social care precept  

Business Rates Amount of funding 
Rutland is allowed to 
keep (its baseline) by 
Government from rates 
collected 

Assume rates baseline 
continues as is (no growth) but 
is adjusted for public health 
and rural delivery grant). 

Better Care 
Fund 

Ringfenced funding 
shared with the CCG 

Assume this increases with 
inflation as it contributes to 
reducing the burden on the 
NHS 

3.3 Risks and uncertainties  

3.3.1 While the MTFP includes various assumptions, there are a number of 

132



inherent risks associated with these assumptions and a range of other 
factors that could impact on funding and spending that are outside of the 
Council’s control (these are covered below). 

 Issue/risk Impact/ Action to mitigate 
risk 

1 In order to prioritise the response to 
Covid-19, and our focus on supporting 
jobs, the Chancellor and the Prime 
Minister have conducted a one-year 
Spending Review and the Finance 
Settlement for Local Governments cover 
21/22 only. 
 
With a multi-year Spending Review to 
be undertaken alongside other reforms 
referred to below, the Council’s future 
funding remains uncertain.  The cost of 
responding to the Pandemic means 
additional funding for local authorities is 
very unlikely. 
 

MTFP assumes future funding 
will not increase. 
 
The Council will continue to 
lobby for additional funding 
and respond to future calls for 
evidence. 
 
Savings work is ongoing. 
 
Lobbying our local MP and 
government. 

2 The Government announced its 
intention to introduce 75 per cent 
business rates retention for all in 
2020/21 but this was deferred due to 
Coronavirus. This is now likely to 
happen in 2022/23 but we await further 
information.  
 
In practical terms, business rates 
retention will mean the Council will keep 
more business rates at the expense of 
government grants.   
 

MTFP assumes business 
rates retention starts in 22/23. 
 
The Council will track 
progress. 
 
 

3 The Fair Funding Review is re-
examining what the relative “needs” of 
authorities are and how funding may be 
allocated taking into account available 
resources.  
 
The Government has previously 
confirmed that the Fair Funding Review 
has been delayed due to Coronavirus, 
and will no longer proceed as planned in 
2021. The exact timing is unclear. 
 
No changes will be made without further 
consultation. The Council may benefit but 
this will depend on two key factors – how 

The Council will track 
progress, respond to any 
consultation and lobby for 
additional funding. 
 

133



 Issue/risk Impact/ Action to mitigate 
risk 

deprivation is factored in (if it is then 
Rutland more likely loses out) and 
whether notional Council tax is used to 
determine local resources (if it is then the 
Council will likely gain as it has a high 
level of Council tax). 
 
The big concern, which is linked to the 
Spending Review, is that there is no 
commitment that additional funding will be 
made available but funding could be 
diverted from district councils to those 
with social care responsibilities. The 
MTFP assumes no additional funding. 
 
 

4 The Social Care Green Paper has been 
delayed again with no known date for its 
publication. It should offer a model for 
how social care will be funded in the 
future.   

 

In October 2020, the Health and Social 
care Select Committee said ministers 
should invest at least £7bn a year in the 
care sector by 2023/24, though it said this 
was only a “starting point” and that it 
would not address unmet care needs nor 
improve access to care. 

 

The future funding model is therefore 
critical to the Council’s future.  The 
Spending Review 2020 does not indicate 
that additional Government funding will be 
made available. 

 

MTFP assumes no new 
funding for now but it is likely 
that existing social care grants 
will continue. 

5 The Better Care Fund will continue into 
21/22 and increase by 5.3% but the level 
of funding beyond then is unsure and 
future reforms to the NHS or changes to 
the way social care is funded could 
change this landscape.   
 
At a local level, joint working and 
integration is strong in areas like 
discharge 

The MTFP includes the BCF in 
line with published allocations. 
 
 

134



 Issue/risk Impact/ Action to mitigate 
risk 

 
The Social Care Green paper may give 
further clarity as to whether structural 
change is likely. A loss or reduction in 
funding could cause significant pressures. 
 

6 The New Homes Bonus continues with 
no changes announced in the Settlement. 
The baseline will remain at 0.4% for 
21/22. 

 

After 21/22 the Council assumes that 
NHB will effectively be abolished and that 
in 21/22 we will get the allocations 
relating to years 17/18, 18/19 and 20/21 
with a 1 year allocation in 22/23 and no 
payments from 23/24. 

 

The Council was expecting a share of 
NHB funding previously undistributed but 
this has been used to fund additional 
social care grant. 

The MTFP factors in losses 
which help inform a funding 
gap. 

 

It is possible that abolition of 
NHB may see additional core 
funding for authorities. 

 

The MTFP prudently assumes 
this is not the case. 

7 Schools funding (Dedicated Schools 
Grant) is outside of the General Fund and 
is ring fenced.   

 

The Council is carrying a deficit on the 
DSG, nearly £1m, caused by High Needs 
pressures which it aims to recover over 
time.  In statute, the Council is not 
required to fund this deficit but with 
funding received barely sufficient to meet 
current demand, the Council is unclear as 
to how the deficit will be funded.  

The level of deficits nationally are 
significant and growing.  The Council 
understands that the DfE are working with 
some Councils to tackle the problem and 
that future reforms are likely but as it 
stands, there is a live risk that the Council 
may be required to meet some costs in 
the future. 

The Education and Finance 
teams are working with 
Schools to tackle issues.  A 
Recovery plan exists and 
Department for Education 
may request information or 
review it. 

 

Lobbying being done through 
our local MP. 

8 Council tax is the largest single source of 
revenue for Rutland. The amount raised in 

The MTFP assumes 3% in 
21/22 and maximum council 

135



 Issue/risk Impact/ Action to mitigate 
risk 

future years will depend both on how the 
tax base evolves and on the scale of any 
increases in the tax rate.  Growth in the 
council tax base will depend on several 
factors:  

 The change in the number of properties 
on which council tax is payable, which in 
turn depends on the number of new 
properties built and converted for 
residential use, as well as the number of 
demolitions. 

 Changes in the number of properties 
subject to exemptions, discounts and 
premiums.  These have been stable in 
20/21 are not anticipated to change. 

 Changes in the number of properties 
whose residents are eligible for local 
council tax support (LCTS) – this number 
has grown from 1,393 in April to 1,542 at 
the of October and is expected to 
continue to rise for the reminder of the 
year 

 Changes in the collection rate for those 
still eligible to pay council tax - there has 
been a small increase in non-payment 
this year, although based on past 
experience most of this is expected to be 
recouped in future years. We therefore 
assume the collection rate in 2021/22 to 
be 98.5%, with the rate returning to 99% 
thereafter. 

tax rises thereafter of 4% and 
that the tax base grows in 
accordance with the 
assumptions set out opposite. 

9 As with council tax, growth in business 
rates revenues will be affected by 
changes in the tax rate and in the tax 
base. Increases in the tax rate (the 
‘multiplier’) are now capped at the rate of 
Consumer Prices Index (CPI) inflation, 
and legislation requires that the tax rate is 
adjusted to ensure revaluations of 
properties are revenue-neutral across 
England as a whole. 

 

The business rates tax base is affected by 
several factors, all of which are uncertain 
and could have been affected by the 
COVID-19 crisis. including:  

The Council has traditionally 
seen little business rates 
growth. 

 

The impact of the pandemic 
has not yet been seen in full 
and whilst the MTFP assumes 
zero growth, changes in 
economic conditions could 
have a major impact.   

 

The MTFP assumes no growth 
in 21/22 other than for that 
known. 

 

136



 Issue/risk Impact/ Action to mitigate 
risk 

 the change in the quantity of non-
domestic property – for Rutland, gross 
rates payable has decreased from 
£16.468m in April to £16.269m in 
November;   

 the change in the number of properties 
subject to different tax reliefs, such as 
the 100% reduction in tax bill available 
for the first 3–6 months a property is 
empty;  

 changes in the collection rate – of the 
£16.269m only £7.510m is payable due 
to Government reliefs. 

 
To illustrate the impact, a 2% loss of rates 
payable is equivalent to £320k. 

10 The Local Plan sets out planning policies 
for the Rutland area, as well as listing 
sites for additional housing, employment 
and other development for the period 
2018 to 2036. 

Regulation 19 Consultation has taken 
place and this final public consultation 
allowed residents, businesses and other 
stakeholders to comment whether the 
Local Plan meets the ‘Test of Soundness’. 

The Planning team are now working their 
way through all the responses before the 
comments, together with the Local Plan 
and all supporting documents, are 
submitted to the Secretary of State. The 
Secretary of State will then appoint an 
independent Planning Inspectorate, who 
will conduct an independent review of the 
plan and all of the representations 
received, to determine whether the plan is 
sound. This is called an Examination in 
Public.  The Council could incur costs as 
the inspection evolves. 

 

The Council has a legal 
earmarked reserve that can be 
called upon if needed and a 
specific one off budget for 
Local Plan costs, c£30k in 
21/22 plus any amount 
outstanding from the £280k 
allocation in 20/21. 

 

 

11 Pay inflation increases in 20/21 were 
2.75%.  The contrast with private sector 
pay (which saw no growth in 20/21) 
caused some tension. In the Spending 
Review, the Government stated that 

The MTFP reverts back to the 
normal 2% assumption for 
22/23 onwards.   

 

137



 Issue/risk Impact/ Action to mitigate 
risk 

public sector pay would be paused with 
only those earning less than £24k getting 
a rise.   

 
The rate for 21/22 is still to be negotiated 
with the Council assuming a freeze with 
c£100k set aside for staff due increments 
and rises for those earning under £24k. 

 
The Council is part of the national 
bargaining agreement so is not directly in 
control of negotiations.  The pay 
settlement is not expected before March 
2021. 

 

12 One key question in respect of the 
pandemic is how it might impact in the 
medium term on the future of council 
services. 
The short but not particularly helpful 
answer is that no one knows for sure. The 
future path for both the public health and 
economic crisis caused by COVID-19 is 
highly uncertain.  Areas where the Council 
believes there may be impacts include: 
 

 fees and charges and whether 
income level will ever return to pre 
COVID levels; 

 the economic impact on business 
and jobs; 

 the public health of residents 
including the incidence of mental 
health; 

 the demand for adult social care 
and how much this will cost as care 
providers emerge into a post 
COVID world where PPE, deep 
cleaning etc may become the new 
norm; 

 the incidence of safeguarding 
cases (children, domestic abuse 
etc) may increase as families have 
been subject to a prolonged period 
of lifestyle changes and associated 
pressures. 

MTFP includes some service 
pressures as growth is built in 
where there is a degree of 
certainty.   
 
As far as possible Directors will 
try to manage costs pressures 
within budget.  
 
The Council has earmarked 
reserves which can be used. 
Sufficient balances will also be 
maintained to cope with 
unforeseen cost pressures in 
the short-term. 

138



 Issue/risk Impact/ Action to mitigate 
risk 

13 The Government target is to keep 
inflation below 2%.  The Consumer 
Prices Index (CPI) 12-month inflation 
rate was 0.5% in September 2020. 
 
The Council has not seen the benefit of 
lower inflation rates. Outside of pay, much 
of the Council’s expenditure is locked 
down in agreed contracts and, if anything, 
contractors and suppliers are 
experiencing pressures arising from the 
pandemic.  Contract extensions have led 
to increased costs in the short term. 
 
Based on current experiences, the 
Council is keeping general inflation rates 
in the MTFP at 2%. 
 

The Council will monitor the 
position on key contracts and 
has inflation built into the 
MTFP which has been 
revisited as part of the 21/22 
budget.   

14 Interest rates may change thereby 
reducing the Council’s ability to earn 
investment income and the potential to 
repay long term debt earlier.  
The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy 
Committee (MPC) sets monetary policy to 
meet the 2% inflation target, and in a way 
that helps to sustain growth and 
employment. At its meeting ending on 16 
September 2020, the MPC voted 
unanimously to maintain Bank Rate at 
0.1%. 

Interest rates are not expected to 
increase. The Bank of England could cut 
interest rates to below zero next year in a 
bid to support the economy with lower 
borrowing costs. 

Advice from our Treasury 
advisors is factored into 
investment returns 
expectations.  Consideration 
has been given to other 
investment routes such as 
property funds but this has 
been ruled out for now. 
 
Regular review of the debt 
position and consideration of 
the balance between investing 
surplus cash and using it to 
repay long term debt.   

15 Capital financing costs have been 
estimated based on the assumption that 
some borrowing is undertaken during the 
life of the MTFP to fund property 
maintenance costs.  
 
Corporate analysis of existing and 
potential new projects indicates that no 
further external borrowing is expected at 
this stage. 
 

The Capital Investment 
Strategy allows for external 
borrowing only where there is 
a revenue payback so this 
would have a positive MTFP 
impact. 

139



 Issue/risk Impact/ Action to mitigate 
risk 

16 The Council has seen demographic 
changes over time and will do so again in 
the future.  Changes in population and 
number of households have not always 
translated into increases in service costs.   

The Council is expecting to see 
population changes over the next 5 
years.  This has the potential to create 
additional demand of up to 3% per annum 
on social care. 

The Council now includes an 
estimate for increased needs 
in its MTFP. 
 
The Council has a Social Care 
Reserve and a Social Care 
contingency to allow it to 
respond to changes in demand 
in-year. 

17 The Council has a number of outsourced 
services and significant contracts that are 
due for renewal in the next few years 
(some have been extended as 
Coronavirus regulations allowed for that). 

Key contract expiry dates are (Refuse – 
2024, Residual Waste – 2024, Leisure – 
2022, Highways 2023).  

The Council will aim to make savings on 
reprocurement. 

Contract procurement can be costly and 
one off specialist support will be needed 
to:   

 Support market testing – gain 
intelligence about market conditions, 
appetite of bidders, recently 
commissioned tenders etc 

 Provide Tender support – for example 
in terms of writing specifications in a 
way to illicit most bidders and best 
possible bid 

 Give Legal advice – in terms of 
contracts, terms and conditions, 
procurement method 

The MTFP is prudent and does 
not include savings for 
contracts to be let. 
 
The budget for 21/22 does 
include provision for external 
support to enable the Council 
to achieve savings targets of at 
least 10% in its procurement 
activity. 

18 The Council's net pension liability for the 
Local Government Pension Scheme 
(controlled by Leicestershire County 
Council as the Pension Fund 
administrator) has decreased from £47m 

The position will be monitored 
but the Council’s MTFP 
includes a 1% increase in rates 
per annum as per the Pension 
Fund. 

140



 Issue/risk Impact/ Action to mitigate 
risk 

to £40m. 

Contribution rates have been confirmed 
for the next three years but pressure on 
interest rates may impact investment 
income placing pressures on employer 
contributions. 

19 The UK has now left the EU with a deal 

The Council completed a risk assessment 
pre departure and is monitoring the 
impact against a range of possible risks. 
To date, the Council has not seen any 
impact. 
 

The MTFP is neutral in respect 
of the impact of any deal with 
the EU. 
 
The loss of key local business 
could have an impact of £300k 
before the Council is 
compensated by Government. 

20 The Council has committed to produce a 
Municipal Waste Management Strategy 
prior to tendering for the new waste 
service contracts.  

 The Waste Strategy by 
Government in December 2018 and 
the subsequent Environment Bill 
which will make the Strategy law by 
2023. Pertinent for Rutland, this 
includes the requirement to offer:  

 Separate weekly food waste 
collections (including for 
businesses); 

 Separate glass collections from 
comingled recycling collections; 
and  

 Potentially, to offer free fortnightly 
garden waste collections.  

The Environment Bill also sets out other 
provisions including a commitment to net 
zero greenhouse gas emissions by 2050.  

These changes will have far reaching 
implications on the composition and 
material flow of Rutland’s waste and will 
fundamentally affect how the Council 
specifies its requirements for the new 

No provision has been made in 
the MTFP and as per all new 
policy, the Council would 
expect Government to assess 
the burden on Councils and 
compensate them accordingly 
with new burdens funding. 
We await to see how the Bill 
progresses. 

141



 Issue/risk Impact/ Action to mitigate 
risk 

waste contracts.  They will also have a 
significant financial impact, probably in 
excess of £1m per annum. 

21 The Council has a range of properties 
which were due to be inspected to 
determine what reactive or planned repair 
work may be needed.  This a core part of 
its work on Asset Management.  Work 
was deferred further to the pandemic but 
the long term maintenance programme 
could impact on the revenue budget. 

The results of this work will be factored 
into future plans. 

Revenue budgets have been 
adjusted for reactive repair 
work. 
 
Capital funds and reserves are 
available but adequacy will 
depend on the extent of the 
long term programme. 
 

22 The Covenant principles of additional 
support for our Armed Forces 
communities are expected to come into 
statute in January 2021.    

Currently there is very little detail on what 
the legislation will state, other than it will 
cover housing, education and health.  The 
Council has been asked to consider the 
possible financial impact across a range 
of areas as part of helping the 
Government understand the extent of new 
burdens funding required.   

The Council assumes new 
burdens funding will cover any 
costs but there is a risk that 
this is not the case with any 
impact difficult to quantify. 

23 Ash dieback, sometimes known as 
‘Chalara’, affects ash and other species of 
trees and is caused by a fungal pathogen.  

Once infected, a high proportion of trees 
will die. A few ash trees may survive the 
infection but evidence from mainland 
Europe suggested that only 10% of trees 
were found to be moderately resistant to 
the disease, with 1-2% having high levels 
of resistance. 

The Council is responsible for the 
inspection and maintenance of all trees on 
land it owns and manages, including the 
adopted highway. 

The management of Ash dieback has 
been identified in the MTFP as a future 

The Council has set aside 
£500k of repurposed 
earmarked reserves to fund 
ongoing work. 
 
Consideration will be given to 
minimising cost of felling and 
maximising revenue from 
timber sales. 

142



 Issue/risk Impact/ Action to mitigate 
risk 

potential financial development/pressure 
but figures are unknown. The financial 
implications of the spread of ash dieback 
will be more fully understood as work 
progresses. 

3.4 Future outlook and the financial gap  

3.4.1 Given the funding settlement and existing pressures and risks, the Revenue 
budget for 21/22 shows a funding gap of £2.4m which will be balanced by 
using reserves. Using reserves to balance the budget for recurring 
expenditure is not good practice and not sustainable.  Strong action is 
needed now to reduce costs and increase revenue. 

3.4.2 If the Council does not tackle the gap then by 23/24, its reserves will be 
below £3m, the recommended minimum level, and soon after the Council will 
have no reserves left.  Whilst the budget assumes a 3% council tax 
increase, a move to 5% would mean that Reserves would not drop as 
quick giving the Council more time to address its financial gap. 

 

3.4.3 The position is complicated by key factors:   

a) the future funding position is unclear, especially with the delay in the 
local authority funding review and pressure on government 
borrowing/spending; 

b) the pandemic is having an impact on the Council’s budget both in 
terms of additional expenditure but also revenue income.  It remains to 
be seen whether current impacts are temporary or become the new 
baseline; 

500,000

1,500,000

2,500,000

3,500,000

4,500,000

5,500,000

6,500,000

7,500,000

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

Impact of Funding Gap on Balances

Funding Gap 3% General Fund 3% Minimum Balance

Funding Gap 5% General Fund 5%

143



c) whilst some services are statutory, classifying spend as either statutory 
or discretionary is almost impossible.  For example, having a finance 
function is not a statutory requirement but without such a function the 
Council could not meet statutory obligations such as producing the 
Statement of Accounts.  Therefore, the Council cannot simply list 
discretionary services and cut those to plug the gap; 

d) the Council has already made significant savings over the last 8 years 
which have been used to meet additional pressures and offset the loss 
of funding; 

Year Budget savings  

11/12 3,313,050 

12/13 1,193,500  

13/14 1,534,500  

14/15 889,400  

15/16 785,900  

16/17 1,022,400  

17/18 931,300  

18/19 805,600 

19/20 1,515,000 

20/21 479,000 

 

e) the Council provides good Value for Money and is generally low cost.   
(The last data analysis undertaken pre Covid-19 showed the Councils 
average spend per household to be £1822, less than £11 below the 
Unitary average).  The figures are supported by other evidence, 
including the IMPOWER INDEX (data for 149 English councils) which 
shows that Rutland is achieving greater than average outcomes in 
adult social care, from a less than average spend per head.  Reducing 
costs further without impacting the services enjoyed by residents is 
unlikely. 

3.4.4 Notwithstanding these comments, the Council must act now if it wishes to be 
financially sustainable. In its Corporate Plan, the Council committed to 
producing an “emergency budget”.  Progress on the “emergency budget” has 
been slower than anticipated with resources diverted to deal with the 
pandemic response.  However, the Council has done some work with 
Members to generate ideas and possible areas for investigation and Officers 
are now undertaking a line by line review of the budget to identify savings 
options. 

3.4.5 The financial position is such that the Council must aim to make 
savings in 21/22 and underspend its budget by at least £1m.  This 
would reduce reliance on reserves to £1.4m.  This can be achieved 
through various spending controls, including for example: 

a) reviewing all vacancies and freezing posts, where possible; 

b) reviewing expenditure and switching off non priority spending; and 

144



c) stopping or deferring projects/initiatives that involve additional 
expenditure, 

3.4.6 Alongside these actions, the Council must begin other projects aimed 
at releasing savings in 2022/23 of at least £1.5m.  Whilst all areas of 
Council business must be reviewed, work already underway or soon to be 
started includes:   

a) The Council will review its leisure strategy and continue with the re-
procurement of it leisure contract. The Council is financially supporting 
the leisure contractor through the pandemic but is aiming to remove 
this support as part of any new contract.  A return to a cost neutral 
position will save c£100k; 

b) the Council has extended its waste management contracts due to the 
pandemic at an extra cost of c£450k per annum.  The Council will be 
producing a waste strategy and aiming for a 10% reduction in waste 
management costs as part of its reprocurement of a waste contract.  
This may necessitate a change in delivery model for the waste service; 

c) the Council will  explore savings options across all services. The 
Council expects to make further announcements about areas for 
investigation and will inevitably carry out any reviews in accordance 
with statutory consultation requirements. 

3.5 Reserves 

The minimum level of reserves required 

3.5.1 One of the reasons that a £3m deficit does not threaten the Council’s 
resilience overnight is that the Council has been prudent over the years and 
has maintained a healthy reserve level.  The total level of reserves relative to 
council revenue expenditure is relatively high compared to other Councils 
indicating a good degree of financial management. 

 General Fund 
reserves as % 
of Revenue 
Exp1 

Earmarked 
reserves as % of 
Revenue Exp 

Total 

Rutland 21% 13% 34% 

Average Unitary 5% 19% 24% 

3.5.2 These reserves can be called upon in the short term to balance the budget 
but this is not good practice and they cannot continue to used indefinitely as 
indicated above. 

                                                           
1 To enable comparisons, the Council has used Service Expenditure as defined in the Revenue 
returns (RO forms) submitted to Government by all Councils.   

145



3.5.3 The level of reserves is set to take account of: 

 strategic, operational and financial risks (see Section 3.3);  

 key financial assumptions underpinning the budget; and 

 the quality of the Council’s financial management arrangements. 

3.5.4 The Council’s minimum reserves target is proposed to be set at £3m.  
Presently, the Council’s General Fund balances (and useable earmarked 
reserves) are above the minimum level.  As at March 2021, reserve levels 
are budgeted to be at £9.181m (General Fund) and £5.724m (earmarked 
reserves as detailed in Appendix 3).   

3.5.5 A review of the reserves position has been undertaken.  It is my view that 
the minimum reserve level be increased to £3m. This level is deemed 
adequate based on professional judgement and a risk assessment taking 
into account the following factors: 

a) despite a good savings track record, the Council has work to do to 
deliver future savings; 

b) there are potential risk and cost pressures as set out in 3.4; and 

c) the financial outlook (Spending Review 2020) and Settlement indicate 
that future funding will not close the gap; 

d) the impact of the pandemic is still not yet fully known. 

Earmarked Reserves 

3.5.6 Earmarked reserves are used as a means of building up funds to meet 
known or predicted liabilities. Their establishment and use is subject to 
Council approval and movements are reported as part of the quarterly 
financial monitoring reports. A list of earmarked reserves is given in 
Appendix 3. 

3.5.7 The Council has £5.7m of earmarked reserves of which two are statutory 
(public health and better care fund reserves totalling £677k) and the 
remainder are at the discretion of Council. 

3.5.8 The 21/22 budget uses over £1.288m of earmarked reserves – mainly £848k 
of Covid Funding held in reserves, £200k from the social care reserves to 
support pressures and £175k from the pressure reserve to support the major 
procurement project costs.  

3.5.9 The Council proposes to create a reserve to cover any costs associated with 
Ash dieback (risk 23) by transferring: 

 £300k from the Pressure reserve; 

 £80k from the Insurance/Legal reserve; 

146



 £100k from the Highways reserve; 

 £20k from the Internal Audit reserve. 

4 COUNCIL TAX AND COLLECTION FUND 

4.1 Council tax – options 

4.1.1 The Government has maintained the general Council Tax referendum limit at 
1.99% for 20/21.  Rutland is also able to levy an Adult Social Care precept of 
an additional 3%.  There is flexibility in that the Council could levy the 3% 
over the next two years.  For example, councils can use 1 per cent of that 
flexibility in 2021/22 and 2 per cent in 2022/23 or any other combination, as 
long as the two do not add up to more than 3 per cent.   

4.1.2 No decisions have been taken about referendum principles that would apply 
from 2022/23 onwards, so this flexibility should not be seen as a signal of 
what might happen to future precepts or council tax in future years. Even if 
the 2021/22 precepting arrangements are not extended into 2022/23, 
councils would have the ability to raise any amount not utilised from the 
maximum in 2021/22.  

4.1.3 The Council proposes to raise Council Tax by 2% and levy the Adult Social 
Care precept of 1%2.   

4.1.4 The view of the Council’s Section 151 Officer is that, in the context of the 
MTFP, the proposed rise should be 5% for 21/22.  The rationale for this is as 
follows: 

 It avoids the Council making a greater loss in 21/22; 

 Failing to increase Council tax by the maximum amount leads to a 
c£277k minimum loss of income (for every 1% not raised compared to 
4.99%) in 21/22 but also every subsequent year (so c£4.5m over 5 
years if the Council only increase Council tax by 3%); 

 The Council is expecting an increase in social care costs due to 
additional demands from residents;   

 The Government funding has decreased and is not sufficient to meet 
inflation and other cost pressures;  

 Collection rates remain high; and 

 The Government has promised additional hardship funding for 
Councils. The Council also has a discretionary hardship fund which 
would allow us to reduce Council tax for the most vulnerable.   

                                                           
2 For the purposes of the table in 2.1.3, reference to Council Tax and rates includes the Adult Social 
Care precept 

147



4.1.5 The table overleaf gives shows the difference between the various options: 

 

Change 
from 
21/2 

Council tax 
rate  

 

21/22 
council tax 
revenue 

£m 

Loss against 
maximum yield 
in 21/22 

Current year 
plus 5 loss 

4.99% £1,861.70 £29.154m N/A N/A 

3.99% £1,843.96 £28.876m £0.277m £2m - £2.6m 

2.99% £1,826.23 £28.598m £0.555m £3.9m - £4.5m 

1.99% £1,808.50 £28.321m £0.833m £5.8m - £6.7m 

0.99% £1.790.77 £28.043m £1.111m £7.7m – £9m 

0% £1,773.21 £27.768m £1.386m £9.6m - £11.2m 

NB:  The losses over a 6 year period will vary according to a number of 
factors including growth, council tax support, collection rates, discounts and 
empty homes. 

4.1.6 Members should note that even with maximum Council Tax rises the Council 
still needs to find substantial savings.  Members should note that Councils 
in financial difficulties that have not maximised local taxation have 
been criticised for asking for more Government funding. 

4.2 Council Tax Collection Fund – the estimated balance for 2020/21 

4.2.1 The Council, as a billing authority, is required to keep a special fund, known 
as the Collection Fund.  If a surplus or deficit remains in the Collection Fund 
at the year-end it is subsequently distributed to, or borne by the billing 
authority (in this situation the Council) and the preceptors (Police and Fire 
Authorities).  Billing authorities are required to estimate the expected 
Collection Fund balance for the year to 31 March in order that the sum can 
be taken into account by billing authorities and preceptors in calculating the 
amounts of Council Tax for the coming year.  The difference between the 
estimate at 15 January, and the actual position at 31 March will be taken into 
account in the following financial year.  

4.2.2 20/21 has been an anomalous year for Council Tax, which has seen a 
number of elements affect the overall position as explained below: 

 Taxbase (before Council Tax Support) - COVID-19 has not affected 
the underlying taxbase but has depressed the growth in new properties 
being added to the taxbase. 

 Council Tax Support (CTS) - The Council has seen an increase in 
applications, with payments for 2020/21 totalling £1.4m compared to 
£1.3m at the same point in 2019/20. In addition to LCTS the Council 
has reduced bills due to the Hardship Fund (£150 per household), this 
has been funded by a grant so does not impact the Collection Fund 
directly.  

148



 Collection Rate - The Council tax base is also influenced by the 
collection rate. For Rutland this was 99% as we generally see a high 
collection rate within the County. If the Council assumes the collection 
rate will fall then the knock on effect is the tax base will fall. For 
Rutland a 0.5% fall in collection rates is equivalent to approx. 80 band 
D Properties or c£140k.   

4.2.3 The estimated financial position on the Collection Fund at 31 March 2021 is 
shown below.   

Estimated Deficit at 31 March 2021 £186,000 

Share of Deficit 

Rutland County Council £159,600 

Leicestershire Police Authority £20,400 

Leicestershire Fire Service £6,000 

4.2.4 The deficit represents 0.59% of the amount collected. Regulations provide 
for the Council’s share of the estimated deficit to be transferred to the 
General Fund in 21/22. 

4.3 Business Rates Collection Fund – the estimated balance for 2021/22 

4.3.1 Similar to Council Tax the Collection fund for business rates as been 
anomalous. Although the Government has funded a large proportion of the 
changes in relation to business rates, the timing and accounting treatment 
required for the Collection Fund will result in significant movements between 
reserves to neutralise any impact of the reliefs. 

4.3.2 The Councils draws down an amount from the Collection Fund based on 
annual return completed in January and this forms the ‘funding’ from 
business rates, which does not fluctuate.  

4.3.3 For this year, the government have made policy decisions to grant extra 
relief as part of their Covid response, but recompense local authorities by 
grant payable in year. The consequence of this is the Council still receives 
the estimated funding from the Collection Fund plus grant funding for the 
additional relief, creating a significant surplus for the Councils general fund in 
20/21.  

4.3.4 This creates a deficit on the Collection Fund as the amount collected will not 
be as high as when estimated in January, but the fund still pays out the 
estimated amount. The Council will then have to pay back the deficit in the 
next financial year. 

4.3.5 To help neutralise this impact the Council will use the additional funds 
received in 2020/21 and put them into a specific earmarked reserve in order 

149



to meet the estimated deficit in the Collection Fund in January 2021. 

5 REVENUE BUDGET 

5.1 Revenue budget  

5.1.1 The Council is proposing a net revenue budget of £42.2m. The budget will 
allow it to deliver on corporate plan priorities and meet statutory obligations. 
The Council will attempt to protect spending in key service areas like social 
care. The table below sets out the detailed make-up of the draft budget. 

  Draft budget 
21/22 
£000 

5.1.2 People 20,237 

5.1.2 Places 14,663 

5.1.2 Resources 7,334 

5.1.3 Covid Expenditure 724 

5.1.3 Covid Grant Income (724) 

 Sub-Total Directorate budgets 42,234 

5.1.4 Pay Inflation contingency 100 

5.1.5 Needs management 274 

 Sub-Total Contingencies & Corporate Savings 374 

 Net cost of services 42,608 

5.1.6 Appropriations (2,478) 

5.1.7 Capital financing costs 1,647 

5.1.8 Interest income (240) 

  Sub-Total Capital (1,071) 

 Total Net Spending 41,537 

 Funding  (39,140) 

5.1.9 Contribution from Earmarked Reserves (1,288) 

 Use of General Fund reserves 1,109 

5.1.2 The Directorate budgets are detailed by functional areas in Appendices 4 
to 6. The budgets include savings and pressures.  

5.1.3 As detailed in 3.2.13 the Council has received additional grant to respond to 
the pandemic  

5.1.4 The budget includes a contingency for pay changes (pay inflation, 
adjustment, re-grades, staff opting in to pension fund etc).  The Government 
has indicated the public sector with some exceptions will get a pay freeze 
(except for those earning under £24,000) but this is subject to a national 
negotiation.  The Council has set aside £100k to deal with the outcome of 
the negotiation. 

5.1.5 The budget includes a small contingency of £274k for social care needs 
management. This is the same approach as per the prior and reflects the 
fact that there is no growth built into the budget for demographic growth.   

5.1.6 The appropriations figure represents adjustments that the Council is 

150



required to make to its revenue position that are specified by statutory 
provisions and any other minor adjustments. It includes the reversal of the 
annual charge for depreciation on the Council's assets which is shown in 
Directorate budgets.   

5.1.7 Capital financing costs of £1.647m comprise interest costs on loans of 
£1.033m and Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) costs of £614k.  MRP is a 
statutory charge to the revenue account which covers the repayment of debt 
(see 6.3).   

5.1.8 Interest income reflects interest earned on investments.  This has 
decreased by £60k from 20/21 due to the economic impact of the pandemic. 

5.1.9 Earmarked reserves are used as a means of building up funds to meet 
known or predicted liabilities. Their establishment and use is subject to 
Council approval and movements are reported as part of the quarterly 
financial monitoring reports. The 21/22 budget uses over £1.288m of 
earmarked reserves – mainly £848k of Covid Funding held in reserves, 
£200k from the social care reserves to support pressures and £175k from 
the pressure reserve to support the major procurement project costs.  A list 
of earmarked reserves is given in Appendix 3. 

5.2 The change from 20/21 

5.2.1 The Council’s revenue budget is £2.9m (6.9%) higher than the comparable 
budget for 20/21. The build-up of the budget is explained below.   
 

 

5.2.2 The Council’s restated budget for 20/21 is £39.3m (this is explained in 
Appendix 2).   

 

 

Restated Budget 
2020/21

Demand Pressures

Non Demand 
Pressures

Lost Income

Inflation
Savings

Proposed 
Budget …

 £35,000,000

 £36,000,000

 £37,000,000

 £38,000,000

 £39,000,000

 £40,000,000

 £41,000,000

 £42,000,000

 £43,000,000

 £44,000,000

Budget Movement

151



 

5.3 The budget process – the development of the revenue budget 

Impact of Covid-19 

5.3.1 At the time of writing this report, the Council is still responding to and 
impacted by the pandemic.  With a vaccination programme imminent but 
likely to be rolled out over a period of at least 9 months, the impacts of the 
pandemic will continue to be felt into 21/22 and possibly beyond.   

5.3.2 The budget for 21/22 includes grant funding received in 20/21 (£848k) which 
has been carried forward into 21/22 to deal with the following issues arising 
from the pandemic: 

5.3.3 Leisure - £100k – the Council’s leisure provider will receive an additional 
£100k from the Council to compensate them for loss of income arising from 
closure and periods of lower utilisation; 

5.3.4 Waste - c£400k – the Council has extended existing contracts for waste 
management rather than undertake a full tendering exercise with resources 
redeployed on the pandemic response.  The costs of the extension are 
beyond current contractual rates (report 143/2020); 

5.3.5 Fee income - £288k – due to the pandemic the demand for services, e.g. car 
parking, is expected to be lower. 

5.3.6 Staffing Pressures – there is expected to be a need to source additional staff 
to support the Councils response. 

5.3.7 The budget also includes a further £724k, from government grant, to support 
Covid-19 work in 21/22.  This is shown as a zero net budget in the Revenue 
Account.  It is assumed this funding will support new activity rather than 
existing costs, given the uncertainty about the spread of the virus. 

5.3.8 Beyond the above issues, the budget does not include specific provisions to 
deal with pandemic response or further impacts.  However, if funding 
received in 20/21 has not all been expended by the end of 20/21 then it will 
be used to fund any ongoing costs from existing pandemic work that 
continue into 21/22 thereby reducing any impact on the General Fund.   In 
future updates, the Director will report the position so Members are aware. 

5.3.9 If pandemic funding has been expended, is insufficient to cover ongoing 
costs or further Government funding is not available, then Officers will seek 
approval of a change to the budget through Cabinet and/or Council in the 
usual way. 

  Budget process 

5.3.10 The starting point is the restated 2020/21 budget which is updated for any 
approved changes and adjustments as reported in Quarterly Finance 
reports.  Minor adjustments are made to individual budgets as part of the 

152



normal annual budget process. These include updating for the pay 
settlement, inflation, adjustments and removing one off budgets.  Any 
savings and pressures are also factored in. 

5.3.11 The Council’s restated budget for 20/21 is £39.3m.  The budget for 21/22 
builds on the 20/21 budget and includes the following changes: 

 Pressures totalling £2.433m (5.5) 

 Savings of £0.386m (5.4) 

 Inflation pressures of £0.846m account for general inflation on 
good/services, a 1% increase in pension costs and other pay 
adjustments. 

5.3.12 The 21/22 budget is therefore £42.2m. 

5.4 Savings  

5.4.1 The 21/21 budget already includes total savings c£386k of which all are 
recurring.  Savings are detailed in Appendices 4-6.  None have a front line 
impact. 

5.5 Pressures – additional costs 

5.5.1 Service pressures may arise from increased demand from service users, 
legislative changes that place additional duties or responsibilities on the 
Council or from withdrawn funding which means the General Fund has to 
pay for services previously funded through other income e.g. grant.  

5.5.2 The 21/22 budget includes total new spending of c£2.433m of which 
£0.712m pertains to demand, £1.492m is about investing in services and 
£0.228m is due to reducing income levels. Pressures are detailed in 
Appendices 4-6. 

5.6 Reserves and Estimates - robustness 

5.6.1 Best practice requires me to identify any risks associated with the budget, 
and section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires me to report on 
the adequacy of reserves and the robustness of estimates.  

5.6.2 The most substantial risks in 21/22 pertain to demand led budgets and in 
particular social care and the impact of Covid-19.  The Council has prudently 
assumed that new Covid-19 grant will fund new activity or pressures. There 
is also some contingency included in the budget for demand led areas.  It is 
my view that estimates made in the plan are prudent. 

5.6.3  In the medium term, the risks to the budget strategy arise from the risks 
detailed in 3.3 but can be summarised as follows. 

 non-identification and delivery of future savings;  

153



 unidentified and uncontrollable pressures; and 

 loss of future resources, particularly in respect of changes to business 
rates, government funding or council tax. 

5.6.4 The risk of economic downturn, nationally or locally, is a distinct possibility 
as noted in the risk commentary in 3.3. This could result in further significant 
reductions in funding, falling business rate income, and increased cost of 
Council Tax reductions for tax payers on low incomes. It could also lead to a 
growing demand for Council support and services and an increase in bad 
debts.  

5.6.5 In 20/21, it was my view that the Council’s financial resilience was adequate.  
In light of Covid-19 and the current economic climate, my view is that the 
position is deteriorating and requires immediate action. In the short term 
(up to 2 years), the Council can manage the above risks as: 

 It has a good level of earmarked and General Fund reserves (see para 
3.5); 

 The Council is largely self-sufficient and its high dependency on 
Council tax leaves it less vulnerable to further government reductions 
but only if Members raise council tax to the maximum allowable; 

 Budget management is sound; and 

 Action must be taken in year to reduce expenditure. 

5.6.6 Subject to the above comments, I believe the Council’s general and 
earmarked reserves to be adequate in the short term. I also believe 
estimates made in preparing the budget are robust based on information 
available.  

  

154



6 CAPITAL PROGRAMME  

6.1 Overall Programme – existing and new projects 

6.1.1 The Capital Programme is developed around specific projects. The 
programme comprises four strands: 

 Approved projects: capital projects already approved that will span 
across more than one financial year (any projects already approved 
which are not yet completed will continue into 2021/22)  

 Ring Fenced Grants: These projects will automatically be included in 
the existing capital programme.(e.g. disabled facilities grants);  

 Non Ring Fenced Grants: New projects to be approved in the budget 
or in-year; and 

 Funding available but not yet allocated. 

6.1.2 The table below is an overview of the position for 2021/22.  Projects that 
make up the total £28.945m are listed in Appendix 8.   

 

Capital Programme 

Budget 

Approved 

to Date 

New 

Capital 

Projects 

Budget 

2021/22 

£000 £000 £000 

Strategic Aims and Priorities 10,110 249 10,359 

Commercialisation 10,470 0 10,470 

Asset Management Requirements 8,116 0 8,116 

Total Projects 28,696  249 28,945 
 

Financed By 

Grant (15,320) (249) (15,569) 

Prudential Borrowing (11,469) 0 (11,469) 

Capital Receipts (348) 0 (348) 

RCCO (318) 0 (318) 

Developers Contributions (1,241) 0 (1,241) 

Total Budget Funding (28,696) (249) (28,945) 

 

6.2 Approved projects – approved projects continuing into 2021/22 

6.2.1 Some of the capital projects will span across more than one financial year. 
Any projects already approved which are not yet completed will continue into 
2021/22. The estimated spend in 2021/22 will depend primarily on the 
outturn (the amount spent) for 2020/21. 

6.3 Approved projects – projects delivered with ring fenced funding 

6.3.1 The Council receives Devolved Formula Capital funds which is passported to 

155



maintained schools to help them support the capital needs of their assets. 
Schools will decide what projects to fund. 

6.3.2 For the Disabled Facilities grant which is part of the Better Care Fund, the 
full allocation is used to help residents remain in their home and be 
independent. 

6.4 Projects in pipeline – to be submitted for approval in due course 

6.4.1 In a number of areas work is ongoing and proposals for new projects being 
developed.  In these areas, Cabinet reports are expected in 2021/22. 
Funding for any future projects will be funded in full or in part from the 
unallocated funding (set out in 7.5 below).  Areas under review include: 

 Highways – the spending review indicated £1.7bn in 2021/22 for local 
roads and upgrades to tackle potholes, relieve congestion and boost 
connectivity. This includes £500m for the pothole fund and £310m for 
upgrades to larger roads. The Council allocation is £1.5m and is included 
within the unallocated table in 7.5.1 until a paper is presented to Cabinet 
for approval. 

 School Places – the requirements for secondary school expansion is 
under review with a report expected to be presented to Council in 
February. 

 Transport – use of the Integrated Transport funding will be presented in 
early 2021. 

6.5 Unallocated Funding (funding available) and potential future projects 

6.5.1 Currently the Council is holding capital funds that have not yet been 
committed to a project. A breakdown of the funds held is shown in the table 
below. Any future capital projects highlighted in 6.4.1 will be funded from the 
unallocated funding below. 

Unallocated Funding Index 

Estimated 

Closing 

Balance 

31/03/21 

Grant 

Awarded/ 

Receipts 

expected  

Capital 

funding for 

ring fenced 

budget 

Estimated 

Closing 

Balance 

2021/22 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Devolved Formula Capital  (7) (11) 11 (7) 

Better Care Fund (BCF)  0 (238) 238 0 

Basic Needs 6.5.7 0 (1,689) 0 (1,689) 

Adult Social Care – Misc 6.5.2 (219) 0 0 (219) 

Schools Capital 

Maintenance 

6.5.4 (1,227) (154) 0 (1,381) 

Highways Capital 

Maintenance 

6.5.5 0 (1,535) 0 (1,535) 

156



Unallocated Funding Index 

Estimated 

Closing 

Balance 

31/03/21 

Grant 

Awarded/ 

Receipts 

expected  

Capital 

funding for 

ring fenced 

budget 

Estimated 

Closing 

Balance 

2021/22 

Integrated Transport 6.5.6 (1,109) 0 0 (1,109) 

Highways – Misc 6.5.2 (78) 0 0 (78) 

Misc Grant 6.5.2 (38) 0 0 (38) 

Developers Contribution 6.5.3 (7,832) (400) 0 (8,232) 

Capital Receipts  (1,269) (100) 0 (1,369) 

Estimated Unallocated 

Funding 

 (11,779) (4,127) 249 (15,657) 

6.5.2 Misc Grant Funding (Adult Social Care, Highways and Misc Grants) 
Unallocated funding (£335k) representing various balances from historic 
funding that the council no longer receives. This funding is not ring fenced. 

6.5.3 Developers Contribution – Unallocated funding (£8.232) representing the 
expected balance as below:  

 Section 106/ CIL – Unallocated funding (£5.020m) representing the 
expected holding balance. Projects will be developed to deal with 
infrastructure demands from new/existing developments. Expenditure 
must be spent on the specific details within the individual agreements 
or on items within the CIL123 infrastructure list. The CIL 123 list will be 
reviewed to reflect the councils new Local Plan. 

 Oakham North Agreement – Unallocated funding (£3.213m) 
representing the expected holding balance. The Council has flexibility 
on how this funding is used to support the development. 

6.5.4 Schools Capital Maintenance – Unallocated funding (£1.381m) is ring-fenced 
and should be allocated to schools and children's centres based on the 
provision of  sufficient numbers of school places and surplus place removal, 
also the repair, improvement and replacement of existing school buildings. 

6.5.5 Highway Capital Maintenance – Unallocated grant funding (£1.535m) is 
being held to fund future highways projects which is not ring-fenced 
however, future allocations could be affected if the funding was not spent on 
improving transport infrastructure within the County.  

6.5.6 Integrated Transport - Unallocated Grant Funding (£1.109m) - The 
integrated transport block funding provides support for small transport capital 
improvement schemes. A number of schemes have already been agreed. 
This funding is not ring fenced however, future allocations could be affected 
if the funding was not spent on transport improvement schemes 

6.5.7 Basic Needs Funding – Unallocated Grant Funding (£1.689m) is ring fenced 
and will help Rutland County Council to fulfil their duties in ensuring there 
are enough schools places for children in their local area. 

157



 

Page 36 of 47 
 

7 TREASURY MANAGEMENT  

7.1 Overview 

7.1.1 At the time of approving the budget, the Council will approve the Treasury 
Management Strategy and Capital Investment Strategy.  The implications of 
these strategies (capital plans, investment returns and borrowing changes) 
are reflected in the draft budget. 

7.2 Prudential indicators – indicators to be approved 

7.2.1 Local authority capital expenditure is based on a system of self-regulation, 
based upon a code of practice (the “prudential code”). 

7.2.2 Council complies with the code of practice, which requires us to agree a set 
of indicators to demonstrate that any borrowing is affordable, sustainable 
and prudent.  To comply with the code, the Council must approve the 
indicators at the same time as it agrees the budget.  The indicators including 
the limit on total borrowing are approved through the Treasury Management 
Strategy, taken separately to this report. 

7.3 Minimum Revenue provision – method of calculation 

7.3.1 By law, the Council is required to charge to its budget each year an amount 
for the repayment of debt.  This is known as “minimum revenue provision” 
(MRP).   

7.3.2 MHCLG Guidance issued requires full Council to approve an MRP 
Statement in advance of each year. Council will be asked to approve the 
MRP Statement as part of the Treasury Management Strategy.   

 

  

158



8 SCHOOL FUNDING  

8.1 Overview – How school funding works 

8.1.1 Schools are funded from ring fenced grants, the most notable of which is the 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). This funding cannot be used for any other 
Council function, and essentially schools operate within their own fund with any 
under or over expenditure being taken forward into future years. 

8.1.2 The Government has announced indicative allocations for the Schools, High 
Needs and Central Schools Service blocks for 2021/22. 

8.1.3 As in previous years, the Council is able to transfer 0.5% of the Schools block 
allocation to the High Needs block with the agreement of the Schools Forum. Due 
to the pressures being experienced by the High Needs budget, Forum has agreed 
to this transfer for 2021/22. This transfer will equate to approximately £0.135m 
being transferred between blocks 

8.1.4 A local authority must engage in open and transparent consultation with all 
maintained schools and academies in the area, as well as with its schools forum 
about any proposed changes to the local funding formula including the method, 
principles and rules adopted. Whilst consultation must take place, the local 
authority is responsible for making the final decisions on the formula. In reality, the 
options are limited. 

8.1.5 Schools have reserves they can call on, and the Council will work closely with any 
maintained school that is experiencing financial difficulty to draw up a recovery 
plan. 

8.2 Allocations – funding received and allocated 

DSG 

8.2.1 The Schools Block allocation for Rutland is £27.579m compared to 2020/21 of 
£25.261m (an increase of £2.318m) equating to an increase of 9.1%. The National 
Funding Formula sets the Primary and Secondary units of funding for each 
authority based on the previous years census data and these are used to calculate 
the funding received by the authority for the following year.  

8.2.2 The two units of funding for Rutland County Council for 2020/21 have been set as 
follows: 

 Primary Unit of Funding is £4,376.23 (£4,047.47 in 2020/21) 

 Secondary Unit of Funding is £5,415.00 (£5,000.96 in 2020/21) 

8.2.3 The High Needs block allocation for 2021/22 is £4.377m compared to 2020/21 of 
£4.248m (an increase of £0.129m) equating to an increase of 3%. This funding 
has been adjusted for the latest information on the numbers of pupils being 
transferred between authorities. 

8.2.4 The current level of spending on high needs is projected to be £4.6m in 2020/21, 
and continues to rise, and therefore the allocation for 2021/22 is likely to be 
insufficient to cover costs next year. The transfer of 0.5% from the schools block 

159



(approximately £0.135m) is for one year only and will automatically transfer back 
to the schools block the following year.   

8.2.5 The Council is likely to be carrying a DSG deficit of c£700k by the end of March 
2021 and will need to produce a Recovery Plan for the DfE which addresses this 
position by June 2020.  The Government has made it clear that the deficit is not 
the Council’s to underwrite but has not explained how the deficit will be cleared if it 
cannot be recovered.  Recouping this deficit will be a significant challenge without 
additional funding and may take some years to recover if it can be recovered at all. 

8.2.6 The Early Years block allocation for 2021/22 has been provisionally set as 
£1.832m based on an increase rate for 2 year old funding of £5.36 (£5.28 
2020/21) and funding for 3 and 4 year olds of £4.48 (£4.48 2020/21). The 
individual rates paid over to nurseries has been agreed as £5.36 for 2 year olds 
and £4.25 for 3 and four year olds. 

8.2.7 The Central School Services block allocation is £0.174m for 2021/22 a slight 
increase (£0.009m) from the allocation in 2020/21. The Central School Services 
block pays for the following services: 

 Admissions Services; 

 Nationally agreed copyright licence fees; and 

 The local authority statutory responsibilities (previously covered by the 
Education Services Grant) e.g. be strategic lead for education of children 
and young people. 

Pupil Premium Grant (PPG) 

The DfE have published the pupil premium rates for 2021/22: 

 Primary disadvantaged pupil premium is £1,345 per pupil, no change from 
2020/21; 

 Secondary disadvantaged pupil premium is £955 per pupil, no change from 
2020/21; 

 Children Looked after pupil premium is expected to increase to £2,345 per 
pupil, no change from 2020/21; 

 Children no longer looked after due to adoption, special guardianship order 
etc is £2,345 per pupil, no change from 2020/21; and 

 Service children pupil premium is £310 per pupil. 

Universal Infant Free School Meals (UIFSM) 

From September 2014 every infant (key stage1) pupil is entitled to a free school 
meal. This is funded by an additional specific grant amounting to £450 per pupil.  

9 CONSULTATION 

9.1 The Council is required to consult on the budget as set out in Section 13 below 

160



and has met those requirements.  Consultation for 21/22 included: 

 A briefing to all members of Council on 6th January; 

 Consideration by each of the Scrutiny Panels at special meetings in January; 

 A presentation of the budget to Parishes in January; and 

 Consultation online, static displays at libraries and publicity through the local 
print and broadcast media from 13th January to 29th January. 

9.2 Consultation focused on the following questions: 

9.2.1 Do you understand the sources of income which the Council receives and the split 
between Council tax and government grants?  179 people responded.  96% said 
yes. 

9.2.2 Do you understand why we are proposing to raise council tax this year?  167 
people responded.  90% said yes. 

9.2.3 How much do you now feel you understand about why the council must make total 
savings of almost £3m by 2024/25?  185 people responded.  8% said they were 
unsure.  The remainder were split between having a full understanding and some 
understanding. 

9.2.4 Respondents were asked if they had any specific ideas about how the council can 
save money or generate additional income to protect services.  118 people 
responded.  The full list of responses is on the website. Comments included: 

 The increase in population was seen as a problem by a few with calls made 
for the St Georges development to be abandoned.  One could not 
understand how the extra council tax from housing growth was necessary 
alongside tax rises.  a similar theme, there was call for Anglian Water to pay 
towards Council services as it was felt that visitors to Rutland water cause 
additional work on road maintenance for example. 

 Property issues were cited by a few respondents with one saying there was 
no need for Catmose and that staff could continue to work from home or 
from a different site.  Another added that the Council should look to sell off 
its property assets.  

 There were a few calls for staff salaries to be cut, or no pay rises awarded 
with one suggesting we withdraw the final salary pension scheme.  The level 
of staffing was also cited by some as too high with not all posts necessary 
and staff not having enough to do. 

 The Council’s size was seen an issue by a few with calls for us to work more 
with neighbours and partners with one respondent going as far as to suggest 
we should outsource a lot of our infrastructure to get economies of scale. 

 There were various calls for the Council to stop non-essential services and 
do only what is mandatory or statutory.  One respondent said we should look 
at the budget as if a Section 114 had been issued.  Another said we should 

161



list the top 10 spending areas and do some sort of voting of whether to 
increase spend or make savings. 

 Various suggestions were made for efficiencies/stopping services including a 
few for removing underutilised bus services, one respondent said close the 
libraries whilst another said stop the mobile library, turning off the street 
lights at night was suggested by another.  Stop mowing road verges a few 
times a year was quoted as another as unnecessary.  Staffing at North 
Luffenham Civic Amenity site was also seen as poorly managed. 

 A lot of respondents suggested we continued lobbying Government for more 
funding.  There was disappointment that our case had not been heard but 
that we should continue to pursue this – one respondent described the 
differential in government funding between councils as excessive.  One 
person said lack of government funding was an excuse for tax rises. 

 Various income generation ideas were made including a local lottery for local 
projects, increasing the use of sponsorship, taxing local supermarkets and 
encouraging local businesses like takeaways to contribute towards the cost 
of litter picking.  One said that the Castle and Museum were great assets 
and that more income could be generated from these. 

 A few respondents referenced the amount spent on social care as being an 
area where we should look at what is spent with one suggesting more 
integration with the NHS would stop duplication.  Another said we should 
reduce support for the elderly or ask them to pay more. 

 A few respondents said we should do more to combat council tax fraud and 
in particular clamp down on the number of single person discounts.  Another 
said we should look to charge more on Band D properties and above. 

 A couple of respondents said that reviving the town centre and attracting 
new business (not charity shops) might help. 

 Two respondents believed that the use of volunteers would help reduce 
costs and quoted work during the pandemic as an example of community 
spirit.  Another said that the community was willing to get involved. 

9.2.5 We also asked whether people have any other comments on the budget. There 
were 102 responses.  Many of the comments echoed the themes quoted above.  
Other comments included: 

 Many disagree with the proposals to increase council tax at all given 
economic conditions and inflation being low.  There were various comments 
that the Council was ‘out of touch’ with what is happening nationally.  Some 
respondents referenced the fact that pensions are fixed and that even a 3% 
rise would be challenging to meet.  Others felt that as some services had 
been reduced during the pandemic, the Council should not be raising council 
tax. 

 Fewer said they were supportive of council tax rises and that the Council 
was doing a good job in difficult circumstances. 

162



 Many made comments about the council tax system not working – one said 
local taxes should be linked to income/age/property size, another said the 
review of tax bands would help.  Some understood we have one of the 
highest council tax levels in the country, another wanted more information on 
the comparative levels. 

9.3 Despite efforts made by the Council, there are still a minority of residents who 
have a limited understanding of the Council, what it does or what we control and 
do not control.  Work on the Rutland Offer (a list of everything the Council does) 
will help this and the Future Rutland Conversation will give the Council an 
opportunity to explore aspirations and priorities with residents further.   

9.4 All responses to the consultation can be found via the link below: 

https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-council/contacts-facts-and-figures/council-
spending/annual-budget/ 

10 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS  

10.1 There are four key areas where the Council has choices: revenue 
savings/pressures, the capital programme, council tax funding and reserve levels.  
These are considered separately. 

10.2 Revenue savings/pressures 

10.2.1 Option 1 - In terms of revenue savings/pressures Members could approve all 
savings/pressures for consultation – this is the recommended option. Where 
savings have been put forward Officers are of the view that these are achievable 
without impacting on front line services. The budget includes service pressures 
most of which arise from a need to respond to statutory requirements and/or 
unavoidable circumstances such as demand and the need to make in year 
savings.   

10.2.2 Option 2 - Members could reject all savings/pressures – this would mean that in 
those areas where savings have been put forward officers would revert back to 
original spending plans. In light of the future funding outlook this is not advisable. 
In terms of pressures, then where these are included to respond to statutory 
requirements, Officers would need to find alternative savings either before the 
budget was set or in-year; otherwise it is likely that the budget would be overspent.  
The rejection of all proposals is not recommended. 

10.2.3 Option 3 - Members could approve savings/pressures with amendments.  
Members would need to be mindful of the financial implications of doing this on the 
overall financial position. 

10.3 Capital programme 

10.3.1 The capital programme for 21/22 includes projects already approved by 
Cabinet/Council.  Approvals for projects to be included in the programme will be 
sought in separate reports. 

10.4 Funding  

10.4.1 The MTFP includes funding assumptions. The majority are based on the 

163

https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.rutland.gov.uk%2Fmy-council%2Fcontacts-facts-and-figures%2Fcouncil-spending%2Fannual-budget%2F&data=04%7C01%7Csdrocca%40Rutland.gov.uk%7C0f9c3c06470f45c7b34508d8c9dd9be8%7C60a080bbbc0f4d9399c183748e10674d%7C1%7C0%7C637481300916665893%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=Oz7xW7cF8AR6ElHLKm%2BOHuH%2B9Jo1pVgDrT3U7RTSfSY%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.rutland.gov.uk%2Fmy-council%2Fcontacts-facts-and-figures%2Fcouncil-spending%2Fannual-budget%2F&data=04%7C01%7Csdrocca%40Rutland.gov.uk%7C0f9c3c06470f45c7b34508d8c9dd9be8%7C60a080bbbc0f4d9399c183748e10674d%7C1%7C0%7C637481300916665893%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=Oz7xW7cF8AR6ElHLKm%2BOHuH%2B9Jo1pVgDrT3U7RTSfSY%3D&reserved=0


professional judgement of officers taking into consideration the settlement 
allocation and all other available information. The one key funding decision that 
Full Council has to make is around Council tax levels. 

10.4.2 The draft budget assumes a 2% Council Tax increase with a further 1% precept 
for Adult Social Care effectively giving a rise of 3%.  The impact of not making this 
decision is set out in Section 4.  Given the financial gap already projected, Council 
is advised to consider the risks highlighted by the Section 151 Officer and the 
comments made in 2.1.12.  

10.5 Reserve levels 

10.5.1 As the Councils Section 151 Officer, I recommending that the minimum General 
Fund reserve level is increased to £3m.  More detail is given in Section 3.5.  
Members could choose to set the recommended level at a different rate. 

10.5.2 In terms of earmarked reserves, the Council is expecting to be holding c£4.5m by 
March 2021.  The budget proposes creating a Reserve to deal with the cost of Ash 
dieback (£500k). Council could choose to take an alternative course of action. 

11 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 The draft budget as presented relies on a contribution from the General Fund and 
earmarked reserves totalling £2.6m. 

12 LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS  

12.1 The Council is on course to agree its budget and set its Council Tax for 2021/22 
within the timetable required by statute and the constitution as per the table below. 

Requirement Status 

Statutory requirements under Local 
Government Finance Act 1992: 

 

To levy and collect council tax To be approved at Council in February 
2021 

To calculate budget requirements and 
levels of council tax 

To be approved at Council in February 
2021 

To consult representatives of persons 
subject to non-domestic rates about 
proposals for expenditure 

To be presented at a Business event 
in February 

To approve the budget and set Council 
Tax by 11th March in each year 

To be approved at Council in February 
2021 

The Council is also required by the 
Local Authorities (Funds)(England) 
Regulations 1992 in exercise of the 
powers under section 99(3) of the Local 

Section 4 

164



Requirement Status 

Government Finance Act 1988, to 
make an estimate on 15 January of the 
amount of the deficit or surplus on the 
Collection Fund as at 31st March 2018.  
This report sets out an estimated figure. 

Statutory requirements under Local 
Government Act 2003: 

 

Under section 25 of the Local 
Government Act 2003 the Section 151 
Officer is required to report to the 
Council on the robustness of the 
estimates made for the purpose of 
setting the Council Tax and the 
adequacy of the proposed financial 
reserves. 

Section 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 

12.2 As Members will be setting the budget in advance of the decision on Council Tax, 
Council is being asked to Delegates authority to the s151 Officer to make any 
necessary changes to the budget arising from the Council tax decision and/or any 
additional funding received.  Should Members not approve a 3% tax rise, the s151 
Officer will then adjust the budget accordingly. 

13 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA) 

13.1 In the exercise of its functions, the Council must have due regard to the Council’s 
duty to eliminate discrimination, to advance equality of opportunity for protected 
groups and to foster good relations between protected groups and others.   

13.2 The Council has completed Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) screening for all 
savings proposals and for the proposed tax increase.  There are no proposals or 
decisions on specific courses of action that could have an impact on different 
groups of people and therefore full EIAs are not required. Some of the analysis 
relating to the Council tax increase is shown below: 

Proposal  

A Band D Council Tax increase of 3%, including the Adult Social Care 
Precept of 1% taking Band D Council Tax from £1,773.21 to £1,826.41 
(Rutland County Council only). This proposal is linked to one aspect of 
local government funding where the Council has some discretion to raise 
additional funds by increases to Council Tax. However there are Council 
Tax rules in place that limit the extent of any Council Tax increases before 
a referendum is required, the limit for 2021/22 is 4.99%.  

Initial impact 

165



This increase will be applied to all bands of council tax. This will impact on 
all residents who are eligible to pay Council Tax.  The average increase 
cost per week on a Band D property is £1.02. 

Since Council Tax is applicable to all properties it is not considered that 
the increase targets any one particular group; rather it is an increase that 
is applied across the board. At the same time because the increase is 
applied to all properties it is not possible to exempt any particular groups. 
By increasing Council tax, the Council is able to prevent further reductions 
in services to local residents and in so doing continue can mitigate adverse 
impacts facing individual households.   

Actions take to mitigate impact 

The risk is mitigated through various support offered:  Local Council Tax 
Support, a Discretionary Fund and Advice. 

The Council operates a Local Council Tax Support scheme which offers up 
to 75% discount for those on low incomes – those that are eligible for the 
full discount will see an increase of just 26p per week. 

On top of the 75% discount, the Council continues to offer further support 
to those who can demonstrate financial hardship.  It has funds of £20k set 
aside and is prepared to increase this amount should the need arise. 

The Council also provides some budgeting and financial advice and has a 
contract with Citizens Advice Rutland to provide more specialist support if 
needed.  

The Council will be seeking views on the Council tax increase proposal as 
part of its budget. 

 

14 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  

14.1 There are no community safety implications. 

15 DATA PROTECTION 

15.1 A Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) has not been completed because 
there are no risks/issues to the rights and freedoms of natural persons. 

16 HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS  

16.1 There are no health and wellbeing implications. 

17 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

17.1 The Council is required to set a balanced budget and agree the level of Council 
tax for 21/22.   

17.2 The draft budget for consultation is affordable within the context of the MTFP but 

166



relies on a significant contribution from reserves which is not sustainable in the 
medium term. 

18 BACKGROUND PAPERS   

18.1 There are no additional background papers to the report. 

19 APPENDICES  

NB:  ONLY APPENDX 1 IS INCLUDED IN THIS REPORT.  OTHER 
APPENDICES REMAIN UNCHANGED FROM THE DRAFT BUDGET REPORT 
(08/2021) 

Appendix 1  Medium Term Financial Plan and assumptions 
Appendix 2  Restated budget 
Appendix 3  Earmarked Reserves 
Appendix 4.1  People Directorate – functional analysis 
Appendix 4.2   People Directorate – subjective analysis  
Appendix 5.1 Places Directorate – functional analysis 

  Appendix 5.2 Places Directorate – subjective analysis 
Appendix 6.1  Resources Directorate – functional analysis 
Appendix 6.2   Resources Directorate – subjective analysis 
Appendix 7  Capital 

167



Appendix 1 – Medium Term Financial Plan 

 
2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28  
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

People 20,236,900 22,023,370 22,688,639 23,372,604 24,076,442 24,800,644 25,548,822 

Places 14,662,700 14,577,197 14,996,175 15,427,341 15,872,355 16,329,592 16,800,635 

Resources 7,334,400 7,392,394 7,520,457 7,651,494 7,785,928 7,922,885 8,062,889 

Covid Cost 724,436 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Covid Grants (724,436) 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Pay Inflation Contingency 100,000 452,400 810,400 1,174,700 1,545,500 1,923,000 2,307,400 

Housing growth costs 0 146,300 292,600 438,900 585,200 731,500 877,800 

Needs Management 273,900 555,400 844,800 1,142,200 1,448,000 1,762,300 2,085,400 

Net Cost of Services 42,607,900 45,147,061 47,153,071 49,207,239 51,313,425 53,469,921 55,682,946 

Capital financing and related 
items 

(1,071,357) (1,071,357) (1,071,357) (1,071,357) (1,071,357) (1,071,357) (1,071,357) 

Net spending 41,536,543 44,075,704 46,081,714 48,135,882 50,242,068 52,398,564 54,611,589 

Resources               

Government funding subtotal (10,715,251) (11,156,241) (11,296,586) (11,720,279) (12,145,049) (12,145,049) (12,145,049) 

Council Tax/Social care 
precept 

(28,585,226) (29,975,698) (31,431,622) (33,050,886) (34,749,328) (36,530,688) (38,398,880) 

Collection fund 
Deficit/(Surplus) 

160,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total available Resources (39,140,477) (41,131,939) (42,728,208) (44,771,165) (46,894,377) (48,675,737) (50,543,929) 

Earmarked Reserve (1,287,600) (230,000) (230,000) 0 0 0 0 

Use of General Fund 
Balances 

1,108,466 2,713,765 3,123,507 3,364,717 3,347,691 3,722,827 4,067,660 

Balance brought forward (9,181,899) (8,073,433) (5,359,668) (2,236,162) 1,128,555 4,476,246 8,199,073 

Balance carried forward (8,073,433) (5,359,668) (2,236,162) 1,128,555 4,476,246 8,199,073 12,266,733 

Earmarked Reserve Balance 
B/Fwd 

(5,724,469) (4,471,469) (4,241,469) (4,011,469) (4,011,469) (4,011,469) (4,011,469) 

Earmarked Reserve 
Balance C/Fwd 

(4,471,469) (4,241,469) (4,011,469) (4,011,469) (4,011,469) (4,011,469) (4,011,469) 

*Includes £34,600 from section 106 not included within the reserve balances 

168



 

169



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report No: 35/2021 
PUBLIC REPORT 

CABINET 

16th February 2021 

SCHOOLS’ CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

Report of the Director of Children’s Services (Interim)  

Strategic Aim: Delivering sustainable development  

Key Decision: Yes Forward Plan Reference: FP/250920 

Exempt Information No 

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible: 

Mr D Wilby, Portfolio Holder for Lifelong Learning, 
Early Years, SEND, Inclusion, Safeguarding Children 
& Young People 

Contact Officer(s): Dawn Godfrey, Interim Director 
Children’s Services 

01572 758358 
dgodfrey@rutland.gov.uk 

 Robert Shore, Schools Capital 
Programme Manager 

01572 720985 
rshore@rutland.gov.uk 

Ward Councillors  

 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Cabinet: 

1. Approves the initiation of the Schools’ Capital Programme Project and the related 
documentation comprising Project Initiation Document (PID), Programme and Project 
Board Terms of Reference as attached at Appendices C, D and E 

2. Notes the contents of the of the Risk & Issues Log and associated Programme 
Timetable as attached at Appendix B 

3. Notes the budget available to support the projects, paragraph 7.1 

4. Recommends to Council the approval of the Schools’ Capital Programme and related 
documentation up to a maximum value of £5.5m 

5. Authorises the Interim Director for Children’s Services to commence the Schools’ 
Capital Programme and associated structures to enable the local authority to meet its 
statutory obligation to provide sufficient secondary schools places within Rutland.   

6. Delegates authority to the Interim Director for Children’s Services and Portfolio 
Holder for Lifelong Learning, Early Years, SEND, Inclusion, Safeguarding Children & 
Young People to enter into the funding agreement. 

  

171

Agenda Item 15

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS
http://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=300&Year=0


1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT   

1.1 To brief Cabinet on the Schools’ Capital Programme and agree project initiation to 
enable the local authority to meet its statutory obligation to provide sufficient 
secondary schools places within Rutland.  This will be achieved by expanding 
Catmose College, Oakham to deliver additional places through the development of 
an 8 Form Entry Secondary School. 

1.2 To gain Cabinet approval to recommend to Council the approval of the Schools’ 
Capital Programme project initiation up to a maximum value of £5.5m. 

2 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS 

2.1 Under the Education Act 1996 Section 14 the Local Authority has statutory functions 
in respect of provision of primary and secondary schools.  These include: 

 A local authority shall secure that sufficient schools for providing primary 
education and secondary education are available for their area. 

 A local authority in England shall exercise their functions under this section 
with a view to 

(a) securing diversity in the provision of schools, and 
(b) increasing opportunities for parental choice. 

The law requires the Local Authority to admit pupils irrespective of the Local 
Authority in which they live which means that preference cannot be made for 
Rutland residents, with admission to schools reflecting their own admission 
arrangements and oversubscription criteria. 

2.2 There is significant pressure at secondary level both now and in the future.  Cabinet 
approved the undertaking of a two-stage feasibility study for school expansion 
across all the secondary provision in Rutland in February 2020.  RCC commissioned 
NPS Groupi (NPS) to complete this study and the work was comprised of two 
stages: 

 Stage 1 study examining possibilities for expansion at the three Rutland 
Secondary school sites 

 Stage 2 study scoping options for the preferred Secondary site 

2.3 Cabinet received the Stage 1 study (report 93/2020) on 31 July 2020 and approved 
the need to progress to the Stage Two Feasibility Study for school expansion at the 
preferred site of Catmose College, Oakham.  

2.4 The Stage Two Feasibility Study has been completed, which identified Catmose 
College as the favoured site because of the current conditions of the existing 
modern new-build school and this would consolidate the investment that has already 
been made in recent extensions on the site, with fewer potential planning constraints 
than at the other two secondary school sites.   

2.5 The site is centrally located within the County which is reflected in most admissions 
for this school being from Rutland families and would therefore more readily address 
Rutland’s pupil place sufficiency need.  

172



2.6 The Stage 2 feasibility study identified two options for expansion at Catmose 
College, both utilising the area currently occupied by Brightways as well as a new 
build extension (Appendix A).  

2.7 Relocating Brightways from the Catmose College site frees space and is the only 
realistic option to provide the required expansion within the capital envelope 
available. The Brightways facility will be relocated to another site within the Council’s 
existing portfolio. Funding for this move will be drawn from the overall capital schools 
programme funds and form part of the project.  

2.8 The Catmose project enables the Brightways service to modernise and gives the 
service the ability to increase bespoke and personalised support packages.  This 
will increase access to exciting and engaging day opportunities for service users 
with a focus on early access to support and maximising independence and health 
and wellbeing away from the current building’s constraints. 

2.9 Expansion is required by September 2022.  Whilst it is possible for the Brightways 
area to be ready by this date, the new build will not be completed until 2023.  
However, this will still allow the College to expand to 8 form entry in September 2022 
for Year 7 as required. 

2.10 The overall capital available is £5.5m; this consists of a combination of basic needs 
funding and schools’ capital maintenance monies. The programme will be managed 
using RCC project management control methodologies to ensure that it comes in 
on budget, in scope and on time.   

3 KEY RISKS 

3.1 As per the Council’s agreed project management framework, this project was 
analysed against the risk matrix and it was deemed a Very High-Risk project.   

3.2 A risk, action and issues log has already been established to manage emerging 
risks/issues swiftly and ensure mitigation is in place (Appendix B).  This identifies 
the three key risks as being costs, delivery of additional places and the timeline for 
delivery: 

RISK MITIGATION 

Costs overrun - there is a 
risk that the site chosen to 
progress applies to RCC for 
additional funding (over that 
Granted) to manage any 
overspend. 

The Grant Covenant will set out the limits of the 
funding. This will not fully mitigate the risk of the 
situation arising but will clearly set out that no 
additional funds are available. 

Funding will be released in phases and only once 
each phase is satisfactorily completed. 

Legal agreement will cover this. 

The school site must be 
capable of delivering 
additional numbers within 
the agreed budget. 

Provision specification is in development and 
commitment to use the space to be built to deliver 
the provision to form part of the legal governance 
agreement. 

173



Risk that the programme is 
either delayed or negatively 
impacted.  

Project board to be established to ensure that 
expectations are clearly defined and delivered. 
Stage 2 report includes a Gantt chart which 
clearly shows completion of internal works in time 
to allow for 2022 intake and external works in time 
for 2023. This will allow us to have full 8FE as 
planned. 

 

3.3 The risks and issues log is overseen by the Schools’ Capital Programme Board and 
was updated at the programme board meeting on 13 January 2020. 

4 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

4.1 This project requires a full governance structure, a dedicated Programme Manager 
and approval by Council. 

4.2 A programme initiation document has been completed which outlines the full 
governance structure, project requirements, inter dependencies and budget 
constraints – Appendix C. 

4.3 Schools’ Capital Programme Board (Appendix D) has been established to 
manage and oversee the overall project objectives and ensure there is proper 
financial control.  The programme board includes the Leader, Portfolio Holder and 
is chaired by the project sponsor (Interim Director of Children’s Services).  The 
Board has agreed all project documentation and will report into the Strategic 
Management Team and to members through Cabinet and Scrutiny. This board will 
release the budget to pay for each stage e.g. to pay for upfront costs, after the 
design phase, and after each milestone in the construction contract. A key 
responsibility of the Board is to oversee the identified risks and issues and ensure 
the right level of mitigation is in place.   

4.4 As per the agreed governance process, the programme board will report to 
Cabinet at each major milestone stage for agreement to proceed to the next 
phase.  It is envisaged that these will include tender stage, design and build 
stages.  Cabinet will not be approving the detail of any design or build, but rather 
confirming they are satisfied that each phase has met its stated objectives within 
budget, with manageable risks so that it can move to the next phase. 

4.5 Catmose College (Campus) Project Board (Appendix E) - the existing Catmose 
Campus Board will also be the Project Team for the school expansion.  This ensures 
the right level of decision making and will report to the Rutland County Council 
Schools’ Capital Programme Board as required (through updates and exception 
reporting and presentation of risk and issues logs and management of the change 
control process).  This project team will effectively allocate and manage resources 
for the project including determining how to contract alongside the design and build. 
The project team will monitor the budget position and take responsibility for ensuring 
the Project remains in scope, on time and in budget.   

4.6 RCC Property and Finance representatives and the Programme Manager will be 
members of the Project Team, alongside the relevant portfolio holders.  

4.7 These governance arrangements will be underpinned by a legal agreement that 

174



defines the deliverables to the trust and the budget to complete.  

4.8 RCC Brightways Project Board – internal RCC project board to oversee 
relocation, consultation and costs.  This will be a sub-group of the Schools’ Capital 
Programme Board due to interdependency. 

5 CONSULTATION  

5.1 The Portfolio Holder and Interim Director have met with each of the respective head 
teachers who have all confirmed they are generally content with the conclusion of 
the feasibility studies.  

5.2 NPS also undertook consultation with Catmose College, Casterton College and 
Uppingham Community College as part of Phase 1 of the Feasibility Study. 

5.3 Catmose College Trustees Board have approved in outline the Terms of Reference 
for the project at their meeting on 8 October 2020.  

5.4 Consultation has taken place with the current users of Brightways services.  The 
outcome of this consultation was positive and the new day opportunities service is 
being co-designed to ensure it reflects the needs and aspirations of this group of 
adults. 

6 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

6.1 There are no other alternative options that are available within the cost envelope 
which would enable expansion of secondary places in Rutland Schools as confirmed 
by the Stage 1 feasibility study. 

7 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 The overall education capital funding available is £5.5m; this consists of a 
combination of Basic Needs Funding and other Schools’ Capital monies. 

7.2 The Basic Needs Funding is ring-fenced and must be spent on increasing places 
within Rutland schools. Pre 2012/13 Schools capital funding was received to 
improving school property. 

7.3 This project would utilise all the Basic Needs Funding that the Council is holding, 
but currently, there are no other demands on school places that require funding. 

7.4 Any capital relocation/adaptation costs of moving Brightways from the Catmose 
Campus because of this capital programme will be met from education capital 
funding. The Council has previously used Basic Need Funding as part of the 
Children’s Centre relocation to provide additional places at Catmose. 

7.5 Payment of monies shall be subject to the Schools’ Capital Programme Board 
approving all requests for the drawdown of instalments and will require a cost 
schedule from the Trust about how much and when it is required. 

 

8 LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS  

8.1 The Schools’ Capital Programme has been set up in line with the Council’s agreed 

175



project management framework as detailed above. 

8.2 A legal agreement between RCC and Catmose College Academy Trust will be 
enacted which defines the deliverables to the trust and sets out the total funding 
available to achieve the project aims.  This includes; procurement and tendering 
costs, project management capacity, construction on site (detailed in a contract of 
works) and fit out costs and which will include an industry standard contingency 
amount to cover set variations that are likely to occur over the life of the 
construction phase. The agreement is explicit that the amount of the monies 
available shall not be increased in the event of any overspend by the Recipient 
(Catmose College Academy Trust) in its delivery of the Project.  

8.3 Project management methodologies will be employed to manage costs and any 
proposed variation to the Programme including a Risk, Issue and Dependency log 
and a detailed change control process overseen by the Programme Board will be 
employed where matters of Cost, Scope, Time or Quality fall outside the 
contingency sums allowed. 

8.4 Contingency costs are built into the works contract and any additional contingency 
action arising will be immediately flagged in writing using the change control 
process which is explained at the start of the programme to all parties. 

8.5 This agreement includes the expectation that Catmose College will enter a building 
contract with the procured contractor for the refurbishment works and the 
construction of the new classrooms and associated facilities to provide for increased 
capacity required. The general approach for projects of this kind is for that building 
contract to be on a design and build basis under which the contractor will carry out 
the bulk of the design for the works which it will then carry out. 

8.6 Included in the legal agreement are the forms of collateral warranty which the 
building contractor will either need to provide or obtain. We are advised that the 
warranties which would be most appropriate for the Council would be those to be 
given to a funder as essentially the Council is acting as the funder of the overall 
project. A funder form of warranty will usually include so called “step in rights”.  This 
means if a contractor is in breach of its obligations under the Building Contract, the 
Council (as funder) can claim its loss directly from the contractor who caused that 
loss.  This also allows RCC to step in if the Programme Board is concerned about 
the effective management of a contractor by Catmose. 

8.7 The matter of the legal agreement has been sent to external solicitors.  This provides 
many clauses regarding the proper use of the grant and appropriate conduct.  
 

8.8 Senior Officers acting on professional legal advice will approve the final document. 
The project will not be fully initiated until the legal agreement is fully completed and 
signed by all parties.   

 

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS  

9.1 A Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) has not been completed. 

10 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

10.1 An equality impact assessment has been carried out and has been approved.  

176



11 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 None identified. 

12 HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS  

12.1 None identified. 

13 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS  

13.1 Key sustainability features have been considered as part of the Stage 2 feasibility 
study.  However, the key measures to address sustainability and environmental 
impact will be incorporated at the design stage.  These will form a key part of any 
planning application. 

14 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

14.1 It is recommended that Cabinet approves the initiation of the Schools’ Capital 
Programme project and the related documentation, and also recommends to 
Council the approval of the Schools’ Capital Programme project up to a maximum 
value of £5.5m. 

14.2  It is further recommended that Cabinet authorises the Interim Director for Children’s 
Services to commence the Schools’ Capital Programme and associated structures 
in order to enable the local authority to meet its statutory obligation to provide 
sufficient secondary schools places within Rutland and delegates authority to the 
Interim Director for Children’s Services and Portfolio Holder for Lifelong Learning, 
Early Years, SEND, Inclusion, Safeguarding Children & Young People to enter into 
the funding agreement.  

15 BACKGROUND PAPERS  

15.1 Cabinet Report 93/2020 

16 APPENDICES 

16.1 Appendix A – Stage 2 Feasibility Study 

16.2 Appendix B– Risks and Issues Log 

16.3 Appendix C – Project Initiation Document 

16.4 Appendix D – Schools’ Capital Programme Board Terms of Reference 

16.5 Appendix E – Project Board Terms of Reference 

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.  

 

                                                           

177



This page is intentionally left blank



 

)($6,%,/,7<�5(3257�-�3+$6(��� 
587/$1'�6(&21'$5<�6&+22/¶6�(;3$16,21�_��&$7026(�&2//(*(� 

67$*(��

�� 

179



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �Ϯ 

6,7(�   _�&$7026(�&2//(*(��,ƵŶƚƐŵĂŶƐ��ƌŝǀĞ��KĂŬŚĂŵ��>�ϭϱ�ϲZW 
 
'$7(�  _���WK�'HFHPEHU������ 

'(6&5,37,21� _�6WUDWHJLF�GHILQLWLRQ�5HSRUW� 

&/,(17�  _�5XWODQG�&RXQW\�&RXQFLO 

25,*,1$725� _�-RKQ�'UHZHU\�$PRODN�'KDQMDO 

$87+25,6(5� _�$P\�/HDGHU 

,668(���  _���-�)RU�FRPPHQW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$OO�VWRFN�LPDJHV�FRXUWHV\�RI�µ*RRJOH¶�XQOHVV�VWDWHG� 

180



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϯ 

 

&217(176  
ϭ͘Ϭ� ͮ��y��hd/s��^hDD�Zz       W͘Ϭϰ 

Ϯ͘Ϭ� ͮ�Z�s/�t�K&��s�/>��>��/E&KZD�d/KE     W͘Ϭϲ 

ϯ͘Ϭ� ͮ�^<�d�,�WZKWK^�>^        W͘ϭϬ 

ϰ͘Ϭ� ͮ�DΘ�͕�^dZh�dhZ�>�Θ�^h^d�/E��/>/dz��WWZK��,�^    W͘ϮϮ 

ϱ͘Ϭ� ͮ�^/d���KE^dZ�/Ed^�Θ�KWWKZdhE/d/�^     W͘Ϯϰ 

ϲ͘Ϭ� ͮ��E�>z/^�K&��yd�ZE�>��Z��^�      W͘Ϯϱ 

ϳ͘Ϭ� ͮ�WZK�hZ�D�Ed�^dZ�d�'z�Θ�WZK'Z�DD��     W͘Ϯϴ 

ϴ͘Ϭ� ͮ��KE�>h^/KE�Θ�t�z�&KZt�Z�      W͘ϯϬ 

ϵ͘Ϭ ͮ��WW�E�/��^          

 ͮ��͗��>/�Ed��Z/�&         W͘ϯϮ 

 ͮ��͗��K^d��^d/D�d�        W͘ϯϯ 

 ͮ��͗�^dZh�dhZ�>�Z�WKZd        W͘ϰϲ 

 ͮ��͗�D��,�E/��>�Θ��>��dZ/��>�Z�WKZd      W͘ϱϲ 

 ͮ��͗�^h^d�/E��/>/dz�^d�d�D�Ed       W͘ϲϮ 

 ͮ�&͗��y/^d/E'�&>KKZ�W>�E^        W͘ϳϴ 

 ͮ�'͗�^hZs�z�^�,�h>�        W͘ϴϬ 

 ͮ�,͗�^dZ�d�'/��Z/^<^        W͘ϴϭ 

 ͮ�/͗��KE�/d/KE�Z�WKZd        W͘ϴϮ 

181



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϰ 

� ���� 
 

(;(&87,9(�6800$5<  
 

/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƚŝŽŶ 
  
ZƵƚůĂŶĚ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� �ŽƵŶĐŝů� ŝƐ� ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůĞ� ĨŽƌ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ� ƐƵĸĐŝĞŶƚ�
ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ŝƚƐ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟǀĞ�ĂƌĞĂ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĞĚŝĐƚͲ
ĞĚ�ŐƌŽǁƚŚ�ŝŶ�ĚĞŵĂŶĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƉƵƉŝů�ƉůĂĐĞƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�ĐŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ� ůĞĂĚƐ�ŽŶ�
ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚĞ� WŚĂƐĞ� ϭ� ƐƚƵĚŝĞƐ� ǁŚŝĐŚ� ĞǆƉůŽƌĞĚ� ƚŚĞ� ƉƌŽƚĞŶƟŽŶĂů� ĨŽƌ�
ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�Ăƚ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ͕��ĂƐƚĞƌƚŽŶ��ŽůůĞŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�hƉƉŝŶŐŚĂŵ�
�ŽůůĞŐĞ͘�KŶ�ϯϭƐƚ�:ƵůǇ�ϮϬϮϬ�Z���ĐĂďŝŶĞƚ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶͲ
ĚĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞ�^ƚĂŐĞ�dǁŽ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĞĂƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�
ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ� Ăƚ� ƚŚĞ� ƉƌĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ� ƐŝƚĞ� ŽĨ� �ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ͕�KĂŬŚĂŵ� ƚŽ�
ĚĞůŝǀĞƌ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ƉůĂĐĞƐ� ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�ϴ�&Žƌŵ�
�ŶƚƌǇ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĂƐ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�WŚĂƐĞ�ϭ�ƐƚƵĚǇ͘ 
  

dŚŝƐ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�KƉƟŽŶ�ϰ�ƚŽ�ĞǆƉĂŶĚ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůͲ
ůĞŐĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ă�ϳ&��ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƚŽ�ĂŶ�ϴ&��ĞŶƚƌǇ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�
ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ͘ 

 

dŚĞ�ƐĐŽƉĞ�ŽĨ�ǁŽƌŬƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ŝƐ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ͗ 
  

Ă͘ ��ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ŽĨ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 

ď͘ �ĞǀĞůŽƉŝŶŐ�ĂƌĐŚŝƚĞĐƚƵƌĂů�ƐŬĞƚĐŚ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�
ŽƉƟŽŶƐ 

Đ͘ WƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�Ă�ǁŝĚĞƌ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĂƐƐĞƚ͘ 

Ě͘ �ĞǀĞůŽƉŝŶŐ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŵĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�Θ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů͕�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�ĂŶĚ�
ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚĞƐ 

Ğ͘ �ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�ƐŝƚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌĂŝŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ 

Ĩ͘ �ŽƐƚ�ĞƐƟŵĂƚĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ 

Ő͘ /ĚĞŶƟĮĐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ŬĞǇ�ƌŝƐŬƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ƌŝƐŬ�ĂŶĚ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�
ŝŵƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ 

Ś͘ �ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ŐƵŝĚĞůŝŶĞ 

ŝ͘ �ĞǀĞůŽƉŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ 

dŚĞ�ƌĞůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ��ĂǇ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ŝƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞĚ�ďǇ�ZƵƚͲ
ůĂŶĚ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͘ 

  

�ĂĐŬŐƌŽƵŶĚ 

�ĂƚŵŽƐĞ� �ŽůůĞŐĞ� ŝƐ� ĂŶ� ŽǀĞƌƐƵďƐĐƌŝďĞĚ� ƐĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ� ĂĐĂĚĞŵǇ� ŝŶ�
KĂŬŚĂŵ͕� ZƵƚůĂŶĚ͘� dŚĞ� ĐĂƚĐŚŵĞŶƚ� ĂƌĞĂ� ŝƐ� ƉƌĞĚŽŵŝŶĂŶƚůǇ� ĨƌŽŵ��
KĂŬŚĂŵ� ĂŶĚ� ƐƵƌƌŽƵŶĚŝŶŐ� ǀŝůůĂŐĞƐ� ďƵƚ� ƉƵƉŝůƐ� ĐŚŽŽƐĞ� ƚŽ� ĂƚƚĞŶĚ�
ĨƌŽŵ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶƚǇ͘ 
  
�ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ�ǁĂƐ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ďǇ��ůůŝƐDŝůůĞƌ��ƌĐŚŝƚĞĐƚƐ�ŝŶ�ϮϬϭϭ�ĂƐ�
Ă�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚ�ϲ&��ϭϭ-ϭϲ�^ĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�^ĐŚŽŽů�ǁŝƚŚ�Ăůů�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ� ŝŶ� Ă� ƐŝŶŐůĞ� Ϯ� ƐƚŽƌĞǇ� ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͘� �ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚĞĚ� ĚƵƌŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ�
�ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�^ĐŚŽŽůƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ�&ƵƚƵƌĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ͕� ƚŚĞ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ĐŽŵƉůŝĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ� ŝŶ���ϵϴ͕� ĨŽƌ�Ă�ŶĞƚ� ĐĂͲ
ƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƵƉ�ƚŽ�ϵϰϱ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ͘ 

  
�ƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ 
  
dŚĞ� ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŚĂƐ�ĞǆƉĂŶĚĞĚ� ƚŽ�ϳ&��ďǇ� ĐĂƌƌǇŝŶŐ�ŽƵƚ� ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů� ĂůƚĞƌĂͲ
ƟŽŶƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ůŝŵŝƚ�ƚŽ�ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ŶĞǁ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ�
ĂŶĚ� ĚŽĞƐ� ŶŽƚ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ� ƐƵĸĐŝĞŶƚ� ůĂďŽƌĂƚŽƌǇ� ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ͕� ϴ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞͲ

ƋƵŝƌĞĚ� ĨŽƌ�Ă�ϳ&��ϭϭ-ϭϲ� ƐĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�ĂŶĚ�Ăƚ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ� ƚŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŽŶůǇ�
ŚĂǀĞ�ϲ�ůĂďŽƌĂƚŽƌŝĞƐ͘ 
 
dŚĞ� ĂƌĞĂ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ� ĨŽƌ� ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ� ŚĂƐ� ďĞĞŶ� ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ�
ƐŚŽƌƞĂůů� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ� ďĂƐĞĚ� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ� ĂƌĞĂ� ĐŽŵƉĂƌŝƐŽŶ�
ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞƐ͘�^ĞĞ�ƉĂŐĞƐ�ϲ—ϵ͘� 

dŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ŝƐ�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ǁĞůů�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶĞĚ͘�DŽĚŝͲ
ĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ŵĂĚĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƌŝŐŝŶĂů�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ĂƌĞĂ� ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ� ƚŚĞ� ǀŝƐŝƚŽƌ� ĞŶƚƌĂŶĐĞ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ƐƚƵĚĞŶƚ� ĞŶƚƌĂŶĐĞ͘� dŚĞ�
ŵĞǌǌĂŶŝŶĞ� ŇŽŽƌ� ŚĂƐ� ďĞĞŶ� ĐŽŶǀĞƌƚĞĚ� ĨŽƌ� ĚĞƐŝŐŶĂƚĞĚ� ƐƉĞĐŝĂů� ƉƌŽǀŝͲ
ƐŝŽŶ�ĂƌĞĂ͘��� ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞ�ϭϵϲϬƐ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐůǇ�ƵƐĞĚ�ĂƐ�Ă�ŶƵƌƐĞƌǇ�
ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŽĸĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ĐŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ĂƌĞĂ͘ 

 

/ƐƐƵĞƐ�ŚŝŐŚůŝŐŚƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽůůĞŐĞ�Ăƚ�ŽƵƌ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ͗ 

- �ƐƐĞŵďůǇ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŶŽƚ�ďŝŐ�ĞŶŽƵŐŚ�ĨŽƌ�ϴ&��ϮϰϬ�ƉƵƉŝů�ǇĞĂƌ�ĂƐƐĞŵďůǇ�–�

ŵĂǆ�ϮϭϬ�Ăƚ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ�;ŽŶĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ĞĂĐŚ�ůƵŶĐŚ�ƟŵĞͿ�ƚŚĞ�ĚƌĂŵĂ�
ƐƉĂĐĞ�ŝƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ŝŶ�ƵƐĞ�Ăƚ�ůƵŶĐŚ�ƟŵĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽ�ĐĂŶŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ŵĂĚĞ�
ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐĞŵďůǇ�ĂƌĞĂ͘��ĚĚŝƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�
�ĐƟǀŝƚǇ�^ƚƵĚŝŽ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�Ă�ƐƵŝƚĂďůĞ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ĚƌĂŵĂ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚǇ�
Ăƚ�ůƵŶĐŚ�ƟŵĞƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƐŽůǀĞ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐƐƵĞ͘ 

- ^ŚŽƌƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐĐŝĞŶĐĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ϳ&��ŝƐ�ĂŶ�ŝƐƐƵĞ�Ăƚ�ƉƌĞͲ
ƐĞŶƚ͘ 

- �ŝŶŝŶŐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĂƌĞĂ�ĂĚĚĞĚ�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐůǇ�ŝƐ�ĨŽƌ�,ĂƌƌŝŶŐƚŽŶ�^ĐŚŽŽů�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ďŽƚŚ�ĚŝŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ƵƐĞ͕�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁĂƐ�ĞŶƟƌĞůǇ�
ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ĐĂĚĞŵǇ�ƚƌƵƐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�
ƚŚĞ�ĂƌĞĂ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌŝƐŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ϭϭ-ϭϲ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ͘ 

182



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϱ 

� ���� 
 

(;(&87,9(�6800$5<  
 

- dŚĞ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ƚŽŝůĞƚƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂĚĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ƚŽ�ϳ&��
ŝŶƚĂŬĞ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŚŽƌƞĂůů�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵůů�
ŝŶƚĂŬĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϲ&��–�ϴ&� 

EŽƚĞ͗�dŚĞƐĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ŶĞĐĞƐƐĂƌŝůǇ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĂůǇƐŝƐ 

 dŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƐŝƚĞ 

dŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƐŝƚĞ� ŝƐ� ƌĞĐƟůŝŶĞĂƌ� ŝŶ�ƐŚĂƉĞ͕�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞ-
ďƵŝůƚ� ƐĐŚŽŽů� ǁŝƚŚ� ƉůĂǇ� ĂƌĞĂƐ� ĂŶĚ� ƐƉŽƌƚƐ� ĮĞůĚƐ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞĂƌ� ;ǁĞƐƚ� Θ�
ŶŽƌƚŚͿ�ǁŝƚŚ� ĂĐĐĞƐƐ͕� ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ� ĂŶĚ� ƉƵďůŝĐ� ĂƌĞĂƐ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ĨƌŽŶƚ� ;^ŽƵƚŚ�Θ�
�ĂƐƚͿ͘� dŚĞ� ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů� ĂƌĞĂƐ� ĂƌĞ� ĐŽŵƉƌŝƐĞĚ� ŽĨ� ƐŽŌ� Θ� ŚĂƌĚ� ƌĞĐƌĞĂƟŽŶ�
ĂƌĞĂƐ͕� Ă� ĨŽƵƌ� ĐŽƵƌƚ� Dh'�͕� ƉůĂǇŝŶŐ� ĮĞůĚƐ� ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ� Ă� ĨƵůů-ƐŝǌĞ� Ăůů-
ǁĞĂƚŚĞƌ� ƉŝƚĐŚ� ĂŶĚ� Ă� ŚĂďŝƚĂƚ� ĂƌĞĂ� ǁŝƚŚ� ďĂůĂŶĐŝŶŐ� ƉŽŶĚ͘� dŚĞƐĞ� ĂƌĞ�
ƐƵĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ƉƵƉŝů�ƌŽůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĐĂŶ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƚĞ�ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�
ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�Ăůů-ǁĞĂƚŚĞƌ�ƐƵƌĨĂĐĞ�ĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĂƐ�ĚŽƵďůĞ�ĂƌĞĂ͘ 

 

�ĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ��ĞƐŝŐŶ 

/Ŷ� ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ĚĞƐŝŐŶ͕� Ϯ� ŵĞĞƟŶŐƐ� ǁĞƌĞ� ŚĞůĚ� ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽůůĞŐĞ�
WƌŝŶĐŝƉĂů͘��ƚ� ƚŚĞ�ĮƌƐƚ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ�ƐŬĞƚĐŚ�ƉůĂŶƐ� ĨŽƌ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ��ƌŝŐŚƚͲ
ǁĂǇƐ� ĂŶĚ� ƐŬĞƚĐŚ� ƉůĂŶƐ� ĨŽƌ� Ă� ŶĞǁ�Ϯ� ƐƚŽƌĞǇ� ďůŽĐŬ� ŝŶ� ůŽĐĂƟŽŶ���ǁĞƌĞ�
ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ� ĨŽƌ� ĨĞĞĚďĂĐŬ� ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚĞ� ĐŽůůĞŐĞ͘� dŚĞƐĞ� ƐŬĞƚĐŚ� ƉůĂŶƐ� ŚĂǀĞ�
ďĞĞŶ�ůĂďĞůůĞĚ�KƉƟŽŶ�ϭ�ĂŶĚ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘�dŚĞ�WƌŝŶĐŝƉĂů�
ƐƚĂƚĞĚ� ƚŚĂƚ� ƚŚĞǇ� ǁĂŶƚĞĚ� ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ� ƚŚĂƚ� ƌĞŇĞĐƚĞĚ� ƚŚĞ� ĞƚŚŽƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�
ĐŽůůĞŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐĞůĨ-ĐŽŶƚĂŝŶĞĚ�ĨĂĐƵůƟĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ�ĂƌƌĂŶŐĞĚ�ĂƌŽƵŶĚ�Ă�
ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ĂƌĞĂ͘��Ŷ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďůŽĐŬ�ǁĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�
ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ� ŝŶ� ůŽĐĂƟŽŶ� �� ďĞŚŝŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ƐƉŽƌƚƐ� ŚĂůů͘� EW^� ƚŽŽŬ� ƚŚĞ� ĐŽŵͲ
ŵĞŶƚƐ� ŽŶ� ďŽĂƌĚ� ĂŶĚ� ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ� ƐŬĞƚĐŚ� ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ� ĨŽƌ� Ă� ƐĞĐŽŶĚ�
ŵĞĞƟŶŐ͘� dŚĞ� ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƐĞĐŽŶĚ� ŵĞĞƟŶŐ� ĂƌĞ� ƚŚĞ� ƐŬĞƚĐŚ� ƉƌŽͲ
ƉŽƐĂůƐ�ůĂďĞůůĞĚ�KƉƟŽŶ�Ϯ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽůůĞŐĞ͛Ɛ�ƉƌĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͘ 

dŚĞ�K�Θ�D�DĂŶƵĂůƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŽďƚĂŝŶĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐͲ
ĞƐ͘���ŵŽƌĞ�ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ�ǁĂƐ�ĐĂƌƌŝĞĚ�ŽƵƚ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƌĞǀĞĂůĞĚ�ŵŝŶŽƌ�

ŝƐƐƵĞƐ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌŝŶŐ�ĂƩĞŶƟŽŶ͘�dŚĞ� ĨƵůů� ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ� ĨŽƵŶĚ� ŝŶ�
�ƉƉĞŶĚŝǆ�/�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘ 

&Žƌ� ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ� ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ǁĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ� ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚ� �Ă� ĨƌĂŵĞ�
ĞŝƚŚĞƌ� ŝŶ� ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ� Žƌ� ŝŶ� ƟŵďĞƌ͘� dŚĞ� ƟŵďĞƌ� ŽƉƟŽŶ� ďĞŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�
ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͘�/ƚ�ŚĂƐ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞĞŶ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƚǇƉĞ�ŽĨ�
ĨŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐƚĂŐĞ͘���ĨƵůů�ƐŝƚĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƟŐĂƟŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�
ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƐƚĂŐĞ͘�dŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƐŚĂůůŽǁ�ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ĨŽƵŶͲ
ĚĂƟŽŶƐ͘ 

DĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů� ĂŶĚ� ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů� ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ� ŝƐ� ƚŽ� ŝŶƐƚĂůů� ĞŶĞƌŐǇ� ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ� ƐǇƐͲ
ƚĞŵƐ͘�dŚĞ� ĨƵůů�ŵĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů� ĂŶĚ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů� ƌĞƉŽƌƚ� ĐĂŶ�ďĞ� ĨŽƵŶĚ� ŝŶ��ƉͲ
ƉĞŶĚŝǆ� �͘� >��� ůŝŐŚƟŶŐ� ŝƐ� ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ͘� 'ĂƐ� ĮƌĞĚ� ŚĞĂƟŶŐ� ĂŶĚ� ŚŽƚ�
ǁĂƚĞƌ�ŝƐ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ŇŽŽƌ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŝŶƐ�ĨĞĚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�
ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘�DĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�ǀĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƌĞĐŽǀĞƌǇ�;Ds,ZͿ�ŝƐ�ƐĞĞŶ�ĂƐ�
ƚŚĞ� ŵŽƐƚ� ĞŶĞƌŐǇ� ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ͘� /Ŷ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůĞĚ� �ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ� ĂƌĞĂ� ŝƚ� ŝƐ�
ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵŽĚŝĨǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ͕�ďƵƚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞ�ƚŚĞ� ůŝŐŚƟŶŐ�
ǁŝƚŚ�ŶĞǁ�>���ůŝŐŚƚƐ͘ 

dŚĞ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ� ŝŶ��ƉƉĞŶĚŝǆ���ƚĂŬĞƐ�Ă�ŚŽůŝƐƟĐ�ǀŝĞǁ�ĂŶĚ�
ƐĞƚƐ� ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ� ƚŚĂƚ� ĐŽƵůĚ� ďĞ� ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ� ƚŽ� ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ� Ă� ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�
ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͘���ĨĂďƌŝĐ�ĮƌƐƚ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌͲ
ĂƟŽŶ� ƚŽ� ƌĞŶĞǁĂďůĞ� ĞŶĞƌŐǇ� ƉƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ͘� WŚŽƚŽǀŽůƚĂŝĐ� ƉĂŶĞůƐ� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ�
ƌŽŽĨ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďůŽĐŬ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ͘ 

 

�ŽƐƚ 

 
�Ŷ�Ăůů-ŝŶĐůƵƐŝǀĞ�ďƵĚŐĞƚ�ŽĨ�άϱ͘Ϯϱŵ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ǁŽƌŬƐ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�
ĂůůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ZƵƚůĂŶĚ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͘�dŚĞ�ƉƌĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�
ĐŽƐƚĞĚ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ƚŽƚĂů� ĐŽƐƚ� ŽĨ� ƚŚŝƐ� ŽƉƟŽŶ� ŝƐ� ĞƐƟŵĂƚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ďĞ�
ά͘ϱ͕ϱϭϱ͕ϯϬϬ͘ϬϬ� dŚŝƐ� ŝƐ� ŽǀĞƌ� ďƵĚŐĞƚ� ďǇ� άϮϲϱ͕ϯϬϬ͘ϬϬ͘� /ƚ� ŝƐ� ĨĞĂƐŝďůĞ� ƚŽ�
ĞǆƉĂŶĚ� �ĂƚŵŽƐĞ� �ŽůůĞŐĞ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ďƵĚŐĞƚ͕� ďƵƚ� ǀĂůƵĞ� ĞŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ� ŝƐ�
ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ͘�s��ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƐĞƚ�ŽƵƚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶĐůƵƐŝŽŶ��ŽŶ�ƉĂŐĞ�ϯϬ͘ 

WƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�Θ�WƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ 

�ǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ� ŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϮϮ͘�tŚŝůƐƚ� ŝƚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ�
ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ�ĂƌĞĂ� ƚŽ�ďĞ� ƌĞĂĚǇ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚŝƐ�ĚĂƚĞ͕� ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�
ǁŽŶ͛ƚ�ďĞ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ͘��ĞƐŝŐŶ�ĂŶĚ�ďƵŝůĚ�ƉƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ�
ƚŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ƟŵĞ͘ 

183



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϲ 

� ���� 
 

5(9,(:�2)�$9$,/%/(�,1)250$7,21  
��� $&&2002'$7,21�&203$5,621 

COMPARISON AREA SCHEDULE 
BASED ON ESFA SCHEDULE OF ACCOMMODATION FOR ANY MAINSTREAM SECONDARY SCHOOL - TYPICAL CURRICULUM
Version 7.4 MaY 2019

Catmose College
8FE 1200 pupils Existing Required

Accommodation No of 
spaces

Area of 
space 
(m2)

No of 
spaces

Area of 
space 
(m2)

No of 
spaces

Area of 
space 
(m2)

Net Area
Basic Teaching
General Classrooms 30 55 16 61 26 suitable classroom spaces 4 55 4 55

7 56
2 64
2 38 return to DSP use

2 78 1 to return to DSP use -1 78
ICT / Business 3 62 1 130 existing could be subdivided 1 62 2 62
English Resource IT Area
Science 9 83 6 85 3 83 3 85
Art (General Art room) 1 83 1 143
Art (3D Art room) 2 97 1 106
Art Gallery 1 90
Music 2 62 1 62

1 79
Drama 1 90 1 84

1 115
Design Technology
RM Workshop 2 97 1 122 1 97 1 104
Food 2 97 1 123 1 97 1 104
Graphics / Products 1 83 1 106
Constructional Textiles 1 83 1 106
Total Area 3628 3520 725 729

Large Spaces
Main Hall 1 226 1 205
Sports Hall 1 594 1 629
Activity Studio 1 150 1 108
Dining & Social 321 1 265 extension desirable 56
(shared with Harington school - post 16) 1 215
Stepped Gallery 1 111
Refectory 1 60
Total Area 1291 1593 56 0

Achieved

dŚĞ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌŝƐŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�
�&^��ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ϴ&��ϭϭ-ϭϲ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�
ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞĚ͖�ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ŵĂĚĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŚĂƐĞ�ϭ�
ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĨĞĞĚďĂĐŬ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚĂŐĞ�ϭ�ĨĞĂƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�
ǁŚĞƌĞ�ϳ�&��ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ĂůƚĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂůƌĞĂĚǇ�ďĞĞŶ�ŵĂĚĞ�ĂŶĚ�
ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƟŶŐ�ƐůŝŐŚƚ�ƌĞǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��^&�͛Ɛ�^K��ǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ�ϳ͘ϰ͘ 

Z���ŚĂǀĞ�ĂĚǀŝƐĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞůŽĐĂƚͲ
ĞĚ�ŵĂŬŝŶŐ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂƌĞĂ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ƚĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ�ƐƉĂĐĞ͘ 

 

ZĞǀŝĞǁ�ŽĨ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 

�ŽƉŝĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�K�Θ�D�ŵĂŶƵĂůƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŽďƚĂŝŶĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽůůĞŐĞ͘�
dŚĞƐĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŬĞƚĐŚ�ƉƌŽͲ
ƉŽƐĂůƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ͘ 

184



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϳ 

� ���� 
 

5(9,(:�2)�$9$,/$%/(�,1)250$7,21  
��� $&&2002'$7,21�&203$5,621 

Catmose College
8FE 1200 pupils Existing Required

Accommodation No of 
spaces

Area of 
space 
(m2)

No of 
spaces

Area of 
space 
(m2)

No of 
spaces

Area of 
space 
(m2)

Achieved

Learning Resources
Library resource centre 1 153 1 231 66+18+34 118
Kiln room 1 4 1 5
Music practice 5 8 6 5
Music practice 1 16 1 11
Recording 1 8 1 19
Lighting / Sound Control 1 6 1 12

SEN / support spaces
Therapy / MI room 1 12 1 12
Resource Base 1 16 3 43
Small Group Room 4 9 - - add due to seperation of new 2 9
Large Group Room 1 16 4 19 1 34
Total Area 299 525 18 152

Staff / Administration
Staff workroom (with sink) 2 22 2 17.5
Staff workroom 1 15 3 13
Staff room (social) 1 48 1 46
Conference / meeting 1 20 1 22
Community entrance 1 8

Head's office 1 16 1 10
PA to Head 1 8 1 19
Reprographics 1 20 1 13
General Office 1 41 1 42 1 39
Entrance / reception 1 16 1 10
Interview room 1 6 1 9
sick room 1 6

Office (1 person) 4 7
Office / meeting (1 person) 7 9 2 11 1 10
Office (SENco) 1 11 1 17 1 15
Office (ICT tech) 1 11 1 11
Office (premises) 1 11 MAT finance & premises off site

Total Area 372 295 0 64

185



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϴ 

� ���� 
 

5(9,(:�2)�$9$,/%/(�,1)250$7,21  
��� $&&2002'$7,21�&203$5,621 

Storage: Teaching
General 5 6 3 8 1 6 1 2
Science prep. 1 90 2 35 1 26 1 38
Chemical store 1 7 1 16
Specialist store (Art) 6 5 2 15
Multi-materials prep. 1 41 1 39
Food store/prep. 1 10 1 10 1 10 1 15
Specialist store (DT) 4 5 2 10 1 5 1 8
General store (Music) 2 5 2 10
Drama store 1 10 1 20
Food store 1 5 1 5
Teaching store (Library) 1 3 - -
Teaching store (SEN) 1 5 1 5
PE store/s 1 60 1 56
PE store (community) 1 4 1 46
PE store (Activity studio) 1 15 1 7
PE store (external) 1 8 1 5

Storage: Non Teaching
Chair/table store (Hall) 1 23 1 18
Central Stock 2 6 1 17
Secure exam / archive 2 8 2 8
Wheelchair / appliance bay 4 1.5 included in circulation 2 3 incl. in circulation
Retractable seating (Hall) 1 16 1 27

Lockers (pupils) 5 12 11 3.21 2 12 15
Lockers (community) 1 3
Cleaners store 8 1.5 3 2.6 2 3 2 1.5
Maintenance store ` 8 1 19
Total Area 504 508 88 81

Total Net Area 6150 6441 887 1026

Catmose College
8FE 1200 pupils Existing Required

Accommodation No of 
spaces

Area of 
space 
(m2)

No of 
spaces

Area of 
space 
(m2)

No of 
spaces

Area of 
space 
(m2)

Achieved

186



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϵ 

� ���� 
 

5(9,(:�2)�$9$,/$%/(�,1)250$7,21  
��� $&&2002'$7,21�&203$5,621 

Catmose College
8FE 1200 pupils Existing Required

Accommodation No of 
spaces

Area of 
space 
(m2)

No of 
spaces

Area of 
space 
(m2)

No of 
spaces

Area of 
space 
(m2)

Achieved

Non-net Area
Kitchen & servery 1 102 1 160
Kitchen office 1 4
Kitchen dry store 1 5
Kitchen cold store 1 5
Kitchen freezer store 1 3.5
Kitchen toilet / changing 1 6.5 1 8

Personal care
Pupils changing & showers 2 68 4 39
Accessible / staff changing 2 6 2 7
Hygiene room 2 12 1 11 1 12
Pupils Toilets (suites) 5 39 - -
Pupils Toilets (suites) 2 6 - -
Pupils Toilets (individual) 1 2 27 1.56 16 1.56 15 2
Staff Toilets (suites) 2 6 8 1.37
Accessible / Staff toilets 6 3.5 3 4.6
Accessible / Pupils toilets 7 4.6 2 4.6 3 5
Plant (indicative area @ 1.9% of net area incl. ICT Hubs & risers)
Central plant room 1 77 194 1 15
Distribution boards 13 1 10 1.34 1 1
Risers & flues 7 1 voids 176 1 1 15
Server room 1 15 1 12 1 3

Circulation (@ 25.2% of net area)
Stairwells 12 27 54
Lift 3 4 5 4.6 2 4 2 3
Main Circualtion 1201 1832 inc internal stairs 25% of net 213 120+183+160 463

Partitions (4.4% of net area) 271 567 38 13+32+21 66

Total Non-net Area 2460 3258 364 610

187



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϭϬ 

� ���� 
 

6.(7&+�352326$/6  
��� 5(02'(//,1*��&219(56,21�2)�%5,*+7:$<6�(;,67,1*�5(&25'�3/$1 

Z�DK��>>/E' 

ZĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ�ĂƌĞĂ�ǁĂƐ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ĮƌƐƚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶĂͲ
ďůĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĮŶĂů�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĚĞͲ
ƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ͘� 

dŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐŚŽǁƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ϰ�ƐƵŝƚĂďůĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�
ƚĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ�ŝƐ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂƌĞĂ͘�dŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞ�
ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƵƟůŝƐĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�DŽĚĞƌŶ�&ŽƌĞŝŐŶ�>ĂŶŐƵĂŐĞƐ�;D&>Ϳ͘�
sĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ůĂǇŽƵƚ�ŝƚĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ƐĐŽƉĞ�ĨŽƌ�
ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶ�ƐƵďƐĞƋƵĞŶƚ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƐƚĂŐĞƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�ĚŽĞƐ�ŚŽǁͲ
ĞǀĞƌ�ƌĞƐƵůƚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽƐƐ�ŽĨ�ŽŶĞ�ůĂƌŐĞ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵ�ĨŽƌŵĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĂůƚĞƌͲ
ĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ϳ&�͘ 

D&>�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƚĞŵƉŽƌĂƌŝůǇ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŽƌŝŐŝŶĂůůǇ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĂƚͲ
ĞĚ�ĨŽƌ��^W�ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ�ĂŶĚ��^W�ǁĞƌĞ�ƌĞůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞǌǌĂŶŝŶĞ�
ĂƌĞĂ͘�dŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĞůŽĐĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ��^W�ĨƵŶĐƟŽŶ�ďĂĐŬ�ƚŽ�
ƚŚĞ�ŽƌŝŐŝŶĂů�ůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƵƟůŝƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞǌǌĂŶŝŶĞ�ĂƌĞĂ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�Ă�
ůĞƐƐ�ĨƌĂŐŵĞŶƚĞĚ��ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟŽŶ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚǇ͖�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ϳ�&��ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�
ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚǁŽ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ�ďǇ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůͲ
ůŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĞŶƚƌĂů�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĸĐĞ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�
ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞĞŶ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŽƉĞ�ŽĨ�
ǁŽƌŬƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƐƵůƟŶŐ�ďƵĚŐĞƚ͘ 

dŚĞ�ĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚ�ĂƌĞĂ�ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ�ŝŶĐůƵƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�
ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŝŶŝŶŐ�ĂƌĞĂ�ƚŽ�ĞŶĂďůĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƉĂĐĞ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽͲ
ĚĂƚĞ�ϯϯϲ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŚĂƐ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞĞŶ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ƐĐŽƉĞ�
ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂĚĚĞĚ�Ă�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ƐĞƌǀĞƌǇ�ĂƌĞĂ�ďǇ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�
ĂŶĚ�ĂƌĞ�ƵƟůŝƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĞŶƚƌĂů�ƐƚĞƉƉĞĚ�ŐĂůůĞƌǇ�ĂƌĞĂ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŶĂĐŬ�ĚŝŶͲ
ŝŶŐ͘���ƌĞůĂƟǀĞůǇ�ƐŝŵƉůĞ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂĚĚĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚũĂͲ
ĐĞŶƚ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ĂƌĞĂ͘�tŚĞƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�Ă�ĚĞƐŝƌĂďůĞ�ǁĂǇ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ƚŽ�
ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞ�ĚŝŶŝŶŐ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶĞĞĚ�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�
ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ƐĐŽƉĞ�ďĞ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ͘ 

EĞǁ�ƉĂƌƟƟŽŶƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƉƌĞĨĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƵƐĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ĨĂĐĞĚ�ďůŽĐŬǁŽƌŬ�
ǁŝƚŚ�ƉĂŝŶƚĞĚ�ĮŶŝƐŚ�ĨŽƌ�ƌŽďƵƐƚŶĞƐƐ͘�tŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŽƌŝŐŝŶĂůůǇ�
ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚĞĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŇŽŽƌ�ƐůĂď�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ĂĐĐĞƉƚĂďůĞ͘�EĞǁ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�
ĨƌŽŵ�ŇŽŽƌ�ůĞǀĞů�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂŶ�ŝƐƐƵĞ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƌƵƐŚŝŶŐ�ƐƚƌĞŶŐƚŚ�ŽĨ�
ŝŶƐƵůĂƟŽŶ�ďĞůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐƌĞĞĚ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĂĚĞƋƵĂƚĞ͘�WĂƌƟƟŽŶƐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ƌĞƐƚƌĂŝŶĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŚĞĂĚ�ďƵƚ�ĂůůŽǁ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�ĚĞŇĞĐƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�
ůŽĂĚ�ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂůƐŽ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŚĞĐŬĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƚĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂǇ�
ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞ�ŝŶĐůƵƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƉŽƐƚƐ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƚŚŝƐ͘�tŚĞƌĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌŇŽŽƌ�
ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ŝŶƐƚĂůůĂƟŽŶƐ�ƌƵŶ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ůŝŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŶĞǁ�ƉĂƌƟͲ
ƟŽŶƐ�ŵĂƐŽŶƌǇ�ŝƐ�ƵŶůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƐƵŝƚĂďůĞ͘�DĞƚĂů�Žƌ�ƟŵďĞƌ�ƐƚƵĚͲ
ǁŽƌŬ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƐƵŝƚĂďůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĐůĂĚ�ŝŶ�&ĞƌŵĂĐĞůů�ďŽĂƌĚ�
Žƌ��ƌŝƟƐŚ�'ǇƉƐƵŵ�͚ZŝŐŝĚƵƌ�,͛�ďŽĂƌĚ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŵƵĐŚ�Ă�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ�
ƐƚƌĞŶŐƚŚ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚ�ƉĂƉĞƌ�ĨĂĐĞĚ�ŐǇƉƐƵŵ�ďŽĂƌĚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞĚ�
ĚƵƌĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĮǆŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ͘�tŚĞƌĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌŇŽŽƌ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�
ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƐƵď-ĚŝǀŝĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ŶĞǁ�ƉĂƌƟƟŽŶƐ�ƐŽůĞ�ƉůĂƚĞ�ĮǆŝŶŐ�ůŽĐĂͲ
ƟŽŶƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĐƌŝƟĐĂů�ĂŶĚ�ƉŝƉĞ�ƚƌĂĐŝŶŐ�ĞƐƐĞŶƟĂů͘ 

188



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϭϭ 

� ���� 
 

6.(7&+�352326$/6  
��� 5(02'(//,1*��&219(56,21�2)�%5,*+7:$<6�237,21�� 

�y/^d/E'�Z��KZ��W>�E�K&��Z/',dt�z^ 

189



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϭϮ 

� ���� 
 

6.(7&+�352326$/6  
��� 5(02'(//,1*��&219(56,21�2)�%5,*+7:$<6�(;,67,1*�5(&25'�3/$1 

WZKWK^���^<�d�,�KWd/KE�ϭ 

190



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϭϯ 

� ���� 
 

6.(7&+�352326$/6  
����5(02'(//,1*� &219(56,21�2)�%5,*+7:$<6�237,21�� 

WZKWK^���^<�d�,�KWd/KE�Ϯ 

191



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϭϰ 

� ���� 
 

6.(7&+�352326$/6  
��� 1(:�%8,/',1* 

dŚĞ�ƚĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�
ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ϴ&��ŝƐ�ĐŽŵƉƌŝƐĞƐ͗ 

Ϯ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ�ŽĨ�ϲϮŵϮ�ĨŽƌ�/dͬ�ƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ƵƐĞ͘ 
Ϯ��d�ƌŽŽŵƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŽŽŬĞƌǇ�Θ�ZD�ǁŽƌŬƐŚŽƉ 
ϯ�>ĂďŽƌĂƚŽƌŝĞƐ͘ 

dŚĞ�WŚĂƐĞ�ϭ�&ĞĂƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ϯ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ�ůŽĐĂƟŽŶƐ͗ 

��Θ���ŽƉƉŽƐŝƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ƐĐŚŽŽů 
��Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďĂĐŬ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�,ĂƌƌŝŶŐƚŽŶ�WŽƐƚ�ϭϲ�^ĐŚŽŽů 

>ŽĐĂƟŽŶ���ǁĂƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ƐƵŝƚĂďůĞ�ĂƐ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞŵŽƚĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�
ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂƌĞĂ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ĞǆͲ
ƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�,ĂƌƌŝŶŐƚŽŶ�^ĐŚŽŽů͘ 

>ŽĐĂƟŽŶ���Θ���ŵƵƐƚ�ďĞ�ŝŶ�ĐůŽƐĞ�ƉƌŽǆŝŵŝƚǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�
ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƚŽ�ƌĞƚĂŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌŵŝƩĞĚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉͲ
ŵĞŶƚ�ĂƌĞĂ�ĚĞĮŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�ƉůĂŶ͘�dŚŝƐ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚƐ�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ŽƵƚ�ĨƌŽŵ�
ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ƚĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ�ƐƉĂĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ĚĂǇůŝŐŚƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞŵ͘�dŽ�ŵŝƟͲ
ŐĂƚĞ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ�ĂƐ�ƐŝŶŐůĞ�
ƐƚŽƌĞǇ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͕�ƌĞĚƵĐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂǇůŝŐŚƚ�ůŽƐƐ�ďƵƚ�ƐƟůů�ƌĞͲ
ƐƚƌŝĐƟŶŐ�ŽƵƚůŽŽŬ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ŇŽŽƌ��ƌƚ�ĂŶĚ��d�ƌŽŽŵƐ͘�^ŝŶŐůĞ�
ƐƚŽƌĞǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�Ă�ůĞƐƐ�ĐŽƐƚ-ĞīĞĐƟǀĞ�ďƵŝůĚ�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƐƵůƚ�ŝŶ�
ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ�ůŽƐƐ�ŽĨ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ĂŵĞŶŝƚǇ�ƐƉĂĐĞ͘�>ŽĐĂƟŽŶƐ��Θ���ĞŶĂďůĞ�
ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ĮƌƐƚ�ŇŽŽƌ�ǁĂůŬǁĂǇƐ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�
ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƌĞĚƵĐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ŶĞǁ�ƐƚĂŝƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ůŝŌ͕�ƚŚĞ�
ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĂƌĞ�ƵŶŚĂƉƉǇ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĂĨĞƚǇ�
ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐ͘��ƚ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŽŶůǇ�ƉĞƌŵŝƩĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƵƐĞ�ƚŚĞŵ�ĨŽƌ�
ĞŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ�ĞǀĂĐƵĂƟŽŶ͘ 

dŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƚĞĚ�ĂŶ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�tĞƐƚ͕�ŽƉƉŽͲ
ƐŝƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^ƉŽƌƚƐ�,Ăůů͘�dŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�
ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂƟŽŶ͘��ŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ĨŽƵů�ĚƌĂŝŶͲ

ĂŐĞ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ĂŶ�ŝƐƐƵĞ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĞǆƉůŽƌĞĚ�ĞĂƌůǇ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�
ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƐƚĂŐĞ͘�dŚĞ�ƉƌŽǆŝŵŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�^h�Ɛ�ƐǁĂůĞƐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�
ĞŶĂďůĞ�ƌŽŽĨ�ĚƌĂŝŶĂŐĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĚŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐǁĂůĞƐ�ƚŽ�ĂǀŽŝĚ�
ƐƵƌĐŚĂƌŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ďĞůŽǁ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ƐƚŽƌŵ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ĚƌĂŝŶĂŐĞ͘�dŚĞ�
ŶĞǁ�ůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ǁŝůů�ĂůƐŽ�ƌĞƐƵůƚ�ŝŶ�ůĞƐƐ�ĚŝƐƚƵƌďĂŶĐĞ�ƚŽ�ƚĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�
ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ƉŚĂƐĞ͘ 

dŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďůŽĐŬ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ůĂŝĚ�ŽƵƚ�ƚŽ�ĞŵƵůĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�
ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�;Ă�ĐůĞĂƌ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞŶŝŽƌ�ůĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ƚĞĂŵͿ�
ǁŝƚŚ�ƚĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ�ƐƉĂĐĞƐ�ŚĂǀŝŶŐ�ĂŶ�ĂĚũĂĐĞŶƚ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�/d�ĂƌĞĂ�Θ�ƉƵƉŝů�
ůŽĐŬĞƌ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ĐŝƌĐƵůĂƟŽŶ�ǌŽŶĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ�
ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĐĞŶƚƌĂů�ĂƌĞĂ͘�WƵƉŝů͛Ɛ�t�͛Ɛ�ĂƌĞ�
ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞĚ�ďƵƚ�ŝŶ�ĐůŽƐĞ�ƉƌŽǆŝŵŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐƉĂĐĞ͖�ůŝŶĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƐŝŐŚƚ�ĨƌŽŵ�
ƐƚĂī�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ŐŽŽĚ�ǀŝƐƵĂů�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ĐŝƌĐƵůĂƟŽŶ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͘ 

�ĞƐŝŐŶ�dĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ�;ĐŽŽŬĞƌǇ�Θ�ǁŽƌŬƐŚŽƉͿ�ĂŶĚ�Ϯ�/d�ƌŝĐŚ�ĐůĂƐƐͲ
ƌŽŽŵƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�Ăƚ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ŇŽŽƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ�ƐƚŽƌĂŐĞ͘�dŚĞ�
ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŝŶƚĞŶĚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ǁŽƌŬƐŚŽƉ�ĂƐ�Ă�ŵŽƌĞ�ƵƉ�ƚŽ�ĚĂƚĞ�
ƐŽƉŚŝƐƟĐĂƚĞĚ�ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ�ƐƉĂĐĞ�ƚŽ�ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌ�
ĞŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĂƐ�Ă�ĚĞƐŝƌĂďůĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�������D͕�ϯ��
ƉƌŝŶƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƐŽƉŚŝƐƟĐĂƚĞĚ�ĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚ͘ 

dŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ƐĐŝĞŶĐĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�Ăƚ�ĮƌƐƚ�ŇŽŽƌ͘��Ɛ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�
ĚŽƵďůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌŝƉůĞ�ƐĐŝĞŶĐĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ŵŽƐƚ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŝĞŶĐĞ�
ůĂďƐ�ǁŝůů�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƵƐĂďůĞ�ĨŽƌ��ŝŽůŽŐǇ͕�WŚǇƐŝĐƐ�ĂŶĚ��ŚĞŵŝƐƚƌǇ͘�
dŚĞ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĂƟŽŶ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌŽƵƐ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƚŚĞ��&^��
ďƌŝĞĨ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�Ă�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ�ĚŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ�ŝŶ�ƐƚŽƌĞĚ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞŵŽƚĞͲ
ŶĞƐƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ƐĐŝĞŶĐĞ�ŵĂŬŝŶŐ�ƐŽŵĞ�ĚĞŐƌĞĞ�ŽĨ�ĚƵƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶ�
ƵŶĂǀŽŝĚĂďůĞ͘ 

dŚĞ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ŐƌŝĚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ŵĂƚĐŚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĞŶĂďůĞ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ĂƉƉĞĂƌĂŶĐĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ǀĞƌǇ�ƐŝŵŝůĂƌ͘�� 

dŽŝůĞƚƐ�–�ďŽƚŚ�ŇŽŽƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďůŽĐŬ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂůƚĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ�ƉƌŽͲ
ƉŽƐĂů�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ϱ�t�Ɛ�ĂŶĚ�ŽŶĞ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐŝďůĞ�t�͘�ϭϴ�
ŝŶ�ƚŽƚĂů�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂĚĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ƉƵƉŝů�ƚŽŝůĞƚ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ϰϮ�
ŐŝǀĞƐ�Ă�ƚŽƚĂů�ŽĨ�ϲϬ͕�Ă�ƌĂƟŽ�ŽĨ�ϭ�ĨŽƌ�ĞǀĞƌǇ�ϮϬ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝƐ�ŝŶ�
ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŽůĚ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�
�ƌŝƟƐŚ�^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚ͘ 

WƵƉŝů�>ŽĐŬĞƌƐ�–�ĞĂĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�ƉƵƉŝů�
ůŽĐŬĞƌƐ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŝŶ�ƌĞĐĞƐƐĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ůŽĐŬĞƌ�ǁŝĚƚŚƐ�ŽĨ�ϯϬϬŵŵ�
ĂŶĚ�ŝŶ�ƐƚĂĐŬƐ�ŽĨ�ϰ�;ϭϴϬϬŵŵ�ŚŝŐŚͿ͘�dŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ƐŚŽǁŶ�Ăƚ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ůŽĐŬĞƌ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�
ƉƵƉŝůƐ͘ 192



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϭϱ 

� ���� 
 

6.(7&+�352326$/6  
����1(:�%8,/',1* 

193



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϭϲ 

� ���� 
 

6.(7&+�352326$/6  
��� 1(:�%8,/',1*��237,21�� 

WZKWK^���^<�d�,�'ZKhE��&>KKZ�W>�E 

194



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϭϳ 

WZKWK^���^<�d�,�&/Z^d�&>KKZ�W>�E 

� ���� 
 

6.(7&+�352326$/6  
����1(:�%8,/',1*��237,21�� 

sK/� 

�y/^d/E'��yd�ZE�>���>�KEz 

195



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϭϴ 

� ���� 
 

6.(7&+�352326$/6  
��� 1(:�%8,/',1*��237,21�� 

196



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϭϵ 

� ���� 
 

6.(7&+�352326$/6  
����1(:�%8,/',1*��237,21�� 

^<�d�,�ϯ���>K�<�s/�t 

197



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϮϬ 

� ���� 
 

6.(7&+�352326$/6  
��� 1(:�%8,/',1*��237,21�� 

WZKWK^���^<�d�,�'ZKhE��&>KKZ�W>�E 

198



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �Ϯϭ 

� ���� 
 

6.(7&+�352326$/6  
����1(:�%8,/',1*��237,21�� 

WZKWK^���^<�d�,�&/Z^d�&>KKZ�W>�E 

199



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϮϮ 

� ���� 
 

0	(��6758&785$/�	�6867$,1$%,/,7<�
$3352$&+(6  

DĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ 

dŚĞ�ĨƵůů�ŵĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚ�ŝŶ�
ĂƉƉĞŶĚŝǆ���ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘ 

sĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ 

· �ŝŵ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŶ�Ăŝƌ-ƟŐŚƚ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŚŝŐŚ�ƚŚĞƌŵĂů�ŝŶƐƵůĂƟŽŶ�
ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ǀĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�Ds,Z�
;ŵĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�ǀĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƌĞĐŽǀĞƌǇͿ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�ŶŝŐŚƚ-ƟŵĞ�ƉƵƌŐĞ�ǀĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŽů�
ƚĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ�ƐƉĂĐĞƐ͘ 

· �Ɛ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ďƵƚ�ƵƟůŝƐĞ�Es,Z�;ŶĂƚƵƌĂů�ǀĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŚĞĂƚ�
ƌĞĐŽǀĞƌǇͿ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ͘�sĞŶƟǀĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�
ŝŶƐƚĂůůĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ǁĂůůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌŽŽĨƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĐĂŶ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ƵƉ�
ƚŽ�ϱ�ĚĞŐƌĞĞƐ�ŽĨ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŽůŝŶŐ�ŐĂŝŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƉĂĐĞƐ�
ƚŚĞǇ�ƐĞƌǀĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ǀĞƌǇ�ůŽǁ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ŝŶƉƵƚ�;ϴϬǁĂƩƐ�ƉĞƌ�
ƵŶŝƚͿ͘ 

,ĞĂƟŶŐ 

DĂŬĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ��ŝƌ�^ŽƵƌĐĞ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƉƵŵƉƐ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌǇ�
ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ͕�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ƐƵŝƚĂďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĂĚŝĂƚŽƌ�
ƐŽůƵƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŚĂǀĞ�ǀŽŝĐĞĚ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƵŶĚĞƌŇŽŽƌ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ͘�/Ĩ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�
ĨŽůůŽǁĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�
ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�Ă�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞ͘�hŶĚĞƌŇŽŽƌ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ĚŽĞƐ�
ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝƐĂĚǀĂŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞĚƵĐŝŶŐ�ŇĞǆŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�
ĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ŚŽǁĞǀĞƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�
ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�Ă�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ĚŝīĞƌĞŶƚ�ƐŝǌĞĚ�
ƚĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ�ƐƉĂĐĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ƟŵĞƚĂďůĞĚ�ƚŽ�
ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ƌĂƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƐŽƌƚ�ƚŽ�
ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ͘ 

WŽƐƐŝďůǇ�ĞǆƚĞŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�
ĂĚĞƋƵĂƚĞ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ďƵƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞ�ďĞůŽǁ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�
ĚƵĐƟŶŐ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ǀĞƌǇ�ĚĞƐŝƌĂďůĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƌĞ�ͬ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƌŽƵƚĞ͘ 

,Žƚ�tĂƚĞƌ 

>ŽĐĂů�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐŵĂůů�ƐƚŽƌĂŐĞ�ĂĚũĂĐĞŶƚ�
ƚŽ�ƉŽŝŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƵƐĞ�ƚŽ�ŵŝŶŝŵŝƐĞ�ƌƵŶ�ůĞŶŐƚŚ�ŚĞĂƚ�ůŽƐƐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�
>ĞŐŝŽŶĞůůĂ�ƌŝƐŬ͘ 

 

�ůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ 

>ŝŐŚƟŶŐ 

· DĂǆŝŵŝƐĞ�ĚĂǇůŝŐŚƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŚŝŐŚ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁ�ŚĞĂĚƐ�ĨŽƌ�
ŵĂǆŝŵƵŵ�ƌŽŽŵ�ĚĞƉƚŚ�ƉĞŶĞƚƌĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĚĚ�ůŝŐŚƚ�ƐŚĂŌƐ�
ĨƌŽŵ�ƌŽŽĨ�ůĞǀĞů�ƚŽ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ŇŽŽƌ�ůĞǀĞů�ĂŶĚ�ƌŽŽĨ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁƐ�
;ĂǀŽŝĚ�ŚŽƌŝǌŽŶƚĂů�ƌŽŽĨ�ůŝŐŚƚƐ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ŚĞĂƚ�ŐĂŝŶ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐͿ�Ăƚ�
ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĂƌ�ŽĨ�ůĂƌŐĞ�ĮƌƐƚ�ŇŽŽƌ�ƌŽŽŵƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵŶ�ƉŝƉĞƐ�ƚŽ�
ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�ƐƉĂĐĞƐ͘ 

· hƐĞ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ�>���ĮƫŶŐƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽĐĐƵƉĂŶĐǇ�
ĚĞƚĞĐƟŽŶ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚŝŵŵŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĚĂǇůŝŐŚƚ�
ĚĞƚĞĐƟŽŶ͘� 

WŽǁĞƌ 

/ŶƐƚĂůů�ƌŽŽĨ�ŵŽƵŶƚĞĚ�^ŽůĂƌ�WŚŽƚŽ�sŽůƚĂŝĐ�ƉĂŶĞůƐ�ƚŽ�
ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĨŽŽƚƉƌŝŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͘�/Ĩ�
ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ŝŶƐƵĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ƐƉĂĐĞ�ŽŶ�ŶĞǁ�ƌŽŽĨ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƚĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�
ƉŽǁĞƌ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚĞĚ͕�ƚŚĞŶ�ĂŶ�ĂƌƌĂǇ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ĂĚĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�Ă�ƐƵŝƚĂďůĞ�ƌŽŽĨ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͘ 

DĂǆŝŵŝƐĞ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ĮƫŶŐƐ͘� 

 

^ƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ 

dŚĞ�ĨƵůů�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚ�ŝŶ�ĂƉƉĞŶĚŝǆ���ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�
ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘ 

· dŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƉƌĞĨĞƌ�Ă�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ƐŝŵŝůĂƌ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�
ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ŽŶĞ͘��ŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ŚĂƐ�ŚŝŐŚ�ĞŵďŽĚŝĞĚ�
ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ŽŶ�ĂƩĞŵƉƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�Ă�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�
ǌĞƌŽ�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ƐŽŵĞ�ŐĂŝŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŚĞƌŵĂů�ŵĂƐƐ�
ŽĨ�ĞǆƉŽƐĞĚ�ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚĞŵƉĞƌĂƚƵƌĞ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶ͕�
ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ĐŽŽůƚŚ�ƐƚŽƌĂŐĞ�ŝŶ�ŚŽƚ�ƐƵŵŵĞƌƐ͘�/Ĩ�ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ŝƐ�
ƐĞůĞĐƚĞĚ͖�ŵĂǆŝŵŝƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞĐǇĐůĞĚ�ĂŐŐƌĞŐĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�
ƐƉĞĐŝĨǇ�Ă�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĐŽŶƚĞŶƚ�ŵŝǆ͕�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�
ƉŽƐƚ�ƚĞŶƐŝŽŶĞĚ�ƐůĂďƐ�ƚŽ�ŵŝŶŝŵŝƐĞ�ƐůĂď�ƚŚŝĐŬŶĞƐƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�
ůĂƩĞƌ�ŵĂǇ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞ�ĐĂƌĞĨƵů�ƐĞůĞĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�Ă�ƐƵŝƚĂďůǇ�ƐŬŝůůĞĚ�
ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚŽƌ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ĐŽŵƉĞƟƟǀĞ�ƉƌŝĐŝŶŐ͘�WƌŽƉƉŝŶŐ�
ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ�ŵĂǇ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĞǆƚĞŶĚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŽŵĞ�ŵŝǆĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁŝůů�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�
ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐŝŶŐ�ƉƌĞůŝŵŝŶĂƌŝĞƐ�ĐŽƐƚƐ͘ 

· dŝŵďĞƌ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ŶĞƵƚƌĂů͘��ƌŽƐƐ�
>ĂŵŝŶĂƚĞĚ�dŝŵďĞƌ�;�>dͿ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐŽŵĞ�'ůƵĞ�
ůĂŵŝŶĂƚĞĚ�ĐŽůƵŵŶƐ�Žƌ�ďĞĂŵƐ�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞĚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ŵŽƌĞ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ĐůĞĂŶĞƌ�ŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�
ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�ĨƌĂŵĞ�
ƐƵďƐƚĂŶƟĂůůǇ͘�>ĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞƌŵĂů�ŵĂƐƐ�ďƵƚ�ĐĂŶ�ƐƟůů�ŚĞůƉ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ĐŽŽůƚŚ�ƐƚŽƌĂŐĞ͘ 

 

200



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �Ϯϯ 

� ���� 
 

0	(��6758&785$/�	�6867$,1$%,/,7<�
$3352$&+(6  

 

^ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ��ƉƉƌŽĂĐŚĞƐ 

dŚĞ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶ�ĂƉƉĞŶĚŝǆ���ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ƌĞůĂƚĞƐ�
ƚŽ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ďǇ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌ�ĞůĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘�/Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�
ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƐƚĂŐĞƐ͘�^ŽŵĞ�ǁŝůů�
ďĞ�ĞƐƐĞŶƟĂů�ƚŽ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�ĂŶ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ��Z���D�ƌĂƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�
ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘ 

· ^ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�hƌďĂŶ��ƌĂŝŶĂŐĞ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�;^h�^Ϳ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�
ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƐŝƚĞ�ĂůƌĞĂĚǇ�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞƐ�Ă�^h�^͕�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�
ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ŽŶ�ƉŽƌŽƵƐ�ƉĂǀŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉŽƌŽƵƐ�
ĂŵĞŶŝƚǇ�ŐƌĂƐƐ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͘�dŚĞ�ƌŽŽĨ�ĚƌĂŝŶĂŐĞ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�^h�^�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͕�ƉƌĞĨĞƌĂďůǇ�ƚŽ�
ƚŚĞ�ƐǁĂůĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂǇŝŶŐ�ĮĞůĚ�ĂƌĞĂ͕�ƚŽ�ŵŝŶŝŵŝƐĞ�
ƐƵƌĐŚĂƌŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽǁĞƌ�ƉŽŶĚ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƌŽŽĨ͕�
ƉĂǀŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĚƌĂŝŶ�ŝŶƚŽ͘�tŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�
ƚŚĞ�ŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƌŝŐŝŶĂů�ĚƌĂŝŶĂŐĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ĂƐ�
ŝŶƐƚĂůůĞĚ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�
ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĚŝĸĐƵůƚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ͕�ŚŽǁĞǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ƉƌŽďĂďůǇ�
ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƐƵĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ďƵŝůƚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƌŝŐŝŶĂů�
ĚĞƐŝŐŶ͘�dŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĂĚǀŝƐĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŶŽƚ�ƐĞĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ŵĂŝŶ�ƉŽŶĚ�ĂƌĞĂ�ĐůŽƐĞ�ƚŽ�Ă�ŇŽŽĚ�ůĞǀĞů�ƐŝŶĐĞ�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�ĮƌƐƚ�
ŽĐĐƵƉŝĞĚ͘ 

· �ŶŚĂŶĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ƐŝƚĞ�ĞĐŽůŽŐǇ�ͬ�ďŝŽĚŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ͘�
/ŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�Ă�ďŝŽĚŝǀĞƌƐĞ�ŐƌĞĞŶ�ƌŽŽĨ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƌƐƚ-ŇŽŽƌ�
ƌŽŽĨ�ĂƌĞĂ͕�ƉůĂŶƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŝǆĞĚ�ŶĂƟǀĞ�ŐƌĂƐƐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ŇŽǁĞƌŝŶŐ�ƉůĂŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ǀĂƌǇŝŶŐ�ƐƵďƐƚƌĂƚĞ�ĚĞƉƚŚƐ͘ 

· WŽƐƐŝďůĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ƉůĂŶƟŶŐ�Žƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�

ƐŝƚĞ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŶĂƟǀĞ�ƚƌĞĞƐ�Θ�ƐŚƌƵďƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ŽīƐĞƚ͘ 

· WŽƐƐŝďůĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�Ă�ďůƵĞ�
ƌŽŽĨ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ďĞůŽǁ�Ă�ŐƌĞĞŶ�ƌŽŽĨ�ĮŶŝƐŚ�ĂŶĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽǁĞƌ�
ĚĞĐŬ�ůĞǀĞů͕�ƚŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽŽĨ�ĚŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞ�ƌĂƚĞ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŚĂƐ�
ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�ŝŵƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĚĞƉĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƉƚŚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�
ƌĞƚĂŝŶĞĚ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ǁŝůů�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�
ŵŝŶŝŵŝƐĞ�ĚĞŇĞĐƟŽŶ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂůůǇ�ĐŽƐƚůǇ�ĨŽƌ�
ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ϴ͘ϭŵ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�ŐƌŝĚ͘ 

 

 

 

201



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �Ϯϰ 

� ���� 
 

6,7(�&21675$,176�	�23325781,7,(6  
- 

�ŽŶƐƚƌĂŝŶƚƐ 

dŚĞ�ŬĞǇ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌĂŝŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ĂƌĞ͗ 

dŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƐŝƚĞ�ŝƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�KĂŬŚĂŵ�Θ��ĂƌůĞǇƚŚŽƌƉĞ�EĞŝŐŚďŽƵƌͲ
ŚŽŽĚ͘�WĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŐƌŽƵŶĚƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŶŽƌƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞƐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĨĂůůƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�͚WůĂŶŶĞĚ�ůŝŵŝƚƐ�ŽĨ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͛�ƚŚĂƚ�
ĐŽǀĞƌ�ŵƵĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĞĞŶ�ƐƉĂĐĞ�ŝŶ��ĂƌůĞǇƚŚŽƌƉĞ��ŝǀŝů�WĂƌŝƐŚ͘�dŚŝƐ�
ǁŝůů�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ƐŝƚĞĚ͘�EŽ�ĐŽŶͲ
ƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĚĞƉĂƌƚŵĞŶƚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ŚĞůĚ͘ 

��ĮƌĞ�ĂƉƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƌŽĂĚ�ŝƐ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ĂƌŽƵŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͘�dŚŝƐ�
ĂƌĞĂ�ŚĂƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŬĞƉƚ�ĐůĞĂƌ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƟŶŐ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƌŽĂĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�WůĂŶŶĞĚ�>ŝŵŝƚƐ�ŽĨ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͘ 

�ǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϮϮ͘ 

dŚĞ�Ăůů-ŝŶĐůƵƐŝǀĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ďƵĚŐĞƚ�ŽĨ�άϱ͘Ϯϱŵ͘ 

 

KƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ 

KƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ůŝŵŝƚĞĚ͘�WŽƐƐŝďůĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŚŝŐŚͲ
ůŝŐŚƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚũĂĐĞŶƚ�ƉůĂŶ͘ 

/ƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƌĞůĂƟǀĞůǇ�ĞĂƐǇ�ƚŽ�ĞǆƚĞŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝŶŝŶŐ�ŚĂůů�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�
ĐŽƵƌƚǇĂƌĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ǁĞƐƚ͘ 

202



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �Ϯϱ 

 

$1$/<6,6�2)�(;7(51$/�$5($6  
- � ���� 

SITE AREAS
8FE 11-16 480 post 16 Catmose Harington

Soft outdoor PE 48000 20700 43317 shared
All Weather Pitch 
(counts as double area) 6185 shared
AWP Equivalent total area 12370

Hard outdoor PE 2200 1030 2760 399

Soft informal and social 
area 3000 1440 11595

Hard informal and social 
area 1400 620 2950

Habitat 600 210 19915

Float 6800 2900 4072 715

Minimum net site area 62000 26900 90794 1114

Non-net 8000 4100 26438 1307
Buildings 7250 1307
Swimming Pool 1362
Parking and service 
access 12468 shared
Public Area 5358
New Block Footprint 762

Minimum total site area 69000 30000 117232 2421

Maximum net site area 69000 30000

Maximum total site area 86600 37460 119653

BB103 Current

98093

CATMOSE COLLEGE & HARINGTON SCHOOL
SITE USAGE - AREA COMPARISON with GUIDANCE
(assuming expansion of both 11-16 and post 16 provision to 240 intake)

Number of pupils 11-16  8FE 1200
Number of Pupils Post 16 420

203



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �Ϯϲ 

� ���� 
 

$1$/<6,6�2)�(;7(51$/�$5($6  
- 

�ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ��ǆƚĞƌŶĂů��ƌĞĂƐ�ŝŶ��ĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ��ƵƌƌĞŶƚ 
'ƵŝĚĞůŝŶĞƐ 

/ƚ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ƐĞĞŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�DŝŶŝŵƵŵ�ŶĞƚ�ƐŝƚĞ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝĨ�ďŽƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�
ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƐƚ�ϭϲ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŝŶƚĂŬĞƐ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�
ƚŽ�ϮϰϬƉƵƉŝůƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞƚ�ƐŝƚĞ�ĂƌĞĂ�;ĞǆĐůƵĚŝŶŐ��ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŶŽŶ-ƉƵƉŝů�
ĂƌĞĂƐͿ�ŝƐ�ϵϭϲϬϬŵϮ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŶĞƚ�ƐŝƚĞ�ŝƐ�ϵϭϵϬϴŵϮ�ŶŽƚ�
ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂůůŽǁĂďůĞ�ĚŽƵďůĞ�ĐŽƵŶƟŶŐ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�Ăůů�ǁĞĂƚŚĞƌ�ƉŝƚĐŚ�
ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ĂĚĚ�Ă�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ϲϭϴϱŵϮ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƚŽƚĂů͘ 

dŚĞ�ƐŽŌ�ƉůĂǇŝŶŐ�ĮĞůĚ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ĚŽĞƐ�ĨĂůů�ƐŚŽƌƚ�ŝĨ�ƵƐĞ�ďǇ�,ĂƌƌŝŶŐͲ
ƚŽŶ�^ĐŚŽŽů�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ŝƐ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ƚŽƚĂů�ŝƐ�ϱϱϲϴϳŵϮ͕�
ϰϴϬϬϬŵϮ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ϴ&��ϭϭ-ϭϲ͘�/Ĩ�ƚŚĞ�,ĂƌƌŝŶŐƚŽŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŝƐ�
ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ŚŽǁĞǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�Ă�ĚĞĮĐŝƚ͘�&Žƌ�ϭϮϬϬ�ϭϭ-ϭϲ�ƉůƵƐ�ϯϬϬ�ƉŽƐƚ�
ϭϲ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ϲϰϱϬϬŵϮ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ͘�/Ĩ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƐƚ�ϭϲ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�ĨƵƌͲ
ƚŚĞƌ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ϰϮϬ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ƚŽ�ϲϴϳϬϬŵϮ͖�Ăƚ�ƉƌĞͲ
ƐĞŶƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƌĞĂ�ĐŽƵŶƟŶŐ�Ăůů�ǁĞĂƚŚĞƌ�ĂƐ�ĚŽƵďůĞ�ŝƐ�ϱϱϲϴϳŵϮ͘��/ƚ�
ǁŽƵůĚ�ƉƌŽďĂďůǇ�ďĞ�ĚĞƐŝƌĂďůĞ�ďƵƚ�ŶŽƚ�ĞƐƐĞŶƟĂů�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�
ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�Ă�ƐĞĐŽŶĚ�Ăůů�ǁĞĂƚŚĞƌ�ƉŝƚĐŚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌƵƐĞĚ�ƉůĂǇŝŶŐ�
ĮĞůĚ�ĂƌĞĂ�ĐůŽƐĞƐƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ǁŚĞŶͬŝĨ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ŝƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ͘���
ƚǇƉŝĐĂů�^ƉŽƌƚ��ŶŐůĂŶĚ�ƉŝƚĐŚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ϭϬϭ͘ϰŵ�ǆ�ϲϯŵ�ĂŶ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŽĨ�
ϲϯϴϴŵϮ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ĐŽƵŶƚ�ĂƐ�ϭϮϳϳϲŵϮ�ĂŶĚ�ŐŝǀĞ�ŵƵĐŚ�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ�
ǁŝŶƚĞƌ�ƵƐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ĨŽƌ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ƵƐĞ͘ 

dŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ǀĞƌǇ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝǀĞ�ŝŶĚŽŽƌ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�
ůĂƌŐĞ�ĚŽƵďůĞ�ƐƉŽƌƚƐ�ŚĂůů͕�Ă�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ƐŵĂůů�ƐƉŽƌƚƐ�ŚĂůů�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ƐǁŝŵͲ
ŵŝŶŐ�ƉŽŽů͘�tŚŝĐŚ�ǁŝůů�ŵĂŬĞ�ƟŵĞƚĂďůŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƉŽƌƚ�ůĞƐƐ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�ŝƐƐƵĞ�
ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂǇŝŶŐ�ĮĞůĚ�ĚĞĮĐŝƚ͕�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ŝŶ�ǁŝŶƚĞƌ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ͘ 

,ĂƌĚ�ŽƵƚĚŽŽƌ�W��ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ϴ&��ϭϭ-ϭϴ�ŝƐ�ϯϮϯϬŵϮ�ƚŚĞ�ƚǁŽ�

ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ƚŽƚĂů�ŽĨ�ϯϭϱϵŵϮ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�Ă�ůŝƩůĞ�ůŝŐŚƚ͕�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƟŽŶ�
ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŐŝǀĞŶ�ƚŽ�ĂĚĚŝŶŐ�Ă�Dh'��͘ 

^ŽŌ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂů�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĞǆĐĞĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞ�ďǇ�ϳϭϱϱŵϮ� 
,ĂƌĚ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂů�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĞǆĐĞĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞ�ďǇ�ϵϯϬŵϮ 

,ĂďŝƚĂƚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĞǆĐĞĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞ�ďǇ�ϭϵϭϬϱŵϮ 

 

 

 

� 204



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �Ϯϳ 

 

$1$/<6,6�2)�(;7(51$/�$5($6  
- � ���� 

205



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �Ϯϴ 

� ���� 
 

352&85(0(17�675$7(*<�	�352*5$00(  
����352&85(0(17�675$7(*< 

WƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�KƉƟŽŶƐ 

dŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ďĞůŽǁ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�
ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ǁŽƌŬƐ͘ 

ϭ͘ dƌĂĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ƌŽƵƚĞ͗�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚ�ĨƵůů�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ�ƚĞĂŵ�ĨŽƌ�Z/���
ƐƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƟŽŶ͘�dĞŶĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƐĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚŽƌƐ�
ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�Ă�WWY�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ�Žƌ�ƵƐĞ�ĂŶ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ĨƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ͘�
dǇƉŝĐĂůůǇ�ƵƐĞ�Ă�:�d�ĨŽƌŵ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ͘ 
 

Ϯ͘ �ĞƐŝŐŶ�Θ��ƵŝůĚ�ƌŽƵƚĞ͗�;ƚŚŝƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�Ă�ƚǁŽ-ƐƚĂŐĞ�ƉƌŽͲ
ĐĞƐƐͿ͘�ƉƉŽŝŶƚ�Ă�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ�ƚĞĂŵ�ĨŽƌ�Z/���^ƚĂŐĞƐ�Ϯ�Θ�ϯ�
ƚŽ�ƐƵďŵŝƚ�Ă�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞ�ƚĞŶĚĞƌ�
ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ��Θ��ƚĞŶĚĞƌ͘ 

 
Ă͘ dĞŶĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƐĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚŽƌƐ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�Ă�WWY�

ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ�Žƌ�ƵƐĞ�ĂŶ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ĨƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ͘��ƉƉŽŝŶƚ�
�ŽŶƚƌĂĐƚŽƌ�ĨŽƌ�Z/���^ƚĂŐĞƐ�ϰ�Θ�ϱ�dĞĐŚŶŝĐĂů�
ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ͘�dǇƉŝĐĂůůǇ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�Ă�:�d�
�Θ��ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ�Žƌ�E����Θ��ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ͘ 
 

ď͘ dĞŶĚĞƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐͲ
ƚŽƌ�ƚŽ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�Z/���ƐƚĂŐĞƐ�
Ϯ-ϱ͘�dǇƉŝĐĂůůǇ�ƵƐĞ�Ă�E����Θ��ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶͲ
ƚƌĂĐƚ͘ 
 

/Ĩ��>d�ŝƐ�ƐĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�ĨƌĂŵĞ͕�ƚŚĞŶ�ĞĂƌůǇ�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚͲ
ŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ƐƉĞĐŝĂůŝƐƚ�ŵĂŶƵĨĂĐƚƵƌĞƌ�ĨŽƌ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ŝŶƉƵƚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĞƐƐĞŶͲ
ƟĂů͘�dŚŝƐ�ŵĂǇ�ŵĂŬĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚ��Θ��ŽƉƟŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ƐƵŝƚĂďůĞ�
ƌŽƵƚĞ͘�/Ĩ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚǁŽ�ƉƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĐŚŽƐĞŶ�ƵƉ�ĨƌŽŶƚ�
ĐŽƐƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�Ăƚ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƐƚĂŐĞƐ�ϮΘϯ͘ 

dƌĂĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ƉƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŐŝǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĐůŝĞŶƚ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�ŽǀĞƌ�
ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͕�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�
ďƵƚ�ŶŽƌŵĂůůǇ�ŚĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽŶŐĞƐƚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�ƉĞƌĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ƚŽ�
ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƐƚ�ĐŽƐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ƌŝƐŬ͘ 

��ƚǁŽ�ƐƚĂŐĞ��Θ��ƚĞŶĚĞƌ�ŽŶ�ĂŶ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ĨƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ�ŝƐ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�
ƚŚĞ�ĨĂƐƚĞƐƚ�ƌŽƵƚĞ�ďƵƚ�ĂůƐŽ�ŚĂƐ�Ă�ĐŽƐƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶĞǀŝƚĂďůǇ�ůĞĂĚƐ�ƚŽ�
ǀĂůƵĞ�ĞŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞƐ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ƐĐŽƉĞ�ĂŶĚ�ͬ�
Žƌ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ͘ 

�Θ��ƚĞŶĚĞƌ�ĂŌĞƌ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŐŝǀĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�
ĂŶĚ�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŽƌŬƐ͘ 

WƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ 

dŚĞ�ĐŚŽŝĐĞ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�ǁŝůů�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�
ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ͗ 

�Ŷ�Žī-ƐŝƚĞ�ŵŽĚƵůĂƌ�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ǁĂƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĨĂǀŽƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�
ďƵƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŽŶƐŝƚĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚůǇ͕�
ǁŝƚŚ�ƵŶŝƚ�ĨĂďƌŝĐĂƟŽŶ�ǁŚŝůĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ǁŽƌŬƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĐĂƌͲ
ƌŝĞĚ�ŽƵƚ͘�WŽƐƐŝďůǇ�ƐĞĞŝŶŐ�ƐŽŵĞ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�
ǁŽƵůĚ�ŽǀĞƌĐŽŵĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů͛Ɛ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ͘ 

��ƌĞŝŶĨŽƌĐĞĚ�ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ĨƌĂŵĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉŽƐƚ�ƚĞŶƐŝŽŶĞĚ�ƐůĂďƐ�ƐƵͲ
ƉĞƌƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ͕�ǁŝůů�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƐƚ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘ 

^ŽŵĞ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚƐ�ŵĂǇ�ŚĂǀĞ�ůŽŶŐ�ůĞĂĚ�ŝŶ�
ƟŵĞƐ͕�Ă��>d�ƐƵƉĞƌ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞ�ĞĂƌůǇ�ĚĞͲ
ƐŝŐŶ�ŝŶƉƵƚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŶƵĨĂĐƚƵƌĞƌƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĐŽŶƐĞƋƵĞŶƟĂů�
ƵƉĨƌŽŶƚ�ĐŽƐƚ�ƌŝƐŬ͘ 

206



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �Ϯϵ 

� ���� 
 

352&85(0(17�675$7(*<�	�352*5$00(  
����352*5$00( 

207



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϯϬ 

� ���� 
 

&21&/86,21�	�7+(�:$<�)25:$5'  

�ŽŶĐůƵƐŝŽŶ 
  
EW^�ŚĂǀĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϭ�ĨĞĂƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�
ƐƚƵĚǇ͘�^ŬĞƚĐŚ�WƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ�ĂƌĞĂ�
ĂŶĚ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ŶĞǁ� ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ŚĂǀĞ� ďĞĞŶ� ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ� ŝŶ� ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�
ǁŝƚŚ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ͘�&Žƌ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ�ƚǁŽ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƉƌŽͲ
ĚƵĐĞĚ͘�KƉƟŽŶ�ϭ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ϱ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ�ĂŶĚ�KƉƟŽŶ�Ϯ�ϰ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ͘�
&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�Ă�ƚǁŽ�ƐƚŽƌĞǇ�ďůŽĐŬ�ŝƐ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�ůŽĐĂͲ
ƟŽŶƐ� �� Žƌ� �͘� dŚĞ� ďůŽĐŬ� ŝŶ� ůŽĐĂƟŽŶ� �� ůŝŶŬƐ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ� ƐĐŚŽŽů�
ďĂůĐŽŶǇ� Ăƚ� ƌĞĂƌ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ŵĂŝŶ� ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͘� dŚŝƐ� ŶĞŐĂƚĞƐ� ƚŚĞ� ŶĞĞĚ� ĨŽƌ�
ƐƚĂŝƌĐĂƐĞƐ� ŝŶ� ƚŚŝƐ� ďůŽĐŬ͘� dŚĞ� ďůŽĐŬ� ŝŶ� ůŽĐĂƟŽŶ���ďĞŚŝŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ƐƉŽƌƚƐ�
ŚĂůů� ŝƐ� ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞůǇ�ĚĞƚĂĐŚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞƐ� ƚǁŽ� ƐƚĂŝƌĐĂƐĞƐ͘�KƉƟŽŶ�Ϯ�
ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ�ĂƌĞĂ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�Ϯ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďůŽĐŬ� ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽůͲ
ůĞŐĞ͛Ɛ�ƉƌĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͘ 
 
dŚĞ� Ăůů-ŝŶĐůƵƐŝǀĞ� ďƵĚŐĞƚ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ� ŝƐ� άϱ͘Ϯϱŵ͘� �� ĐŽƐƚ� ĞƐƟͲ
ŵĂƚĞ� ŚĂƐ� ďĞĞŶ� ƉƌŽĚƵĐĞĚ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ĐŽůůĞŐĞ͛Ɛ� ƉƌĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ� ŽƉƟŽŶ͘� dŚŝƐ�
ŽƉƟŽŶ�ĞǆĐĞĞĚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵĚŐĞƚ͘�dŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ĞŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�
ĂƌĞ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ďƵĚŐĞƚ͗ 
 
KƉƟŽŶ�� 
ZĞĚƵĐĞ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŽĨ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ǁŝƚŚ�Ϯŵ�ĚĞƉƚŚ�ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�Ăƚ�'&�ϭŵ�
ŵŝŶ� ĚĞƉƚŚ� ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ� Ăƚ� &&� ĂŶĚ� ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ� ƐƚĂŝƌ� ǁŝĚƚŚ� ƚŽ� ϭϮϱϬŵŵ�
;ϭϯϱϬŵŵ�ŽͬĂͿ� 
EĞǁ� �ƵŝůĚ� '/�� –� ŐƌŽƵŶĚ� ŇŽŽƌ� ϲϬϮŵϸ͕� ĮƌƐƚ� ŇŽŽƌ� ϰϵϳŵϸ� –� dKd�>�
ϭϬϵϵŵϸ 
ZĞŵŽĚĞů�'/��–�ϰϴϰŵϸ 
 
KƉƟŽŶ�� 
ZĞůŽĐĂƚĞ�ƚŽ�^ŝƚĞ�ĂƌĞĂ���ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�ĮƌƐƚ�ŇŽŽƌ�ďƌŝĚŐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�

ƚŽ� ƵƉƉĞƌ� ŇŽŽƌ͕� Žŵŝƚ� ƐƚĂŝƌƐ� ĂŶĚ� ůŝŌ� ďƵƚ� ƚŚĞƌĞ� ǁŝůů� ŶĞĞĚ� ƚŽ� ďĞ� ŝŵͲ
ƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ŚĞŝŐŚƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŐĂƚĞƐ�Ăƚ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ� ŝŶ�ĨƌŽŶƚ�ŽĨ�
ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ�ƚŽ�ŽǀĞƌĐŽŵĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�,Θ^�ͬ�ƐƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�
ƚŚĞ�ďƌŝĚŐĞƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�ĞǀĞƌǇĚĂǇ�ƵƐĞ͘� 
EĞǁ� �ƵŝůĚ� '/�� –� ŐƌŽƵŶĚ� ŇŽŽƌ� ϱϲϴŵϮ͕� ĮƌƐƚ� ŇŽŽƌ� ϰϰϯŵϸ� –� dKd�>�
ϭϬϭϭŵϸ 
ZĞŵŽĚĞů�'/��–�ϰϴϰŵϸ 
� 
KƉƟŽŶ�� 
�ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ�ZĞŵŽĚĞů�ƉůĂŶ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ϭ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵ�Ăƚ�ϲϮŵϸ�ĨŽƌ�/d�ƌŝĐŚ�
ƚĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ� ƐƉĂĐĞ� ĂŶĚ� ϰ� ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ� Ăƚ� ϱϱŵϸ� dŽŝůĞƚƐ� ǁŝůů� ŚĂǀĞ� ƚŽ� ďĞ�
ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĐĞŶƚƌĂů�ǌŽŶĞ�ĂƐ�Ă�ĚĞĂĚ-ĞŶĚ�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĂƚĞĚ�
ĨŽƌ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟŽŶ�ĂƌĞĂ͘ 
ZĞ-ƉůĂŶ� ƚŚĞ� ŐƌŽƵŶĚ� ŇŽŽƌ� ŽƉƟŽŶ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ŶĞǁ� ďƵŝůĚ� ƚŽ� Žŵŝƚ� ϲϮŵϸ�
ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵ͘ 
EĞǁ� �ƵŝůĚ� '/�� –� ŐƌŽƵŶĚ� ŇŽŽƌ� ϱϬϲŵϸ͕� ĮƌƐƚ� ŇŽŽƌ� ϰϲϯŵϸ� –� dKd�>�
ϵϲϵŵϸ 
ZĞŵŽĚĞů�'/��–�ϰϴϰŵϸ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

dŚĞ�tĂǇ�&ŽƌǁĂƌĚ 
 
tĞ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐĞƐ�ƚŽ�Z/���^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�
ǀĂůƵĞ� ĞŶŐŝŶĞĞƌĞĚ� ĂƐ� ŶĞĐĞƐƐĂƌǇ͘� ZĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ� ƐƵƌǀĞǇƐ� ƐŚŽƵůĚ� ďĞ� ĐŽŵͲ
ŵŝƐƐŝŽŶĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ƉƌĞ-ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ�ŚĞůĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�Z��͛Ɛ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�
ĚĞƉĂƌƚŵĞŶƚ͘� WƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ƌŽƵƚĞƐ� ƐŚŽƵůĚ� ďĞ� ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ͘� /Ĩ� ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�
ĂŶĚ�ďƵŝůĚ�ŝƐ�ĐŚŽƐĞŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ�ŽŶǁĂƌĚƐ�Ă�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶĞĞĚ�
ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĚƌĂǁ�ƵƉ�ƚĞŶĚĞƌ�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ƚŚĞ�
ƚĞŶĚĞƌƐ� ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ͘� ^ŚŽƵůĚ� ƚŚĞ� ĐŚŽƐĞŶ� ƉƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ƌŽƵƚĞ� ďĞ� ĨŽƌ�
ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĂŶĚ�ďƵŝůĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƐƚĂŐĞ�ϯ�Ă�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚĞĂŵ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚĞĚ� ĨŽƌ�ƐƚĂŐĞƐ�Ϯ�Θ�ϯ͘�&Žƌ�Ă� ƚƌĂĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ƉƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ƌŽƵƚĞ�Ă�
ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚĞĂŵ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƚĂŐĞƐ�Ϯ�ƚŽ�ϲ�ŝŶĐůƵƐŝǀĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƚĂŐĞ�
ϳ�͚/Ŷ-ƵƐĞ͛�ĂƐ�ŶĞĐĞƐƐĂƌǇ͘ 
 

 

 

208



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϯϭ 

� ���� 
 

$33(1',&(6  
 

 

&217(176  
$� _�&/,(17�%5,() �        3��� 

% _�&267�(67,0$7(        3��� 

&� _�6758&785$/�5(3257        3��� 

'� _�0(&+$1,&$/�	�(/(&75,&$/�5(3257      3��� 

(� _�6867$,1$%,/,7<�67$7(0(17       3��� 

)� _�(;,67,1*�)/225�3/$16       3��� 

*� _�6859(<�6&+(8/(        3��� 

+ _�675$7(*,&�5,6.6        3��� 

,� _�&21',7,21�5(3257        3��� 

  

209



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϯϮ 

dĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�ZĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ĨŽƌ�EW^ 
�ǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ�ƚŽ�ϴ�&Žƌŵ��ŶƚƌǇ�–��ŵĞŶĚĞĚ�ƚĂŬŝŶŐ�
ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ŽĨ�Z���ĚĞĂůŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƌĞůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ 
 
EŽƚĞ�–�WůĂŶŶĞĚ�ZĞůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ�ŝƐ��ŽŶĮĚĞŶƟĂů�ĂŶĚ�ŶŽƚ�ĨŽƌ�
ƐŚĂƌŝŶŐ�Žƌ�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ�ďĞǇŽŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ŐƌŽƵƉ͘ 
 
Z���ĐŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶĞĚ�EW^�ƚŽ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞ�Ă�&ĞĂƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�^ƚƵĚǇ�ĨŽƌ�^ĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�
^ĐŚŽŽů��ǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ŝŶ�ZƵƚůĂŶĚ͘��dŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ�ĐŽŵƉƌŝƐĞĚ�ƚǁŽ�ƐƚĂŐĞ͗ 

· ^ƚĂŐĞ�ϭ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ůŽŽŬŝŶŐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƐŝƚĞƐ 

· ^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ĚĞĂůŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƚĂŝů�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�
ƐŝƚĞ 

 
�ĂďŝŶĞƚ�ŽŶ�ϯϭ�:ƵůǇ�ϮϬϮϬ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞ�
^ƚĂŐĞ�dǁŽ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĞĂƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĞͲ
ĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ƐŝƚĞ�ŽĨ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ͕�KĂŬŚĂŵ�ƚŽ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ƉůĂĐĞƐ�
ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�ϴ�&Žƌŵ��ŶƚƌǇ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĂƐ�
ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�^ƚĂŐĞ�KŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƵĚǇ͘ 
 
dŚĞ�^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ�ĨĞĂƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ďƌŝĞĨ�ŝƐ�ƐĞƚ�ŽƵƚ�ďĞůŽǁ͗ 

dŚĞ�ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ�WŚĂƐĞ�Ϯ�ĨĞĂƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ�ǁŝůů�ďƵŝůĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƵƚƉƵƚƐ�
ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŚĂƐĞ�ϭ�ǁŽƌŬ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝůů� 
/ŶĐůƵĚĞ͗ 

Ă͘ ��ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ŽĨ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 
ď͘ �ĞǀĞůŽƉŝŶŐ�ĂƌĐŚŝƚĞĐƚƵƌĂů�ƐŬĞƚĐŚ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĂŶͲ

ƐŝŽŶ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ� 
Đ͘ WƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�Ă�ǁŝĚĞƌ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ĐŽŶĚŝͲ

ƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚ͘ 
Ě͘ �ĞǀĞůŽƉŝŶŐ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŵĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�Θ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů͕�ƐƚƌƵĐͲ

ƚƵƌĂů�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚĞƐ 
Ğ͘ �ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�ƐŝƚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌĂŝŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ 
Ĩ͘ �ŽƐƚ�ĞƐƟŵĂƚĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ 
Ő͘ /ĚĞŶƟĮĐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ŬĞǇ�ƌŝƐŬƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ƌŝƐŬ�ĂŶĚ�

ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ŝŵƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ 
Ś͘ �ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�

ŐƵŝĚĞůŝŶĞƐ 

ŝ͘ �ĞǀĞůŽƉŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ 
 
Z���ŝŶƚĞŶĚ�ƌĞůŽĐĂƟŶŐ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ��ĂǇ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ƚŽ�ĂŶ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ůŽĐĂͲ
ƟŽŶ͘�dŚĞ�ƉƌĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ŶĞǁ�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�Z��͛Ɛ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ƉŽƌƞŽͲ
ůŝŽ͘�Z���ǁŝůů�ŵĂŶĂŐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�Ăůů�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŵĂƩĞƌƐ͕�ƚŽ�ĞŶĂďůĞ�
ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶŶĞĚ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĞǆƉĂŶͲ
ƐŝŽŶ�ƐĐĂůĞƐ͘�Z���ǁŝůů�ŬĞĞƉ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�EW^�ƵƉĚĂƚĞĚ�ĂďŽƵƚ�
ĂĐƟǀŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ĨŽƌ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ͕�ĂůŽŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂŶǇ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ĂƌŝƐŝŶŐ�
ĨƌŽŵ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŵĂǇ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶŶĞĚ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ�
�ŽůůĞŐĞ͘�dŚĞ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ�ƉƌĞŵŝƐĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƚŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂǀĂŝůͲ
ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ͘� 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

�ůŝĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ��ŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ 

Z���ĂƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŶŐ�ĐůŝĞŶƚ�ďƵƚ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ�ǁŝůů�ũŽŝŶƚůǇ�ĂŐƌĞĞ�
ƚŚĞ�ƚĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�ƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ�ĨĞĂƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĨƵůů�
ŝŶƉƵƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ŽƵƚƉƵƚƐ�ĂƐ�ƐĞƚ�ŽƵƚ�ďĞůŽǁ͗ 
 

EW^�ǁŝůů�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂŶ�ŝŶŝƟĂů�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�Z���ĂŶĚ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ�
ĐŽůůĞŐĞ�ƚŽ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚ�ƌŽůĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďŝůŝƟĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŐƌĞĞ�
ƟŵŝŶŐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƵƚƉƵƚƐ 

/ŶŝƟĂů�ƐŬĞƚĐŚ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐĞĚ�ũŽŝŶƚůǇ�ǁŝƚŚ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ�
�ŽůůĞŐĞ͘ 

^ŬĞƚĐŚ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�Ăƚ�Ă�ĮŶĂů�ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ�
ǁŝƚŚ�Z���ĂŶĚ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂŶǇ�ƌĞƐƵůƟŶŐ�ĨĞĞĚͲ
ďĂĐŬ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ĮŶĂů�ƐŬĞƚĐŚ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ͘� 

&ŝŶĂů�ƐŬĞƚĐŚ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�EW^��ĞƐŝŐŶ�dĞĂŵ�ĨŽƌ�
ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŝŶƉƵƚ͘� 

��ƉƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ͕�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�
ƌĞŐŝƐƚĞƌ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ͘� 

&Ƶůů�ĐŽƐƚ�ĞƐƟŵĂƚĞƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐĞĚ͘� 
��ĚƌĂŌ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�Z���ĂŶĚ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůͲ

ůĞŐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚ͘��ŶǇ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐͬĂŵĞŶĚŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�
ŵĂĚĞ�ďǇ�EW^�ĂŶĚ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ďǇ�Z���ĂŶĚ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ�
ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƚŽ�ĮŶĂů�ŝƐƐƵĞ͘ 

 
Z��� 
D�tĂůƐŚ 
,ĞĂĚ�ŽĨ�WƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ 
ϭϱ�KĐƚ�ϮϬϮϬ 

� �$ 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&/,(17�%5,() 

210



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϯϯ 

� �% 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&267�$1$/<6,6 

211



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϯϰ 

� �% 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&267�$1$/<6,6 

212



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϯϱ 

� �% 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&267�$1$/<6,6 

213



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϯϲ 

� �% 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&267�$1$/<6,6 

214



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϯϳ 

� �% 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&267�$1$/<6,6 

215



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϯϴ 

� �% 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&267�$1$/<6,6 

216



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϯϵ 

� �% 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&267�$1$/<6,6 

217



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϰϬ 

� �% 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&267�$1$/<6,6 

218



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϰϭ 

� �% 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&267�$1$/<6,6 

219



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϰϮ 

� �% 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&267�$1$/<6,6 

220



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϰϯ 

� �% 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&267�$1$/<6,6 

221



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϰϰ 

� �% 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&267�$1$/<6,6 

222



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϰϱ 

� �% 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&267�$1$/<6,6 

223



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϰϲ 

� �& 
 

$33(1',&(6  
6758&785$/�5(3257 

/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ� 

�ŶŐĞŶƵŝƟ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚĞĚ�ďǇ�EW^�'ƌŽƵƉ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�
ĞŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŶĞǁ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵ�ďůŽĐŬ�
Ăƚ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ͕�KĂŬŚĂŵ͕�ZƵƚůĂŶĚ͕�>�ϭϱ�ϲZW͘�dŚĞ�ƐŝƚĞ�ŝƐ�Ă�
ŐƌĞĞŶĮĞůĚ�ůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂĚũĂĐĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ�
^ĐŚŽŽů� 

dŚĞ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�^ƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů��ŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ�Z/���^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ�ŝƐ�
ƚŽ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶĐĞƉƚƵĂů�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�ĞŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�
ĂƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƐƚĂŶĚ͘�dŚĞ�ƚŽƉŝĐƐ�ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ĂƌĞ͗ 

ϭ͘��^ƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�&ƌĂŵŝŶŐ�KƉƟŽŶƐ 

· �ŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�^ŽůƵƟŽŶ 

· �ƌŽƐƐ�>ĂŵŝŶĂƚĞĚ�dŝŵďĞƌ�;�>dͿ�^ŽůƵƟŽŶ 

· ^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�� 

Ϯ͘�^ƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�&ƌĂŵŝŶŐ��ĂƌďŽŶ��ĂůĐƵůĂƟŽŶ 

ϯ͘�&ŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶ�KƉƟŽŶƐ 

dŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĨŽŽƚƉƌŝŶƚ�ŝƐ�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�ϯϮŵ�ůŽŶŐ�ǆ�
ϮϬŵ�ǁŝĚĞ�Ăƚ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ŇŽŽƌ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�ϯϮŵ�ůŽŶŐ�ǆ�ϭϲŵ�
ǁŝĚĞ�Ăƚ�ĮƌƐƚ�ŇŽŽƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ϰŵ�ďĂůĐŽŶǇ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�Ă�ƐƚĂŝƌĐĂƐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ůŝŌ�
ĐŽƌĞ�ŽŶ�ŽŶĞ�ƐŝĚĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŶĞǁ�ďůŽĐŬ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ƚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�
ƚŽ�Ăůů�ŇŽŽƌƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽŽĨ͘� 

^ƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�ĨƌĂŵŝŶŐ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĚĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƌĐŚŝƚĞĐƚƵƌͲ
Ăů�ƐƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĨŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵďƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�
ƐƵŐŐĞƐƚĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ůŝŵŝƚĞĚ�ĚĞƐŬƚŽƉ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ĚĂƚĂ͘�&Žƌ�Ă�ĨƵůů�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚͲ
ŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�;ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ĚĞƉƚŚƐͿ�Ă�ĨƵůů�ƐŝƚĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƟͲ
ŐĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�Ăƚ�Ă�ůĂƚĞƌ�ƐƚĂŐĞ͘�� 

dŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆĐůƵƐŝǀĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�EW^�
'ƌŽƵƉ�ĂŶĚ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ǁŚŽůĞ�Žƌ�
ŝŶ�ƉĂƌƚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�ƚŚŝƌĚ�ƉĂƌƟĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐ�ƉĞƌŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�
�ŶŐĞŶƵŝƟ�ŝŶ�ǁƌŝƟŶŐ͘� 

dŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ƌĞůŝĞĚ�ƵƉŽŶ�ĞǆĐůƵƐŝǀĞůǇ�ĨŽƌ�ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶ�
ŵĂŬŝŶŐ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂĚ�ŝŶ�ĐŽŶũƵŶĐƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�
ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚƌĂǁŝŶŐƐ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚĞĂŵ͘ 

 

 

dŚĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�Z/���^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ�
ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ŝƐ�ŝŶƚĞŶĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ďĂƐŝƐ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ƉƌĞůŝŵŝŶĂƌǇ�ĂŶĚ�
ŝŶŝƟĂů�ĐŽƐƚ�ƉůĂŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐůŝĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�
ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂůůǇ͘�dŚĞ�Z/���^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĐŽŶͲ
ƐƟƚƵƚĞ�Ă�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĨƵůůǇ�ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ�ƚĞĐŚŶŝĐĂů�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵŝƚĂͲ
ďůĞ�ĐŽƐƚ�ĂůůŽǁĂŶĐĞƐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ƐƟůů�ďĞ�ŵĂĚĞ�ŝŶ�ƌĞƐƉĞĐƚ�ŽĨ�ƌŝƐŬ�ĂŶĚ�
ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͘� 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϭ�-�^ŝƚĞ�ƉůĂŶ�ƐŚŽǁŝŶŐ�ƚǁŽ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ƐŝƚĞ�ůŽĐĂƟŽŶƐ 

� 

� 

224



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϰϳ 

� �& 
 

$33(1',&(6  
6758&785$/�5(3257 

^ƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�&ƌĂŵŝŶŐ�KƉƟŽŶƐ 

dǁŽ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ�ƐƵƉĞƌƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ͗� 

�ŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�&ƌĂŵĞ 

��ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ĨƌĂŵĞ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ďĂƐĞůŝŶĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ĂƐ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�Ă�ƚƌŝĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚĞƐƚĞĚ�
ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŽīĞƌƐ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�ŽĨ�ĞǆƉŽƐĞĚ�ƚŚĞƌŵĂů�ŵĂƐƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ƌŽďƵƐƚ�ĂĐŽƵƐƟĐ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ͘�/ƚ�ŝƐ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĞǆƉŽƐĞĚ�
ƐŽĸƚƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͘����ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ĨƌĂŵĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŇĂƚ�ƐůĂďƐ�ĐĂŶ�
ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ϴŵ�ŐƌŝĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĮƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĂƌĐŚŝƚĞĐƚƵƌĂů�ůĂǇŽƵƚ͘�
&ůĂƚ�ƐůĂďƐ�ŽīĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ĂĚǀĂŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚĂƟŶŐ�ŚŽƌŝǌŽŶƚĂů�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ͘�dŚĂƚ�ƐĂŝĚ͕�ŝƚ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŶŽƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůǇ�
ƚŚŝĐŬ�ƐůĂďƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƐƉĂŶƐ͘�dŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�
ŵŽƌĞ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ͕�ŝƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŶĞĐĞƐƐĂƌǇ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌŝĚ�
ƐƉĂŶƐ�Žƌ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂůůǇ�ƚŽ�ĂĚŽƉƚ�ĚŽǁŶƐƚĂŶĚ�ďĞĂŵƐ�ŽŶ�ĐŽůƵŵŶƐ�ůŝŶĞƐ͘ 

�ƌŽƐƐ�>ĂŵŝŶĂƚĞĚ�dŝŵďĞƌ�&ƌĂŵĞ 

�Ŷ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ĨƌĂŵĞ�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�Ă�ĐƌŽƐƐ�ůĂŵŝŶĂƚĞĚ�
ƟŵďĞƌ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�;�>dͿ͘��>d�ĂŐĂŝŶ�ŽīĞƌƐ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĂĐŽƵƐƟĐ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌͲ
ŵĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆĐĞůůĞŶƚ�ĂŝƌƟŐŚƚŶĞƐƐ͘��>d�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚĚĞĚ�
ĂĚǀĂŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĞǆƚƌĞŵĞůǇ�ƋƵŝĐŬ�ƚŽ�ĞƌĞĐƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŝŶŝŵĂů�ƐŝƚĞ�
ǁĂƐƚĞ�Žƌ�ŵĞƐƐ͘��Ɛ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ĨƌĂŵĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͕�ϴŵ�ƐƉĂŶƐ�ĐĂŶ�
ďĞ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞĚ͕�ĂŶĚ�ďĞĐŽŵĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ƚǁŽ�
ĂĚũĂĐĞŶƚ�ƐƉĂŶƐ�ƐŽ�ĂƐ�ƚŽ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵŝƚǇ͘�dŚĂƚ�ƐĂŝĚ͕�ϴŵ�ŝƐ�ďĞǇŽŶĚ�
ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ƐƉĂŶ�ůĞŶŐƚŚ�ĨŽƌ�ƉƵƌĞ��>d͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�
ƐŽŵĞ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂů�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐŝĞƐ�ŝŶ�ŝŶƚƌŽĚƵĐŝŶŐ�ƐŽŵĞ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌǇ�ƐƚĞĞů�Žƌ�
ŐůƵůĂŵ�ďĞĂŵƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌǇ�ƐƉĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĚŝƌĞĐƟŽŶ�Ăƚ�ĐůŽƐĞƌ�;ƐĂǇ�ϯ-
ϲŵͿ�ĐĞŶƚƌĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ��>d�ƚŚĞŶ�ƐƉĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�ĚŝƌĞĐƟŽŶ�
ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌǇ�ďĞĂŵƐ͘ 

dŚĞ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�ƚŽ�Ă��>d�ĨƌĂŵĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŝƚƐ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ͘�
�Ɛ�ƚǇƉŝĐĂůůǇ�ϱϬй�ŽĨ�Ă�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͛Ɛ�ůŝĨĞƟŵĞ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ŽƵƚƉƵƚ�ŝƐ�ŝŶ�
ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ŝƚƐĞůĨ�;ƚŚĞ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ϱϬй�ŝƐ�ŝŶ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�ĐĂƌďŽŶͿ͕�
ƟŵďĞƌ�ŝƐ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�Ă�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ƐŝŶŬ�Žƌ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ŶĞŐĂƟǀĞ�ƐƚƌƵĐͲ
ƚƵƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĐĂŶ�ŽīƐĞƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĞŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁŝůů�
ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐĞ�;Ğ͘Ő�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶƐͿ͘�
dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĚĞƚĂŝů�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�^ƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�&ƌĂŵŝŶŐ�
�ĂƌďŽŶ��ĂůĐƵůĂƟŽŶ͘� 

�ŽǁŶƐƚĂŶĚ�ďĞĂŵƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐůĂď�
ĚĞƉƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ϴŵ�ďĂǇƐ�ŝŶƚŽ�ϰŵ�ďĂǇƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ŝŶ�
Ă�ϯ-ďĂǇ�ϰŵ�ƐƉĂŶ�ƚŽƚĂůůŝŶŐ�ϭϮŵ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĂĐƟĐĂů�
ůŝŵŝƚ�ŽĨ�ϭϯ͘ϱŵ�ƚŽ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�Ă��>d͘��ůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞůǇ͕�ϭϲŵ�ĚŽƵďůĞ�
ƐƉĂŶƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞĚ�Ăƚ�Ă�ůĂƚĞƌ�ƐƚĂŐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŇĂƚ�ƐŽĸƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�
Ă�ĚĞĞƉĞƌ�ϮϴϬŵŵ�ƐůĂď͘� 

�ŶŽƚŚĞƌ�ĂƌŐƵĂďůĞ�ďĞŶĞĮƚ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƉƉĞĂƌĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ��>d͘���Ɛ�Ă�
ŶĂƚƵƌĂů�ǁŽŽĚ� 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�Ϯ��ŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�&ƌĂŵĞ &ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϯ��>d�&ƌĂŵĞ 
 

225



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϰϴ 

� �& 
 

$33(1',&(6  
6758&785$/�5(3257 

^ƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�&ƌĂŵŝŶŐ�KƉƟŽŶƐ�-��ŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ��� 

 

^<ϬϬϯ—�ŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ƌŽŽĨ�ůĞǀĞů 

^<ϬϬϮ—�ŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ĮƌƐƚ�ŇŽŽƌ 

^<ϬϬϭ—�ŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�^ŽůƵƟŽŶ�ϯ� 

226



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϰϵ 

� �& 
 

$33(1',&(6  
6758&785$/�5(3257 

^ƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�&ƌĂŵŝŶŐ�KƉƟŽŶƐ�–��ƌŽƐƐ�>ĂŵŝŶĂƚĞĚ�dŝŵďĞƌ�;�>dͿ��  

^<ϬϬϰ—�ƌŽƐƐ�ůĂŵŝŶĂƚĞĚ�ƟŵďĞƌ��ϯ� 

^<ϬϬϱ—�ƌŽƐƐ�ůĂŵŝŶĂƚĞĚ�ƟŵďĞƌ��ĮƌƐƚ�ŇŽŽƌ 

^<ϬϬϲ—�ƌŽƐƐ�ůĂŵŝŶĂƚĞĚ�ƟŵďĞƌ��ƌŽŽĨ�ůĞǀĞů 

227



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϱϬ 

� �& 
 

$33(1',&(6  
6758&785$/�5(3257 

^ƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�&ƌĂŵŝŶŐ�KƉƟŽŶƐ�–�^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�� 

�ŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�WƌŽƐ 

· ZŽďƵƐƚ 

· dŚĞƌŵĂů�DĂƐƐ�;;ƚŚĞƌĞďǇ�ƌĞĚƵĐŝŶŐͬĞůŝŵŝŶĂƟŶŐ�ŶĞĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�
ŵĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�ĐŽŽůŝŶŐͿ 

· &ůĂƚ�ƐŽĸƚƐ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ͕�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚĂƟŶŐ�ŚŽƌŝǌŽŶƚĂů�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĚŝƐƚƌŝͲ
ďƵƟŽŶ 

· DŝŶŝŵĂů�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�ǁĂůůƐ�ƐŽ�ŵĂǆŝŵĂů�ŇĞǆŝďŝůŝƚǇͬ
ĂĚĂƉƚĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƐƉĂĐĞƐ 

· 'ŽŽĚ�ĂĐŽƵƐƟĐ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ 

 

�>d�WƌŽƐ 

· ZŽďƵƐƚ�ĂƐƐƵŵŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽƉĞƌůǇ�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƉƉůŝĞĚ�ǁĂƚĞƌͲ
ƉƌŽŽĨ�ŵĞŵďƌĂŶĞƐ 

· EŽƚĂďůǇ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĞŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ǁŚĞŶ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�
ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͘�� 

· sĞƌǇ�ƋƵŝĐŬ�ƚŽ�ďƵŝůĚ͘��ůƐŽ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ĐůĞĂŶ�;ĂƐ�ŵŝŶŝŵĂů�
ǁĞƚ�ƚƌĂĚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽǁ�ǁĂƐƚĂŐĞͿ 

· >ŝŐŚƚĞƌ�ǁĞŝŐŚƚ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ƐŽ�ĨŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶ�ƐŝǌĞƐ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ 

 

 

�ƵƌĂďŝůŝƚǇ��ŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ 

�ŽƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƟŵďĞƌ�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ǀŝƐƵĂůůǇ�ŇĂƚ�ƌŽŽĨƐ͘�
,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�Ă�ŶŽŵŝŶĂů�ϭ͗ϰϬ�ĨĂůů�ƚŽ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ�Ă�ŵŝŶŝŵƵŵ�ϭ͗ϴϬ�ĨĂůů�
ŽŶĐĞ�ĚĞŇĞĐƟŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƚĂŬĞŶ�ŝŶƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ŵƵƐƚ�ďĞ�ĂůůŽǁĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�Ăƚ�
ƌŽŽĨ�ůĞǀĞů�ĂŶĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďĂůĐŽŶǇ�ůĞǀĞů�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ��>d�ŽƉƟŽŶ͘ 

�>d�ŝƐ�ŵĂĚĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƵŶƚƌĞĂƚĞĚ�ƐŽŌǁŽŽĚ͘�/ƚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�
ƚŚĂƚ��>d�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ƚǁŽ-ůĂǇĞƌ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚ�ĂƉƉůŝĞĚ�ǁĂƚĞƌƉƌŽŽĨ�
ŵĞŵďƌĂŶĞ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŵŝŶŝŵƵŵ�ϯϬϬŵŵ�ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ƵƉƐƚĂŶĚƐ�ĂƌŽƵŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�
ƉĞƌŝŵĞƚĞƌ�ƟŵďĞƌ͘��ĂƌĞĨƵů�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĚƌĂŝŶĂŐĞ�ƉŽŝŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ĚĞƚĂŝůŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ǁĂƚĞƌƉƌŽŽĮŶŐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ͕�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ŝĨ�ŐƌĞĞŶ�
Žƌ�ďůƵĞ�ƌŽŽĨƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞĚ͘� 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϰ�-�EŽŵŝŶĂů�&ĂůůƐ�ZĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ 

EŽŵŝŶĂů�ϭ͗ϰϬ�ƚŽ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ�ϭ͗ϴϬ�&Ăůů� 

228



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϱϭ 

� �& 
 

$33(1',&(6  
6758&785$/�5(3257 

^ƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�&ƌĂŵŝŶŐ��ĂƌďŽŶ��ĂůĐƵůĂƟŽŶ�� 

ZƵƚůĂŶĚ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ĚƌĂŌ�ŶĞǁ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƚĂĐŬůĞ�ĐůŝŵĂƚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ͘�
���ůŝŵĂƚĞ��ŚĂŶŐĞ��ĐƟŽŶ�DŽƟŽŶ�ǁĂƐ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�ďǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌ�'ŽƌĚŽŶ�
�ƌŽǁŶ͕��ĂďŝŶĞƚ�DĞŵďĞƌ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ��ŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ͕�Ăƚ�ZƵƚůĂŶĚ͛Ɛ�&Ƶůů��ŽƵŶĐŝů�
DĞĞƟŶŐ�ŽŶ�DŽŶĚĂǇ�ϭϰ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϵ͘ 

͞/ƚ͛Ɛ�ĐůĞĂƌ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ĐůŝŵĂƚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ĂƌĞ�ĐĂƵƐŝŶŐ�ƐĞƌŝŽƵƐ�ĚĂŵͲ
ĂŐĞ�ĂƌŽƵŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŽƌůĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁĞ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĚŽ�Ăůů�ǁĞ�ĐĂŶ�ƚŽ�ƚƌǇ�ĂŶĚ�
ŬĞĞƉ�ŐůŽďĂů�ƚĞŵƉĞƌĂƚƵƌĞ�ƌŝƐĞƐ�ďĞůŽǁ�ϭ͘ϱΣ�͘�>ŽĐĂů�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ĚƵƚǇ�
ƚŽ�ĂĐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĐĂŶŶŽƚ�ƐŝŵƉůǇ�ǁĂŝƚ�ĨŽƌ�ŶĂƟŽŶĂů�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ŝƚƐ�
ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ͘�tĞ�ĨƵůůǇ�ĂĐĐĞƉƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝůů�ƐŽŽŶ�ďĞ�
ƉƵƫŶŐ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ǁŝĚĞ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ�ĂŝŵĞĚ�Ăƚ�
ŵĂŬŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂůůǇ�ĨƌŝĞŶĚůǇ͘�
dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ƐŽŵĞƚŚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�Ăůů�ůŽĐĂů�ĂƵƚŚŽƌŝƟĞƐ�ŵƵƐƚ�ĚŽ�ŝĨ�ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƚŽ�ŚĞůƉ�
ůŝŵŝƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞīĞĐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ĐůŝŵĂƚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ŽŶ�Ă�ŐůŽďĂů�ƐĐĂůĞ͘͟ 

&ƌŽŵ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂǀĞ�ƐĞƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ 

· DĂŬĞ�ƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͛Ɛ�ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ�Ă�ŶĞƚ-ǌĞƌŽ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�
ĨŽŽƚƉƌŝŶƚ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ϮϬϱϬ 

· �ĐŚŝĞǀĞ�ϭϬϬй�ĐůĞĂŶ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�Ăůů�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ĨƵŶĐƟŽŶƐ�ďǇ�
ϮϬϱϬ�Žƌ�ĞĂƌůŝĞƌ 

· WƌŽǀŝĚĞ�Ă�ĐůŝŵĂƚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ŽŶ�Ăůů�ƌĞůĞǀĂŶƚ�
ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶƐ 

· ZĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƐĐƌƵƟŶǇ�ƉĂŶĞůƐ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ĐůŝŵĂƚĞ�
ĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ�ǁŚĞŶ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁŝŶŐ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ 

· ZĞǀŝĞǁ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚĂŬĞ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�
ĐŽŶƐƵŵƉƟŽŶ�ĞŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ 

 

· ^Ğƚ�ƵƉ�Ă��ůŝŵĂƚĞ��ŚĂŶŐĞ�WĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ�'ƌŽƵƉ�ŝŶǀŽůǀŝŶŐ�
ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ͕�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ͕�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ͕�ĐůŝŵĂƚĞ�ĞǆƉĞƌƚƐ͕�
ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐĞƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƌĞůĞǀĂŶƚ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ 

· �ŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞ�ƚŚĞ�h<�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽǁĞƌƐ͕�
ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ŶĞĞĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ƚĂĐŬůĞ�ĐůŝŵĂƚĞ�
ĐŚĂŶŐĞ 

tŝƚŚ�ƚǇƉŝĐĂůůǇ�ŽǀĞƌ�ϱϬй�ŽĨ�Ă�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͛Ɛ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ŽƵƚƉƵƚ�ĐŽŵŝŶŐ�ĨƌŽŵ�
ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ŝƚƐĞůĨ͕�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�
ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ƌĞƐƉĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ŽƵƚƉƵƚ�ŝŶ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŶƵͲ
ĨĂĐƚƵƌŝŶŐ͘� 

��ƐŝŵƉůĞ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƟŽŶ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĐĂƌƌŝĞĚ�ŽƵƚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞ�ĐŽŶͲ
ĐƌĞƚĞ�ĂŶĚ��>d�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ͘�dŚĞ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƟŽŶ�ƚĂŬĞƐ�ŝŶƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�
ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĞůĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

^ƵďƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ 

· �ŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�^ƚƌŝƉ�&ŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ 

· �ŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�^ůĂď�Ăƚ�'& 

^ƵƉĞƌƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�–��ŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�KƉƟŽŶ 

· �ŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ƐůĂďƐ�Ăƚ�ĮƌƐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌŽŽĨ�ůĞǀĞů 

· �ŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ��ŽůƵŵŶƐ 

· �ŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�tĂůůƐ� 

 

 

^ƵƉĞƌƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�–�dŝŵďĞƌ�KƉƟŽŶ 

· dŝŵďĞƌ�ƐůĂďƐ�Ăƚ�ĮƌƐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌŽŽĨ�ůĞǀĞů 

· dŝŵďĞƌ��ŽůƵŵŶƐ 

· dŝŵďĞƌ�tĂůůƐ 

· 'ůƵůĂŵ��ĞĂŵƐ 

 

dŚĞ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚŽƌ�ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�Ăƚ�
ƚŚŝƐ�ƐƚĂŐĞ 

· &ĂĐĂĚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĮŶŝƐŚĞƐ 

· dŚĞ�ůŝŌ�ĐŽƌĞ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ 

· dŚĞ�ƐƚĂŝƌ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ 

 

 

 

229



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϱϮ 

� �& 
 

$33(1',&(6  
6758&785$/�5(3257 

^ƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�&ƌĂŵŝŶŐ��ĂƌďŽŶ��ĂůĐƵůĂƟŽŶ��� 

dŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƐŚŽǁƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŵďŽĚŝĞĚ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ďŽƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�
ĂŶĚ�ƟŵďĞƌ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ͘�dŚĞ�ĞŵďŽĚŝĞĚ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��>d�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�
ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�ϭͬϯƌĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͘�dŚĞ�Z/���ŚĂǀĞ�ƐĞƚ�Ă�
ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�ĨŽƌ�ϮϬϯϬ�ĨŽƌ�ĞŵďŽĚŝĞĚ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�фϯϬϬŬŐͬ�KϮ�ŵϮ͘�,ŽǁͲ
ĞǀĞƌ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ǁŽƌƚŚ�ŶŽƟŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƟŽŶƐ�ďĞůŽǁ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�
Įƚ�ŽƵƚ�Žƌ�ĨĂĕĂĚĞƐ͘ 

�ŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�–�ϯϬϱŬŐͬ�ϬϮ�ŵϮ �>d��–�ϴϱŬŐͬ�ϬϮ�ŵϮ�;ΎͿ 

Ύ�ĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĞƋƵĞƐƚƌĂƟŽŶ 

230



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϱϯ 

� �& 
 

$33(1',&(6  
6758&785$/�5(3257 

&ŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶ�KƉƟŽŶƐ�� 

���ĨƵůů�ƐŝƚĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƟŐĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶ�
ŽƉƟŽŶƐ͘� 

��ĚĞƐŬƚŽƉ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ƚŽ�ůŽŽŬ�Ăƚ�ďŽƌĞŚŽůĞƐ�ƌĞĐͲ
ŽƌĚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƌĞĂ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĚũĂĐĞŶƚ�ƐŝŵŝůĂƌ�ƉƌĞĐĞĚĞŶƚ�ĨŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ͘�� 

�ƌŝƟƐŚ�'ĞŽůŽŐŝĐĂů�^ƵƌǀĞǇ�DĂƉ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽ�ďŽƌĞŚŽůĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ��'^�ƌĞĐŽƌĚƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ϭŬŵ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝƚĞ͘ 

dŚĞ�ŶĞĂƌĞƐƚ�ďŽƌĞŚŽůĞ�ƌĞĐŽƌĚ�;ƐĞĞ�ĮŐƵƌĞ�ϱͿ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚĞƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌůǇŝŶŐ�
ĐůĂǇ�ƚŽ�Ă�ŵĂǆŝŵƵŵ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞĚ�ĚĞƉƚŚ�ŽĨ�ϱϬŵ͘ 

/ƚ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŶŽƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐůĂǇ�ĚĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ďŽƌĞŚŽůĞ�ƌĞĐŽƌĚ�
ŝƐ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�Ă�ƐƵŝƚĂďůĞ�ďĞĂƌŝŶŐ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂů�ĨŽƌ�ƐŚĂůůŽǁ�ĨŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ͘�
,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ǁŝůů�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ϭŵ�ĚĞĞƉ�ƚŽ�ĂůůŽǁ�ĨŽƌ�ĞǆͲ
ƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŚƌŝŶŬĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐůĂǇƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂǇ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƐŝŐŶŝĮͲ
ĐĂŶƚůǇ�ĚĞĞƉĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽǆŝŵŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƚƌĞĞƐ͘ 

�ŽƌĞŚŽůĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ 

231



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϱϰ 

� �& 
 

$33(1',&(6  
6758&785$/�5(3257 

&ŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶ�KƉƟŽŶƐ�� 

WƌĞĐĞĚĞŶƚ�&ŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ� 

dŚĞ�ĂĚũĂĐĞŶƚ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ǁĂƐ�ĨŽƵŶĚĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƐƚƌŝƉ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂĚ�ĨŽƵŶͲ
ĚĂƟŽŶƐ�ŽŶƚŽ�ďĞĚƌŽĐŬ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ϯϬϬŬEͬŵϮ͘� 

 

 

 

dŚĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐŝĚĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂƉƉĞĂƌƐ�ƚŽ�ǀĂƌǇ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�
ϭϭϱ͘ϳϱϬŵ�ƚŽ�ϭϭϲ͘ϱϬϬŵ� 

&ŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶ�KƉƟŽŶ�^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ 

&ƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽƌĞŚŽůĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�
ĂĚũĂĐĞŶƚ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĨŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ͕�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƐƚƌŝƉ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂĚ�
ĨŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂĚĞƋƵĂƚĞ͕�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ĐŽůƵŵŶ�ĂŶĚ�
ǁĂůů�ůŽĐĂƟŽŶƐ͘� 

/Ŷ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞƐƚ�ĐĂƐĞ�ƐĐĞŶĂƌŝŽ͕�ŐŽŽĚ�ďĞĚƌŽĐŬ�ŝƐ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůǇ�
ƐŚĂůůŽǁ�ĚĞƉƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�ŶĞǁ�ĨŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞĂƌ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚůǇ�ŽŶƚŽ�ƚŚŝƐ�
ƌŽĐŬ͕�ƚĂŬŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞŶĞĮƚ�ŽĨ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůǇ�ŚŝŐŚ�ďĞĂƌŝŶŐ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƟĞƐ͘ 

&ĂŝůŝŶŐ�ƚŚŝƐ͕�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ĨŽƵŶĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂŶ�ŝŶƚĞƌŵĞĚŝĂƚĞ�ůĂǇĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĐůĂǇ͕�
ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞĂƌ�ŽŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĐůĂǇ͕�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŐŽ�ĚĞĞƉ�
ĞŶŽƵŐŚ�ƚŽ�ĂǀŽŝĚ�ĂŶǇ�ŶĞŐĂƟǀĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƐŚƌŝŶŬĂŐĞ�Žƌ�ĞǆƉĂŶͲ
ƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐůĂǇƐ�;ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ĐůŽƐĞ�ƚŽ�ƚƌĞĞƐͿ͘ 

/Ŷ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŽƌƐƚ�ĐĂƐĞ͕��ŝĨ�Ă�ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚ�ĚĞƉƚŚ�ŽĨ�DĂĚĞ�'ƌŽƵŶĚ��ǁĂƐ�
ĨŽƵŶĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ͕�Ă�ƉŝůĞĚ�ĨŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶ�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�;ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂůůǇ�ŵŝŶŝͲ
ƉŝůĞƐ�Žƌ�ƐĐƌĞǁƉŝůĞƐͿ�ŵŝŐŚƚ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ͘� 

 

 

dŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ĂŶǇ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚǁĂƚĞƌ�ǁŝůů�ĂůƐŽ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ǀĞƌŝĮĞĚ�ďǇ�
ŵĞĂŶƐ�ŽĨ�Ă�ĨƵůů�^ŝƚĞ�/ŶǀĞƐƟŐĂƟŽŶ͘ 

/Ĩ�ĐůĂǇ�ŝƐ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ͕�Ă�ƐƵƐƉĞŶĚĞĚ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ƐůĂď�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ŵĂǇ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�
ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵŝƟŐĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĞīĞĐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƐŚƌŝŶŬĂŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĞĂǀĞ͘�/Ĩ�
ƚŚĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌůǇŝŶŐ�ŶĂƚƵƌĂů�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ŝƐ�ƌŽĐŬ�Žƌ�ŐƌĂŶƵůĂƌ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂů�;ĂŶĚ�
ĂŶǇ�ƐŚĂůůŽǁ�DĂĚĞ�'ƌŽƵŶĚ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŐƌĂŶƵůĂƌ�ĮůůͿ�
ƚŚĞŶ�Ă�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ-ďĞĂƌŝŶŐ�ƐůĂď�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĚ͘ 

 

 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϲ�-��ĚũĂĐĞŶƚ��ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�&ŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶ�^ĂŵƉůĞ��ƌĂǁŝŶŐ 

232



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϱϱ 

� �& 
 

$33(1',&(6  
6758&785$/�5(3257 

233



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϱϲ 

� �' 
 

$33(1',&(6  
0(&+$1,&$/�	�(/(&75,&$/�5(3257 

�ĂĐŬŐƌŽƵŶĚ 

�ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�ŽǀĞƌ-ƐƵďƐĐƌŝďĞĚ�ϳ�&Žƌŵ�ŽĨ��ŶƚƌǇ�;&�Ϳ�ƐĞĐͲ
ŽŶĚĂƌǇ�ĂĐĂĚĞŵǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ZƵƚůĂŶĚ�ĂŶĚ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�^ĐŚŽŽůƐ͛�
&ĞĚĞƌĂƟŽŶ͘ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƉůĂŶƐ�ƚŽ�ĞǆƚĞŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ��ůŝĞŶƚ�'ƌŽƵƉ�ǁĂŶƚĞĚ�
ƚŽ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƚŽ�ƉůĂŶƐ�
ďĞŝŶŐ�ƐĞƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ͘ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�Ă�ŐŽŽĚ�ƐĞƚ�ŽĨ�KƉĞƌĂƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�DĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�DĂŶƵĂůƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ZĞĐŽƌĚ��ƌĂǁŝŶŐƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ͘ 

�ǆĞĐƵƟǀĞ�^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ� 

dŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ǁĂƐ�ďƵŝůƚ�ŝŶ�ϮϬϭϬ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂŶĚĞĚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ŝŶ�&ĞďƌƵͲ
ĂƌǇ�ϮϬϭϭ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŝƐ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ŝŶ�Ă�ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͕�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌůǇ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ůĂƌŐĞůǇ�ƚƌŽƵďůĞ-ĨƌĞĞ͘ 

tŚŝůƐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�dϱ�ͬ��ŽŵƉĂĐƚ�&ůƵŽƌĞƐĐĞŶƚ�ůŝŐŚƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�
ƌĞƉĂŝƌ͕�ŝƚ���ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƐĞůĨ-ĮŶĂŶĐŝŶŐ�ŽǀĞƌ�Ă�ϳ-ǇĞĂƌ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞ�
ƚŚĞƐĞ�ůŝŐŚƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�>���ĞƋƵŝǀĂůĞŶƚƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŚĂƐ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂůůŽǁĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ŝŶ�
ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĞǆĐĞƉƚ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ůŝŐŚƟŶŐ�ŝƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůĞĚ͘ 

dŚĞ��ŝŽŵĂƐƐ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ŝƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚĞ�ďƵƚ�ŚĂƐ�ĨĂůůĞŶ�ŝŶƚŽ�ĚŝƐ-
ƵƐĞ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŚŝŐŚ�ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŽŽĚ-ƉĞůůĞƚƐ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�
ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ŐĂƐ-ĮƌĞĚ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�ĂīĞĐƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶ�ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ�ƚŽ�
ĞǆƚĞŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ͘� 

/ƚ�ĂƉƉĞĂƌĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƐƉĂƌĞ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�
ŵĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƚĞ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶͲ
ƐŝŽŶ�ŝĨ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ĂůƚŚŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĐŽŵŝŶŐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ďŽŝůĞƌ�ƌŽŽŵ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂƌ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�
ůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ƐŽ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ůŽĐĂů�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĐŽŵŝŶŐ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�
ŐĂƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂůůŽǁĞĚ͘�dŚĞ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů�ƐƵƉƉůǇ�ŝƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�
ƚĂŬĞŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĂŬĞ�ƌŽŽŵ͘ 

/ƚ�ŝƐ�ĂŶƟĐŝƉĂƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ǁŝůů�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�>���
>ŝŐŚƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�WĂƌƚ�D��ŽŵƉůŝĂŶƚ�ƐǁŝƚĐŚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽĐŬĞƚ�ŽƵƚůĞƚƐ͘�dŚĞ�
ŶĞǁ�ůŝŌ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĨƵůůǇ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐŝďůĞ͘ 

�ůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ŝ͘Ğ͘�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů͕�ŝŶƚƌƵĚĞƌ�ĂůĂƌŵƐ͕�ĮƌĞ�ĂůĂƌŵƐ͕�
��ds�/�d��ĂƚĂ�ĞƚĐ͘�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ŵĂŝŶ�
ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ĐŽŵƉĂƟďŝůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĨƵůů�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ͘ 

DĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂůůǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ�ĂƐ�ŐĂƐ�ĮƌĞĚ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�
ĂŶĚ�ŚŽƚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƵŶĚĞƌŇŽŽƌ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ĐĞŶƚƌĂů�ŵĂŝŶƐ-ĨĞĚ�
ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘ 

sĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ�ĂƐ�Ă�ƌŽŽŵ-ďǇ-ƌŽŽŵ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŵĞĐŚĂŶŝͲ
ĐĂů�ǀĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƌĞĐŽǀĞƌǇ�;Ds,ZͿ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ͘�'ƌŽƵŶĚ-ŇŽŽƌ�
ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌŝŵĞƚĞƌ�ǁĂůů�ĂŶĚ�ĮƌƐƚ�ŇŽŽƌ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽŽĨ͘ 

dŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůĞĚ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ��ĚƵůƚ��ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŽĚŝĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�DΘ��ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ĂƐ�ƌĞͲ
ƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌƟƟŽŶĞĚ�ůĂǇŽƵƚ͘� 

DΘ��^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ZĞǀŝĞǁ 

�ůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ƐƵď-ƐƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ŝƐ�ƉƌŽͲ
ǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ϮϬϬϬ��ŵƉ͕�ϯ-WŚĂƐĞ�ƉĂŶĞů�ďŽĂƌĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů�
ŝŶƚĂŬĞ�ĐƵƉďŽĂƌĚ�ĂĚũĂĐĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ƉůĂŶƚ�ƌŽŽŵ͘�KŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ĚĂǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŝƐŝƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ�ĨƵůů�ŽĨ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŬŝƚĐŚĞŶƐ�
ƉƌĞƉĂƌŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ůƵŶĐŚ͕�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ǁĂƐ�ĚƌĂǁŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�ϱϬϬ�
�ŵƉƐ�ƉĞƌ�ƉŚĂƐĞ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƟŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƐƉĂƌĞ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�
ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ͘�tĞ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ƐƵď-ŵĂŝŶƐ�ĐĂďůĞ�
ďĞ�ƌƵŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ă�ƐƉĂƌĞ�ǁĂǇ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů�ŝŶƚĂŬĞ�ƌŽŽŵ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�
ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ͕�ƌƵŶ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͘ 

/ŶĐŽŵŝŶŐ�ͬ�^ŵĂůů�WŽǁĞƌ 

dŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƉŽǁĞƌ�ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ďŽĂƌĚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�Ăůů�ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶƚ͕�ŽƉĞƌĂͲ
ƟŽŶĂů�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ�ĂƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�
ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂŐĞ͘ 

��ŶĞǁ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĐƵƉďŽĂƌĚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�
ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŚŽƵƐĞ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ƐƵď-ŵĞƚĞƌĞĚ͕�ƐƉůŝƚ�ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ďŽĂƌĚ�
ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĂŐĞ�ŝƐ�ƐƵď-ŵĞƚĞƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƵƐĞ�ĂƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�
ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ�ƚŚĞ��Z���D�sĞƌǇ�'ŽŽĚ�ƐƵď-ŵĞƚĞƌŝŶŐ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚƐ͘�&ŝŶĂů�
ĐŝƌĐƵŝƚƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�Z��KƐ�;ZĞƐŝĚƵĂů��ƵƌƌĞŶƚ��ŝƌĐƵŝƚ�
�ƌĞĂŬĞƌƐͿ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵď�ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ďŽĂƌĚƐ�ĂƐ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ�ďǇ�
ǁŝƌŝŶŐ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶƐ͘ 

EĞǁ�ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ďŽĂƌĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŵĂůů�ƉŽǁĞƌ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŝŶƐƚĂůůĞĚ�ƚŽ�
ŵĞĞƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ƉƌĞŵŝƐĞƐ͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ŵĞĐŚĂŶŝͲ
ĐĂů�ƉůĂŶƚ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂů�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ͘��ůů�
ƚŚĞ�ǁŝƌŝŶŐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŝŶ�ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ǁŝƌŝŶŐ�ƌĞŐƵůĂͲ
ƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��^ϳϲϳϭ͘ 

>ŝŐŚƚ�ƐǁŝƚĐŚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉŽǁĞƌ�ŽƵƚůĞƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽŽŵƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŝƌĐƵůĂƟŽŶ�
ĂƌĞĂƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƉůĂƐƟĐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶ�ƉůĂŶƚ�ƌŽŽŵ�ŝƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŵĞƚĂů�ĐůĂĚ͘�
/ŶƐƚĂůůĂƟŽŶ�ŚĞŝŐŚƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽůŽƵƌ�ĂƉƉĞĂƌĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƌŽŶƚ�ĐŽǀĞƌƐ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ŽƵƚůĞƚƐ�ǁŝůů�ĐŽŵƉůǇ�ǁŝƚŚ��ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ZĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶ�WĂƌƚ�D�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝƐ�
ĨŽƌ�ĨƵůů�ĂĐĐĞƐƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ͘ 

dŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�ϰϬϬ�ƐƋ͘ŵ͘��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ��ĚƵůƚ��ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�
�ĞŶƚƌĞ�ŽĐĐƵƉŝĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�^ŽƵƚŚ�tĞƐƚ�ĐŽƌŶĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ŇŽŽƌ�ĂŶĚ�
ŝƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĨŽƌŵ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƌĞůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ƉĂƌƟƟŽŶƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ƚŽŝůĞƚƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů�ŝŶƐƚĂůůĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ůŝŐŚƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂƌĞĂ�ǁŝůů�
ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞŵŽǀĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůĞĚ�ͬ�ƌĞ-ǁŝƌĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�
ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ďŽĂƌĚ͘ 

234



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϱϳ 

� �' 
 

$33(1',&(6  
0(&+$1,&$/�	�(/(&75,&$/�5(3257 

'ĞŶĞƌĂů�>ŝŐŚƟŶŐ 

dŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůĞĚ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ��ĚƵůƚ��ĚƵĐĂͲ
ƟŽŶ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�>���ůƵŵŝŶĂŝƌĞƐ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�
^>>��ŽĚĞ�ĨŽƌ�>ŝŐŚƟŶŐ�ϮϬϭϮ͕��/�^��>ŝŐŚƟŶŐ�'ƵŝĚĞ�ϳ�ƐĞĐƟŽŶƐ�Ϯ͘ϰ͕�
Ϯ͘ϭϯ�ƚŽ�Ϯ͘ϭϱ͕�Ϯ͘ϮϬ͕�ĂŶĚ�ϲ͘ϭϬ�ƚŽ�ϲ͘ϮϬ�ĂƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�
�Z���D�sĞƌǇ�'ŽŽĚ�ǀŝƐƵĂů�ĐŽŵĨŽƌƚ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚƐ͘�>ŝŐŚƟŶŐ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽůƐ�ƐŚĂůů�
ďĞ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶĐǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵĂŶƵĂů�͚KŶ͛�ĂŶĚ�
ĂďƐĞŶĐĞ�͚Kī͛�ĂƵƚŽŵĂƟĐ�ƐǁŝƚĐŚŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞ�ƐǁŝƚĐŚŝŶŐ�ͬ�ĚŝŵͲ
ŵŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�tŚŝƚĞďŽĂƌĚ�ƌŽǁ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁ�ƌŽǁ�ŽĨ�ůƵŵŝŶĂŝƌĞƐ͘ 

�ŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ�>ŝŐŚƟŶŐ 

EĞǁ�ĞŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ�ůŝŐŚƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ŵĂŝŶ�
ůŝŐŚƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ��^ϱϮϲϲ͕�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�
ŶĞǁ�ĮƌĞ�ĞǀĂĐƵĂƟŽŶ�ƉůĂŶŶĞĚ�ƌŽƵƚĞ�ĐŽǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŚŝŐŚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ĞƐĐĂƉĞ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ�ŽƵƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƌĞĞƚ͘ 

/ŶƚƌƵĚĞƌ��ůĂƌŵ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�/ŶƚƌƵĚĞƌ��ůĂƌŵ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ŝŶƐƚĂůůĞĚ�ĐŽŵƉƌŝƐŝŶŐ�W/Z�ƐĞŶͲ
ƐŽƌƐ͕�ǁŝŶĚŽǁ�ĂŶĚ�Ğǆŝƚ�ĚŽŽƌ�ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ͘�
dŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŶĞǁ�ŝŶƚƌƵĚĞƌ�ĂůĂƌŵƐ�ƚŽ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ-
ŇŽŽƌ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐŝďůĞ�ĚŽŽƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�W/ZƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽƵŶĚͲ
ĞƌƐ͘�dŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ŝŶƚƌƵĚĞƌ�ĂůĂƌŵ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂŶ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ĐŽŵƉĂƟďŝůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĨƵůů�ŝŶƚĞͲ
ŐƌĂƟŽŶ�ďƵƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ůŽĐĂů�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�ƉĂŶĞůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŬĞǇƉĂĚƐ͘ 

dŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ŝŶƚƌƵĚĞƌ�ĂůĂƌŵ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ��^��E�
ϱϬϭϯϭ�ϮϬϭϳ͘ 

dŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůĞĚ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ��ĚƵůƚ��ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŽĚŝĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�/ŶƚƌƵĚĞƌ��ůĂƌŵ�ƐǇƐͲ

ƚĞŵ�ĂƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌƟƟŽŶĞĚ�ůĂǇŽƵƚ͘ 

��ds�^ǇƐƚĞŵ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ���ds�ĐŽǀĞƌ�ƚŽ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚͲ
ŝŶŐ͘�dŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŶĞǁ���ds�ĂƐ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�
ůŽĐĂů��ƌŝŵĞ�WƌĞǀĞŶƟŽŶ�KĸĐĞƌ�ƚŽ�ĐŽǀĞƌ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ-ŇŽŽƌ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚĞƐ�
ƚŽ�ĚŽŽƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů���ds�ĂƐ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ĂƉƉƌŽͲ
ƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�^ĐŚŽŽů͘�dŚĞ�ŶĞǁ���ds�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂŶ�ĞǆƚĞŶͲ
ƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ĐŽŵƉĂƟďŝůŝƚǇ�
ĂŶĚ�ĨƵůů�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂƟŽŶ͘ 

EĞǁ���ds�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ϯϬ�ĚĂǇ�ƌĞĐŽƌĚŝŶŐ�
ĨĂĐŝůŝƚǇ�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ��^��E�ϱϬϭϯϮ͘ 

dŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůĞĚ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ��ĚƵůƚ��ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŽĚŝĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ���ds�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ĂƐ�
ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌƟƟŽŶĞĚ�ůĂǇŽƵƚ͘ 

&ŝƌĞ��ůĂƌŵ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�&ŝƌĞ��ůĂƌŵ�ĐŽǀĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁĂƐ�
ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ĨĂƵůƚƐ͘�dŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�
ŶĞǁ�ĮƌĞ�ĂůĂƌŵƐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ƚŽ��^ϱϴϯϵ-ϭ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�ƐŵŽŬĞͬ
ŚĞĂƚ�ĚĞƚĞĐƚŽƌƐ͕�ďƌĞĂŬ-ŐůĂƐƐ-ƵŶŝƚƐ�ŽŶ�ĞǆŝƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽƵŶĚĞƌƐ�ͬ�ǀŝƐƵĂů�
ĂůĂƌŵƐ͘�dŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĮƌĞ�ĂůĂƌŵ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂŶ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ĐŽŵƉĂƟďŝůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĨƵůů�
ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂƟŽŶ�ďƵƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ůŽĐĂů�ƌĞƉĞĂƚĞƌ�ĂůĂƌŵ�ƉĂŶĞů͘ 

tŝƌŝŶŐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�>^&�ƐŚĞĂƚŚĞĚ�&WϮϬϬ�'ŽůĚ�ĮƌĞ�ƌĞƐŝƐƚĂŶƚ�ĐĂďůĞƐ�
ƌŽƵƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ǀŽŝĚƐ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ͕�ŽƚŚĞƌǁŝƐĞ�ƐƵƌĨĂĐĞ�
ŵŽƵŶƚĞĚ͘ 

 dŚĞ�&ŝƌĞ�ĂůĂƌŵ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁŝůů�ŝŶŝƟĂƚĞ�ĂƵƚŽŵĂƟĐ�ƌĞůĞĂƐĞ�ŽĨ�
ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�ĚŽŽƌ�ŵĂŐůŽĐŬƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚŽŽƌ�ŚŽůĚ-ŽƉĞŶ�ĚĞǀŝĐĞƐ�
ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ��^�ϳϮϳϯ�ƉĂƌƚ�ϰ͗�ϮϬϭϱ͘ 

dŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůĞĚ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ��ĚƵůƚ��ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�
ďĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŽĚŝĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�&ŝƌĞ��ůĂƌŵ�
ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ĂƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌƟƟŽŶĞĚ�
ůĂǇŽƵƚ͘ 

ZĞĨƵŐĞ��ůĂƌŵ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�Ϯ�EŽ͘�ƌĞĨƵŐĞ�ĂůĂƌŵ�ĐĂůůŝŶŐ�ƉŽŝŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƐĞĐƵƌĞ�
ůŽďďŝĞƐ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚĂŝƌĐĂƐĞƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ϭƐƚ�ŇŽŽƌ�ĂŶĚ�ĂůĂƌŵ�ŝŶĚŝͲ
ĐĂƚŽƌ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ĮƌĞ�ĂůĂƌŵ�ƉĂŶĞů͘�ZĞĨƵŐĞ�ĂůĂƌŵ�
ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁŝůů�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ĮƌĞ�ĂůĂƌŵ�
ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘ 

/�d 

dŚĞƌĞ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ůŽĐĂů�ĚĂƚĂ�ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬ�
ǁŝƚŚ�/�d�ƐĞƌǀĞƌ�ĐĂďŝŶĞƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚǇ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƐƚĂī͘�dŚŝƐ�
ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆƚĞŶĚĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�
ƐĐŚŽŽů�/�d�^ǇƐƚĞŵ�ƚŽ�ƐƵŝƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ͕��ůů�ŶĞǁ�
ĚĂƚĂ�ĐĂďůŝŶŐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ���dϲ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƵƚůĞƚƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�
ďĞ�Z:ϰϱ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ĚĂƚĂ�ŽƵƚůĞƚƐ�Ăƚ�ŚŝŐŚ�
ůĞǀĞů�ŽŶ�ǁĂůůƐ�ŝŶ�ƐĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�tŝ&ŝ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚǇ͘� 

�ĂƚĂ�ŽƵƚůĞƚƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ƌŽŽŵƐ�ĂƐ�ƌĞͲ
ƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĨĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�ƌĞůĞǀĂŶƚ�ŶĞǁ�/�d�
ƉĂƚĐŚ�ƉĂŶĞůƐ͘ 

dŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůĞĚ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ��ĚƵůƚ��ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�
ďĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŽĚŝĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�/�d��ĂƚĂ�

235



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϱϴ 

� �' 
 

$33(1',&(6  
0(&+$1,&$/�	�(/(&75,&$/�5(3257 

ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ĂƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌƟƟŽŶĞĚ�ůĂǇŽƵƚ͘ 

�ĐĐĞƐƐ��ŽŶƚƌŽů 

EĞǁ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�ƵŶŝƚƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƐƵŝƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐůŝĞŶƚ͛Ɛ�ƌĞͲ
ƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ��ƌŝƟƐŚ�^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ͘�&Žď�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�Ăƚ�
ĞĂĐŚ�ĚŽŽƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĂƚĂ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚǇ͘ 

dŚĞ�ŶĞǁ��ĐĐĞƐƐ��ŽŶƚƌŽů�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂŶ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ĐŽŵƉĂƟďŝůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĨƵůů�ŝŶƚĞͲ
ŐƌĂƟŽŶ͘ 

dŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůĞĚ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ��ĚƵůƚ��ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŽĚŝĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ��ĐĐĞƐƐ��ŽŶƚƌŽů�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�
ĂƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌƟƟŽŶĞĚ�ůĂǇŽƵƚ͘ 

EĞǁ��ǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�>ŝŌ 

dŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�ĨƵůůǇ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐŝďůĞ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆͲ
ƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�Ϯ-ŇŽŽƌ�ϴ-ƉĞƌƐŽŶ��ĐĐĞƐƐŝďůĞ�
ůŝŌ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƵƐĞ�ďǇ�ǁŚĞĞůĐŚĂŝƌ�ƵƐĞƌƐ�ƚŽ��^ϴϭ͘ 

EĞǁ��ǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ZŽŽŌŽƉ�Ws 

dŽ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĐƌŝƚĞƌŝĂ�ŶĞĐĞƐƐĂƌǇ�ƚŽ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ�
�Z���D�sĞƌǇ�'ŽŽĚ͕�ǁĞ�ĂŶƟĐŝƉĂƚĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�Ă�ůĂƌŐĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƌŽŽĨ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ďǇ�Ws�WĂŶĞůƐ͘�dŚĞ�
ĮŶĂů�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƐƵďũĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐŽĐŝĂƚĞĚ�
dŚĞƌŵĂů�DŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ͘� 

DĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ� 

'ĂƐ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ 

��ϭϮϱŵŵ�ŐĂƐ�ƐƵƉƉůǇ�ƌƵŶƐ�ĐůŽƐĞ�ƚŽŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĂƌ�ǁĂůů�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�
ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĂŶĚ�ĞŶƚĞƌƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĞŵŝƐĞƐ�ǀŝĂ�ŐĂƐ�ŵĞƚĞƌ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�Ă�ŵĞƚĞƌ�

ĐƵƉďŽĂƌĚ�ĂĚũĂĐĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ŚŽƵƐĞ͘��Ɛ�ƚŚŝƐ�ůŝǀĞ�ƵŶ-
ŵĞƚĞƌĞĚ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐƵƉƉůǇ�ƌƵŶƐ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�
^ƉŽƌƚƐ�,Ăůů͕�ǁĞ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�'ĂƐ�hƟůŝƚǇ��Ž͘�ŝƐ�ĞŵͲ
ƉůŽǇĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐƵƚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚŝƐ�ůŝǀĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ŵĞƚĞƌĞĚ�
ƐƵƉƉůǇ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƐĞƌǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĂƐ-ĮƌĞĚ�ĐĞŶƚƌĂů�ďŽŝůĞƌ�
ƉůĂŶƚ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŽŬĞƌǇ�ĐůĂƐƐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŝĞŶĐĞ�ďĞŶĐŚĞƐ͘� 

'ĂƐ-ĮƌĞĚ�ƉůĂŶƚƌŽŽŵƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŐĂƐ�ƐĂĨĞƚǇ�ĚĞƚĞĐͲ
ƟŽŶ͕�ŵĂŶƵĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĂƵƚŽŵĂƟĐ�ĂůĂƌŵ�ĚĞǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƵƚŽŵĂƟĐ�ŐĂƐ�
ƐŚƵƚ-Žī�ǀĂůǀĞƐ͘ 

�ůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŐĂƐ-ĮƌĞĚ�ĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ŐĂƐ�ƐĂĨĞƚǇ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ĐŽŵƉƌŝƐŝŶŐ�ŵĂŶƵĂů�ĞŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ�ŬŶŽĐŬ-ŽīͬŐŽ-
ŚŽŵĞ��ďƵƩŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƵƚŽŵĂƟĐ�ĂůĂƌŵ�ĚĞǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƵƚŽŵĂƟĐ�ŐĂƐ�
ƐŚƵƚ-Žī�ǀĂůǀĞƐ�ƉĞƌ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵ͘ 

,ĞĂƟŶŐ�WůĂŶƚ 

dŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŝƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�,ŽǀĂů�^dh�ϰϮϱŬt��ŝŽŵĂƐƐ�
tŽŽĚ-WĞůůĞƚ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ďǇ�Ϯ�EŽ͘�,ŽǀĂů�hůƚƌĂ'ĂƐ�ϯϬϬ�ŚŝŐŚ�
ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ŐĂƐ�ďŽŝůĞƌƐ�ĞĂĐŚ�ƌĂƚĞĚ�Ăƚ�ϮϳϯŬt�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŶŐ�Ăƚ�ϴϬͬϲϬ�
�ĞŐ͘�͘�tŚŝůƐƚ�ƚŚĞ��ŝŽŵĂƐƐ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ŝƐ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚĂŬĞ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞĂĚ�ŽŶ�
ƚŚĞ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĂƐ-ďŽŝůĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ͕�ƚŚĞ��ŝŽŵĂƐƐ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�
ŚĂƐ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞĞŶ�ƵƐĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĞǀĞƌĂů�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŽŽĚ�
ƉĞůůĞƚ�ĨƵĞů�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚůǇ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐŝǀĞ�ƚŚĂŶ�ŐĂƐ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�Ă�
ůĂƌŐĞ�ďƵīĞƌ�ǀĞƐƐĞů�ƚŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ƐŵŽŽƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĂĚ͘�tĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂĚǀŝƐĞĚ�
ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĂƐ�ďŽŝůĞƌƐ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚĞ�ƐƵĸĐŝĞŶƚůǇ�ƚŽ�ŚŽůĚ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĂĚ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞůů�
ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƵƐƵĂůůǇ�ŽŶůǇ�ŶĞĞĚ�ŽŶĞ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ƚŽ�ŚŽůĚ�
ƚŚĞ�ůŽĂĚ͕�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƐƉĂƌĞ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ͕�ŝĨ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ͘ 

dŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ŚŽƵƐĞ�ŝƐ�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�ϭϬϬŵ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�
ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽǁ-ĐĂƌďŽŶ��ŝŽŵĂƐƐ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ŝƐ�

ŶŽƚ�ŝŶ�ƵƐĞ͕�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ůŝƩůĞ�ĐŽƐƚ�Žƌ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ďĞŶĞĮƚ�ŝŶ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŶŐ�
ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ƉůĂŶƚ͘��Ɛ�ǁĞ�ĂůƌĞĂĚǇ�ŶĞĞĚ�
ƚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŐĂƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ͕�ŝƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽƐƚ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞ�ƚŽ�ƐĞƌǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ŚŽƚ�
ǁĂƚĞƌ�ĨƌŽŵ�ŶĞǁ�ƐĞůĨ-ĐŽŶƚĂŝŶĞĚ�ŐĂƐ-ĮƌĞĚ�ƉůĂŶƚ͘ 

tŚŝůƐƚ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƉƵŵƉƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ͕�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�
ĞǆƉĞŶƐŝǀĞ�ƚŽ�ŝŶƐƚĂůů�ĂŶĚ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐŝǀĞ�ƚŽ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚĞ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�Ă�
ƐŚŽƌƚĞƌ�ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ůŝĨĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ĐŽƐƚƐ͘��ĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�
Ws�ŝĨ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�Ă�
ŵŽƌĞ�ĐŽƐƚ-ĞīĞĐƟǀĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͘ 

,ĞĂƟŶŐ�^ǇƐƚĞŵƐ 

dŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ŝƐ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƉĞƌŝŵĞƚĞƌ�ĐŽŶͲ
ǀĞĐƚŽƌƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁƐ͕�ƌĂĚŝĂŶƚ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�
ƉĂŶĞůƐ�ĨŽƌ�>ĂďƐ�ĂŶĚ��ŽŽŬĞƌǇ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƵŶĚĞƌŇŽŽƌ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�
ĐĞŶƚƌĂů�ĐŽƌĞ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͕�Ăůů�ƐĞƌǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ůŽĐĂů�sdͬ�d�ŵĂŶŝĨŽůĚƐ�ĂƌŽƵŶĚ�
ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͘�dŚĞ�ŵĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�Ăůů�ĐŽŶƚƌŽůůĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŵŽŶͲ
ŝƚŽƌĞĚ�ǀŝĂ�Ă�dƌĞŶĚ�ϵϲϯ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�ĂŶĚ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌŝŶŐ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘� 

dŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌŝŵĞƚĞƌ�ǁĂůůƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŽŬĞƌǇ�ĐůĂƐƐͲ
ƌŽŽŵƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĐŝĞŶĐĞ�ůĂďƐ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶƐ�ĐůĞĂƌ�ĨŽƌ�ďĞŶĐŚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐƵƉďŽĂƌĚƐ�
ĞƚĐ͘�ǁĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ĚŝƐĐŽƵŶƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĂĚŝĂƚŽƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĞƌŝŵĞƚĞƌ�ĐŽŶͲ
ǀĞĐƚŽƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�ŽǀĞƌ-ŚĞĂĚ�ƌĂĚŝĂŶƚ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ƉĂŶĞůƐ�
Žƌ�ƵŶĚĞƌŇŽŽƌ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ͘�ZĂĚŝĂŶƚ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ĨƵůů�ƚĞŵƉĞƌĂƚƵƌĞ�
ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞ�ǁŚŝůƐƚ�ƵŶĚĞƌŇŽŽƌ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ĐĂŶ�ŽƉĞƌͲ
ĂƚĞ�Ăƚ�ůŽǁ�ƚĞŵƉĞƌĂƚƵƌĞƐ�ĞŶƐƵƌŝŶŐ�ďĞƩĞƌ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŶŐ�ĞĸͲ
ĐŝĞŶĐŝĞƐ͘ 

&Žƌ�ƉƌŝĐŝŶŐ͕�ǁĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚ�ƵŶĚĞƌŇŽŽƌ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚͲ
ŽƵƚ͘ 

236



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϱϵ 

� �' 
 

$33(1',&(6  
0(&+$1,&$/�	�(/(&75,&$/�5(3257 

�ŽŵĞƐƟĐ��ŽůĚ�tĂƚĞƌ 

tŚŝůƐƚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ƐŽŵĞ�ĐŽŶĨƵƐŝŽŶ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĐŽƌĚ�ĚƌĂǁŝŶŐƐ͕�ŝƚ�ĂƉͲ
ƉĞĂƌƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�Ă�ϲϱŵŵ�ƵŶĚĞƌŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƌƵŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�
ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ŚŽƵƐĞ�ƚĂŶŬƐ�ƚŽ�ƐĞƌǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�^ƉŽƌƚƐ�,Ăůů͘ 

�Ɛ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŵĞƚĞƌĞĚ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐƵƉƉůǇ�ƌƵŶƐ�ŶĞĂƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĂƉ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�
ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�^ƉŽƌƚƐ�,Ăůů͕�ǁĞ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽƵƚĞ�ŝƐ�
ĞǆĐĂǀĂƚĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐůŽƐĞƐƚ�ƉŽŝŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ĐƵƚ�ŝŶƚŽ�
ƚŚŝƐ�ůŝǀĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ƐƵď-ŵĞƚĞƌĞĚ�ƐƵƉƉůǇ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�
ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƐĞƌǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĂƐ-ĮƌĞĚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ŚĞĂƚĞƌ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŽŬĞƌǇ�ĐůĂƐͲ
ƐĞƐ͕�ƐĐŝĞŶĐĞ�ďĞŶĐŚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ƚŽŝůĞƚƐ͘ 

dŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůĞĚ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ��ĚƵůƚ��ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŽĚŝĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ��ŽůĚ�tĂƚĞƌ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ĂƐ�
ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽŝůĞƚ�ƉĂƌƟƟŽŶĞĚ�ůĂǇŽƵƚ͘ 

�ŽŵĞƐƟĐ�,Žƚ�tĂƚĞƌ 

�ŽŵĞƐƟĐ�ŚŽƚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�DĂŝŶ�^ĐŚŽŽů�ŝƐ�ǀŝĂ�Ă�ŚŽƚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�
ĐĂůŽƌŝĮĞƌ�ĨĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ŐĂƐ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ƉůĂŶƚ͘ 

dŚĞ�^ƉŽƌƚƐ�,Ăůů�ŚĂƐ�ŝƚƐ�ŽǁŶ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ƉůĂŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŐĂƐ-ĮƌĞĚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ŚĞĂƚͲ
ĞƌƐ�ĂƐ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ƌŽƵƟŶĞůǇ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǀĞŶŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƵƐĞ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�
ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĂŌĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŚĂƐ�ĐůŽƐĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂǇ͘ 

dŚĞ�ĚŝƐƉĞƌƐĞĚ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ŚŽƚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�
ĐŽŽŬĞƌǇ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ͕�ƐĐŝĞŶĐĞ�ůĂďƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽŝůĞƚƐ�ĞƚĐ͘�ůĞŶĚƐ�ŝƚƐĞůĨ�ƚŽ�Ă�
ŶĞǁ�ĐĞŶƚƌĂů�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŇŽǁ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ĂƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ͘ 

tŚŝůƐƚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƐƉĂƌĞ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�^ƉŽƌƚƐ�,Ăůů�ŚŽƚ�
ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ͕�ŝƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĐŽƐƚ�ĞīĞĐͲ
ƟǀĞ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�Ă�ůŽĐĂů�ŐĂƐ-ĮƌĞĚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ŚĞĂƚĞƌ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶͲ
ƐŝŽŶ�ŝŶƐƚĞĂĚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ůŽŶŐ�ƌƵŶ�ŽĨ�ŇŽǁ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ƉŝƉĞǁŽƌŬ�ƌƵŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ůĞŶŐƚŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^ƉŽƌƚ�,Ăůů�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌǀĞŶŝŶŐ�ǁĂůŬǁĂǇ͘ 

dŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůĞĚ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ��ĚƵůƚ��ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŽĚŝĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�,Žƚ�tĂƚĞƌ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ĂƐ�
ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽŝůĞƚ�ƉĂƌƟƟŽŶĞĚ�ůĂǇŽƵƚ͘ 

tĂƚĞƌ�^ǇƐƚĞŵ�ĂŶĚ�^ƉƌŝŶŬůĞƌƐ 

��ϭϬϬŵŵ�ĐŽůĚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ŵĞƚĞƌĞĚ�ƐƵƉƉůǇ�ĞŶƚĞƌƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�
ǀŝĂ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ƌŽŽŵ�ĂŶĚ�ĨĞĞĚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽůĚ-ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƐƚŽƌĂŐĞ�ƚĂŶŬƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ďŽŽƐƚĞƌ�ƐĞƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĂƐ�Ă�ǁŚŽůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶ�ƵŶŵĞƚĞƌĞĚ�
ƐƵƉƉůǇ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƐĞƌǀĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƉƌŝŶŬůĞƌ�ƚĂŶŬ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĂƌ�ĐĂƌ�ƉĂƌŬ͘� 

tŚŝůƐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝǌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƌƌĂŶŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ŵĂǇ�
ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ĞŶŽƵŐŚ�ŽŶ�ŝƚƐ�ŽǁŶ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞ�Ă�ƐƚĂŶĚ-ĂůŽŶĞ�ƐƉƌŝŶŬůĞƌ�
ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͕�ŐŝǀĞŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŝƐ�ƐƉƌŝŶŬůĞƌ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�
ƌƵŶƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�^ƉŽƌƚƐ�,Ăůů�ƌĞůĂƟǀĞůǇ�ĐůŽƐĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�
ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ͕�ǁĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ƐƉƌŝŶŬůĞƌ�
ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ďĞ�ĞǆƚĞŶĚĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ͘� 

dŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůĞĚ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ��ĚƵůƚ��ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŽĚŝĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�^ƉƌŝŶŬůĞƌ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ĂƐ�
ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽŝůĞƚ�ƉĂƌƟƟŽŶĞĚ�ůĂǇŽƵƚ͘ 

sĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ 

dŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŶĂƚƵƌĂů�ǀĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ�
ǀŝĂ�ŽƉĞŶĂďůĞ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁƐ�ĂůƚŚŽƵŐŚ�ƌŽŽŵƐ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ŽƉĞŶĂͲ
ďůĞ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŵĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�ĞǆƚƌĂĐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƵƚŽŵĂƟĐ�ŽƉĞŶĂďůĞ�
ǁŝŶĚŽǁƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�ĐŽŵŵƵŶĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƚƌŝĂ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�
ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�ĐŽŵŵƵŶĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂƵƚŽŵĂƟĐ�Ăŝƌ�ŝŶƚĂŬĞƐ�ǀŝĂ�ĂƵƚŽͲ
ŵĂƟĐ�ĂĐƚƵĂƚĞĚ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁƐ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�Ğǆŝƚ�ĚŽŽƌƐ͘� 

dŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůĞĚ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ��ĚƵůƚ��ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŽĚŝĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ĂƵƚŽŵĂƚĞĚ�ǀĞŶƟůĂͲ
ƟŽŶ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ĂƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌƟƟŽŶĞĚ�

ůĂǇŽƵƚ�ĂƐ�ǀĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ďƵŝůƚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌƟƟŽŶƐ�
ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƌĞŵŽǀĞĚ͘ 

dŚĞ�ůŽǁĞƐƚ�ĮƌƐƚ�ĐŽƐƚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�
ďĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƉůŝĐĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŽƉĞŶĂďůĞ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁƐ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞͲ
ŐǇ�ďƵƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĐŽŵŝŶŐ�ĐŽůĚ�Ăŝƌ�
ŶĞĞĚƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŚĞĂƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĂƐ-ĮƌĞĚ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘ 

dŚĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŵƉůǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�
��ϭϬϭ͕�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƌĞĐŽǀĞƌǇ�ǀĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ�
ƵŶŝƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƉƌĞ-ŚĞĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĐŽŵŝŶŐ�ĨƌĞƐŚ�Ăŝƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĞǆŚĂƵƐƚĞĚ�
ƌŽŽŵ�Ăŝƌ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƌĞĐŽǀĞƌƐ�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�ϴϬй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�
ŚĞĂƚ͘�^ƵďũĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ͕�ƚŽ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ��Z���D�sĞƌǇ�
'ŽŽĚ�ŝƚ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ŶĞĐĞƐƐĂƌǇ�ƚŽ�ĂĚŽƉƚ�Ă�DĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�sĞŶƟůĂͲ
ƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�,ĞĂƚ�ZĞĐŽǀĞƌǇ�;Ds,ZͿ�ǀĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ĂŶĚ�
ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐƚĂŐĞ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ĐĂŶ�ĂůƐŽ�
ďĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�ŽǀĞƌ-ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ŝŶ�ƐƵŵŵĞƌ͘ 

dŽŝůĞƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚĞĂ-ƉŽŝŶƚƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶĞĞĚ�ĚĞĚŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ĞǆƚƌĂĐƚ�
ǀĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ�ŝŶ�ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ��ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ZĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶƐ�WĂƌƚ�&͘�
�ŚĞŵŝĐĂů�ƐƚŽƌĞƐ�ĂŶĚ��K^^,��ƵƉďŽĂƌĚƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ĂůƐŽ�ŶĞĞĚ�
ĚĞĚŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ĞǆƚƌĂĐƚ�ƚŽ�ŽƵƚƐŝĚĞ�ƚŽ�ƉƌĞǀĞŶƚ�ĨƵŵĞ�ďƵŝůĚ-ƵƉ͘ 

�ŽŽŬĞƌǇ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ͕�ĞƐƉĞĐŝĂůůǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŐĂƐ-ĮƌĞĚ�ĐŽŽŬŝŶŐ�
ĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝůů�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞ�ŚĞĂƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĨƵŵĞ�ĞǆƚƌĂĐƚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�
ĐŽŽŬŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĚĞĚŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ŵĂŬĞ�ƵƉ�Ăŝƌ�ƚŽ�ďĂůĂŶĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŽŬĞƌ�
ŚŽŽĚ�ĞǆƚƌĂĐƚ͘ 

&ƵŵĞ�ĐƵƉďŽĂƌĚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�^ĐŝĞŶĐĞ�>ĂďƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ŶĞĞĚ�ĚĞĚŝĐĂƚĞĚ�
ĐŚĞŵŝĐĂů�ƌĞƐŝƐƚĂŶƚ�ĨƵŵĞ�ĞǆƚƌĂĐƚ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ĚŝƐĐŚĂƌŐŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�
ŽƵƚƐŝĚĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĚĞĚŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ŵĂŬĞ�ƵƉ�Ăŝƌ�ƚŽ�ďĂůĂŶĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵŵĞ�
ĐƵƉďŽĂƌĚ�ĞǆƚƌĂĐƚ͘ 

 

237



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϲϬ 

^ƵďũĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ŽŶĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�tŽƌŬƐŚŽƉ�ƵƐĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĨƵůůǇ�
ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ͕�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŵĂǇ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂůŝƐƚ�>ŽĐĂů��ǆƚƌĂĐƚ�sĞŶƟͲ
ůĂƟŽŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƐĂǁŝŶŐ�ͬ�ƐĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ŵĂĐŚŝŶĞƐ͕�ƐŽůĚĞƌŝŶŐ�ďĂǇƐ�ĞƚĐ͘ 

�ŝƌ-ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�,ĞĂƚ�WƵŵƉƐ�ͬ��ŽŽůŝŶŐ 

�Ɛ�Ă�ůŽǁ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĂƐ-ĮƌĞĚ�ďŽŝůĞƌƐ͕�ĞƐƉĞĐŝĂůůǇ�
ǁŚĞƌĞ�ůŽǁ�ƚĞŵƉĞƌĂƚƵƌĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌŇŽŽƌ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ŝƐ�ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ͕�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐ�
Ăŝƌ-ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƉƵŵƉƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƵƟůŝƐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĂƐ-ĮƌĞĚ�
ďŽŝůĞƌƐ͘�dŚĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ŝŶƐƚĂůůĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŶŐ�ĐŽƐƚƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�
ŽŶůǇ�ďĞ�ũƵƐƟĮĞĚ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁĂƐ�ŶĞĐĞƐƐĂƌǇ�ƚŽ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ��ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�
ZĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶƐ�WĂƌƚ�>��ŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚͬŽƌ��Z���D�sĞƌǇ�'ŽŽĚ 

�ďŽǀĞ�'ƌŽƵŶĚ��ƌĂŝŶĂŐĞ 

dŚĞ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ƐŽŝů�ĂŶĚ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĞǆƚĞŶĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�
ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ��^��E�ϭϮϬϱϲ�WĂƌƚ�Ϯ͗�ϮϬϬϬ�'ƌĂǀŝƚǇ��ƌĂŝŶĂŐĞ�
^ǇƐƚĞŵƐ�/ŶƐŝĚĞ��ƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ͘�^ĂŶŝƚĂƌǇ�WŝƉĞǁŽƌŬ͕�>ĂǇŽƵƚ�ĂŶĚ��ĂůĐƵůĂͲ
ƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ZĞŐƐ�WĂƌƚ�,͘͘ 

��ƉƌŝŵĂƌǇ�ǀĞŶƟůĂƚĞĚ�ŐƌĂǀŝƚǇ�ƐƚĂĐŬ�ĨŽƵů�ĚƌĂŝŶĂŐĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�
ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽůůĞĐƚ�ĚŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ăůů�ƚŽŝůĞƚƐ͕�ƐĂŶŝƚĂƌǇ�ǁĂƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�
ŬŝƚĐŚĞŶ�ĂƉƉůŝĂŶĐĞƐ�ĂůŽŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�ƉůĂŶƚ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌŝŶŐ�ƐĂĨĞƚǇ�
ĂŶĚͬŽƌ�ĐŽŶĚĞŶƐĂƚĞ�ĚŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞ͘�dŚĞ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ĚƌĂŝŶĂŐĞ�ƐǇƐͲ
ƚĞŵ�ǁŝůů�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚůǇ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ĚƌĂŝŶĂŐĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�Ăƚ�
ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ŇŽŽƌ�ůĞǀĞů�ĂŶĚ�ďĞ�ĂĚĞƋƵĂƚĞůǇ�ǀĞŶƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚƌĂƉ�ƐĞĂůƐ�
ĂƌĞ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶĞĚ�Ăƚ�Ăůů�ƟŵĞƐ͘ 

 

 

 

� �' 
 

$33(1',&(6  
0(&+$1,&$/�	�(/(&75,&$/�5(3257 

/ŶƐƉĞĐƟŽŶ͕�dĞƐƟŶŐ͕��ĞƌƟĮĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŽĐƵŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ 

�ůů�ƚĞƐƚ�ĐĞƌƟĮĐĂƚĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ŵĂŶƵĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ƌĞĐŽƌĚ�ĚƌĂǁŝŶŐƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƐƚĂůůĞĚ�ŵĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů�ƐĞƌͲ
ǀŝĐĞƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�Ăƚ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŚĂŶĚŽͲ
ǀĞƌ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĨĂŵŝůŝĂƌŝƐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ƐƚĂī͘ 

dŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ��Z���D�sĞƌǇ�'ŽŽĚ͕�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ƐŚĂůů�ďĞ�Ă�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞͲ
ŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�^ĞĂƐŽŶĂů��ŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŶƚƌĂĐƚŽƌ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶŝŶŐ�
ϯ�ƟŵĞƐ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƐƚ-ŚĂŶĚŽǀĞƌ�ƐĞĂƐŽŶ�ƚŽ�ĮŶĞ�ƚƵŶĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŽůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŶƚƌĂĐƚŽƌ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ƉŽƐƚ-ŚĂŶĚŽǀĞƌ��ƵƐͲ
ƚŽŵĞƌ�^ƵƉƉŽƌƚ͘ 

 

 

238



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϲϭ 

� �' 
 

$33(1',&(6  
0(&+$1,&$/�	�(/(&75,&$/�5(3257 

 

239



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϲϮ 

� �( 
KǀĞƌǀŝĞǁ 
dŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�
ďůŽĐŬ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ŝŵŵĞĚŝĂƚĞůǇ�ŶĞǆƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ƐƉŽƌƚƐ�ŚĂůů�Ăƚ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ�
�ŽůůĞŐĞ͕�KĂŬŚĂŵ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ŚŝŐŚ-ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�
ƐƉĂĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ��ƌĞĨƵƌďŝƐŚŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŽƵƚŚ�ĞĂƐƚ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ŇŽŽƌ�
ĂƌĞĂ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ĂĚƵůƚ��ĞĚƵͲ
ĐĂƟŽŶ͘�dŚĞ�ƚǁŽ�ƐƚŽƌĞǇ�ďůŽĐŬ�ǁŝůů�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ͕�
ůĂďŽƌĂƚŽƌŝĞƐ͕�ĐŽŽŬĞƌǇ͕�ďƌĞĂŬ�ŽƵƚ�ƐƉĂĐĞ͕��ŽĸĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĚŵŝŶͲ
ŝƐƚƌĂƟŽŶ�ƐƉĂĐĞ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ƐĂŶŝƚĂƌǇ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ƚŽƚĂů�ŇŽŽƌ�
ĂƌĞĂ�ŽĨ�ϭ͕ϮϴϴŵϮ͘�dŚĞ��ĂĚƵůƚ�ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŝƐ�Ă�ƚŽƚĂů�ŽĨ�
ϰϴϰŵϮ͘ 

 
dŚŝƐ�^ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĐůŝĞŶƚ�ĂƐ�
ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ďƌŝĞĨ�ŽƵƚůŝŶŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ƚŽ��ĚĞŵŽŶƐƚƌĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�
ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ�ŚŽůŝƐƟĐ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĂŶĚ�
ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ͘�/ƚ��ƐƵŵŵĂƌŝƐĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�
ǁŝůů�ŵĂŬĞ�ƚŽ�ĐƌĞĂƚĞ�Ă�ŵŽƌĞ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͕��ĚƌĂǁŝŶŐ�
ŽŶ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂůŝƐƚ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚƐ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞĚ�Ăƚ�
^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͕��ĂŶĚ�ŝĚĞŶƟĨǇŝŶŐ�ŬĞǇ�ĨĞĂƚƵƌĞƐ�
ŝŶƚƌŝŶƐŝĐ�ƚŽ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�ůŽǁ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚƐ͘ 

 

dŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ŬĞǇ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĨĞĂƚƵƌĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�
ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ� ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ͗ 

· dŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ŽƉƟŵŝƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞŶĞǁĂďůĞ�
ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�Ws�ƉĂŶĞůƐ�Žƌ��ŝƌ��^ŽƵƌĐĞ�
,ĞĂƚ�WƵŵƉƐ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĞŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ͖ 

· dŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ĂĚŽƉƚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�
ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ�ŝŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�Ă�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ�
ǁĂƚĞƌ��ĐŽŶƐƵŵƉƟŽŶ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�ŽĨ�ϭϭϬ�ůŝƚƌĞƐͬƉĞƌƐŽŶͬ
ĚĂǇ�;ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ƵƐĞͿ͖ 

· dŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ƵƟůŝƐĞ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�
ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ�ŝŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ŝƚƐ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ͖ 

· dŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ĂĚŽƉƚ�Ă�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝͲ
ĂůƐ�ƉƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ǁĂƐƚĞ��
ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ĞŵďĞĚĚĞĚ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�
ĞŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ͖ 

· dŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƉĞƌͲ
ĂƟŽŶĂů�ŝŶĚŽŽƌ�Ăŝƌ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƌŵĂů�ĐŽŵĨŽƌƚ�
ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞůůďĞŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŽĐĐƵͲ
ƉĂŶƚƐ͖� ĂŶĚ 

· dŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ�
ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞĐŽůŽͲ
ŐǇ�ŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ��ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ďŝŽĚŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ�ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞͲ
ŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽŶŐ-ƚĞƌŵ͘ 

<ĞǇ�̂ ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�DĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ 

/Ŷ�ƐƵŵŵĂƌǇ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŬĞǇ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�
ŝŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ��ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ŬĞǇ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�
ŽĨ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ͗ 

 

· �ŶĞƌŐǇ�ĂŶĚ��KϮ 

· �ĚĂƉƚĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ĐůŝŵĂƚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ 

· &ůŽŽĚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ŵŝƟŐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�^Ƶ�^ 

· tĂƐƚĞ 

· tĂƚĞƌ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ 

· dƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟǀŝƚǇ 

· DĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ 

· ,ĞĂůƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞůůďĞŝŶŐ 

· >ĂŶĚ�ƵƐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĞĐŽůŽŐǇ 

· ^ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ��ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ 

 

$33(1',&(6  
6867$,1$%,/,7<�67$7(0(17—(;(&87,9(�6800$5< 

240



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϲϯ 

� �( 
 

$33(1',&(6  
6867$,1$%,/,7<�67$7(0(17—,1752'8&7,21 

^ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ 
dŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚĞĂŵ�ŚĂƐ�ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚ�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�ŝŶ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ŚŝŐŚůǇ��ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂͲ
ďůĞ͕�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĨŽƌŵĂů�ŐƌĞĞŶ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ƌĂƟŶŐ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ͕�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ��Z���D �͕�,ŽŵĞ�
YƵĂůŝƚǇ�DĂƌŬ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ĂƉƉůǇŝŶŐ�ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�WĂƐƐŝǀŚĂƵƐ��ĞƐŝŐŶ�ĂŶĚ��ĂĚŽƉƟŶŐ�
ƉƌĞĐĞĚĞŶƚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ŝŶĚƵƐƚƌǇ�ĞǆĞŵƉůĂƌǇ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚƐ͘ 
 

dŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ŝƐ�ŝŶƚĞŶĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŚŽůŝƐƟĐ�ŶĂƚƵƌĞ�ŽĨ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�Ăƚ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ͕��
KĂŬŚĂŵ͘�dŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽīĞƌƐ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ŚŝŐŚ-ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ͕�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŽĨ�ŶĞĞĚ�ĂŶĚ��
ƐĞĞŬ�ƚŽ�ƵƐĞ�ůŽĐĂů�ůĂďŽƵƌ�ƚŽ�ďŽŽƐƚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ͘�,ĞĂůƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞůůďĞŝŶŐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��
ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ďǇ�ŵĂǆŝŵŝƐŝŶŐ�ĚĂǇůŝŐŚƟŶŐ͕�ƵƟůŝƐŝŶŐ�ŚĞĂůƚŚǇ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĂůůĞǀŝĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĨƵĞů��
ƉŽǀĞƌƚǇ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŐŝŽŶ͘�dŚĞ�ƐŝƚĞ�ŝƐ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�Ă�ŵŝǆƚƵƌĞ�ŽĨ�ůĞǀĞů�ƉŽƌŽƵƐ�ƉĂǀŝŶŐ͕�Ă�ŐƌĂƐƐ�ďĂŶŬ�ĂŶĚ�ŐƌĂƐƐ��ƉůĂǇͲ
ŝŶŐ�ĮĞůĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŽĨ�ůŽǁ�ĞĐŽůŽŐŝĐĂů�ǀĂůƵĞ͘��ŶŚĂŶĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ͕�ƐƵĐŚ�Ă�ŐƌĞĞŶ�ƌŽŽĨ��
ŶĂƟǀĞ�ƉůĂŶƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂůůǇ�ďŝƌĚ�ĂŶĚ�ďĂƚ�ďŽǆĞƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů��ĞĐŽƐǇƐͲ
ƚĞŵ͘ 

 

�ĞƐĐƌŝƉƟŽŶ�ŽĨ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ 

dŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŝƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�Ăƚ�,ƵŶƚƐŵĂŶƐ��ƌŝǀĞ͕�KĂŬŚĂŵ͕�ZƵƚůĂŶĚ͕�>�ϭϱ�ϲZW͘�dŚĞ�ƐŝƚĞ��ŝƐ�
ĂŶ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŽĐĐƵƉŝĞĚ�ďǇ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ǁŝůů�ĨŽƌŵ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ŶĞǆƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��
ƐƉŽƌƚƐ�ŚĂůů�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ƌĞĨƵƌďŝƐŚŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ŇŽŽƌ�ĂƌĞĂ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͘ 
dŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚƐ�ŽĨ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ďůŽĐŬ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ŇŽŽƌ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŽĨ�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�ϲϵϬŵϮ�ĂŶĚ�
ĮƌƐƚ��ŇŽŽƌ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŽĨ�ϱϯϴŵϮ͘�dŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ŇŽŽƌ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚǁŽ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ͕�ŽŶĞ�ǁŽƌŬƐŚŽƉ�
ĂƌĞĂ͕�Ă��ĐŽŽŬĞƌǇ͕�ďƌĞĂŬ�ŽƵƚ�ƐƉĂĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ůŽĐŬĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĂŶŝƚĂƌǇ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͘�dŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĮƌƐƚ�ŇŽŽƌ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚƐ�ŽĨ�
ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ��ůŽĐŬĞƌ�ƐƉĂĐĞ͕�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ůĂďŽƌĂƚŽƌǇ�ƌŽŽŵƐ͕�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŽĸĐĞ�ƐƉĂĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĂŶŝƚĂƌǇ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͘ 

dŚĞ�ƌĞĨƵƌďŝƐŚŵĞŶƚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŽƵƚŚ�ĞĂƐƚ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ŇŽŽƌ�ĂĚƵůƚ�ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂƌĞĂ�ǁŝůů�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ĂůƚĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��
ůĂǇŽƵƚ͘�dŚĞ�ƐƉĂĐĞ�ǁŝůů�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚ�ŽĨ�ĨŽƵƌ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ͕�ƚƵƚŽƌŝĂů�ƌŽŽŵ͕�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟŽŶ͕�ďƌĞĂŬ�ŽƵƚ�ƐƉĂĐĞ�ĂŶĚ��
ƐĂŶŝƚĂƌǇ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ͘ 

 

dŚĞ�ĂƐƉŝƌĂƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ŝƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ƐƉĂĐĞ�ďǇ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶĐůƵƐŝǀĞ��
ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŵĞĞƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐůŝĞŶƚ͛Ɛ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶǇ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ�ůŝƐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ZƵƚůĂŶĚ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů��ŽƌĞ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ� 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϭ͗�WƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�'ƌŽƵŶĚ�&ůŽŽƌ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďůŽĐŬ 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�Ϯ͗�WƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�'ƌŽƵŶĚ�&ůŽŽƌ�ƌĞĨƵƌďŝƐŚŵĞŶƚ 

241



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϲϰ 

� �( 
EĂƟŽŶĂů��ŽŶƚĞǆƚ �͗dŚĞ�ϮϬϬϴ��ůŝŵĂƚĞ��ŚĂŶŐĞ� �Đƚ 
dŚĞ�h<�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ŝƐ�ĐŽŵŵŝƩĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�h<͛Ɛ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�
ĞŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ďǇ�ϭϬϬй�ŽǀĞƌ�ϭϵϵϬ�ůĞǀĞůƐ��ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ��ůŝŵĂƚĞ�
�ŚĂŶŐĞ��Đƚ�ϮϬϬϴ͘��ĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�ƚƌƵůǇ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶͲ
ƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĞĞŶ�ĂŐĞŶĚĂ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶͲ
ƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ŝŶĚƵƐƚƌǇ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�h<�ŝƐ�ŝŶŚĞƌĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞƐĞ��
ĞŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�Ăŝŵ�ƚŽ�ĚŽ�ďŽƚŚ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞƐĞ͘ 

 

dŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ƉůŽƚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�
ŵĂĚĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ƉůĂŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ��ƚŚĞ�h<͛Ɛ�ůŽǁ-ĐĂƌďŽŶ�
ĞĐŽŶŽŵǇ͕�ŝŶƚĞƌŵĞĚŝĂƌǇ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶͲ
ƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�h<��ƌĞŵĂŝŶƐ�ŽŶ�ĐŽƵƌƐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ϭϬϬй�
ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ďǇ�ϮϬϱϬ͘ 

 

�ŽŶĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƌĞĚƵĐŝŶŐ��KϮ�ĞŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ďǇ�ϭϬϬй�ďǇ�ϮϬϱϬ�ŝƐ�
ƚŚĞ��ƵƌŽƉĞĂŶ��ůŝŵĂƚĞ��ŚĂŶŐĞ�WŽůŝĐǇ��ƚĂƌŐĞƚƐ͘�/ƚ�ƐĞƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŽďͲ
ũĞĐƟǀĞ�ŽĨ�ĞŶƐƵƌŝŶŐ�ϮϬй�ŽĨ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĐŽŶƐƵŵƉƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂƚĞĚ�
ĨƌŽŵ�ƌĞŶĞǁĂďůĞ��ƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ďǇ�ϮϬϮϬ�ǁŚŝůƐƚ�ĂůƐŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐŝŶŐ��ƵͲ
ƌŽƉĞ͛Ɛ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĨŽŽƚƉƌŝŶƚ�ďǇ�ϮϬй͘��ŶƐƵƌŝŶŐ�Ă�ĨĂďƌŝĐ�ĮƌƐƚ��ĂƉͲ
ƉƌŽĂĐŚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƌĞŶĞǁĂďůĞ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ�
ĮƚƐ�ďŽƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐůŝŵĂƚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ĂĐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ���ƵƌŽƉĞĂŶ��ŽŵŵŝƐͲ
ƐŝŽŶ͛Ɛ�ϮϬϮϬ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞĚƵĐŝŶŐ�ŐƌĞĞŶŚŽƵƐĞ�ŐĂƐ�;','Ϳ�ĞŵŝƐͲ
ƐŝŽŶƐ͘ 

 

EĂƟŽŶĂů��ŽŶƚĞǆƚ �͗EĂƟŽŶĂů�WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�WŽůŝĐǇ�&ƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ�ϮϬϭϵ 
dŚĞ�EĂƟŽŶĂů�WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�WŽůŝĐǇ�&ƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ�;EWW&Ϳ�ƉƵďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ŝŶ�
ϮϬϭϵ�ƐĞƚƐ�ŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�h<�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ��ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ�ĨŽƌ��ŶŐͲ
ůĂŶĚ͘�WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ůĂǁ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ƉĞƌͲ
ŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ�ŵƵƐƚ�ďĞ��ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�

ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ƉůĂŶ�ƵŶůĞƐƐ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂů�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚĞ��
ŽƚŚĞƌǁŝƐĞ͘�dŚĞ�EĂƟŽŶĂů�WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�WŽůŝĐǇ�&ƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ�ŵƵƐƚ�ďĞ�
ƚĂŬĞŶ�ŝŶƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ŝŶ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ��ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ƉůĂŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�
Ă�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂů�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ŝŶ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶƐ͘�WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ƉŽůŝͲ
ĐŝĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶƐ��ŵƵƐƚ�ĂůƐŽ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚ�ƌĞůĞǀĂŶƚ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂƟŽŶĂů�
ŽďůŝŐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘ 

 

dŚĞ�EWW&�ŝƐ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ďǇ�Ă�ƐĞƌŝĞƐ�ŽĨ�WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�WƌĂĐƟĐĞ�'ƵŝĚͲ
ĂŶĐĞ�;WW'Ϳ�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚƐ͘�dŚĞ�ŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞ�ŝŶ��ƌĞůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�Ăŝƌ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ŐƵŝĚŝŶŐ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ�ŽŶ�ŚŽǁ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ƚĂŬĞ�ĂĐͲ
ĐŽƵŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ��ŶĞǁ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽŶ�Ăŝƌ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ͘�dŚĞ�
ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞůĞǀĂŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�^ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ͗ 

 

· �ĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ 

· WƌŽŵŽƟŶŐ�ŚĞĂůƚŚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĂĨĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ� 

· WƌŽŵŽƟŶŐ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ 

· �ĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�ǁĞůů-ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ƉůĂĐĞƐ 

· DĞĞƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŚĂůůĞŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ĐůŝŵĂƚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ͕�
ŇŽŽĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽĂƐƚĂů�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ 

· �ŽŶƐĞƌǀŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŶŚĂŶĐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĂƚƵƌĂů�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶͲ
ŵĞŶƚ 

 
5HJLRQDO�&RQWH[W��(DVW�0LGODQGV�5HJLRQDO�3ODQ����� 
7KH�(DVW�0LGODQGV�5HJLRQDO�3ODQ������LV�WKH�RYHUDOO�VWUD�
WHJLF�SODQ�IRU�(DVW�0LGODQGV�DUHD�DQG�DV�VXFK��LQFOXGHV�
5XWODQG��7KLV�GRFXPHQW��WKHUHIRUH��SOD\V�DQ�RYHUDUFKLQJ�
UROH�LQ�WKH�SODQQLQJ�SURFHVV�IRU�WKH��DUHD� 
 
7KH�(DVW�0LGODQGV�5HJLRQDO�3ODQ�VHWV�RXW�DQ�LQWHJUDWHG�
HFRQRPLF��HQYLURQPHQWDO��WUDQVSRUW�DQG�VRFLDO��IUDPH�
ZRUN�IRU�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�RI�(DVW�0LGODQGV��LQFOXGLQJ�
WDUJHWV�RQ�WKH�IROORZLQJ�NH\�DVSHFWV� 

· �ŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ͖ 

· �ĐŽŶŽŵǇ͖ 

· ,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ͖ 

· DŝŶĞƌĂůƐ͕��ŐŐƌĞŐĂƚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�tĂƐƚĞ͖ 

· dƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ 
 
tŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐƚ�DŝĚůĂŶĚƐ�ZĞŐŝŽŶĂů�WůĂŶ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�
ŬĞǇ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚƐ�ŝŶĚŝƌĞĐƚůǇ�ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŶĞǁ��ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚƐ͗ 

· WŽůŝĐŝĞƐ�Ϯϲ-ϯϭ�ŽŶ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŶŚĂŶĐŝŶŐ�
ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŐŝŽŶĂů�ŶĂƚƵƌĂů�ĂŶĚ�ŚŝƐƚŽƌŝĐ�ŚĞƌŝƚĂŐĞ͘ 

· WŽůŝĐǇ�ϯϮ�ŽŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƐŝƚĞƐ�
ǁŝƚŚ�^ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ��ƌĂŝŶĂŐĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ĂŶĚ��ĚĞǀĞůͲ
ŽƉŝŶŐ�ŶĞǁ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĚŽŵĞƐƟĐ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ĞĸͲ
ĐŝĞŶĐǇ͘ 

· WŽůŝĐǇ�ϯϴ�ŽŶ�ĞŶŚĂŶĐŝŶŐ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�
ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚĂƌŐĞƟŶŐ�ϭ͘ϱй�ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ŝŶ��
ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĐŽŶƐƵŵƉƟŽŶ�ƉĞƌ�ǇĞĂƌ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƉůĂŶ�ƉĞƌŝͲ
ŽĚ͘ 

· WŽůŝĐǇ�ϯϵ�ŽŶ�ůŽǁ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ�
ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚĂƌŐĞƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŶĞǁĂďůĞƐ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ��
ŐĞŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ϱϭϭ�DtĞ�ďǇ�ϮϬϭϬ�ĂŶĚ�ϭϭϮϬ�
DtĞ�ďǇ�ϮϬϮϬ͘ 

· WŽůŝĐǇ�ϯϳ�ŽŶ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚĂƌͲ
ŐĞƟŶŐ�ǌĞƌŽ�ŐƌŽǁƚŚ�ŝŶ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽůůĞĚ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ďǇ�
ϮϬϭϲ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ��ZĞŐŝŽŶĂů�ůĞǀĞů�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�
ǁĂƐƚĞ�ĚŝƐƉŽƐĞĚ�ŽĨ�ŝŶ�ůĂŶĚĮůů�ŝŶ�ůŝŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŶĂͲ
ƟŽŶĂů� ƚĂƌŐĞƚƐ 

· WŽůŝĐǇ�ϰϰ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌůǇ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�
ƚƌĂǀĞů�ƉůĂŶƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ĚŽŵĂŝŶ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ��
ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ũŽƵƌŶĞǇƐ�ŵĂĚĞ�ďǇ�ĐǇĐůĞ͘ 

 

$33(1',&(6  
6867$,1$%,/,7<�67$7(0(17—32/,&<�&217(;7 

242



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϲϱ 

� �( 
 

$33(1',&(6  
6867$,1$%,/,7<�67$7(0(17—32/,&<�&217(;7 

>ŽĐĂů��ŽŶƚĞǆƚ �͗ZƵƚůĂŶĚ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͛ Ɛ�>ŽĐĂů�WůĂŶ 
ZƵƚůĂŶĚ͛Ɛ�ůŽĐĂů�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĨƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚƐ�ŽĨ��ŽƌĞ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�
WŽůŝĐŝĞƐ͕�ĂůŽŶŐƐŝĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĂďŽǀĞ��ŵĞŶƟŽŶĞĚ�WŽůŝĐŝĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐƚ�
DŝĚůĂŶĚƐ�ZĞŐŝŽŶĂů�WůĂŶ͘�KĨ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌ�ƌĞůĞǀĂŶĐĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ŝƐ�
ƚŚĞ��^ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ��ƉƉƌĂŝƐĂů��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ��ŽĐƵŵĞŶƚ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ�ŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞƐĞ��ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ͘�dŽŐĞƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�
ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�Ă�ĐůĞĂƌ�ŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞ�ŽŶ�ŚŽǁ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůǇ�
ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ƚŚĞ��ĐŽƵŶƚǇ͘��ƚ�Ă�ŵŝŶŝŵƵŵ͕�ǁĂǇƐ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĚĞŵŽŶƐƚƌĂƚĞĚ��ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�
^ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ͗ 
 

�ŽƌĞ�̂ ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�WŽůŝĐŝĞƐ�;ϮϬϬϭ-ϮϬϮϲͿ 

· WŽůŝĐǇ��^ϭ͗�^ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�WƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ͗�EĞǁ�
ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵŝƟŐĂƚĞ��ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�
ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ĐůŝŵĂƚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ͕�ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶͲ
ŵĞŶƚĂů�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ͕�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ǁŝĚĞƌ��ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽŶ�
ƐŝƚĞ͕�ŵĂǆŝŵŝƐĞ�ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ƵƐĞ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ŝŶ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�
ĞŶĞƌŐǇ͕�ǁĂƚĞƌ͕��ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĂƐƚĞ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĂǀŽŝĚ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�
ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ůĂŶĚ�Ăƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ŽĨ� ŇŽŽĚŝŶŐ͘ 

· WŽůŝĐǇ��^ϳ͗��ĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ƐŽĐŝĂůůǇ�ŝŶĐůƵƐŝǀĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ͗�EĞǁ�
ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ƐƉĂĐĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�
ŵĞĞƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ĚŝǀĞƌƐĞ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ƐƵƌƌŽƵŶĚŝŶŐ��ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�
ĚĞƉƌŝǀĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ͘ 

· WŽůŝĐǇ��^ϭϴ͗�^ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ͗�EĞǁ�
ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ��ǁŽƌŬ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ƚŽ�
ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ĂŵĞŶŝƟĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�
ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ͕�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ��ƚŚĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�
ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞƐ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�ĐǇĐůŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĂůŬŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ��ƚƌĂǀĞů�ƉůĂŶƐ� 

· WŽůŝĐǇ��^ϭϵ͗�WƌŽŵŽƟŶŐ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ͗�EĞǁ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉͲ
ŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚǇ��ŶĞĞĚƐ͕�ŵŝŶŝͲ
ŵŝƐĞ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĐŽŶƐƵŵƉƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂǆŝŵŝƐĞ�ƌĞŶĞǁĂďůĞ�
ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ͕�ŵŝŶŝŵŝƐĞ��ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƵƐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ŽĨ�
ŇŽŽĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�^ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ��ƌĂŝŶĂŐĞ�^ǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĂůůŽǁ��ĨŽƌ�ĂĚĞƋƵĂƚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƉĞƌͲ
ĂƟŽŶĂů�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͘ 

· WŽůŝĐǇ��^ϮϬ͗��ŶĞƌŐǇ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽǁ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�
ŐĞŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ͗�EĞǁ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ��ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞĚ�ƚŽ�
ƵƟůŝƐĞ�ƌĞŶĞǁĂďůĞ͕�ůŽǁ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞ-ĐĞŶƚƌĂůŝƐĞĚ�ĞŶĞƌͲ
ŐǇ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ͘��ůů�ŶĞǁ��ĚŽŵĞƐƟĐ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĞŶͲ
ĐŽƵƌĂŐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ��ŽĚĞ�ĨŽƌ�^ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�,ŽŵĞƐ�;ŶŽǁ�
,ŽŵĞ��YƵĂůŝƚǇ�DĂƌŬͿ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�ďĞͲ
ǇŽŶĚ�ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ��ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ZĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶƐ͘��ůů��ŶŽŶ-
ĚŽŵĞƐƟĐ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ��Z���D�
ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ��ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ͘ 

· WŽůŝĐǇ��^Ϯϭ͗�dŚĞ�ŶĂƚƵƌĂů�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ͗�EĞǁ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉͲ
ŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚ��ĞŶĚĂŶŐĞƌĞĚ�ƐŝƚĞƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ƐƉĞĐŝĞƐ͕�ŵŝŶŝŵŝƐĞ�ŶĞŐĂƟǀĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�ĞĐŽůŽŐǇ�ĂŶĚ�
ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶ�ĂŶĚ��ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĂƚƵƌĂů�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ͘ 

· WŽůŝĐǇ��^Ϯϯ͗�'ƌĞĞŶ�ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ͕�ŽƉĞŶ�ƐƉĂĐĞ͕�ƐƉŽƌƚ�
ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĐƌĞĂƟŽŶ͗�EĞǁ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ��ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�
ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚ͕�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ŐƌĞĞŶ�ŝŶĨƌĂͲ
ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ��ŐƌĞĞŶ�ƐƉĂĐĞƐ͕�ƉĂƚŚƐ͕�ĐǇͲ
ĐůĞǁĂǇƐ͕�ŽƉĞŶ�ƐƉĂĐĞƐ͕�ƐƉŽƌƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĐƌĞĂƟŽŶ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ͘ 

· WŽůŝĐǇ��^Ϯϰ͗�ZƵƚůĂŶĚ�tĂƚĞƌ͗�EĞǁ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚƐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�
ďĞ�ĐĂƌĞĨƵůůǇ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ��ƌĞůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ZƵƚͲ
ůĂŶĚ�tĂƚĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƚƐ�ƵƐĞƐ͘ 

243



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϲϲ 

� �( 
�ŶĞƌŐǇ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ 
dŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�WĂƌƚ�>�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ZĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚ�ŝƐ��ǇĞƚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ͘�
dŚĞ�ďůŽĐŬ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬ�
ŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ�ǁŚŝĐŚ��ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚƐ�ŽĨ�Ă�ďŝŽŵĂƐƐ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ƉůĂŶƚ�ƵƟůŝƐŝŶŐ�ǁŽŽĚ�
ĐŚŝƉ�ĨƵĞů͘�/Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ��ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�Ă�
ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƌĞŶĞǁĂďůĞ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐŝĞƐ͘��ĞůŽǁ�ĂƌĞ�
ƐŽŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶ��ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƌĞŶĞǁĂďůĞ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ�
ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ƐƵŝƚĂďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͘ 
 
ZĞŶĞǁĂďůĞ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐŝĞƐ� 
�ŝŽŵĂƐƐ 
�ŝŽŵĂƐƐ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƌŵĂůůǇ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�Ă�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�͚ŶĞƵƚƌĂů͛�ĨƵĞů͕�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�
ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĚŝŽǆŝĚĞ�ĞŵŝƩĞĚ�ŽŶ�ďƵƌŶŝŶŐ�ŚĂƐ��ďĞĞŶ�ƌĞĐĞŶƚůǇ�ĂďƐŽƌďĞĚ�
ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƚŵŽƐƉŚĞƌĞ�ďǇ�ƉŚŽƚŽƐǇŶƚŚĞƐŝƐ͘��ůƚŚŽƵŐŚ�ƐŽŵĞ�ĨŽƌŵ�
ŽĨ�ĨŽƐƐŝů�ĨƵĞů��ĚĞƌŝǀĞĚ�ŝŶƉƵƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�
ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ� ĨƵĞů͘ 
 

tŽŽĚ�ŝƐ�ƐĞĞŶ�ĂƐ�Ă�ďǇ-ƉƌŽĚƵĐƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŝŶĚƵƐƚƌŝĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŵĂůů�
ƋƵĂŶƟƚǇ�ŽĨ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĨŽƌ�ĚƌǇŝŶŐ͕�ƐĂǁŝŶŐ͕��ƉĞůůĞƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ĂƌĞ�
ƚǇƉŝĐĂůůǇ�ĚŝƐĐŽƵŶƚĞĚ͘��ŝŽŵĂƐƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĐŽƉƉŝĐŝŶŐ�ŝƐ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�
ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ��ŝŶƉƵƚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĨĞƌƟůŝƐĞƌ͕�ĐƵƫŶŐ͕�ĚƌǇŝŶŐ�ĞƚĐ͘�ĂŶĚ�
ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŵĂǇ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ͘�/Ŷ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƚŽŽůŬŝƚ͕�Ăůů��ďŝŽŵĂƐƐ�
ĨƵĞůƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�ǌĞƌŽ�ŶĞƚ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĞŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ͘ 

�ŝŽŵĂƐƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ďƵƌŶƚ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚůǇ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ŚĞĂƚ�ŝŶ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ͘�
tŽŽĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĨŽƌĞƐƚƐ͕�ƵƌďĂŶ�ƚƌĞĞ�ƉƌƵŶŝŶŐ͕��ĨĂƌŵĞĚ�ĐŽƉƉŝĐĞƐ�Žƌ�
ĨĂƌŵ�ĂŶĚ�ĨĂĐƚŽƌǇ�ǁĂƐƚĞ͕�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶ�ĨƵĞů�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�
ĐŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂůůǇ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ĨŽƌŵ�ŽĨ�ǁŽŽĚ�ĐŚŝƉƐ�Žƌ�ƉĞůůĞƚƐ͘��ŝŽŵĂƐƐ�
ďŽŝůĞƌƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ĂůƐŽ�ďĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďƵƌŶ�ƐŵŽŬĞůĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŵƉůǇ��ǁŝƚŚ�
ƚŚĞ��ůĞĂŶ��ŝƌ��ĐƚƐ͘ 
 

��ŵĂũŽƌ�ĨĂĐƚŽƌ�ŝŶŇƵĞŶĐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵŝƚĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�Ă�ďŝŽŵĂƐƐ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�
ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďŝŽŵĂƐƐ�ĨƵĞů͘����ůŽĐĂů�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞůŝĂďůĞ�ĨƵĞů�
ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĞƐƐĞŶƟĂů�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ďŝŽŵĂƐƐ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂŶ�
ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚ��ĨŽƌ�Ă�ĐŽŶǀĞŶƟŽŶĂů�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘�dŚĞ�
ŽƌŝŐŝŶĂů�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞĚ�ƐƵĐŚ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ͕�ŚŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�ƚŚĞ�
ĂďŽǀĞ��ŵĞŶƟŽŶĞĚ�ĨƵĞů�ĂǀĂŝůĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŝƐ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂŶ�ŝƐƐƵĞ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ŶĞǁ�ďůŽĐŬ�ŝƐ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘ 
 

Ws 
WŚŽƚŽǀŽůƚĂŝĐ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƚ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵŶ�ŝŶƚŽ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐŝͲ
ƚǇ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƐĞŵŝ�ĐŽŶĚƵĐƚŽƌ�ĐĞůůƐ͘�^ǇƐƚĞŵƐ��ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚ�ŽĨ�ƐĞŵŝ-
ĐŽŶĚƵĐƚŽƌ�ĐĞůůƐ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽŐĞƚŚĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ŵŽƵŶƚĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ŵŽĚͲ
ƵůĞƐ͘�DŽĚƵůĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂŶ�ŝŶǀĞƌƚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƚƵƌŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚ�
ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�;��Ϳ�ŽƵƚƉƵƚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟŶŐ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�;��Ϳ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ��
ƵƐĞ�ŝŶ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ͘ 

WŚŽƚŽǀŽůƚĂŝĐ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĚŝƐĐƌĞĞƚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�
ĂƐ�ĂŶ�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂů�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽŽĨ͘��Ŷ��͚ŝŶǀŝƐŝďůĞ͛�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ƐůĂƚĞƐ�
Žƌ�ƐŚŝŶŐůĞƐ�ĂƐ�ŽƉƉŽƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂŶ�ĂƌĐŚŝƚĞĐƚƵƌĂů�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ƉƌĞĨĞƌĂďůĞ��ŝŶ�Ă�ƐĞŶƐŝƟǀĞ�ĂƌĞĂ͘ 
 

WŚŽƚŽǀŽůƚĂŝĐƐ�ƐƵƉƉůǇ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƌĞ�ĂƩĂĐŚĞĚ�
ƚŽ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐŝƚǇ�ŐŝƌĚ�Žƌ�ƚŽ�ĂŶǇ�ŽƚŚĞƌ��ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů�ůŽĂĚ͘��ǆĐĞƐƐ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐͲ
ŝƚǇ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƐŽůĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�EĂƟŽŶĂů�'ƌŝĚ�ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂƚĞĚ�
ƉŽǁĞƌ�ĞǆĐĞĞĚƐ��ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�ŶĞĞĚ͘�Ws�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞ�ŽŶůǇ�ĚĂǇůŝŐŚƚ͕�
ŶŽƚ�ƐƵŶůŝŐŚƚ�ƚŽ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂƚĞ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐŝƚǇ�;ĂůƚŚŽƵŐŚ�ŵŽƌĞ��ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐŝƚǇ�ŝƐ�
ƉƌŽĚƵĐĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƐƵŶůŝŐŚƚͿ͕�ƐŽ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ƐƟůů�ďĞ�ƉƌŽͲ
ĚƵĐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ŽǀĞƌĐĂƐƚ�Žƌ�ĐůŽƵĚǇ��ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶƐ͘ 
 

dŚĞ�ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�Ws�ĐĞůůƐ�ŝƐ�ŚĞĂǀŝůǇ�ĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝǌĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĂƌƌĂǇ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚ�ĐŽƐƚ�ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶƐ��ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ůĂƌŐĞƌ�
ŝŶƐƚĂůůĂƟŽŶƐ͘ 
 

^ŽůĂƌ�Ws 
^ŽůĂƌ�ǁĂƚĞƌ� ŚĞĂƟŶŐ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ� ƵƐĞ� ƚŚĞ� ĞŶĞƌŐǇ� ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚĞ� ƐƵŶ� ƚŽ�
ŚĞĂƚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ĨŽƌ�ĚŽŵĞƐƟĐ�ŚŽƚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ŶĞĞĚƐ͘� �dŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ƵƐĞ�Ă�
ŚĞĂƚ�ĐŽůůĞĐƚŽƌ͕�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ŵŽƵŶƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽŽĨ�ŝŶ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�Ă�ŇƵŝĚ�
ŝƐ�ŚĞĂƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵŶ͘��dŚŝƐ�ŇƵŝĚ�ŝƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƵƉ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�
ƐƚŽƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�Ă�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞ�ŚŽƚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ĐǇůŝŶĚĞƌ�Žƌ�Ă�ƚǁŝŶ�ĐŽŝů� ŚŽƚ 

ǁĂƚĞƌ� ĐǇůŝŶĚĞƌ� ŝŶƐŝĚĞ� ƚŚĞ� ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͘� dŚĞ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ� ǁŽƌŬ� ǀĞƌǇ� ƐƵĐͲ
ĐĞƐƐĨƵůůǇ�ŝŶ�Ăůů�ƉĂƌƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�h<͕�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĐĂŶ� �ǁŽƌŬ�ŝŶ�ĚŝīƵƐĞ�ůŝŐŚƚ�
ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶƐ͘ 

>ŝŬĞ� ƉŚŽƚŽǀŽůƚĂŝĐ� ƉĂŶĞůƐ� ƚŚĞ� ŵŽƐƚ� ƐƵŝƚĂďůĞ� ůŽĐĂƟŽŶ� ĨŽƌ�
ŵŽƵŶƟŶŐ�ƐŽůĂƌ�ŚŽƚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƉĂŶĞůƐ�ŝƐ�ŽŶ�ƌŽŽĨƐ�ĂƐ� � ƚŚĞǇ�ƵƐƵĂůůǇ�
ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƐƚ�ĞǆƉŽƐƵƌĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵŶ͘ 
 

dŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů͛Ɛ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�ƉĂƩĞƌŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝǀĞ�ƐŚƵƚ�ĚŽǁŶ�
ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵŵŵĞƌ͕�ŚŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�ǁŝůů��ůŝŬĞůǇ�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�
ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘�dŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚĞĂŵ�ŚĂƐ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚͲ
ĞƌĞĚ�ƉŽŝŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƵƐĞ��ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐŵĂůů�ƐƚŽƌĂŐĞ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�
ƚŽ�ŵŝŶŝŵŝƐĞ�ŚĞĂƚ�ůŽƐƐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ůĞŐŝŽŶĞůůĂ� ƌŝƐŬ͘ 
 

�ŝƌ�̂ ŽƵƌĐĞ�,ĞĂƚ�WƵŵƉƐ�;�^,WͿ 
�ŝƌ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƉƵŵƉ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞ�ĂƐ�Ă�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�
ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƉƵŵƉ�ĂůƚŚŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞǇ��ƵƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƵƚƐŝĚĞ�Ăŝƌ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ͘�
dŚĞ�ĐŽĞĸĐŝĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŐŝǀĞŶ�ďǇ�Ăŝƌ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƉƵŵƉ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�
ĂƌĞ�ŝŶĨĞƌŝŽƌ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŽĨ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ǀĂƌǇŝŶŐ�Ăŝƌ�ƚĞŵƉĞƌĂͲ
ƚƵƌĞƐ͘�/Ŷ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƉƚŚ�ŽĨ��ǁŝŶƚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�Ăŝƌ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�
ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ůŽǁĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͕��ĂŶĚ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�
ƚŚĂƚ�ŵŽƌĞ�ďĂĐŬ-ƵƉ�ŚĞĂƚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ŝĨ�ĂŶ�Ăŝƌ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ƵŶŝƚ�ŝƐ�ĮƩĞĚ͘�
dŚŝƐ�ďĂĐŬ-ƵƉ�ŚĞĂƚ��ŽŌĞŶ�ĐŽŵĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ă�ĚŝƌĞĐƚ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐ�ŚĞĂƚĞƌ͘�dŚĞǇ�
ŽƉĞƌĂƚĞ�ŽǀĞƌ�Ă�ǀĂƌǇŝŶŐ�ƚĞŵƉĞƌĂƚƵƌĞƐ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�-ϭϱΣ�� ƚŽ 
нϮϱΣ�͕�ŚŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝůů�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ϯ�ƚŽ�
ϭ�� ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ƐĂǀŝŶŐ�ƌĂƟŽ�ŝŶ�ǁŝŶƚĞƌ͕ 
ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂůƐŽ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞ�Ă�ĚĞĨƌŽƐƟŶŐ�ŵĞĐŚĂŶŝƐŵ�ƚŽ�ŵĞůƚ�ŝĐĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĨŽƌŵƐ�ŽŶ�
ƚŚĞ�Ăŝƌ�ŚĞĂƚ�ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞƌ͘ 

�^,WƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĐŚĞĂƉĞƌ�ƚŽ�ŝŶƐƚĂůů�ƚŚĂŶ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƉƵŵƉƐ�ďƵƚ�ĂƌĞ�ŽŶůǇ�

 

$33(1',&(6  
6867$,1$%,/,7<�67$7(0(17—(1(5*<�$1'�&2� 

244



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϲϳ 

� �( 
 

$33(1',&(6  
6867$,1$%,/,7<�67$7(0(17—(1(5*<�$1'�&2� 

ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ŽŶ�Ă�ƌĞůĂƟǀĞůǇ�ƐŵĂůů��ƐĐĂůĞ͘�/Ĩ�ĂƉƉůŝĞĚ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�Ă�ůĂƌŐĞƌ�ƐŝƚĞ�Ă�
ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƉůĂŶƚ�ǌŽŶĞƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ŚĞĂƚ͕��
ůĞĂĚŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ƉůĂŶƚ�ƐƉĂĐĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘�dǇƉŝĐĂů�ĐŽƐƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŶ�
ŝŶƐƚĂůůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŐŝŽŶ� ŽĨ  
άϭϬ͕ϬϬϬ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ƐŵĂůůĞƌ�ĐŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂů�Žƌ�ĚŽŵĞƐƟĐ�ƐŝǌĞ�ŝŶƐƚĂůůĂƟŽŶ͘ 
 

�ĂƌďŽŶ�ĚŝŽǆŝĚĞ�ĞŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ƐĂǀŝŶŐƐ�ǁŝůů�ƚǇƉŝĐĂůůǇ�ďĞ�ůĞƐƐ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƉƵŵƉ͘��ŝƌ��ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƉƵŵƉƐ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�
ƐƵŝƚĂďůĞ�ĂƐ�ĂŶ�,s���ƐŽůƵƟŽŶ͘ 
 

'ƌŽƵŶĚ�̂ ŽƵƌĐĞ�,ĞĂƚ�WƵŵƉƐ� ;'^,WͿ 
'ĞŽ-ƚŚĞƌŵĂů�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ŝƐ�ĞƐƐĞŶƟĂůůǇ�ŚĞĂƚ�ĐŽůůĞĐƚĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ͘�
,ĞĂƚ�ŽďƚĂŝŶĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ŵĂǇ��ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ŝƚ�ĂƐ�Ă�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ŽĨ�
ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŽůŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�h<�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�Ă�ŐĞŽ-ƚŚĞƌŵĂů�ŚĞĂƚ��
ƉƵŵƉ�Žƌ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƉƵŵƉƐ͘ 
 

��ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƉƵŵƉ�ŝƐ�Ă�ĚĞǀŝĐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƟŶŐ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ĨŽƌŵ�ŽĨ�ůŽǁ�ůĞǀĞů�ŚĞĂƚ�ƚŽ�ŚĞĂƚ�Ăƚ�Ă��ƵƐĂďůĞ�ƚĞŵƉĞƌĂƚƵƌĞ͘�dŚĞ�ŚĞĂƚ�
ƉƵŵƉ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ĮǀĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƉĂƌƚƐ͖�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ĐŽůůĞĐƚŽƌ�ůŽŽƉͬŽƌ�ďŽƌĞƐ͕�
ŚĞĂƚ��ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞƌ͕�ĐŽŵƉƌĞƐƐŽƌ͕�ĐŽŶĚĞŶƐĞƌ�ŚĞĂƚ�ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆƉĂŶͲ
ƐŝŽŶ�ǀĂůǀĞ͘ 
 

�ƚ�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�ϭ͘Ϯ-ϭ͘ϱ�ŵĞƚƌĞƐ�ĚŽǁŶ�ďĞůŽǁ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ůĞǀĞů�ƚŚĞ�
ƚĞŵƉĞƌĂƚƵƌĞ�ŝƐ�Ă�ĐŽŶƐƚĂŶƚ�ϭϬ�ƚŽ�ϭϮǑ�͘���ŶǇ�ďŽƌĞƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�
ƐƵŶŬ�ƚŽ�ĂŶ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞ�ĚĞƉƚŚ�ŽĨ�ϱϬ�–�ϭϮϬŵ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ĨĞĂƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�
ƌĞƉŽƌƚ��ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂƐĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ�ŝĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ�ŽĨ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�
ǁĂƐ�ǀŝĂďůĞ͘ 
 
&ƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽƌĞƐ�ƉƌĞ-ŝŶƐƵůĂƚĞĚ�ƉŝƉĞǁŽƌŬ�ŝƐ�ůĂŝĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�
ŚĞĂƚ�ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞƌ�ĚĞǀŝĐĞ͘�dŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ��ŝƐ�ĮůůĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶƟͲ
ĨƌĞĞǌĞ͘�dŚĞ�ĐŽŽůĞĚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ŝƐ�ƉƵŵƉĞĚ�ĂƌŽƵŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽŽƉ�ͬ � ďŽƌĞ�ŐĂƚŚĞƌͲ
ŝŶŐ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ��ĂƐ�ŝƚ�ĐŝƌĐƵůĂƚĞƐ͘�dŚĞ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ŚĞĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ϭϬ-
ϭϮǑ��ŝƐ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ŚĞĂƚ��ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞƌ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ŝƐ�ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĨƌŝŐĞƌĂŶƚ�ŐĂƐ͘�&Žƌ�ĞǀĞƌǇ�ϭŬt�ŽĨ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�
ƵƐĞĚ� ƚŽ�ĐŽŵƉƌĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĨƌŝŐĞƌĂŶƚ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ�͚ŐŝǀĞƐ�ƵƉ͛�ϰ�

Ŭt�ŽĨ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƵƐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ��ŚĞĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�
ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͘ 

dǇƉŝĐĂů�ĐŽƐƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŶ�ŝŶƐƚĂůůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�
άϭϲ͕ϬϬϬ-ϮϬ͕ϬϬϬ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ƐŵĂůůĞƌ�ĐŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂů� Žƌ 
ĚŽŵĞƐƟĐ�ƐŝǌĞ�ŝŶƐƚĂůůĂƟŽŶ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ŝŶƐƚĂůůĂƟŽŶ�ĐŽƐƚƐ�Ăƚ�
άϭϮϬϬ�ͬŬt�ŽĨ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐĞĚ͘ 
 

�ŶĞƌŐǇ��ĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�̂ ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ 

�ŶĞƌŐǇ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĚĞĞŵĞĚ�ŵŽƌĞ�
ƐƵŝƚĂďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�Ăƚ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ���ŽůůĞŐĞ�ŝŶͲ
ĐůƵĚĞ͗ 

· ,ŝŐŚ�ŝŶƐƵůĂƟŽŶ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƚƌĂŶƐͲ
ĨĞƌ�ŽĨ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ� ĨĂďƌŝĐ͘ 

· hƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉŚŽƚŽǀŽůƚĂŝĐ�ƉĂŶĞů�;WsͿ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�Žƌ�
^ŽůĂƌ�Ws͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�
ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŇĂƚ�ƌŽŽĨ�Ăƚ�ĂŶ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�Ɵůƚ�
ĂŶŐůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƌŝĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŵĂǆŝŵŝƐĞ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌͲ
ŵĂŶĐĞ͘ 

· hƐĞ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�Ăŝƌ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƉƵŵƉ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ƚŽ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ŚŽƚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�
ǁŚŽůĞ��ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͘ 

· �ŶǀĞůŽƉĞ�Ăŝƌ�ƟŐŚƚŶĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƵŶŶĞĐĞƐͲ
ƐĂƌǇ�Ăŝƌ�ŝŶĮůƚƌĂƟŽŶ� 

· hƐĞ�ŽĨ�DĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�sĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ�,ĞĂƚ�ZĞƚƵƌŶ�
;Ds,ZͿ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ƚŽ�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞ�ƚŽ�
ĞŶĞƌŐǇ��ĚĞŵĂŶĚ�ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ͘ 

· �ĂǇůŝŐŚƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞůů-ƉůĂŶŶĞĚ�ŇŽŽƌ�ůĂǇŽƵƚƐ�
ƚŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ĂƌƟĮĐŝĂů�ůŝŐŚƟŶŐ͖�
ĂŶĚ 

· ,ŝŐŚ�ĞĸĐĂĐǇ�>���ůŝŐŚƟŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂƵƚŽŵĂƟĐ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŽůƐ� 

 
dŚĞƌŵĂů��ŽŵĨŽƌƚ�ĂŶĚ�KǀĞƌŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ZŝƐŬ 

dŽ�ŵŝŶŝŵŝƐĞ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ůŽƐƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĨĂďƌŝĐ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ĐŽƵůĚ�
ďĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ�Ă�ďĂůĂŶĐĞ��ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƌĞƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ŚĞĂƚ�
ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ǁŝŶƚĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ĂůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĚŝƐƐŝƉĂƚĞ�ŚĞĂƚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�
ƚŚĞ�ƐƵŵŵĞƌ��ŵŽŶƚŚƐ͘�&ƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ŽǀĞƌŚĞĂƟŶŐ�
ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŽŽůŝŶŐ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ͗ 

· �ŶĞƌŐǇ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚŽ�ŵŝŶŝŵŝƐĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�
ŚĞĂƚ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ͘�/Ŷ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ĚŽ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ��
ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ĂƉƉůŝĂŶĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ůŝŐŚƟŶŐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ƐƉĞĐŝĮĞĚ͘ 

· �ǆƉŽƐĞĚ�ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ƐůĂď�ƐŽĸƚƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŝŶĐŽƌͲ
ƉŽƌĂƚĞĚ͘ 

· �ŝƌĞĐƚ�ƐŽůĂƌ�ŐĂŝŶƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽůůĞĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�
ƐƉĞĐŝĨǇŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ůŽĐĂƟŽŶ͕�ƐŝǌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚǇƉĞ��
ŽĨ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁƐ͘�tŝŶĚŽǁƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐ�ƉƌŽƉĞƌͲ
ƟĞƐ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ůĞƚ�Ă�ůŽǁ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐŽůĂƌ�
ŚĞĂƚ�ŝŶ�ĂƌĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĞĚ͘�dŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�
ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŶĞǁ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�
ĂŶ��ŽƉƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚƌŝƉůĞ�ŐůĂǌŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽǁ�Ő-ǀĂůƵĞƐ�
ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŽƵƚŚ�ĞůĞǀĂƟŽŶ͘ 

· ZĞĚƵĐĞĚ�Ăŝƌ�ƉĞƌŵĞĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂǆŝŵŝƐĞĚ�
ŝŶƐƵůĂƟŽŶ�ůĞǀĞůƐ� 

· WĂƐƐŝǀĞ�ǀĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ds,Z�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�
ĂƐ�ŽƉĞŶĂďůĞ� ǁŝŶĚŽǁƐ͘� 

245



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϲϴ 

� �( 
�ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ��ŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂů�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ 
�ŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂů�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ǁŽƌŬƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŵŝƟŐĂƚͲ
ĞĚ�ĂƐ�ĨĂƌ�ĂƐ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ��ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ͗ 

· �ŽŶƚƌĂĐƚŽƌ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂů�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�
ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐĞƐ�;ƵŶĚĞƌ�/^KϭϰϬϬϭͿ͕��ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�
ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶͲ
ƚĂů�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƉůĂŶ�;��DWͿ��ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�
ƐŝƚĞƐ͖ 

· dƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŝƚĞ�ŝŶĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ƐŝƚĞ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟǀĞƐ͖ 

· DŽŶŝƚŽƌŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ͕�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƚŽ�ĂŶĚ�
ĨƌŽŵ�ƐŝƚĞ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ͖ 

· DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ͖ 

· &ŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ďĞƐƚ�ƉƌĂĐƟĐĞ�ƉŽůůƵƟŽŶ�ŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�
ƚŚĞ��ŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ͖ 

· ͼ�ŶƐƵƌŝŶŐ�Ăůů�ƐŝƚĞ�ƟŵďĞƌ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůǇ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞĚ�ŝŶ�
ůŝŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�h<�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ�dŝŵďĞƌ�WƌŽĐƵƌĞͲ
ŵĞŶƚ�WŽůŝĐǇ͖ 

· sĞŚŝĐůĞ�ĞŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŵŝŶŝŵŝƐĞĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�
ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ĐĂƚĂůǇƟĐ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƚĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌ��
ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ǀĞŚŝĐůĞ�ĞŶŐŝŶĞƐ͖ 

· �ĂŵƉŝŶŐ�ĚŽǁŶ�ŽĨ�ďƌŝĐŬ�ǁĂůůƐ�ĞƚĐ͘�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ĂŶǇ�
ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĚĞŵŽůŝƟŽŶ͖ 

· ZĞŐƵůĂƌůǇ�ŝŶƐƉĞĐƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞƚ�ƐƵƉƉƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ�ŵĂƚĞͲ
ƌŝĂůƐͬƐŽŝů�ƐƚŽĐŬƉŝůĞƐ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ŶĞĐĞƐƐĂƌǇ�;ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ��
ǁŝŶĚ�ƐŚŝĞůĚŝŶŐ�Žƌ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞůǇ�ĞŶĐůŽƐŝŶŐ͕�ƐƚŽƌŝŶŐ�
ĂǁĂǇ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƐŝƚĞ�ďŽƵŶĚĂƌŝĞƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ��
ŚĞŝŐŚƚ�ŽĨ�ƐƚŽĐŬƉŝůĞƐͿ͖ 

· �ƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ŽƌŝĞŶƚĂƟŶŐ�ŽĨ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂů�ƐƚŽĐŬƉŝůĞƐ͖ 

· WƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ǁŚĞĞů�ǁĂƐŚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞƚ�ƐƵƉƉƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ�
ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĂĚŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ǁĂŐŽŶƐ�ǀĞŚŝĐůĞƐ͖ 

· �ŽǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ǀĞŚŝĐůĞƐ�ĐĂƌƌǇŝŶŐ�ĚƌǇ�ƐŽŝů�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�
ǁĂƐƚĞƐ͖ 

· ^ŚŝĞůĚŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ĚƵƐƚ-ŐĞŶĞƌĂƟŶŐ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�
ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ͖ 

· WƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ƐƵŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐŝƚĞ�ŚŽĂƌĚŝŶŐ͖ 

· ZĞƐƚƌŝĐƟŶŐ�ǀĞŚŝĐůĞ�ƐƉĞĞĚƐ�ŽŶ�ŚĂƵů�ƌŽĂĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƵŶƐƵƌĨĂĐĞĚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝƚĞ͖� ĂŶĚ͕ 

· /ŶƐƉĞĐƟŶŐ�ƵŶƐƵƌĨĂĐĞĚ�ŚĂƵůĂŐĞ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞƚ�
ƐƵƉƉƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ďĞ�ŶĞĐĞƐƐĂƌǇ�;ŝŶ��ƟŵĞƐ�
ŽĨ�ƉƌŽůŽŶŐĞĚ�ĚƌǇ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐͿ͘ 

 

$33(1',&(6  
6867$,1$%,/,7<�67$7(0(17—&216758&7,21�0$1$*(0(17 

�ŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƚĞ��ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚŽƌƐ 
dŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ĂůƐŽ�ƐĞĞŬ�ƚŽ�ƌĞŐŝƐƚĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ĐĞƌƟĨǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝƚĞ�ƚŽ�
�ŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƚĞ��ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚŽƌƐ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�;��^Ϳ��Žƌ�ĂĚŽƉƚ�ƚŚĞ�
ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͛Ɛ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ͘�dŚĞ��� �̂ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ĂŝŵƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƐĞ�ĂŶĚ�
ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ��ƐŝƚĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĂŶ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶͲ
ŵĞŶƚĂůůǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽĐŝĂůůǇ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƚĞ͕�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚĂͲ
ďůĞ��ŵĂŶŶĞƌ͘ 

246



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϲϵ 

� �( 
 

$33(1',&(6  
6867$,1$%,/,7<�67$7(0(17—:$7(5�()),&,(1&< 

tĂƚĞƌ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ 
dŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƐĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐƌĞĂƚĞ�Ă�
ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĚĂƉƚĂďůĞ�ƚŽ��ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ĐůŝŵĂƟĐ�
ƐĐĞŶĂƌŝŽƐ͘ 
 

tĂƚĞƌ��ŽŶƐĞƌǀĂƟŽŶ 
dŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚĞĂŵ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌ�ƚĂƌŐĞƟŶŐ�Ă�ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚ�ƌĞĚƵĐͲ
ƟŽŶ�ŝŶ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƵƐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ��ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚǇƉŝĐĂů�
ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ͕�ĞƋƵĂƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�Ă�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ĐŽŶƐƵŵƉƟŽŶ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�ŽĨ�ϭϭϬ�
ůŝƚƌĞƐ�ƉĞƌ�ƉĞƌƐŽŶ��ƉĞƌ�ĚĂǇ�;ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ϱůͬƉͬĚĂǇ�ĨŽƌ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ƵƐĞͿ͘�
dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�Ă�ϭϮй�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚ�h<��ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ��
ZĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶƐ�WĂƌƚ�'�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ͘ 
 

tĂƚĞƌ�ĐŽŶƐƵŵƉƟŽŶ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�
ǁĂƚĞƌ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�Ăůů�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĞĚ��ĚŽŵĞƐƟĐ�ǁĂƚĞƌ
-ĐŽŶƐƵŵŝŶŐ�ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚƐ�;ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ůŽǁ-ŇŽǁ�ƐŚŽǁĞƌŚĞĂĚƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ƚĂƉƐ͕�ĚƵĂů�ŇƵƐŚ�ƚŽŝůĞƚƐ��ĂŶĚ�ůŽǁ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ĐŽŶƐƵŵŝŶŐ�ǁĂƐŚͲ
ŝŶŐ�ŵĂĐŚŝŶĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚŝƐŚǁĂƐŚĞƌƐͿ͕�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ŵĞƚĞƌƐ�ůŝŶŬĞĚ�ƚŽ�Ă�
�ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ��DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�^ǇƐƚĞŵ�ŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ͕�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƌĞĐǇĐůŝŶŐ�ƐǇƐͲ
ƚĞŵƐ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŇŽǁ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�ĚĞǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ��ƌĞŐƵͲ
ůĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵƉƉůǇ�ŽĨ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ĞĂĐŚ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚǇ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĚĞͲ
ŵĂŶĚ͘ 
 
��ƉĞƌŵĂŶĞŶƚ�ĂƵƚŽŵĂƚĞĚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ůĞĂŬ�ĚĞƚĞĐƟŽŶ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ĐŽƵůĚ�
ĂůƐŽ�ďĞ�ŝŶƐƚĂůůĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂůĞƌƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ��ŽĐĐƵƉĂŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�Ă�ŵĂũŽƌ�
ǁĂƚĞƌ�ůĞĂŬ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶƐ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƐƵƉƉůǇ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�
ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ��ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƟůŝƟĞƐ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ŵĞƚĞƌ͘ 

247



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϳϬ 

� �( 
WƵďůŝĐ�dƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ 
dŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŝƐ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�EŽƌƚŚ�tĞƐƚ�ŽĨ�KĂŬŚĂŵ�ƚŽǁŶ�ĐĞŶƚƌĞ͘�
dŚĞ�ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬ�ŽĨ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ��ĂĐĐĞƐƐŝďůĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝƚĞ�ŝƐ�
ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝǀĞ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ϯ�ďƵƐ�ƐƚŽƉƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ůĞƐƐ�ƚŚĂŶ�ϱϬϬŵ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ƐŝƚĞ͘��dŚĞ�ŶĞĂƌĞƐƚ�ďƵƐ�ƐƚŽƉ͕�,ƵŶƚƐŵĂŶ��ƌŝǀĞ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝƐ�ĂďŽƵƚ�
ϯϱϬŵ�ĂǁĂǇ͕�ƐĞƌǀĞƐ�ďƵƐ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ�ϭϴϰ͕�Zϰϳ͕�Z&ϭ��ĂŶĚ�Z&Ϯ͘�dŚĞ�ZĂŝů�
^ƚĂƟŽŶ�ďƵƐ�ƐƚŽƉ͕�ĂďŽƵƚ�ϰϬϬŵ�ĂǁĂǇ͕�ƐĞƌǀĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ďƵƐ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ�ĂƐ�
ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ϭϰϲ͘�dŚĞ��dŽǁŶ͛Ɛ��ƵƐ�ƐƚĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ϳϱϬŵ�ǁĂůŬŝŶŐ�ĚŝƐͲ
ƚĂŶĐĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ƐŝƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŽīĞƌƐ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ƚǁŽ��ďƵƐ�ƐĞƌͲ
ǀŝĐĞƐ͘�KĂŬŚĂŵ�ƚƌĂŝŶ�ƐƚĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ϲϱϬŵ�ǁĂůŬŝŶŐ�ĚŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�
ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŶĞǁ�ďůŽĐŬ�ĂŶĚ��ƌĞĨƵƌďŝƐŚŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŽīĞƌƐ��ƌŽƐƐ�
�ŽƵŶƚƌǇ�ĂŶĚ��DZ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŽ�^ƚĂŶƐƚĞĚ��ŝƌƉŽƌƚ͕��ŝƌŵŝŶŐŚĂŵ͕�EŽƌͲ
ǁŝĐŚ�ĂƐ��ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�EŽƌƚŚ��ŶŐůĂŶĚ͘ 
 

�ǇĐůŝŶŐ�WƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ 
dŚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĐǇĐůĞ�ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐ��WŽůŝĐǇ��^ϭϴ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�
ƉůĂŶ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽ�ŵŝŶŝŵƵŵ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�
ĐǇĐůĞ�ƐƉĂĐĞƐ��ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ͘�dŚĞ�ƐŝƚĞ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�
�Z���D�EĞǁ��ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ϮϬϭϴ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ�ǁŚĞƌĞ��ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶĂů�
ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ϭ�ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ�ƐƉĂĐĞ�ƉĞƌ�ϭϬ�ŵĞŵͲ
ďĞƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƐƚĂī�ĂŶĚ�ƐƚƵĚĞŶƚƐ��ĐŽŵďŝŶĞĚ͘ 
 

dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ŵĂŶǇ�ĐǇĐůĞ�ůĂŶĞƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵƌƌŽƵŶĚŝŶŐ�
ĂƌĞĂ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ͕�ŚŽǁĞǀĞƌ�ŵŽƐƚ�ƌŽĂĚƐ��ŚĂǀĞ�ǁŝĚĞ�ůĂŶĞƐ�
ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂůůŽǁ�ĨŽƌ�ŽŶ-ƌŽĂĚ�ĐǇĐůŝŶŐ͘�/Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŝƐ�
ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�Ă�ůĂƌŐĞůǇ��ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƟĂů�ĂƌĞĂ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ�ƋƵŝĞƚ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ�
ĂƌĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ͘ 

ZƵƚůĂŶĚ�ŚĂƐ�Ă�ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬ�ŽĨ�ĐǇĐůĞ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶƚǇ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�
ďĞŐŝŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�KĂŬŚĂŵ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�KĂŬŚĂŵ��ƚŽ��ŽůůǇǁĞƐƚŽŶ�ͬ � <ĞƩŽŶ�
ĂŶĚ�KĂŬŚĂŵ�ƚŽ�&ŽƚŚĞƌŝŶŐŚĂǇ��ĂƐƚůĞ͘ 

 

�Ăƌ�WĂƌŬŝŶŐ�WƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ 
EŽ�ŶĞǁ�ŽŶ-ƐŝƚĞ�ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽͲ
ƉŽƐĂůƐ͘�dŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ĐĂƌ�ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ��ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ĚŝƐĂďůĞĚ�
ĐĂƌ�ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ�ƐƉĂĐĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ŝŵŵĞĚŝĂƚĞůǇ�ƐŽƵƚŚ�ĞĂƐƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�
ƌĞĨƵƌďŝƐŚŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ��ƐŽƵƚŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ͘ 

 

 

$33(1',&(6  
6867$,1$%,/,7<�67$7(0(17—75$163257�	�&211(&7,9,7< 

�ĐĐĞƐƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�^ĞĐƵƌŝƚǇ 
�ƌĞĂƟŶŐ�Ă�ƐĞĐƵƌĞ�ďƵƚ�ĨƵůůǇ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐŝďůĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŝƐ�Ă�ŬĞǇ�
ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͕�ŝŶ�ůŝŶĞ��ǁŝƚŚ�WŽůŝĐǇ��^ϳ͘�dŽ�
ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞĚ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚĞĂŵ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ĂĚŽƉƚ͕�ǁŚĞƌĞ�
ĨĞĂƐŝďůĞ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŬĞǇ��ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ�ŽĨ�͞^ĞĐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ��ĞƐŝŐŶ͟�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�Ăůů�
ĞůĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͘�/Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ͕��ƌĐŚŝƚĞĐƚƵƌĂů�>ŝĂŝƐŽŶ��
KĸĐĞƌ�;�>KͿ�Žƌ�Ă��ƌŝŵĞ�WƌĞǀĞŶƟŽŶ��ĞƐŝŐŶ��ĚǀŝƐŽƌ�;�W��Ϳ�
ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĞĚ�Ăƚ�ĂŶ�ĞĂƌůǇ�ƐƚĂŐĞ�ƚŽ��ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶͲ
ĚĂƟŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�ŚŽǁ�ƚŚĞ��W���ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĂŶĚ��ůĂǇŽƵƚ͘ 
 

/ƚ� ŝƐ� ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŚĂƚ� ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů� ĂůƌĞĂĚǇ� ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞƐ� ƐŽŵĞ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�
ĂďŽǀĞ�ŵĞŶƟŽŶĞĚ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ��ĨĞĂƚƵƌĞƐ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�
�ĐĐĞƐƐŝďůĞ�ƚŽŝůĞƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ� ĨŽƌ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůͲ
ŝƚǇ� ĂĐĐĞƐƐ� ĨĞĂƚƵƌĞƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� � ůŝŌ� ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ� ƐŚŽƵůĚ� ƐƵĸĐĞ� ŝŶ�
ĞŶƐƵƌŝŶŐ� ŝŶĐůƵƐŝǀĞ� ĚĞƐŝŐŶ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ŶĞǁ� ďƵŝůĚ� ĂŶĚ� ƌĞĨƵƌďŝƐŚͲ
ŵĞŶƚ͘ 

248



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϳϭ 

� �( 
 

$33(1',&(6  
6867$,1$%,/,7<�67$7(0(17–�0$7(5,$/6 

DĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�tĂƐƚĞ�/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ 
^ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂů�ƐŽƵƌĐŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�
ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ůŝĨĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�
ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͛Ɛ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂů�ĨŽŽƚƉƌŝŶƚ�ŝƐ�ŵŝŶŝŵŝƐĞĚ�ĂƐ�
ĨĂƌ�ĂƐ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ͘�dŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ��ĐŽƵůĚ�ĂůƐŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ůŽǁ�ĞŵďŽĚŝĞĚ�
ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ŝƐ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ͕�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�
ĂŶĚ��ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ͕�ƚŽŐĞƚŚĞƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�
ůŝĨĞ�ĞŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ͘ 
 

DĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�̂ ĞůĞĐƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�^ŽƵƌĐŝŶŐ 
/ƚ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚĞĂŵ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ĞŶͲ
ƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĞīŽƌƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŵĂĚĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƵƐĞ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ��ǁŚĞƌĞ�ĨĞĂƐŝďůĞ�
ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ͕�ŶĞǁ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůǇ�
ƐŽƵƌĐĞĚ͘�EĞǁ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ��ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƐĞůĞĐƚĞĚ͕�
ǁŚĞƌĞ�ĨĞĂƐŝďůĞ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ůŽǁ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂů� ŝŵƉĂĐƚ͘ 
 

�Ŷ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚĞĂŵ�ĂƌĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵƉĞƌƐƚƌƵĐͲ
ƚƵƌĞ�ŝƐ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ƌĞŝŶĨŽƌĐĞĚ�ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ůŽǁ��ĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƌĂƟŽ�ĂŶĚ�
ƉŽƐƐŝďůǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉŽƐƚ�ƚĞŶƐŝŽŶŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ŬĞĞƉ�ƐůĂď�ƚŚŝĐŬŶĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�Ă�
ŵŝŶŝŵƵŵ͘��ůŽŶŐƐŝĚĞ��ƚŚŝƐ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ͕�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�
ŶĞǁ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�ĐŽŵĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ă�ƌĞĐǇĐůĞĚ�Žƌ�ƌĞƵƐĞĚ� ƐŽƵƌĐĞ͘ 
 

��ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ĂůƐŽ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĞĂŵ�ĂƌĞ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�
ĐƌŽƐƐ�ůĂŵŝŶĂƚĞĚ�ƟŵďĞƌ�;�>dͿ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ��ƐƵƉĞƌƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ͘�dŚĞ�
ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ��ƌŽƐƐ�>ĂŵŝŶĂƚĞĚ�dŝŵďĞƌ�;�>dͿ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ŽīĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŽƵͲ
ďůĞ�ďĞŶĞĮƚ�ŽĨ��ƐĞƋƵĞƐƚĞƌŝŶŐ��KϮ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƚŵŽƐƉŚĞƌĞ�
ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƟŵďĞƌ�ůŝĨĞƐƉĂŶ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌŝŶŐ�ůĞƐƐ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�
ƚŽ��ƉƌŽĚƵĐĞ͘�DŝŶŝŵƵŵ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ĂƉƉůǇ�ƚŽ�Ăůů�ŶĞǁ�
ƟŵďĞƌ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŵƵƐƚ�ďĞ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ��ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�h<�
'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ�dŝŵďĞƌ�WƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WŽůŝĐǇ͘ 
 

/Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ͕�Ăůů�ƟŵďĞƌ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�&^�ͬ�W�&��ĐĞƌƟĮĞĚ͕�Ăůů�
ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ��� �̂ϲϬϬϭ�ĐĞƌƟĮĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶǇ��ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŵĂƚĞͲ
ƌŝĂů�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�/̂ K�ϭϰϬϬϭ�ĐĞƌƟĮĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ďŽƚŚ�ŬĞǇ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐĞƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ƐƵƉƉůǇ�ĐŚĂŝŶͬ�ĞǆƚƌĂĐƟŽŶ��ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐĞƐ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ĨĞĂƐŝďůĞ�
ƚŽ�ĚŽ�ƐŽ͘ 
 
dŚĞ�'ƌĞĞŶ�'ƵŝĚĞ�ĨŽƌ�^ƉĞĐŝĮĐĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�Ă�ƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ƚŽŽů͕�ƉƌŽǀŝĚͲ
ŝŶŐ�ŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞůĂƟǀĞ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂů��ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�
ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ĚŝīĞƌĞŶƚ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĞůĞŵĞŶƚĂů�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ͕�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�
>ŝĨĞ��ǇĐůĞ��ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ��ƚŚĞ��ŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂů�WƌŽĮůĞ�DĞƚŚŽĚͲ
ŽůŽŐǇ͘�dŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚĞĂŵ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�'ƌĞĞŶ�'ƵŝĚĞ�ƚŽ��
^ƉĞĐŝĮĐĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ƐƉĞĐŝĨǇ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ůŽǁ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶͲ
ŵĞŶƚĂů�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ͕�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ĨĞĂƐŝďůĞ͘�dŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ��ĐŽƵůĚ�Ăŝŵ�ĨŽƌ�
ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƟŶŐ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ϱ�ďƵŝůĚ-ƵƉ�ĞůĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ďĞ��-��
ƌĂƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�'ƌĞĞŶ�'ƵŝĚĞ͘ 

dŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚĞĂŵ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ĂůƐŽ�Ăŝŵ�ĨŽƌ�ŝŶƐƵůĂƟŽŶ�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ�
ƚŚĂƚ�ĞůŝŵŝŶĂƚĞƐ�ŚǇĚƌŽĐŚůŽƌŽŇƵŽƌŽĐĂƌďŽŶƐ��;,�&�ƐͿ�ĂŶĚ�ŽǌŽŶĞ�
ĚĞƉůĞƟŶŐ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ͕�ǁŚĞƌĞǀĞƌ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ͘��ůů�ŝŶƐƵůĂƟŽŶ�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĞĚ�
ĐŽƵůĚ�ĂůƐŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă��'ůŽďĂů�tĂƌŵŝŶŐ�WŽƚĞŶƟĂů�;'tWͿ�ŽĨ�ůĞƐƐ�
ƚŚĂŶ�ϱ�ĂŶĚ�ďĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůǇ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ůŽǁ�ĞŵďŽĚŝĞĚ��
ŝŵƉĂĐƚ͘ 

�ŵďŽĚŝĞĚ��ĂƌďŽŶ��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ 
dŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ƵƟůŝƐĞ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ƚŽ�
ĐƵƚ�ĞŵďŽĚŝĞĚ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ͕�ĂƐ� ĨŽůůŽǁƐ͗ 

· ��ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĨŽůůŽǁĞĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�
ĚĞƐŝŐŶ͕��ƉƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�
ƐƚĂŐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͕�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�
ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐĞƐ��ůĞƐƐ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ͘�&Žƌ�

ĞǆĂŵƉůĞ͕�ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƐŽŵĞ�ƐŝǌĞƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�
ŵĂĚĞ�ƚŽ�ŵŝŶŝŵŝƐĞ�ŽīĐƵƚƐ��ŽĨ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�
ƐŽŵĞ�ďĞƐƉŽŬĞ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�Žī-
ƐŝƚĞ͖ 

· DĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƌŽĐƵƌĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�
ĂƌĞĂ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ͕�ƚŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ��
ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚĂƟŽŶ͖ 

· DĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ƌĞĐǇĐůĞĚ�
ĐŽŶƚĞŶƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƌĞĨĞƌĞŶƟĂůůǇ�ƉƌŽĐƵƌĞĚ�
ǁŚĞƌĞ��ĨĞĂƐŝďůĞ͕�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ůŽǁ�ĞŵďŽĚŝĞĚ�
ĐĂƌďŽŶ͖ 

· �ŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŵĂĚĞ�ƚŽ�ƵƐĞ�ƟŵďĞƌ�ĂƐ�
Ă�ůŽǁ�ĞŵďŽĚŝĞĚ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶͲ
ĐƌĞƚĞ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�Įƚ
-ŽƵƚ�ĞůĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ƐŝŶĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂďƌŝĐ�ďƵŝůĚ�ƵƉ��ŶĞĞĚƐ�
ƚŽ�ĂůŝŐŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů͛Ɛ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ĨĂďƌŝĐ͖�ĂŶĚ͕ 

· dŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚĞĂŵ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ƐĞĞŬ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŵŵŝƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�
tĂƐƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ZĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ��ĐƟŽŶ�WƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�
;tZ�WͿ�ŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞ�͚ĐƵƫŶŐ�ĞŵďŽĚŝĞĚ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ŝŶ�
ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ͕�ǁŚĞƌĞ� ĨĞĂƐŝďůĞ͘ 

249



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϳϮ 

� �( 
KĐĐƵƉĂŶƚ�tĞůůďĞŝŶŐ 
dŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�
ǁĞůůďĞŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ŽĐĐƵƉĂŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�ůĞǀĞůƐ�ŽĨ�ĨƌĞƐŚ��
Ăŝƌ͕�ƚŚĞƌŵĂů�ĐŽŵĨŽƌƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ŽǀĞƌŚĞĂƟŶŐ͕�
ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ŶĂƚƵƌĂů�ůŝŐŚƚ͕�ŐŽŽĚ�ůŝŐŚƟŶŐ�ůĞǀĞůƐ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂůůǇ��
ĂŶĚ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂůůǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐŽƵƐƟĐ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ͘ 
 

/ŶƚĞƌŶĂů��ŝƌ�YƵĂůŝƚǇ 
dŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚĞĂŵ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ƐƉĞĐŝĨǇ�ŽŶůǇ�ůŽǁ�ǀŽůĂƟůĞ�
ŽƌŐĂŶŝĐ�ĐŽŵƉŽƵŶĚƐ�;sK�Ϳ�ĮŶŝƐŚŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐƚƐ͕��
ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƐĞĂůĂŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂŝŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ��h��ŝƌĞĐƟǀĞ�ϮϬϬϰͬϰϮͬ��͘��
�ǀŽŝĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŵƉŽƐŝƚĞ�ǁŽŽĚ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐƚƐ�
ƚŚĂƚ�ĐŽŶƚĂŝŶ�ĂĚĚĞĚ�ƵƌĞĂ�ĨŽƌŵĂůĚĞŚǇĚĞ�ŝƐ�ĂůƐŽ��
ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ͘ 
 

�ĂǇůŝŐŚƚ 
�ƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐƚĂŐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĂƉƉĞĂƌƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ƚŽ�
ĂůůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ĚĂǇůŝŐŚƚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚ�ĂŶĚ��
ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĨƵƌďŝƐŚŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŵĂǆŝŵŝƐĞĚ�ĂƐ�ĨĂƌ�ĂƐ�ƉƌĂĐƟͲ
ĐĂů�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�EŽƌƚŚ�ĨĂĕĂĚĞ�ĐƵƌƚĂŝŶ�ǁĂůůŝŶŐ��ƉĂƌƟĐͲ
ƵůĂƌůǇ�ƵƐĞĨƵů�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐůĂƐƐ�ƌŽŽŵƐ�ĂŶĚ�ůĂďŽƌĂƚŽƌǇ�
ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͘ 
 

/ŶĐůƵƐŝǀĞ��ĞƐŝŐŶ 
dŚĞ�ŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ��ŽĐƵŵĞŶƚ�D�;DĂƌĐŚ�
ϮϬϭϲͿ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ�ĂŶ��ŝŶĐůƵͲ
ƐŝǀĞ�ďƵŝůƚ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĞŶĂďůĞƐ�ƵƐĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ŵĂǆŝŵͲ
ŝƐĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�ĂďŝůŝƟĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŶũŽǇ�Ă�ƐĂĨĞ�ĂŶĚ��
ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ�ƉĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƟŽŶ͘�tŚĞƌĞ�ĨĞĂƐŝďůĞ͕�ďŽƚŚ�
ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĨƵƌďŝƐŚŵĞŶƚ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ĚĞŵŽŶͲ
ƐƚƌĂƚĞ��ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ƚŽ�WĂƌƚ�Dϭ��ĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ĂŶĚ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�
ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ĚǁĞůůŝŶŐ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐ�
WĂƌƚ�D��ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶĂů�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚͲ
ŵĞŶƚƐ͘��ůů�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂůƌĞĂĚǇ�ĂƉƉĞĂƌƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�
ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ��ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĚŝƐĂďůĞĚ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽŝůĞƚƐ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĨƵƌďŝƐŚŵĞŶƚ͘�dŚĞ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ĨŽƌ�
ƚŚĞ�ůŝŌ�ƚŽ�ďĞ��ƵƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�ǁŝƚŚ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƟĞƐ�
ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĞǆƉůŽƌĞĚ͘ 
 

�ůĞĂŶůŝŶĞƐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ 
dŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚĞĂŵ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐĞŶƐŽƌ�
ƚŽŝůĞƚ�ŇƵƐŚ�ĚĞǀŝĐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ĞǆƉŽƐƵƌĞ�ƚŽ��
ƉĂƚŚŽŐĞŶƐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ĨƌĞƋƵĞŶƚůǇ�ƚŽƵĐŚĞĚ�ƐƵƌĨĂĐĞ�ĂƌĞͲ
ĂƐ͘�/Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ͕�ĂŶƟŵŝĐƌŽďŝĂů�ĚŽŽƌ�ƉƵƐŚ�ƉůĂƚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ��
ŚĂŶĚůĞƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ŚŝŐŚ�ƚƌĂĸĐ�ƉĞĚĞƐƚƌŝͲ
ĂŶ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͘ 

 

 

$33(1',&(6  
6867$,1$%,/,7<�67$7(0(17—+($/7+�	�:(//%(,1* 

ŝ̂ƚĞ��ŵĞŶŝƟĞƐ 
/Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ƐŝƚĞ�ĂŵĞŶŝƟĞƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚĞĂŵ�ŝƐ�
ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ďůƵĞ�ƌŽŽĨ��ĂŶĚ�ŐƌĞĞŶ�ƌŽŽĨ�
ĨĞĂƚƵƌĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂůůŽǁĞĚ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƚƵĚĞŶƚƐ�ǀŝĂ�Ă�ƐƚĂŝƌǁĂǇ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�
ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽŽĨ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂƌĂƉĞƚ��ŽĨ�ϭ͘ϭŵ�ŚĞŝŐŚƚ͘�^ŚŽƵůĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĨŽƌŵ�ƉĂƌƚ�
ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĮŶĂů�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ͕�ĚŝƐĂďůĞĚ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ� ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ͘ 

250



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϳϯ 

� �( 
 

$33(1',&(6  
6867$,1$%,/,7<�67$7(0(17—/$1'�86(�	�(&2/2*< 

WƌŽƚĞĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ��ŝŽĚŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ 
dŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ƐŝƚĞ�ůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďůŽĐŬ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�
ŵŝǆƚƵƌĞ�ŽĨ�ůĞǀĞů�ƉŽƌŽƵƐ�ƉĂǀŝŶŐ͕�Ă�ŐƌĂƐƐ�ďĂŶŬ��ĂŶĚ�ŐƌĂƐƐ�ƉůĂǇŝŶŐ�
ĮĞůĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ƉƌĞƐƵŵĞĚ�ůŽǁ�ĞĐŽůŽŐŝĐĂů�ǀĂůƵĞ͘�dŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�
ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ��ƉƌŽŵŽƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆͲ
ŝƐƟŶŐ�ƚƌĞĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽŌ�ůĂŶĚƐĐĂƉŝŶŐ�ƐƵƌƌŽƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�
ĨƌŽŵ��ĚĂŵĂŐĞ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƐŝƚĞ�ĚĞŵŽůŝƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ǁŽƌŬƐ͘ 
 
dŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚĞĂŵ�ŝƐ�ĐŽŵŵŝƩĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƟŶŐ�ďŝŽĚŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ�ŽŶ�
ƐŝƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ƚŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŚĞ��ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ͗ 

· �ŽŶĮƌŵ�ƚŚĂƚ�Ăůů�ƌĞůĞǀĂŶƚ�h<�ĂŶĚ��h�ůĞŐŝƐůĂͲ
ƟŽŶ�ƌĞůĂƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞŵĞŶƚ�
ŽĨ��ĞĐŽůŽŐǇ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĐŽŵƉůŝĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�
ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ͖ 

· �ŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂŶǇ�ĂīĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚƌĞĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŚƌƵďƐ�ĂƌĞ�
ĐůĞĂƌĞĚ�ŽƵƚ�ŽĨ�ďŝƌĚ�ďƌĞĞĚŝŶŐ�ƐĞĂƐŽŶ�;DĂƌĐŚ-
�ƵŐƵƐƚͿ͘��ůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞůǇ͕�Ă�ƐƵŝƚĂďůǇ�ƋƵĂůŝĮĞĚ�
ĞĐŽůŽŐŝƐƚ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ĐŚĞĐŬ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�
ĂĐƟǀĞ�ŶĞƐƚƐ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�
ǁŽƌŬƐ͖ 

· /ŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚƐ�ŝŶ�ůŝŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ďĞƐƚ�
ƉƌĂĐƟĐĞ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞ�ĚƵƐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƌƵŶŽī͖�
ĂŶĚ͕ 

· �ƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ƉŚĂƐĞ�Ă��ŝŽĚŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ�
�ŚĂŵƉŝŽŶ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌ�
ĂŶĚ��ůŝŵŝƚ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂůůǇ�ĚĞƚƌŝŵĞŶƚĂů�ĂĐƟǀŝͲ
ƟĞƐ͘�dŚĞǇ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ĂůƐŽ�ƚƌĂŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŽƌŬĨŽƌĐĞ�ŽŶ�

ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ��ƚŽ�ƌĂŝƐĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĂǁĂƌĞŶĞƐƐ�ŽĨ�
ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂů�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ͘ 

 

�ĐŽůŽŐŝĐĂů��ŶŚĂŶĐĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

dŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚĞĂŵ�ŝƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ĐŽŵŵŝƩĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞ�ďŝŽĚŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ�
ŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ͘ 
 
dŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�Ăŝŵ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĐƵƌ�ŶŽ�ŶĞŐĂƟǀĞ�
ĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ŝŶ�ĞĐŽůŽŐŝĐĂů�ǀĂůƵĞ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ƐƵŝƚĂďůǇ��ƋƵĂůŝĮĞĚ�ĞĐŽůŽŐŝƐƚ�
ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ĞĂƌůǇ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƐƚĂŐĞ�ĂĚǀŝĐĞ�ŽŶ͗ 

· ,Žǁ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĞĐŽůŽŐŝĐĂů�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ƐŝƚĞ͖ 

· �ŽŶĮƌŵ�ƚŚĂƚ�Ăůů�ƌĞůĞǀĂŶƚ�h<�ĂŶĚ��h�ůĞŐŝƐůĂͲ
ƟŽŶ�ƌĞůĂƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞͲ
ŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ��ĞĐŽůŽŐǇ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĐŽŵƉůŝĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ͖�
ĂŶĚ͕ 

· WƌŽĚƵĐĞ�Ă�ůĂŶĚƐĐĂƉĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂďŝƚĂƚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞͲ
ŵĞŶƚ�ƉůĂŶ�ƚŽ�ĐŽǀĞƌ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƌƐƚ�ĮǀĞ�
ǇĞĂƌƐ�ĂŌĞƌ��ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƟŽŶ͕�ŝĨ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂͲ
ďůĞ͘ 

dŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚĞĂŵ�ŝƐ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ŐƌĞĞŶ�ƌŽŽĨ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�
ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�dŚĞ�ŐƌĞĞŶ��ƌŽŽĨ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚͲ
ĞƌĞĚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�Ă�ϱϬŵŵ�ĚĞĞƉ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƌĞƐĞƌǀŽŝƌ�ĂŶĚ�
ƐƵďƐƚƌĂƚĞ�ĚĞƉƚŚ� ǀĂƌǇŝŶŐ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ϮϬ-ϭϱϬŵŵ�ĂŶĚ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�Ă�
ŶĂƟǀĞ�ƐƉĞĐŝĞƐ�ŐƌĂƐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŇŽǁĞƌŝŶŐ�ƉůĂŶƚ�ƐĞĞĚ�ŵŝǆ͘�/Ĩ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝͲ

ĂƚĞ͕�Ă��ƌŽŽĨ�ůĞǀĞů�ƉŽŶĚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĨŽƌŵĞĚ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ůŽŐ�ƉŝůĞƐ͘��ĂƩ�ĂŶĚ�
ďŝƌĚ�ďŽǆĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ��ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞĐŽůŽŐŝĐĂů�
ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘ 

 

251



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϳϰ 

� �( 
^ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ��ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ 
dŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĨƵƌďŝƐŚŵĞŶƚ�ƉĂƌƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�
ďŽƚŚ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞůĞǀĂŶƚ��Z���D���ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ�;EĞǁ�
�ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ϮϬϭϴ�ĂŶĚ�ZĞĨƵƌďŝƐŚŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�&ŝƚ-ŽƵƚ�ϮϬϭϰ�ƌĞƐƉĞĐͲ
ƟǀĞůǇͿ�ŝŶ��ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ĚĞŵŽŶƐƚƌĂƚĞ�ŝŶŝƟĂƟǀĞ�ĨŽƌ�ŚŽůŝƐƟĐ�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂƟŽŶ�
ŽĨ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ͘��ůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞůǇ͕��ƉƌŝŵĂƌŝůǇ�ƚŚĞ�
ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ�ŽĨ��Z���D�ĨŽƌ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂƉƉůŝĞĚ�ƚŽ�
ƚŚĞ�ƐŝƚĞ�ŝŶ�ůŝŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�WŽůŝĐǇ���^ϮϬ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�ƉůĂŶ͘ 

 
dŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ŽīĞƌƐ�ŐƵŝĚĞůŝŶĞƐ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ůĞĂĚŝŶŐ�ĞŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ͕�ĂĐŽƵƐͲ
ƟĐĂů͕�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ĂŶĚ��ĞĐŽůŽŐŝĐĂů�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�h<�ĂŶĚ�
ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ƌĞůĞǀĂŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�
ƚŚĞ��ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĂƐƉĞĐƚƐ͗ 

· ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂů�ĞŵďĞĚĚĞĚ��KϮ�ĞŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ�
ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�>ŝĨĞ��ǇĐůĞ��ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ͘ 

· �ŶŚĂŶĐĞĚ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ͘ 

· �ŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�&ŽƌŵĂůĚĞŚǇĚĞ�ĂŶĚ�sK��ůŝŵŝƚƐ͘ 

· ZĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůĞ�ƐŽƵƌĐŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ͘ 

· ^ƉĞĐŝĮĐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ƐĂŶŝƚĂƌǇ�ǁĂƌĞ͘ 

· �ĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂů�ƐĞůĞĐƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůĞ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�
ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͘ 

· /ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ƌĞĨƌŝŐĞƌĂŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�EKǆ�ĞŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ͘ 

· >ŽŶŐ�ƚĞƌŵ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�ĞĐŽůŽŐǇ�ĂŶĚ�ďŝŽĚŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ͘ 

 

$33(1',&(6  
6867$,1$%,/,7<�67$7(0(17—6867$,1$%,/,7<�$66(660(17 

252



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϳϱ 

� �( 
 

$33(1',&(6  
6867$,1$%,/,7<�67$7(0(17—1(;7�67(36�	�&21&/86,21 

EĞǆƚ�^ƚĞƉƐ 
&ŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĂŶ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝǀĞ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�
ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĨƵƌďŝƐŚŵĞŶƚ�Ăƚ��ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ͕��KĂŬŚĂŵ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�
ƐƚĞƉƐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ŝŶ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ƐƵŝƚĂďůĞ�
ĂŶĚ�ƉƌĂĐƟĐĂůůǇ��ĨĞĂƐŝďůĞ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĨĞĂƚƵƌĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ͗ 

· �ĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚĞĚ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽƵƚͲ
ĐŽŵĞƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ŽŶ��
ĂĐŚŝĞǀĂďůĞ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚƐ�ŝŶ�ůŝŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ăůů�ƌĞůĞǀĂŶƚ�
�ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ZĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶƐ͕�ZƵƚůĂŶĚ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶͲ
Đŝů͛Ɛ��ŽƌĞ��^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶǇ�ƌĞůĞǀĂŶƚ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶͲ
ŵĞŶƚĂů�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ͘ 

· �ŽŵƉůĞƚĞ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƌŵĂů�
ĐŽŵĨŽƌƚ�ŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŶĞǁ�
ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͘ 

· �ŽŵƉůĞƚĞ�ĂŶ�Ăŝƌ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ŝŶͲ
ĨŽƌŵ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĚŽŽƌ�Ăŝƌ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ǀĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ�
ĚĞƐŝŐŶ͘ 

· �ŽŵƉůĞƚĞ�Ă�ĚĂǇůŝŐŚƟŶŐ��ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĞƌͲ
ŵŝŶĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĚĂǇůŝŐŚƚ�ŝŶ�ůŝŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ��ƌĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶ�ŐƵŝĚĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ��Z��ƌĞĐŽŵͲ
ŵĞŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ͘ 

· �ŽŵƉůĞƚĞ�ĂŶ�ĞĐŽůŽŐŝĐĂů�ĂƉƉƌĂŝƐĂů�ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĞƌͲ
ŵŝŶĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĞĐŽůŽŐŝĐĂů�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝƚĞ͕�ĂŶǇ�
ŶĞŐĂƟǀĞ��ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ŵŝƟŐĂƟŽŶ�
ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ďŝŽĚŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ�ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞͲ
ŵĞŶƚ� ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ͘ 

ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�ƉƌŽĐĞĚƵƌĞƐ͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ĚĂǇͲ
ůŝŐŚƚ͕�ŽƉƟŵƵŵ��ŝŶĚŽŽƌ�Ăŝƌ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�
ƚŚĞƌŵĂů�ĐŽŵĨŽƌƚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�
ǁĞůůďĞŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŽĐĐƵƉĂŶƚƐ͖� ĂŶĚ 

· dŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ�
ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞĐŽůŽŐǇ�ŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ��ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ďŝŽĚŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ�
ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽŶŐ-ƚĞƌŵ͘ 

�ŽŶĐůƵƐŝŽŶƐ 
dŚŝƐ�^ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ĂƐ�Ă�
ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ďƌŝĞĨ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞƌĞĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�Ă�ƚǁŽ��ƐƚŽƌĞǇ�ŶĞǁ�
ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ƌĞĨƵƌďŝƐŚŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�'ƌŽƵŶĚ�&ůŽŽƌ�Ăƚ��ĂƚͲ
ŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ͕�KĂŬŚĂŵ 
 

/Ŷ�ƐƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĚŽƉƚ�ƚŚĞ�
ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ĨĞĂƚƵƌĞƐ�ŝŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ��ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚ�ƚŽ�
ZƵƚůĂŶĚ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů��ŽƌĞ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂƚĞ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶͲ
ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ŝƚƐ� ĚĞƐŝŐŶ͗ 

· dŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ŽƉƟŵŝƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�
ƌĞŶĞǁĂďůĞ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�Ws�
ƉĂŶĞůƐ�Žƌ��ŝƌ��^ŽƵƌĐĞ�,ĞĂƚ�WƵŵƉƐ�ƚŽ�
ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĞŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ͖ 

· dŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ĂĚŽƉƚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�
ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ�ŝŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�Ă�ƌĞĐŽŵͲ
ŵĞŶĚĞĚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ��ĐŽŶƐƵŵƉƟŽŶ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�ŽĨ�
ϭϭϬ�ůŝƚƌĞƐͬƉĞƌƐŽŶͬĚĂǇ�;ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�
ƵƐĞͿ͖ 

· dŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ƵƟůŝƐĞ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�
ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ�ŝŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�
ŝƚƐ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ͖ 

· dŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ĂĚŽƉƚ�Ă�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�
ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�ƉƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶ�
ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ǁĂƐƚĞ��ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ŽŶ�
ƐŝƚĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ĞŵďĞĚĚĞĚ�ĐĂƌďŽŶ�ĞŵŝƐͲ
ƐŝŽŶƐ͖ 

· dŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĂŶĚ�

253



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϳϲ 

� �( 
�ůŝŵĂƚĞ��ŚĂŶŐĞ�DŝƟŐĂƟŽŶ 
dŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝůů�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƵƟůŝƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬ�ŽŶ�
ƐŝƚĞ͕�ƐŽŵĞ�ĨŽƌŵ�ŽĨ��ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ƌĞŶĞǁĂďůĞ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂƐƐŝǀĞ�ǀĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ�
ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ĨŽƌ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƌĞĐŽǀĞƌǇ�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂƟŽŶ͘��WĂƐƐŝǀĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚͲ
ŝŶŐ�ŽƉĞŶĂďůĞ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŶŝŐŚƚ-ƟŵĞ�ƉƵƌŐĞ�ǀĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ�ǁŝůů�ĂůƐŽ�ďĞ�ƉĂƌƚ��ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĚĞƐŝŐŶ͘ 
 

&ůŽŽĚ�ZŝƐŬ�ĂŶĚ�^ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ� �ƌĂŝŶĂŐĞ 
�ĂƚŵŽƐĞ��ŽůůĞŐĞ�ŝƐ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�&ůŽŽĚ��ŽŶĞ�ϭ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ͛Ɛ�
&ůŽŽĚ�DĂƉ�ĨŽƌ�WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ͕��ĂƐ�ƐŚŽǁŶ�ŝŶ�&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϯ͗�&ůŽŽĚ�ŵĂƉ�ƐŚŽǁŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝͲ
ŵĂƚĞ�ůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�&ůŽŽĚ���ŽŶĞ�ϭ͘dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ĚĞĮŶĞĚ�ĂƐ�ĂŶ�
ĂƌĞĂ�ǁŝƚŚ�ůŝƩůĞ�Žƌ�ŶŽ�ƌŝƐŬ�ƚŽ�ŇŽŽĚŝŶŐ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ƉƌŽďĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƌŝǀĞƌ͕��ƟĚĂů�
ĂŶĚ�ĐŽĂƐƚĂů�ŇŽŽĚŝŶŐ�;ǁŝƚŚ�ĚĞĨĞŶĐĞƐ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĞǆŝƐƚͿ�ŝƐ�фϬ͘ϭй�ŝ͘Ğ͘�ůĞƐƐ�ƚŚĂŶ�ϭ�ŝŶ�
ϭ͕ϬϬϬ� ǇĞĂƌƐ͘ 

dŚĞ�ĚƌĂŝŶĂŐĞ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚ�ŚĂƐ�ŶŽƚ�ǇĞƚ�ďĞĞŶ�ĨƵůůǇ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ͘�/ƚ�ŝƐ�
ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ��ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĂůƌĞĂĚǇ�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞƐ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ĚƌĂŝŶĂŐĞ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞͲ
ŐŝĞƐ͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ĂƩĞŶƵĂƟŽŶ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ�ƚŽ��ŵĂŶĂŐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŝƐŬ�ŽĨ�ƐƵƌĨĂĐĞ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƌƵŶŽī�
ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĨƵƌďŝƐŚŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ��ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞŶĞĮƚ�
ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝŶ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ĂŶǇ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂůŽŶĞ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ͘�dŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ƚĞĂŵ�ŝƐ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌͲ
ŝŶŐ��ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�Ă�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ďůƵĞ�ƌŽŽĨ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚ�ƐƚŽƌĞǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�
ďƵŝůĚ�ĂŶĚ�ďůƵĞ�ƌŽŽĨ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƟůĞ��ĚĞĐŬ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝŶŐůĞ�ƐƚŽƌĞǇ�ĞůĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�
ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͘ 

dŚĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƟŶŐ�Ă�ŐƌĞĞŶ�ƌŽŽĨ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚ�ƐƚŽƌĞǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďůŽĐŬ�
ĐŽƵůĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞ�ƚŽ��ŵŝŶŝŵŝƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞ�ŽĨ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƌĂŝŶĨĂůů�ŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ͕�
ĂůƐŽ�ƐĞĞŶ�ĂƐ�Ă�ŵŽƌĞ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞ��ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶǀĞŶƟŽŶĂů�ǁĂƚĞƌ�
ĂƩĞŶƵĂƟŽŶ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ͘ 

 

$33(1',&(6  
6867$,1$%,/,7<�67$7(0(17—$'$37,21�72�&/,0$7(�&+$1*( 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϯ͗��&ůŽŽĚ�ŵĂƉ�ƐŚŽǁŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞ�ůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�&ůŽŽĚ��ŽŶĞ�ϭ͘� 

)RRG�0DS 

254



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϳϳ 

� �( 
 

$33(1',&(6  
6867$,1$%,/,7<�67$7(0(17—:$67( 

�ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�tĂƐƚĞ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ 
ZĞƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƌŽŵŽƚĞĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�
ĞīĞĐƟǀĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ��ĚĞŵŽůŝƟŽŶ�
ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ�ǁĂƐƚĞ͘ 
 
/Ŷ�ůŝŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ŚŝĞƌĂƌĐŚǇ͕�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ƉŚĂƐĞ͕�
ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ��ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ�ŝƐ�ĂƉƉůŝĞĚ͗ 

· hƐĞ�ƌĞĐůĂŝŵĞĚ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ͖ 

· hƐĞ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ůĞǀĞůƐ�ŽĨ�ƌĞĐǇĐůĞĚ�
ĐŽŶƚĞŶƚ͖� ĂŶĚ͕ 

· hƐĞ�ŶĞǁ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ͘ 

 

^ŝŶĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĂƚĐŚ�
ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ďƵŝůĚ�ƵƉ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝƐ�ůĂƌŐĞůǇ�ĨŽƌŵĞĚ��ŽĨ�ƌĞŝŶĨŽƌĐĞĚ�
ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞĐůĂŝŵĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĐǇĐůĞĚ�ĐŽŶƚĞŶƚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞĐŽŵͲ
ŵĞŶĚĞĚ͘ 
 
&Žƌ�ĂŶǇ�ĚĞŵŽůŝƟŽŶ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ͗ 

· WƌŝŽƌŝƟƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŽŶ-ƐŝƚĞ�ƌĞƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ĚĞŵŽůŝƟŽŶ�
ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ͖ 

· �ĚŽƉƚ�ŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ�ƌĞĐǇĐůŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ͕�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ͕�
ƵƐĞ�Žī�ƐŝƚĞ�ƌĞĐǇĐůŝŶŐ͖�ĂŶĚ͕ 

· dŚĞ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ƉƌĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�–�ĚŝƐƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ�ůĂŶĚͲ
Įůů͘ 

/ƚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�Ă�ƐŝƚĞ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƉůĂŶ�ŝƐ�
ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂĚŽƉƚƐ�ďĞƐƚ�ƉƌĂĐƟĐĞ��ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞͲ
ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ͕�ĚĞƚĂŝůƐ�ƉƌŽĐĞĚƵƌĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�
ŵŝŶŝŵŝƐĞ�ŶŽŶ-ŚĂǌĂƌĚŽƵƐ��ĂŶĚ�ŚĂǌĂƌĚŽƵƐ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�
ƐƚĂŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌƐͬŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ŽŶ� ƐŝƚĞ͘ 
 

dŚĞ�ƐŝƚĞ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƉůĂŶ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƉƌŽĐĞĚƵƌĞƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƐŽƌƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĚŝǀĞƌƚ�ǁĂƐƚĞ��ĨƌŽŵ�ůĂŶĚĮůů�
ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ͗ 

· ZĞ-ƵƐĞ�ŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ͖ 

· ^ĂůǀĂŐĞͬ�ƌĞĐůĂŝŵ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞ-ƵƐĞ�Žī-ƐŝƚĞ͖ 

· ZĞƚƵƌŶ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉůŝĞƌ�ǀŝĂ�Ă�͚ƚĂŬĞ-ďĂĐŬ͛�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͖ 

· ZĞĐŽǀĞƌǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĐǇĐůŝŶŐ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ĂŶ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ�
ǁĂƐƚĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚŽƌ͖�ĂŶĚ 

· �ŽŵƉŽƐƚ 

 
KƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�tĂƐƚĞ 

dŚĞ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ�ǁŝůů�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ďĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�
ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĐǇĐůŝŶŐ��ǇĂƌĚ�ĂƌĞĂ͘�dŚĞ�
ŝŶĐůƵƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƐĞŐƌĞŐĂƟŽŶ�ďŝŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ĐůĞĂƌůǇ�ůĂďĞůůĞĚ͕�ĂĐĐĞƐƐŝͲ
ďůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŽĨ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ƐŝǌĞ��ǁĂƐƚĞ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌŝůǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚ�ŽĐĐƵƉĂŶƚƐ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ĂůŽŶŐƐŝĚĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ƚŚĞ��ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚǇƉĞ�ŽĨ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ͘�/ƚ�ŝƐ�ĂůƐŽ�
ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ��ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�
ůĂďŽƌĂƚŽƌǇ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďƵŝůĚ͘ 

255



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϳϴ 

� �) 
 

$33(1',&(6  
(;,67,1*�)/225�3/$16��-��*5281'�)/225�	�0(==$1,1( 

256



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϳϵ 

� �) 
 

$33(1',&(6  

257



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϴϬ 

� �* 
 

$33(1',&(6  
6859(<�6&+('8/( 

^ƵƌǀĞǇ�ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ŬŶŽǁŶ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�Ăƚ�
ƚŚŝƐ�ƐƚĂŐĞ͘�dŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ͘ ^hZs�z�^�,��h>��  

�ŝƌ�YƵĂůŝƚǇ��ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚͬƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶĮƌŵĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶ d�� 

�ůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů�ůŽŐŐĞƌ�Žƌ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ƌĞ͗�DW�E�ŶƵŵďĞƌƐ�ĨŽƌ�ůŽĂĚŝŶŐƐ Eͬ� 

hƟůŝƟĞƐ�ƋƵŽƚĂƟŽŶƐ� ^ƚĂŐĞ�ϯ 

�ďŽƌŝĐƵůƚƵƌĂů�^ƵƌǀĞǇƐ�ƚŽ��^�ϱϴϯϳ͗ϮϬϭϮ ^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ 

�ƌĐŚĂĞŽůŽŐŝĐĂů��ĞƐŬƚŽƉ�^ƵƌǀĞǇ ^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ 

�ƐďĞƐƚŽƐ�^ƵƌǀĞǇ Eͬ� 

dŽƉŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐĂů�ͬ�ůĞǀĂƟŽŶĂů�^ƵƌǀĞǇͬDĞĂƐƵƌĞĚ�^ƵƌǀĞǇ�ŝŶĐ͘�ƵŶĚĞƌŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƐĐĂŶͬhƟůŝƟĞƐ�ƐĞĂƌĐŚĞƐ ^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ 

�ĂǇůŝŐŚƚ�ŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ ^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ 

�ƌĂŝŶĂŐĞ�;ƵŶĚĞƌŐƌŽƵŶĚ���dsͿ�^ƵƌǀĞǇ hƐĞ�ZĞĐͲ
ŽƌĚ��ƌŐƐ 

�ĐŽůŽŐŝĐĂů�^ƵƌǀĞǇ�WŚĂƐĞ�ϭ�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƌƐƚ�ŝŶƐƚĂŶĐĞ͘�KƚŚĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ĨŽůůŽǁ�ŝĨ�ŶĞĐĞƐƐĂƌǇ ^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ 

&ŝƌĞ��ŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ�ƚŽ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ��ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ZĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ZZK�ϮϬϬϱ ^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ 

&ůŽŽĚ�ZŝƐŬ��ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚͬƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶĮƌŵĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶ ^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ 

'ĞŽƚĞĐŚŶŝĐĂů�Θ��ŽŶƚĂŵŝŶĂƟŽŶ�'ƌŽƵŶĚ�/ŶǀĞƐƟŐĂƟŽŶ�-�^ƵƌǀĞǇ�ŝŶĐů͘�hyK�ƌŝƐŬ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ ^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ 

EŽŝƐĞ�^ƵƌǀĞǇ�ĂŶĚ��ĐŽƵƐƟĐ��ŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶĐǇ ^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ 

WĂƌƚǇ�tĂůůͬ�ŽƵŶĚĂƌǇ�^ƵƌǀĞǇ�ĂŶĚ��ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚƐ ^ƚĂŐĞ�ϯ 

ZŝŐŚƚƐ�ŽĨ�>ŝŐŚƚ�^ƵƌǀĞǇ�-�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶĮƌŵĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�WůĂŶŶĞƌƐ Eͬ� 

sŝƐƵĂů�^ƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů��ŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ�^ƵƌǀĞǇ Eͬ� 

dƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ��ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�;Ğ͘Ő͘�WĂƌŬŝŶŐͬ�ĐĐĞƐƐ�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚͿ ^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ 

dŚĞƌŵĂů�ŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ ^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ 

258



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϴϭ 

� �+ 
 

$33(1',&(6  
675$7(*,&�5,6.6� 

^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�ZŝƐŬƐ��ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ŬŶŽǁŶ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�Ăƚ�
ƚŚŝƐ�ƐƚĂŐĞ͘�dŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ͘  /d�D E�ZZ�d/s� 

ϭ ^/d�͗��WĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝƚĞ�ŝƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ZƵƚůĂŶĚ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��
͛ůŝŵŝƚƐ�ŽĨ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͛�ǌŽŶĞ 

>ŽĐĂƚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďůŽĐŬ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ůŝŵŝƚƐ�ŽĨ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ǌŽŶĞ͘��ŝƐĐƵƐͲ
ƐŝŽŶƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ͘ 

Ϯ WƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƐƵĸĐŝĞŶƚ�^ĐŝĞŶĐĞ�Θ��d�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂͲ
ƟŽŶ�ďǇ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϮϮ͘ 

tŚŝůƐƚ�ƉŚĂƐĞĚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝůů�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ƐƵĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ĐůĂƐƐͲ
ƌŽŽŵƐ�ĨŽƌ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϮϮ�ďǇ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ�ƚŚĞ�
ŶĞǁ�ďůŽĐŬ�ĐŽŶƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�^ĐŝĞŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ��d�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ�
ŝƐ�ƵŶůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂĚǇ�ƵŶƟů�ƚŚĞ�^ƵŵŵĞƌ�ƚĞƌŵ�ϮϬϮϯ͘�dŚŝƐ�
ŝƐƐƵĞ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂŶĂůǇƐĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐĞĚ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌͲ
ƟĞƐ͘ 

ϯ �ŝƐƌƵƉƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ͘��������
WƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ǁŽƌŬƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚůǇ�ĂĚũĂĐĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�
ƚĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͘ 

>ŽĐĂƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ďůŽĐŬ�ďĞŚŝŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƉŽƌƚƐ�ŚĂůů�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŵŝŶŝͲ
ŵŝƐĞ�ĚŝƐƌƵƉƟŽŶ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ŵŽƌĞ�ŇĞǆŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ�
ŽĨ��ƌŝŐŚƚǁĂǇƐ͘�tŽƌŬƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�^ƵŵŵĞƌ�
,ŽůŝĚĂǇƐ͘ 

ϰ �ŽƐƚ��ŽŶƚƌŽů �ŽůůĞŐĞ͛Ɛ�ƉƌĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ŵĂǇ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ĂīŽƌĚĂďůĞ͘�s��ƉƌŽͲ
ƉŽƐĂůƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ͘ 

259



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϴϮ 

� �, 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&21',7,21�5(3257 

ϭ͘Ϭ��ĂĐŬŐƌŽƵŶĚ 
�ĂƚŵŽƐĞ� �ŽůůĞŐĞ� ŝƐ� ĂŶ� ŽǀĞƌ-ƐƵďƐĐƌŝďĞĚ� ϳ� &Žƌŵ� ŽĨ�
�ŶƚƌǇ�;&�Ϳ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�ĂĐĂĚĞŵǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ZƵƚͲ
ůĂŶĚ�ĂŶĚ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�^ĐŚŽŽůƐ͛�&ĞĚĞƌĂƟŽŶ͘ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƉůĂŶƐ� ƚŽ�ĞǆƚĞŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ƐĐŚŽŽů� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ��ůŝĞŶƚ�
'ƌŽƵƉ�ǁĂŶƚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚ� ƚŚĞ� ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ĞǆͲ
ŝƐƟŶŐ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƚŽ�ƉůĂŶƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƐĞƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĂŶͲ
ƐŝŽŶ͘ 

dŚĞƌĞ� ŝƐ� Ă� ŐŽŽĚ� ƐĞƚ� ŽĨ� KƉĞƌĂƟŶŐ� ĂŶĚ� DĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�
DĂŶƵĂůƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ZĞĐŽƌĚ��ƌĂǁŝŶŐƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ͘ 

ϭ͘ϭ��ǆĞĐƵƟǀĞ�^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ� 

dŚĞ� ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ� ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ� ǁĂƐ� ďƵŝůƚ� ŝŶ� ϮϬϭϬ� ĂŶĚ� ŚĂŶĚĞĚ�
ŽǀĞƌ� ŝŶ� &ĞďƌƵĂƌǇ� ϮϬϭϭ͕� ƚŚĞ� ƐĐŚŽŽů� ŝƐ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ� ŝŶ� Ă�
ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͕�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌůǇ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƉƉĞĂƌƐ�ůĂƌŐĞͲ
ůǇ�ƚƌŽƵďůĞ-ĨƌĞĞ�ŽĨ�ŵĂũŽƌ�ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ͘ 

�ĞĐŽƌĂƟŽŶƐ� ĂƌĞ� ŝŶ� ŐŽŽĚ� ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ� ǁŝƚŚ� ŽŶůǇ� ŵŝŶŽƌ�
ƐĐƵīƐ� ĞǀŝĚĞŶƚ� ƚŽ� ůŽǁ� ĂƌĞĂƐ͕� ŇŽŽƌ� ĐŽǀĞƌŝŶŐƐ� ǁĞƌĞ� ŝŶ�
ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĂŐĞ͘ 

dŚĞ�ƐŝŶŐůĞ�ƉůǇ� ƌŽŽĮŶŐ�ŚĂĚ�Ă� ĨĞǁ�ŵŝŶŽƌ� ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�
ďƵŝůĚ-ƵƉ� ŽĨ� ŵŽƐƐ� ĂŶĚ� ĚĞƚƌŝƚƵƐ� ƌĞƐƵůƟŶŐ� ŝŶ� ďůŽĐŬĞĚ�
ŐƵůůŝĞƐ� ĐĂƵƐŝŶŐ� ƐŽŵĞ� ƉŽŶĚŝŶŐ͘� ^ŽŵĞ� ĚŝƐƉůĂĐĞĚ� ĐĂďůĞ�
ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ� ĨĞĞƚ� ŚĂĚ� ďĞĐŽŵĞ� ĚĞƚĂĐŚĞĚ͕� ƚŚĞ� ĮǆŝŶŐ� ƚŽ�
ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁĞƌĞ� ŝŶ�ĚĂŶŐĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƉĞŶĞƚƌĂƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǁĂƚĞƌƉƌŽŽĨ�
ŵĞŵďƌĂŶĞ͘� ^ŽŵĞ� ĂŶƟ� ďŝƌĚ� ǁŝƌĞƐ� ǁĞƌĞ� ďƌŽŬĞŶ� ĂŶĚ�
ŝŶĞīĞĐƟǀĞ͘ 

^ŽŵĞ�ŵŝŶŽƌ�ƉĂǀŝŶŐ� ƌĞƉĂŝƌƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ�ĮƌƐƚ-
ŇŽŽƌ�ĞƐĐĂƉĞ�ůĂŶĚŝŶŐƐ͘ 

dŚĞƌĞ� ĂƌĞ� ϯ� ĂƌĞĂƐ� ŽĨ�ŵƵůƟ-ĂĐƚƵĂƚŽƌ� ĂƵƚŽŵĂƟĐ�ǁŝŶͲ
ĚŽǁƐ� ǁŚŝĐŚ� ĂƌĞ� ŶŽŶ-ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů͕� ƐŝŵŝůĂƌ� ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐ�
ĨĂƵůƚƐ�ŚĂĚ�ďĞĞŶ�ƚƌĂĐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĨĂƵůƚǇ�ĂƌĞĂ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�ƉĂŶĞůƐ�
ƚŚĂƚ�ĐŽƐƚ�άϮ͘ϱŬ�ĞĂĐŚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƉĂŝƌͬƌĞƉůĂĐĞ�ƐŽ�Ă�ďƵĚŐĞƚ�ŽĨ�
άϳ͘ϱŬ�ŝƐ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ͘ 

tŚŝůƐƚ� ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�dϱ� ͬ��ŽŵƉĂĐƚ� &ůƵŽƌĞƐĐĞŶƚ� ůŝŐŚƚƐ�
ĂƌĞ�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�ƌĞƉĂŝƌ͕�ŝƚ���ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƐĞůĨ-ĮŶĂŶĐŝŶŐ�ŽǀĞƌ�Ă�
ϳ-ǇĞĂƌ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ůŝŐŚƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�>���ĞƋƵŝǀͲ
ĂůĞŶƚƐ͘ 

dŚĞ� �ŝŽŵĂƐƐ� ďŽŝůĞƌƐ� ĂƌĞ� ĂŐĂŝŶ� ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ� ƚŽ� ŽƉĞƌĂƚĞ�
ďƵƚ�ŚĂǀĞ� ĨĂůůĞŶ� ŝŶƚŽ�ĚŝƐ-ƵƐĞ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ�ŚŝŐŚ�ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ� ǁŽŽĚ-ƉĞůůĞƚƐ� ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ� ŐĂƐ-
ĮƌĞĚ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ͘� dŚĞ� ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵ� ǁĂƐ� ƚĂŝůŽƌĞĚ� ƚŽ�
ƵƐĞ� ƚŚĞ� ŚŝŐŚ-ƚĞŵƉĞƌĂƚƵƌĞ� ďŝŽŵĂƐƐ� ďŽŝůĞƌƐ� ĂƐ� ƚŚĞ�
ůĞĂĚ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵ� ĐŽŶƚƌŽů� ĂŶĚ� ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶ� ƐŚŽƵůĚ�
ďĞ� ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞĚ� ƚŽ� ŝĚĞŶƟĨǇ� ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ� ĨŽƌ� ůŽǁĞƌ�
ƚĞŵƉĞƌĂƚƵƌĞ�ͬ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶ͘� 

/ƚ� ĂƉƉĞĂƌĞĚ� ƚŚĂƚ� ƚŚĞƌĞ� ǁŽƵůĚ� ďĞ� ƐƉĂƌĞ� ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ� ŝŶ�
ƚŚĞ� ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ� ŵĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů� ĂŶĚ� ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů� ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ� ƚŽ�
ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƚĞ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ŝĨ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ĂůƚŚŽƵŐŚ�
ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĐŽŵŝŶŐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ƌŽŽŵ�
Ăƚ� ƚŚĞ� ĨĂƌ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ� ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶͲ
ƐŝŽŶ�ůŽĐĂƟŽŶ͘ 

�ƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞ�ƌĞƉĂŝƌ�ĐŽƐƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĨĂďƌŝĐ�ƚŽƚĂůƐ�

άϭϮ͕ϰϬϬ�ĂŶĚ�DΘ��ƌĞƉĂŝƌƐ�ƚŽƚĂů�άϳ͕ϱϬϬ͘ 

 

ϭ͘ϭ͘Ϭ�^ƵƌǀĞǇ�DĞƚŚŽĚ�Θ�ZĞƐƚƌŝĐƟŽŶƐ 

dŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ĨĂďƌŝĐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�
ǁĂƐ�ĞǆĂŵŝŶĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽƵŶĚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƐŝƚĞ�ĐŽŶĚŝͲ
ƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ĂůůŽǁĞĚ͘�KŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ�
;ϭϵͬϭϭͬϮϬϮϬͿ�ƚŚĞ�ǁĞĂƚŚĞƌ�ǁĂƐ�ĐŽůĚ͕�ǁŝŶĚǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ŽĐĐĂƐŝŽŶĂů�ŚĞĂǀǇ�ƐŚŽǁĞƌƐ͘ 

· dŚĞ�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ�ǁĂƐ�ǀŝƐƵĂů�ŽŶůǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŶŽŶ-ŝŶƚƌƵƐŝǀĞ͘�
dŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ǁĂƐ�ĨƵůůǇ�ŽĐĐƵƉŝĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƟŵĞ�ŽĨ�
ŝŶƐƉĞĐƟŽŶ͘ 

· WŚŽƚŽŐƌĂƉŚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƚĂŬĞŶ�ĨŽƌ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ƌĞĨĞƌͲ
ĞŶĐĞ�Žƌ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ŶĞĐĞƐƐĂƌǇ�ƚŽ�ŝůůƵƐƚƌĂƚĞ�Ă�ĚĞĨĞĐƚ�
Žƌ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͘ 

· �ůů�ŚĂŶĚƐ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ƚĂŬĞŶ�ĂƐ�ƚŚŽƵŐŚ�
ůŽŽŬŝŶŐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƌŽŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�ǀŝĞǁĞĚ�
ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂůůǇ͘ 

· dŚĞ�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ�ĐĂƌƌŝĞĚ�ŽƵƚ�ĚŝĚ�ŶŽƚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�
ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ͗ 

ϭ͘ �Ŷ�ŝŶƚƌƵƐŝǀĞ�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�ĐŽŵƉŽͲ
ŶĞŶƚƐ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĂů�ĨƌĂŵĞ͖�ƐƵď�ŇŽŽƌƐ͕�
ĨŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞŝŶĨŽƌĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĞƚĐ͘ 

Ϯ͘ ��ƐƵƌǀĞǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ĚƌĂŝŶĂŐĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�
Žƌ�ƚĞƐƟŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ 

ϯ͘ �ĐĐĞƐƐ�ŵĂƩĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ��ƋƵĂůŝͲ
ƟĞƐ��Đƚ�ϮϬϭϬ͘� 

260



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϴϯ 

 
 

127(6  
 

 dŚĞƌĞ� ĂƌĞ� ƐŽŵĞ� ƉĂƌƚ� ŐůĂǌĞĚ� ĂŶĚ� ƉůĂƐƚĞƌďŽĂƌĚ� ƉĂƌƟͲ
ƟŽŶƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂůƵŵŝŶŝƵŵ�ƉŽǁĚĞƌ�ĐŽĂƚĞĚ�ĨƌĂŵŝŶŐ͘ 

�ůů�ĂƉƉĞĂƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͘ 

Ϯ͘Ϯ͘ϯ�&ůŽŽƌƐ 
^ŽůŝĚ�ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ŇŽŽƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ǀĂƌŝĞƚǇ�ŽĨ�
ƐŚĞĞƚ�ǀŝŶǇů͕�ĂŶƟ-ƐůŝƉ�ǀŝŶǇů�ĂŶĚ�ĐĂƌƉĞƚ�ƟůĞƐ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ƋƵĂƌƌǇ�
ƟůĞƐ�ƚŽ�ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ŇŽŽƌ�ĐŝƌĐƵůĂƟŽŶ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĞŶƚƌĂŶĐĞ�
ŵĂƚ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�Ăƚ�ĞŶƚƌĂŶĐĞ�ĚŽŽƌ�ůŽďďŝĞƐ͘ 

dŚĞ�ŵĂũŽƌŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ŇŽŽƌ�ĐŽǀĞƌŝŶŐƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͕�
ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĂŐĞ͘�^ŽŵĞ�ŵŝŶŽƌ�ĚŝƐĐŽůͲ
ŽƵƌĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵƌĨĂĐĞ�ĮŶŝƐŚ�ŽĨ�ƐŽŵĞ�ƐŚĞĞƚ�
ǀŝŶǇů�ĞǆƉŽƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƐƵŶůŝŐŚƚ͕�ďƵƚ�ŝƚƐ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞŶĞƐƐ�ŚĂƐ�ŶŽƚ�
ďĞĞŶ�ĐŽŵƉƌŽŵŝƐĞĚ͘ 

dŚĞ�ĨŽƌƵŵͬƐƚĞƉƉĞĚ�ƚŚĞĂƚƌĞ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŚĂƐ�ƉŽůŝƐŚĞĚ�ƟŵďĞƌ�
ƐƚƌŝƉ�ŇŽŽƌŝŶŐ͘ 

tŽŽĚĞŶ�ƐƚƌŝƉƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŐǇŵŶĂƐŝƵŵ�ŇŽŽƌŝŶŐ�ĂƌĞ�ǁĞĂƌŝŶŐ�
ŝŶ� ƐŽŵĞ� ƉůĂĐĞƐ͕� ĂŶĚ� ĞŝƚŚĞƌ� ŝƐŽůĂƚĞĚ� ƐĂŶĚŝŶŐ� ĂŶĚ� ƌĞ-
ƐĞĂůŝŶŐ� Žƌ� Ă� ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ� ŽĨ� ĨƵůů� ƐĂŶĚ� ĂŶĚ� ƐĞĂů� ǁŝƚŚ�
ĂƐƐŽĐŝĂƚĞĚ�ƌĞ-ŵĂƌŬŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ĐŽƵƌƚƐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ͘ 

�ĂŶĐĞͬŐǇŵ�ŇŽŽƌƐ�ĂƉƉĞĂƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͘ 

Ϯ͘Ϯ͘ϰ��ŽŽƌƐ 
/ŶƚĞƌŶĂů�ĚŽŽƌƐ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ƉƌĞ-ĚĞĐŽƌĂƚĞĚ�ĮŶŝƐŚ�
ĂƌĞ�Ă�ŵŝǆƚƵƌĞ�ŽĨ�ƐŽůŝĚ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŐůĂǌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ǀŝƐŝŽŶ�
ƉĂŶĞůƐ͘��ůů�ĂƉƉĞĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌŽďƵƐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĨƵŶĐƟŽŶŝŶŐ�
ǁĞůů͕�ƐŽŵĞ�ĚŽŽƌ�ŚĂŶĚůĞ�ĨƵƌŶŝƚƵƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�ƐůŝŐŚƚůǇ�ůŽŽƐĞ͕�
ďƵƚ�ĨƵŶĐƟŽŶĂůŝƚǇ�ǁĂƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĂīĞĐƚĞĚ͘ 

'ůĂǌĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƉŽǁĚĞƌ�ĐŽĂƚĞĚ�ĂůƵŵŝŶŝƵŵ�ĚŽŽƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĮƩĞĚ�
ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶƚƌĂŶĐĞƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ŽƉĞŶŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ŽƵƚƐŝĚĞ�ĐŽƵƌƚͲ
ǇĂƌĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƉĂĐĞƐ͕�Ăůů�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͘� 

Ϯ͘Ϯ͘ϱ��ĞĐŽƌĂƟŽŶƐ 

Ϯ͘Ϭ��h/>�/E'�&��Z/��Z�s/�t 

Ϯ͘ϭ�'ĞŶĞƌĂů��ĞƐĐƌŝƉƟŽŶ�ŽĨ��ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ 

dŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ�ƐƵƌǀĞǇĞĚ�ĐŽŵƉƌŝƐĞ�Ă�ƚǁŽ�ƐƚŽƌĞǇ͕�ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�
ĂŶĚ�ƐƚĞĞů�ĨƌĂŵĞĚ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�ĂĐĂĚĞŵǇ͕�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ƐƚĂŶĚ-ĂůŽŶĞ�
ƐƚĞĞů� ĨƌĂŵĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞƚĂů�ĚĞĐŬ� ƌŽŽĨĞĚ�ŐǇŵŶĂƐŝƵŵ�ďůŽĐŬ͘�
dŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�Ă�ƐƚĂŶĚĂůŽŶĞ�ƉƵŵƉŝŶŐ�ƐƚĂƟŽŶ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐƚĂĐŬ�ďŽŶĚͲ
ĞĚ�ďůŽĐŬ�ǁĂůůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŇĂƚ�ƌŽŽĨ�ƚŽ�ŵĂƚĐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͘ 

�ǆƚĞƌŶĂů� ĂƌĞĂƐ� ĐŽŵƉƌŝƐĞ� ƚĂƌŵĂĐ� ƐƵƌĨĂĐĞĚ� ĐĂƌ� ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ͕�
ƉůĂŶƚĞĚ� ĚŝǀŝĚŝŶŐ� ĂƌĞĂƐ͕� ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞĚ� ƉĂǀĞĚ� ǁĂůŬǁĂǇƐ͕�
ŐƌĂƐƐĞĚ� ƉůĂǇŝŶŐ� ĮĞůĚƐ� ĂŶĚ� ĂƌƟĮĐŝĂů� ƐƵƌĨĂĐĞĚ� ƉŝƚĐŚĞƐͬ
ĐŽƵƌƚƐ͘� 

 

Ϯ͘Ϯ�/ŶƚĞƌŶĂů��ĞƐĐƌŝƉƟŽŶ 

Ϯ͘Ϯ͘Ϭ��ĞŝůŝŶŐƐ͘ 
DŽƐƚ�ĐĞŝůŝŶŐ�ĮŶŝƐŚĞƐ�ĐŽŵƉƌŝƐĞ�ĞǆƉŽƐĞĚ�ƐŽĸƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�
ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ĚĞĐŬ�ĂŶĚ�ŇŽŽƌŝŶŐ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐŝĚĞƐ�ĂďŽǀĞ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�
ĂĐŽƵƐƟĐ�ďĂŋĞƐ�ƐƵƐƉĞŶĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĐŝƌĐƵůĂƟŽŶ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�
ĂƌĞ�ƐŽŵĞ�ůŝŐŚƚǁĞŝŐŚƚ�ƐƵƐƉĞŶĚĞĚ�ĐĞŝůŝŶŐƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂŶ�ĞǆͲ
ƉŽƐĞĚ�ŐƌŝĚ�ĂŶĚ�ůĂǇ-ŝŶ�ŵŝŶĞƌĂů�ĮďƌĞ�ƟůĞƐ͘�WůĂŶƚ-ƌŽŽŵ�
ĐĞŝůŝŶŐƐ�ĂƌĞ�ůŝŶĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĮƌĞ�ƌĂƚĞĚ�ƉůĂƐƚĞƌďŽĂƌĚ͘ 

�ůů�ĂƉƉĞĂƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͘ 

Ϯ͘Ϯ͘ϭ�tĂůůƐͬWĂƌƟƟŽŶƐ 
tĂůůƐͬƉĂƌƟƟŽŶƐ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ��ĞĐŽƌĂƚĞĚ�ƐĞůĨ-ĮŶŝƐŚ�ďůŽĐŬͲ
ǁŽƌŬ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂũŽƌŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͘�tŚŝƚĞƌŽĐŬ�ŚǇŐŝĞŶŝĐ�ĐůĂĚͲ
ĚŝŶŐ�ŝƐ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ�ŝŶ�ƐŽŵĞ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͕�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͘ 

/ŶƚĞƌŶĂů� ǁĂůůƐ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ŐǇŵŶĂƐŝƵŵ� ĂƌĞ� ƉĂƌƚ� ŚĞŝŐŚƚ� ůŝŶĞĚ�
ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ƉůǇ�ďŽĂƌĚ�–�ŝŶ�Ă�ƐŽƵŶĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͘ 

&ŽůĚŝŶŐ� ƉĂƌƟƟŽŶƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ� ƚŽ� ĚŝǀŝĚĞ� ƐŽŵĞ� ƚĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ�
ƐƉĂĐĞƐ͘ 

'ĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ� ƚŚĞ� ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ� ŝƐ� ŝŶ� ŐŽŽĚ� ĚĞĐŽƌĂƟǀĞ� ŽƌĚĞƌ͘�
^ŽŵĞ�ŵŝŶŽƌ�ƐĐƵī�ŵĂƌŬƐ�ƚŽ�ůŽǁ�ůĞǀĞů�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ǀŝƐŝͲ
ďůĞ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞƐĞ� ĐŽƵůĚ� ďĞ� ͚ƚŽƵĐŚĞĚ� ŝŶ͛� ƚŽ� ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ� ƚŚĞ�
ŽǀĞƌĂůů� ĂƉƉĞĂƌĂŶĐĞ͘� �ŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƟŽŶ� ƐŚŽƵůĚ� ďĞ� ŐŝǀĞŶ�
ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵŝŶŐ� ĐǇĐůŝĐĂů� ƌĞ-ĚĞĐŽƌĂƟŽŶƐ� ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ͕�
ĂŌĞƌ�Ă�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ĮǀĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͘ 

 

Ϯ͘Ϯ͘ϲ�^ĂŶŝƚĂƌǇǁĂƌĞ 

sŝƚƌĞŽƵƐ�ŐůĂǌĞĚ�ƐĂŶŝƚĂƌǇǁĂƌĞ͕�ĂƉƉĞĂƌĞĚ� ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶͲ
ĚŝƟŽŶ͘ 

^ƚĂŝŶůĞƐƐ�ƐƚĞĞů�ƐƵƌĨĂĐĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͘ 

261



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϴϰ 

� �, 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&21',7,21�5(3257 

Ϯ͘ϯ͘Ϭ��ǆƚĞƌŶĂů��ĞƐĐƌŝƉƟŽŶ 

  

�ǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ĮŶŝƐŚĞƐ 

Ϯ͘ϯ͘ϭ�tĂůůƐ 
dŚĞ�ƐƚĂĐŬ�ďŽŶĚ�ďůŽĐŬǁŽƌŬ�ŝƐ�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ�
ĂůƚŚŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ƐŽŵĞ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƐƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĞǀŝĚĞŶƚ�
ďĞůŽǁ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁ�Đŝůů�ũŽŝŶƚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƌĂŝŶǁĂƚĞƌ�ƌƵŶ�Žī�
ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƟŵĞ�ǁŝůů�ĂīĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽŝŶƟŶŐ�ďĞůŽǁ͘�
dŚĞ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�Ă�ƐŝůŝĐŽŶĞ�Žƌ�ŵĂƐƟĐ�ƐĞĂů�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�
Đŝůů�ũŽŝŶƚƐ�ǁŝůů�ŚĞůƉ�ƚŽ�ƉƌĞǀĞŶƚ�ƚŚŝƐ͘ 

Ϯ͘ϯ͘Ϯ��ůĂĚĚŝŶŐ 
dŚĞƌĞ�Ă�ǀĂƌŝĞƚǇ�ŽĨ�ĚŝīĞƌĞŶƚ�ĐůĂĚĚŝŶŐ�ƚǇƉĞƐ�ƉƌĞͲ
ƐĞŶƚ͗ 

WƌŽĮůĞĚ�ƐŝŶƵƐŽŝĚĂů�ĐůĂĚĚŝŶŐ�ĮŶŝƐŚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ŐĂůǀĂͲ
ŶŝƐĞĚ�ĐŽĂƟŶŐ͕�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͘ 

�ŶŽĚŝƐĞĚ�ĂůƵŵŝŶŝƵŵ�ƌĂŝŶƐĐƌĞĞŶ�ĐůĂĚĚŝŶŐ͕�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�
ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͘ 

DƵůƟǁĂůů� ƚƌĂŶƐůƵĐĞŶƚ� ƉŽůǇĐĂƌďŽŶĂƚĞ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ŐǇŵ�
ĂƉƉĞĂƌƐ� ƐŽƵŶĚ� ďƵƚ� ƚŚĞƌĞ� ŝƐ� Ă� ƐŵĂůů� ƐĞĐƟŽŶ� ŽĨ�
ƚƌŝŵ� ƚŚĂƚ� ŝƐ� ŵŝƐƐŝŶŐ� Ăƚ� ŚŝŐŚ� ůĞǀĞů� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ� tĞƐƚ�
ĞůĞǀĂƟŽŶ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞƐ�ƌĞ-ĮǆŝŶŐͬƌĞƉĂŝƌ͘ 

�ǆƉŽƐĞĚ�^ƚĞĞůǁŽƌŬ�ĂŶĚ�^ƚĂŝƌǁĂǇƐ�ĂƌĞ�Ăůů�ĮŶŝƐŚĞĚ�
ǁŝƚŚ� Ă� ŐĂůǀĂŶŝƐĞĚ� ĐŽĂƟŶŐ� ǁŚŝĐŚ� ŝƐ� ŐŝǀŝŶŐ� ŐŽŽĚ�
ůŽǁ�ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƟŽŶ͘ 

�ĞĚĂƌ�ƐƚƌŝƉ�ĐůĂĚĚŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŽĸƚƐ�ĂůŽŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƌŽŶƚ�
ĞůĞǀĂƟŽŶ� ŽǀĞƌŚĂŶŐ� ŚĂǀĞ� ŵŝŶŽƌ� ƐŝŐŶƐ� ŽĨ� ǁĂƚĞƌ�
ƐƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƌĂŝŶǁĂƚĞƌ�ƌƵŶ�Žī�ƚƌĂĐŬŝŶŐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞĚŐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĂŝŶƐĐƌĞĞŶ�ĐůĂĚĚŝŶŐ�ĂďŽǀĞ͘ 

 

Ϯ͘ϯ͘ϯ�tŝŶĚŽǁƐͬtŝŶĚŽǁ�tĂůůŝŶŐͬ�ƵƌƚĂŝŶ�ǁĂůůŝŶŐ 
dŚĞ�ƉŽǁĚĞƌ�ĐŽĂƚĞĚ�ĂůƵŵŝŶŝƵŵ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ǁŝŶĚŽǁ�ǁĂůůŝŶŐ�ĂƌĞ�Ăůů�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͘� 

dŚĞƌĞ� ŚĂƐ� ďĞĞŶ� Ă� ƌĞĐĞŶƚ� ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ� ŽĨ� Ă� ǁŝŶĚŽǁ-
ǁĂůůĞĚ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĞŶĐůŽƐĞƐ�Ă�ĨŽƌŵĞƌůǇ�ĞǆƚĞƌͲ
ŶĂů�ĂƌĞĂ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ĚŝŶŝŶŐ�ƐƉĂĐĞ 

Ϯ͘ϯ͘ϰ�ZŽŽŇŝŐŚƚƐ 
dŚĞ�ƉŽǁĚĞƌ�ĐŽĂƚĞĚ�ĂůƵŵŝŶŝƵŵ�ƌŽŽŇŝŐŚƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�Ăůů�ŝŶ�
ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͘� 

Ϯ͘ϯ͘ϱ��ŽŽƌƐ 
�ǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ƉŽǁĚĞƌ�ĐŽĂƚĞĚ�ĂůƵŵŝŶŝƵŵ�ĚŽŽƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŝŶ�
ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͘� 

Ϯ͘ϯ͘ϲ� ZŽŽĨƐ� 
dŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƌŽŽĨƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŇĂƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ƐŝŶŐůĞ�
ƉůǇ� ŵĞŵďƌĂŶĞ͘� dŚĞƌĞ� ŝƐ� Ă� ŵĂŶ� ƐĂĨĞ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵ� ŽŶ�
ĞĂĐŚ�ƌŽŽĨ͕�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ĨĂŝƌ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ŽĨ�ŵĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�ƉůĂŶƚ͘�
�ĐĐĞƐƐ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ƌŽŽĨƐ� ǁĂƐ� ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ� ǀŝĂ� ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�
ůĂĚĚĞƌƐ͘ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�Ă�ŵĂŝŶůǇ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�ƌĂŝŶǁĂƚĞƌ�ŽƵƚůĞƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ƚŚĞ� ƌŽŽĨƐ�ĂƉƉĞĂƌ� ƚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă� ĐƵƚ� ƚŽ� ĨĂůůƐ� ŝŶƐƵůĂƟŽŶ�
ƐǇƐƚĞŵ� ǁŚŝĐŚ� ĚƌĂŝŶƐ� ƌĂŝŶǁĂƚĞƌ� ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ� ƚŚĞ� ŽƵƚͲ
ůĞƚƐ͘� 

dŚĞ� ƌŽŽĨ� ĐŽǀĞƌŝŶŐƐ� ĂƉƉĞĂƌĞĚ� ƐŽƵŶĚ͕� ƐŽŵĞ� ƌĞƉĂŝƌ�
ƉĂƚĐŚĞƐ� ǁĞƌĞ� ǀŝƐŝďůĞ͕� ƚŚĞƐĞ� ǁĞƌĞ� ůŝŬĞůǇ� ƉůĂĐĞĚ�
ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƌŝŐŝŶĂů�ŝŶƐƚĂůůĂƟŽŶ͘ 

dŚĞƌĞ� ǁĂƐ� Ă� ĨĂŝƌ� ĂŵŽƵŶƚ� ŽĨ� ͚ƉŽŶĚŝŶŐ͛� ǁŚŝĐŚ� ĂƉͲ
ƉĞĂƌĞĚ� ƚŽ� ďĞ� ĚƵĞ� ƚŽ� ďůŽĐŬĞĚ� ƌĂŝŶǁĂƚĞƌ� ŐƵůůĞǇ�
ŽƵƚůĞƚƐ� ƌĂƚŚĞƌ� ƚŚĂŶ� ŝŶƐƵĸĐŝĞŶƚ� ͚ĨĂůů͛� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ�ƌŽŽĨƐ͘�
�� ĨĂŝƌ� ĂŵŽƵŶƚ� ŽĨ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂů� ĚĞƚƌŝƚƵƐ� ƐƵĐŚ� ĂƐ� ŵŽƐƐ�

ĂŶĚ�ďŝƌĚ�ŐƵĂŶŽ�ǁĂƐ�ĞǀŝĚĞŶƚ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ĂƌŽƵŶĚ�ƌŽŽĨ�
ŵŽƵŶƚĞĚ� ƉůĂŶƚ͘� dŚŝƐ� ŶĞĞĚƐ� ƚŽ� ďĞ� ĐůĞĂƌĞĚ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ�
ƌŽŽĨƐ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌůǇ�ĐůĞĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ĚƌĂŝŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�
ŽƵƚůĞƚƐ�ĂƐ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ͘� 

^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƐƵƉƉůŝĞƐ�ƚŽͬĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽŽĨ�ƉůĂŶƚ�ŝƐ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�
ŽŶ� ĐĂďůĞ� ƚƌĂǇƐ� ǁŝƚŚ� ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ� ĨĞĞƚ͕� ƐŽŵĞ� ĨĞĞƚ� ŚĂĚ�
ďĞĐŽŵĞ� ĚŝƐůŽĚŐĞĚ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ƚƌĂǇƐ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞŝƌ� ƐĐƌĞǁ�
ĮǆŝŶŐƐ� ǁĞƌĞ� ŝŶ� ĚŝƌĞĐƚ� ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚ� ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďƌĂŶĞ͕�
ƚŚŝƐ� ŶĞĞĚƐ� ƵƌŐĞŶƚ� ĂƩĞŶƟŽŶ� ƚŽ� ƉƌĞǀĞŶƚ� ƉĞŶĞƚƌĂƟŽŶ�
ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝŶŐůĞ�ƉůǇ͘ 

dŚĞƌĞ� ŝƐ�ĂŶ�Ăŝƌ� ŝŶŇĂƚĞĚ��d&��ƌŽŽĨ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĞŶƚƌĂů�
ƐƚĞƉƉĞĚ� ŐĂůůĞƌǇ� ĂŶĚ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂů� ŽƉĞŶ� ƉůĂŶ� ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞ�
ĂƌĞĂ͘ 

dŚĞ�ƌŽŽĨ�ĂƉƉĞĂƌĞĚ�ƐŽƵŶĚ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƟŐŚƚ͕�ďƵƚ�ǁŚĂƚ�
ĂƉƉĞĂƌĞĚ� ƚŽ� ďĞ� ĂŶƟ-ďŝƌĚ�ǁŝƌĞƐ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ǀĂůůĞǇƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�
ĚŝƐĐŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ� ĂŶĚ� ďƌŽŬĞŶ͘� /Ĩ� ƌŽŽƐƟŶŐ� ďŝƌĚƐ� � ĂƌĞ� Ă�
ƉƌŽďůĞŵ͕� ƚŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ǁŝƌĞƐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞĚ�ďǇ�Ă�
ƐƉĞĐŝĂůŝƐƚ͘ 

dŚĞƌĞ� ŝƐ� Ă� ƚĞŶƐŝůĞ� ĨĂďƌŝĐ� ƌŽŽĨ� ǁŚŝĐŚ� ĞŶĐůŽƐĞƐ� ƚŚĞ�
ƐƚƵĚĞŶƚ�ĞŶƚƌĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽŵĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ĐŝƌĐƵůĂͲ
ƟŽŶ� ĂƌĞĂƐ͕� ŶŽ� ŝƐƐƵĞƐ� ǁĞƌĞ� ĞǀŝĚĞŶƚ͕� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ƌŽŽĨ�
ĂƉƉĞĂƌĞĚ�ƐŽƵŶĚ͘ 

Ϯ͘ϯ͘ϳ�,ĂƌĚ�WĂǀŝŶŐƐ 
dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ƉĂǀŝŶŐ�ƐůĂďƐ�ƚŽ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�
ĐŝƌĐƵůĂƟŽŶ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͘�/ƚ�ǁĂƐ�ŶŽƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƐŽŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ƐůĂďƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƌƐƚ�ŇŽŽƌ�ĞƐĐĂƉĞ�ǁĂůŬǁĂǇƐ�ŚĂĚ�Ă�ƐůŝŐŚƚ�
ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ŽĨ�ŵŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŚĞŶ�ǁĂůŬĞĚ�ŽŶ͘�dŚĞ�ƐůĂďƐ�
ĂƌĞ�ŽŶ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƉĞĚĞƐƚĂůƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ǁĂƚĞƌƉƌŽŽĨ�
ŵĞŵďƌĂŶĞ�ďĞůŽǁ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�ŶŽƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�Ă�ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�Ăƚ�
ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƉ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞƐĐĂƉĞ�ƐƚĂŝƌƐ�ĨĂĐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂǇŝŶŐ�ĮĞůĚƐ�
ŝƐ�ƵŶĞǀĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂǇ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ�Ă�ƚƌŝƉ�ŚĂǌĂƌĚ͘�dŚŝƐ�ƐĞĐͲ
ƟŽŶ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĂĐƟůĞ�ƉĂǀŝŶŐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ůŝŌĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�

262



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϴϱ 

 
 

127(6  
 

 ƌĞ-�ƐĞƚ�ůĞǀĞů͘ 

'ĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ƐŽŵĞ�ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ƐƵƌĨĂĐĞƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞŶĞĮƚ�ĨƌŽŵ�
ŐĞŶƚůĞ�ƉŽǁĞƌ�ǁĂƐŚŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƌĞŵŽǀĞ�ďƵŝůĚ�ƵƉ�ŽĨ�
ŵŽƐƐ� ĂŶĚ� ůŝĐŚĞŶ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŽ� ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ� ƚŚĞ� ŽǀĞƌĂůů� ĂƉƉĞĂƌͲ
ĂŶĐĞ͘� dŚŝƐ� ŝƐ� ĞǀŝĚĞŶƚ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞĂƌ� ĞƐĐĂƉĞ� ƐƚĂŝƌ� ƌŝƐĞƌƐ͕�
ĂŶĚ�ƐŽŵĞ�ƌĂŝƐĞĚ�ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŐůĂƐƐ�ďůŽĐŬ�ǀĞŶƚ�ĞŶĐůŽͲ
ƐƵƌĞ�ƐŝƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�Ă�ƌŽŽĨ�ƚĞƌƌĂĐĞ͕�ǁŽƵůĚ�ĂůƐŽ�ďĞŶĞĮƚ�ĨƌŽŵ�
ĐůĞĂŶŝŶŐ͘ 

�Ăƌ�ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƚĂƌ�ƉĂǀĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĞĚŐĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉƌĞ-
ĐĂƐƚ� ŬĞƌďƐ͕�ŵĂƌŬĞĚ�ďĂǇƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ͕� ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ� ŝŶ�Ăůů�
ĂƉƉĞĂƌĞĚ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͘ 

^ŽŵĞ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŽĨ�ŐƌĂǀĞů�ƉĂǀŝŶŐ�ŚĂƐ�ƐƵŶŬĞŶ�ƐůŝŐŚƚůǇ�ŵŽƐƚ�
ůŝŬĞůǇ� ĚƵĞ� ƚŽ� ĨŽŽƚ� ƚƌĂĸĐ͕� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞƐĞ� ǁŽƵůĚ� ďĞŶĞĮƚ�
ĨƌŽŵ�ƌĞ-ĚƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌŽůůŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĂǀŽŝĚ�ƉŽŶĚŝŶŐ͘ 

WĂƚŚǁĂǇƐ� ůĞĂĚŝŶŐ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ƉůĂǇŝŶŐ� ĮĞůĚƐ� ĂŶĚ� ƐŽŵĞ�ĞǆͲ
ƚĞƌŶĂů� ƐĞĂƟŶŐ� ĂƌĞĂƐ� ĂƌĞ� ĨŽƌŵĞĚ� ŝŶ� Ă� ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�
͚'ƌĂƐƐĐƌĞƚĞ͛�ƚǇƉĞ�ďůŽĐŬ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐĞĞĚĞĚ�ŐƌĂƐƐ�ŝŶ-Įů͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�
ĂƉƉĞĂƌ�ŝŶ�ĨĂŝƌ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͘ 

Ϯ͘ϯ͘ϴ�^ŽŌ�>ĂŶĚƐĐĂƉŝŶŐ 
'ƌĂƐƐ͕�ƐŚƌƵďƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƉůĂŶƚĞĚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ǁĞůů�
ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶĞĚ͘� 

Ϯ͘ϯ͘ϵ�^ŝƚĞ�ďŽƵŶĚĂƌŝĞƐͬ�ĨĞŶĐŝŶŐ 
&ĞŶĐŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŶĐůŽƐƵƌĞƐ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ĐŽŵƉƌŝƐĞƐ�ĂŶƟ�
Đůŝŵď�ƉŽǁĚĞƌ�ĐŽĂƚĞĚ�ƐƚĞĞů�ŵĞƐŚ�ĂŶĚ�ƉŽƐƚƐ͕͘�ǁŝƚŚ�
ƐŽŵĞ�ŐĂůǀĂŶŝƐĞĚ�ĨƌĂŵĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞƐŚ�ŐĂƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƵƉŝů�
ĞŶƚƌĂŶĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆŝƚƐ͘�dŚĞ�ƐŝƚĞ�ďŽƵŶĚĂƌŝĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�
ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͘ 

 

Ϯ͘ϰ�^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ 

�ŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ��ĞĮŶŝƟŽŶ 

 

�KE�/d/KE ��&/E/d/KE 

'KK� WĞƌĨŽƌŵŝŶŐ�ĂƐ�ŝŶƚĞŶĚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŶŐ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚůǇ�>KE'�d�ZD 

&�/Z WĞƌĨŽƌŵŝŶŐ�ĂƐ�ŝŶƚĞŶĚĞĚ�ďƵƚ�ĞǆŚŝďŝƟŶŐ�ŵŝŶŽƌ�ĚĞƚĞƌŝŽƌĂƟŽŶ͘�ϭϴ-ϯϲ�DKEd,^ 

WKKZ �ǆŚŝďŝƟŶŐ�ŵĂũŽƌ�ĚĞĨĞĐƚƐ�ĂŶĚͬŽƌ�ŶŽƚ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŶŐ�ĂƐ�ŝŶƚĞŶĚĞĚ�hZ'�Ed 

263



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϴϲ 

� �, 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&21',7,21�5(3257 

 

ELEMENT DESCRIPTION CONDITION APPROX REPAIR 
COST (£) 

Catmose College 

INTERNAL 

 

Ceilings Concrete exposed soffits 
Plasterboard 
Mineral Fibre Suspended tile 
 

Good 
 
Good 
Good 
Good 

Nil 
 

Walls Plastered  
Fair faced block 
Hygienic cladding 
Ply facing 
Folding partitions 

Good  
Good 
Good 
Good 
Good 

Ni 
l 

Floors Carpet tiles 
Anti-slip Vinyl 
Sheet Vinyl 
 
Quarry tiles 
Wood strips 

Good  
Good 
Good -minor 
discolouration 
Good 
Fair – Minor sanding and 
plan for cyclical sand/seal 

Nil 
 
 
 
 

1,000 

Doors/Joinery Pre-decorated solid core 
glaze/unglazed 
 
Powder coated aluminium and 
glazed 

Good, Minor repairs to 
tighten loose handles etc 
 
Good 

500 

Decoration Painted surfaces Good Touch in minor 
scuffs. 
Programme for cyclical 
redecs from year 5 

500 

Sanitaryware Vitreous glazed sanitaryware Good  

    

INTERNAL SUB TOTAL………..£2,000 

 

264



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϴϳ 

 
 

127(6  
 

    �>�D�Ed ��^�Z/Wd/KE �KE�/d/KE �WWZKy͘�
Z�W�/Z��K^d

;άͿ 
�ǆƚĞƌŶĂůůǇ 

tĂůůƐ �ĂƌŬ�ŐƌĞǇ�ƐƚĂĐŬ�ďŽŶĚ�ďůŽĐŬƐ͘ 'ŽŽĚͬ&Ăŝƌ�–DŝŶŽƌ�
ƚƌĞĂƚŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌĞǀĞŶƚ�
ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƌƵŶ�Žī�ĨƌŽŵ�
ǁŝŶĚŽǁ�ĐŝůůƐ͘ 

ϱϬϬ 

�ůĂĚĚŝŶŐ ^ŝŶƵƐŽŝĚĂů�ŐĂůǀĂŶŝƐĞĚ 
�ůƵŵŝŶŝƵŵ�ƌĂŝŶƐĐƌĞĞŶ 
DƵůƟǁĂůů�WŽůǇĐĂƌďŽŶĂƚĞ 
  
  
�ĞĚĂƌ�ƐƚƌŝƉ�ƐŽĸƚ�ůŝŶŝŶŐ 

'ŽŽĚ͘ 
'ŽŽĚ 
&Ăŝƌ�–�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞ�ŵŝƐƐŝŶŐ�
ƚƌŝŵ�Ăƚ�ƌŽŽĨ�ũƵŶĐƟŽŶ 
DŝŶŽƌ�ƐĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�
ƚƌĞĂƚŵĞŶƚ 

  
  
  
  

ϭ͕ϬϬϬ 
  

ϱϬϬ 

tŝŶĚŽǁƐͬĐƵƌƚĂŝŶ�ǁĂůůͲ
ŝŶŐ 

WŽǁĚĞƌ�ĐŽĂƚĞĚ�ĂůƵŵŝŶŝƵŵ�
ĨƌĂŵŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ŐůĂǌŝŶŐ 

'ŽŽĚ�;ƐĞĞ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů�
ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�ŵŽĚƵůĞƐͿ 

  

ZŽŽŇŝŐŚƚƐ WŽǁĚĞƌ�ĐŽĂƚĞĚ�ĂůƵŵŝŶŝƵŵ�
ĨƌĂŵŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ŐůĂǌŝŶŐ 

'ŽŽĚ   

�ŽŽƌƐ WŽǁĚĞƌ�ĐŽĂƚĞĚ�ĂůƵŵŝŶŝƵŵ�
ĨƌĂŵŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ŐůĂǌŝŶŐ 

'ŽŽĚ   

DŝƐĐĞůůĂŶĞŽƵƐ �ǆƉŽƐĞĚ�ŐĂůǀĂŶŝƐĞĚ�ƐƚĞĞů�
ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ƐƚĂŝƌǁĂǇƐ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĂůŬͲ
ǁĂǇƐ�ŚĂŶĚƌĂŝůƐ�ĞƚĐ 
  

'ŽŽĚ   

ZŽŽĨ &ůĂƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐŝŶŐůǇ�ƉůǇ�ŵĞŵͲ
ďƌĂŶĞ͘ 

&ĂŝƌͬWŽŽƌ�–��ůĞĂƌ�
ĚĞďƌŝƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�
ŐƵůůŝĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƵŶďůŽĐŬĞĚ͘�
ZĞ-ƐĞĂƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƉĂŝƌ�Ăůů�
ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨĞĞƚ�ƚŽ�ƐĞƌͲ
ǀŝĐĞƐ�ĐĂďůĞ�ƚƌĂǇƐ 

 
  
  

ϯ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ 

ZŽŽĨ 
  

�d&� 'ŽŽĚ�-��ŽŶƐŝĚĞƌ�ƌĞͲ
ƉůĂĐŝŶŐ�ĂŶƟ-�ďŝƌĚ�ǁŝƌĞƐ 
  

Ϯ͕ϬϬϬ͘ϬϬ 

ZŽŽĨƐ dĞŶƐŝůĞ�ĨĂďƌŝĐ�ĐĂŶŽƉǇ͘ 'ŽŽĚ 
  

  

,ĂƌĚ�WĂǀŝŶŐƐ dĂƌŵĂĐĂĚĂŵ�ĐĂƌ�ƉĂƌŬŝŶŐ 
WƌĞ-ĐĂƐƚ�ĐŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ƐůĂďƐ 
  
  
  
  

'ŽŽĚ 
  
&Ăŝƌ�-ZĞ-ůĞǀĞů�ƐůĂďƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ƚĂĐƟůĞ�ƟůĞƐ�ŽŶ�
ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĂƌ�
ĞƐĐĂƉĞ�ƐƚĂŝƌƐ 
  

  
  
  
  
  
  

ϭ͕ϬϬϬ 
  

,ĂƌĚ�WĂǀŝŶŐƐ 'ƌĂǀĞů�ƉĂǀĞĚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ƚŽ�ĨƌŽŶƚ�
ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚĞƐ 

ZĞ-�ĚƌĞƐƐ�ƌŽůů�ĂŶĚ�ůĞǀĞů ϭ͕ϮϬϬ 

'ĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ �ŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ƐƵƌĨĂĐĞƐ͕�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�
ƐƚĂŝƌ�ƌŝƐĞƌƐ 

&Ăŝƌ�–��ŽŶƐŝĚĞƌ�ƉŽǁĞƌ�
ǁĂƐŚŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�
ĂƉƉĞĂƌĂŶĐĞ 

ϭ͕ϮϬϬ 

^ŽŌ�>ĂŶĚƐĐĂƉŝŶŐ 'ƌĂƐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂŝŶƚĞĚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ 'ŽŽĚ   
�ŽƵŶĚĂƌŝĞƐͬĨĞŶĐĞƐ &ĞŶĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŐĂƚĞƐ͕�ƉŽǁĚĞƌ�

ĐŽĂƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŐĂůǀĂŶŝƐĞĚ�ŐĂƚĞƐ�
ƉŽƐƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨĞŶĐĞƐ 

'ŽŽĚ   

�yd�ZE�>�^h��dKd�>�����������άϭϬ͕ϰϬϬ 

  

�WWZKy/D�d��dKd�>�Z�W�/Z��K^d^�;�ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ��ůĞŵĞŶƚƐͿ�άϭϮ͕ϰϬϬ 

�>�D�Ed ��^�Z/Wd/KE �KE�/d/KE �WWZKy͘�
Z�W�/Z��K^d

;άͿ 

265



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϴϴ 

� �, 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&21',7,21�5(3257 

ϯ͘Ϭ͘�DΘ��^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ZĞǀŝĞǁ 
 

ϯ͘Ϭ͘Ϭ��ůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ 
dŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ƐƵď-ƐƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ďƵŝůĚͲ
ŝŶŐ�ŝƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ϮϬϬϬ��ŵƉ͕�ϯ-WŚĂƐĞ�ƉĂŶĞů�ďŽĂƌĚ�
ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů�ŝŶƚĂŬĞ�ĐƵƉďŽĂƌĚ�ĂĚũĂĐĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�
ďŽŝůĞƌ�ƉůĂŶƚ�ƌŽŽŵ͘�KŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŝƐŝƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�
ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ�ĨƵůů�ŽĨ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŬŝƚĐŚĞŶƐ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌŝŶŐ�
ĨŽƌ�ůƵŶĐŚ͕�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ǁĂƐ�ĚƌĂǁŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�
ϱϬϬ��ŵƉƐ�ƉĞƌ�ƉŚĂƐĞ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƟŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ƐƉĂƌĞ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ŝĨ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ͘� 

ϯ͘Ϭ͘ϭ�/ŶĐŽŵŝŶŐ�WŽǁĞƌ 
dŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƉŽǁĞƌ�ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ďŽĂƌĚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�Ăůů�ĐŽŵƉůŝͲ
ĂŶƚ͕�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ�ĂƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂŐĞ͘ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ůŽĐĂů�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĂů�ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ďŽĂƌĚƐ�
ŝŶ�ĐƵƉďŽĂƌĚƐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƉŽƚ-
ĐŚĞĐŬƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŵĂĚĞ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĐŽŶĮƌŵĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�
ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ͘ 

ϯ͘Ϭ͘Ϯ�'ĞŶĞƌĂů�>ŝŐŚƟŶŐ 
>ŝŐŚƟŶŐ�ŝƐ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�dϱ�ŇƵŽƌĞƐĐĞŶƚ�ĮƫŶŐƐ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�
ďǇ�ĐŽŵƉĂĐƚ�ŇƵŽƌĞƐĐĞŶƚ�ůŝŐŚƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƐŵĂůůĞƌ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͘�dŚĞ�
ůĂŵƉƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ�ĂůƚŚŽƵŐŚ�Ă�
ĨĞǁ�ŶĞĞĚĞĚ�ƌĞƉůĂĐŝŶŐ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĞŶƚƌĂů�ƐƚĞƉƉĞĚ�
ƐĞĂƟŶŐ�ĂƌĞĂ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ŚŝŐŚ�ůĞǀĞů�ŝƐ�ǀĞƌǇ�ĚŝĸͲ
ĐƵůƚ͘ 

tŚŝůƐƚ�ŶŽƚ�Ă��ŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ-ďĂƐĞĚ�ŝƐƐƵĞ͕�ŝƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƌĞĐͲ
ŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŽůĚĞƌ�dϱ�ůŝŐŚƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ŵŽĚĞƌŶ�>���>ŝŐŚƚƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ůŽǁĞƌ�ĞŶĞƌŐǇ�
ĐŽŶƐƵŵƉƟŽŶ͕�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ůŽŶŐĞƌ�ůŝĨĞ͕�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƉĂǇ�ĨŽƌ�ŝƚƐĞůĨ�ŝŶ�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�
ϳ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ĂůƐŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ďǇ�ƌĞĚƵĐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶƚĞͲ
ŶĂŶĐĞ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŚŝŐŚ-ďĂǇ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͘ 

ϯ͘Ϭ͘ϯ��ŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ�>ŝŐŚƟŶŐ 
�ŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ�ůŝŐŚƟŶŐ�ŝƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ĂƐ�ĂŶ�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂƚĞĚ�ƉĂƌƚ�
ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ůŝŐŚƟŶŐ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ͘�tŚŝůƐƚ�ƵŶƚĞƐƚĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�
ƚŚĞ�ǀŝƐŝƚ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ǁĂƐ�ŝŶ�ĨƵůů�ŽĐĐƵƉĂƟŽŶ͕�ǁĞ�
ǁĞƌĞ�ĂĚǀŝƐĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁĂƐ�ƚĞƐƚĞĚ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌůǇ�
ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ͘�EŽ�ŝŵŵĞĚŝĂƚĞ�ǁŽƌŬƐ�
ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ͘� 

ϯ͘Ϭ͘ϰ�/ŶƚƌƵĚĞƌ��ůĂƌŵ 
dŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�/ŶƚƌƵĚĞƌ��ůĂƌŵ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ŝŶƐƚĂůůĞĚ�ĐŽŵƉƌŝƐͲ
ŝŶŐ�W/Z�ƐĞŶƐŽƌƐ͕�ǁŝŶĚŽǁ�ĂŶĚ�Ğǆŝƚ�ĚŽŽƌ�ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�
ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁĂƐ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů͕�ĂƉƉĂƌĞŶƚůǇ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ĨĂƵůƚƐ͘�
EŽ�ŝŵŵĞĚŝĂƚĞ�ǁŽƌŬƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ͘� 

 

ϯ͘Ϭ͘ϱ���ds�^ǇƐƚĞŵ 
dŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ���ds�ĐŽǀĞƌ�ƚŽ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁĂƐ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů͕�ĂƉƉĂƌĞŶƚůǇ�
ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ĨĂƵůƚƐ͘�EŽ�ŝŵŵĞĚŝĂƚĞ�ǁŽƌŬƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ͘ 

ϯ͘Ϭ͘ϲ�&ŝƌĞ��ůĂƌŵ 
dŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�&ŝƌĞ��ůĂƌŵ�ĐŽǀĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�
ǁĂƐ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů͕�ĂƉƉĂƌĞŶƚůǇ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ĨĂƵůƚƐ͘�EŽ�ŝŵͲ
ŵĞĚŝĂƚĞ�ǁŽƌŬƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ͘ 

tĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁŚŝůƐƚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽ�ŽďǀŝͲ
ŽƵƐ�ĨĂƵůƚƐ͕�ĮƌĞ�ĂůĂƌŵ�ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ƉƌĞĚŝĐƚĞĚ�
ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�ůŝĨĞ�ŽĨ�ϭϬ-ϭϱ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ƐŽ�Ă�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ŽĨ�
ĮƌĞ�ĂůĂƌŵ�ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚƐ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ƉůĂŶŶĞĚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ϯ-ϱ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ƌĂƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ǁĂŝƚ�ĨŽƌ�
ĨĂƵůƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƐƚĂƌƚ�ŽĐĐƵƌƌŝŶŐ͘� 

ϯ͘ϭ͘Ϭ�DĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ� 
 

ϯ͘ϭ͘ϭ�'ĂƐ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ 
��ϭϮϱŵŵ�ŐĂƐ�ƐƵƉƉůǇ�ĞŶƚĞƌƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĞŵŝƐĞƐ�ǀŝĂ�ŐĂƐ�ŵĞƚĞƌ�
ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�Ă�ŵĞƚĞƌ�ĐƵƉďŽĂƌĚ�ĂĚũĂĐĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�
ŚŽƵƐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞƌǀĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĂƐ-ĮƌĞĚ�ĐĞŶƚƌĂů�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ƉůĂŶƚ͕�ƚŚĞ�
ŬŝƚĐŚĞŶ͕�ƐĐŝĞŶĐĞ�ďĞŶĐŚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�^ƉŽƌƚƐ�,Ăůů�ďŽŝůĞƌƐ͘ 

ϯ͘ϭ͘Ϯ�,ĞĂƟŶŐ�WůĂŶƚ 
dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�Ϯ�EŽ͘�,ŽǀĂů�hůƚƌĂ'ĂƐ�ϯϬϬ�ŚŝŐŚ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ŐĂƐ�
ďŽŝůĞƌƐ�ĞĂĐŚ�ƌĂƚĞĚ�Ăƚ�ϮϳϯŬt�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŶŐ�Ăƚ�ϴϬͬϲϬ��ĞŐ͘�͘�
dŚĞƐĞ�ďŽŝůĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ďǇ�Ă�,ŽǀĂů�ϰϮϱŬt��ŝŽŵĂƐƐ�
tŽŽĚ-WĞůůĞƚ�ďŽŝůĞƌ͘�tŚŝůƐƚ�ƚŚĞ��ŝŽŵĂƐƐ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ŝƐ�ĚĞͲ
ƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚĂŬĞ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞĂĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĂƐ-
ďŽŝůĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ͕�ƚŚĞ��ŝŽŵĂƐƐ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ŚĂƐ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞĞŶ�ƵƐĞĚ�
ĨŽƌ�ƐĞǀĞƌĂů�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŽŽĚ�ƉĞůůĞƚ�ĨƵĞů�
ďĞŝŶŐ�ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚůǇ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐŝǀĞ�ƚŚĂŶ�ŐĂƐ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�Ă�
ůĂƌŐĞ�ďƵīĞƌ�ǀĞƐƐĞů�ƚŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ƐŵŽŽƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĂĚ͘�tĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�
ĂĚǀŝƐĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĂƐ�ďŽŝůĞƌƐ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚĞ�ƐƵĸĐŝĞŶƚůǇ�ƚŽ�ŚŽůĚ�
ƚŚĞ�ůŽĂĚ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞůů�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƵƐƵĂůůǇ�
ŽŶůǇ�ŶĞĞĚ�ŽŶĞ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ƚŽ�ŚŽůĚ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĂĚ͕�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ�
ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƐƉĂƌĞ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�
ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŶĞǁ�ĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶ͕�ŝĨ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ͘ 

ϯ͘ϭ͘ϯ�,ĞĂƟŶŐ�^ǇƐƚĞŵƐ 
dŚĞ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ŝƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƉĞƌŝŵĞƚĞƌ�ĐŽŶǀĞĐͲ
ƚŽƌƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƵŶĚĞƌͲ
ŇŽŽƌ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĐĞŶƚƌĂů�ĐŽƌĞ�ĂƌĞĂƐ͕�Ăůů�ƐĞƌǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ůŽĐĂů�
sdͬ�d�ŵĂŶŝĨŽůĚƐ�ĂƌŽƵŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ͘�dŚĞ�ŵĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�Ăůů�ĐŽŶƚƌŽůůĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌĞĚ�ǀŝĂ�Ă�dƌĞŶĚ�
ϵϲϯ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�ĂŶĚ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌŝŶŐ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘�dŚĞ�ĚĂǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŝƐŝƚ�
ǁĂƐ�ĐŽůĚͬƌĂŝŶǇ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ǁĂƌŵ͕�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�
ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�
ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ƐĂƟƐĨĂĐƚŽƌŝůǇ͘� 

266



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϴϵ 

 
 

127(6  
 

 ϯ�ŶŽŶ-ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ͘ 

dŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�Ăŝƌ�ŚĂŶĚůŝŶŐ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌŽƵƟŶĞͲ
ůǇ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�Ăůů�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂǇ͘ 

ϯ͘ϭ͘ϳ��ŝƌ-ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�,ĞĂƚ�WƵŵƉƐ�ͬ��ŽŽůŝŶŐ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�ϭϲ�EŽ͘�DŝƚƐƵďŝƐŚŝ�ƐƉůŝƚ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ŽŶĞ�ůĂƌŐĞƌ�ŵƵůƟ-ƐƉůŝƚ�ŚĞĂƚ�ƉƵŵƉ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ƐĞƌǀŝŶŐ�
ŚŝŐŚ�ŚĞĂƚ-ůŽĂĚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĐŽŶĚĞŶƐĞƌ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽŽĨ͘�
�ůů�ůŽŽŬĞĚ�ŝŶ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�
ƌĞŐƵůĂƌůǇ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞĚ͕�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌŽƵďůĞ-ĨƌĞĞ�ĂƐ�
ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ϭϬ�ǇĞĂƌ-ŽůĚ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�
ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ŶŽŵŝŶĂů�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�ůŝĨĞ�ŽĨ�ϭϱ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ƐŽ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
K<�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ϱ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ďƵƚ�ƉůĂŶƐ�ƉƵƚ�ŝŶ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞ�
ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ĂŌĞƌ�Ă�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ϱ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͘ 

 

ϯ͘Ϯ͘Ϭ�DΘ���ƵĚŐĞƚ�^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ 

 

ϯ͘ϭ͘ϰ��ŽŵĞƐƟĐ�,Žƚ�tĂƚĞƌ 
�ŽŵĞƐƟĐ�ŚŽƚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ŚĞĂƟŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�DĂŝŶ�^ĐŚŽŽů�ŝƐ�ǀŝĂ�Ă�
ŚŽƚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ĐĂůŽƌŝĮĞƌ�ĨĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ŐĂƐ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ƉůĂŶƚ͘ 

dŚĞ�^ƉŽƌƚƐ�,Ăůů�ŚĂƐ�ŝƚƐ�ŽǁŶ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ƉůĂŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŐĂƐ-ĮƌĞĚ�
ǁĂƚĞƌ�ŚĞĂƚĞƌƐ�ĂƐ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ƌŽƵƟŶĞůǇ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǀĞŶͲ
ŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƵƐĞ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĂŌĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŚĂƐ�
ĐůŽƐĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂǇ͘ 

dŚĞ�ŚŽƚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ďŽƚŚ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞůŝǀͲ
ĞƌĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ŚŽƚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĂŶĚ�
ƐƉŽƌƚƐ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚǇ͘�EŽ�ŝŵŵĞĚŝĂƚĞ�ǁŽƌŬƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ͘ 

ϯ͘ϭ͘ϱ�tĂƚĞƌ�^ǇƐƚĞŵ�ĂŶĚ�^ƉƌŝŶŬůĞƌƐ 
��ϭϬϬŵŵ�ĐŽůĚ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ŵĞƚĞƌĞĚ�ƐƵƉƉůǇ�ĞŶƚĞƌƐ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚͲ
ŝŶŐ�ǀŝĂ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽŝůĞƌ�ƌŽŽŵ�ĂŶĚ�ĨĞĞĚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽůĚ-ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƐƚŽƌĂŐĞ�
ƚĂŶŬƐ�ĂŶĚ�ďŽŽƐƚĞƌ�ƐĞƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ĂƐ�Ă�ǁŚŽůĞ�
ĂŶĚ�ĂŶ�ƵŶŵĞƚĞƌĞĚ�ƐƵƉƉůǇ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƐĞƌǀĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƉƌŝŶŬůĞƌ�ƚĂŶŬ�
ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĂƌ�ĐĂƌ�ƉĂƌŬ͘�dŚĞ�ƐƉƌŝŶŬůĞƌƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ŵĂŝŶ�ŵĂŝŶƐ-
ƉŽǁĞƌĞĚ�ƉƵŵƉ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ĚŝĞƐĞů-ƉŽǁĞƌĞĚ�ďĂĐŬ-ƵƉ�ƉƵŵƉ͘�
dŚĞ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�K<�ĂŶĚ�
ƚŚĞ�ƐƉƌŝŶŬůĞƌ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ŝƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů͘�EŽ�
ŝŵŵĞĚŝĂƚĞ�ǁŽƌŬƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ͘ 

ϯ͘ϭ͘ϲ�sĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ 
dŚĞ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵƐ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŶĂƚƵƌĂů�ǀĞŶƟůĂƟŽŶ�ǀŝĂ�
ŽƉĞŶĂďůĞ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁƐ�ĂůƚŚŽƵŐŚ�ƌŽŽŵƐ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�
ŽƉĞŶĂďůĞ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŵĞĐŚĂŶŝĐĂů�ĞǆƚƌĂĐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƵƚŽͲ
ŵĂƟĐ�ŽƉĞŶĂďůĞ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�ĐŽŵŵƵŶĂů�
ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƚƌŝĂ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�ĐŽŵŵƵŶĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�
ĂƵƚŽŵĂƟĐ�Ăŝƌ�ŝŶƚĂŬĞƐ�ǀŝĂ�ĂƵƚŽŵĂƟĐ�ĂĐƚƵĂƚĞĚ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁƐ�
ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�Ğǆŝƚ�ĚŽŽƌƐ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ĂƵƚŽŵĂƚĞĚ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽůƐ�
ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƚƌŽƵďůĞƐŽŵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ƐĞƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽŶ-
ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂǇ͕�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐ�ƐŝŵŝůĂƌ�ĂƌĞĂ-ĨĂƵůƚƐ�ŚĂĚ�
ďĞĞŶ�ƚƌĂĐĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�ƉĂŶĞůƐ�ŚŝĚĚĞŶ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ĨĂůƐĞ�
ĐĞŝůŝŶŐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂĚ�ĐŽƐƚ�άϮ͕ϱϬϬ�ĞĂĐŚ�ĂƌĞĂ�ƚŽ�ƌĞŵĞĚǇ͘���
ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�άϳ͕ϱϬϬ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂůůŽǁĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞŵĞĚǇ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�

�ŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ�/ƚĞŵƐ���ZĞƉůĂĐĞ�ϯ�EŽ͘�tŝŶĚŽǁ��ŽŶƚƌŽů�DŽĚƵůĞƐ��������������������άϳ͕ϱϬϬ 
  

  

�WWKy/D�d��DΘ��Z�W�/Z��K^d^�dKd�>�����������άϳ͕ϱϬϬ 

267



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϵϬ 

� �, 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&21',7,21�5(3257��,17(51$/�3+272*5$3+6 

dǇƉŝĐĂů�ĐŽƌƌŝĚŽƌ�ǀŝĞǁ�-ŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ŇŽŽƌ 

'ĞŶĞƌĂů�ǀŝĞǁ�ŽĨ��d&��ƌŽŽĨ�ĂŶĚ�ŐĂůůĞƌǇ 
'ĞŶĞƌĂů�ǀŝĞǁ�ĮƌƐƚ�ŇŽŽƌ�ǀŝŶǇů 

tĞĂƌ�ƚŽ�ŐǇŵ�ŇŽŽƌ dǇƉŝĐĂů�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵ�ǀŝĞǁ �ƵƚŽŵĂƚĞĚ�ĚŽŽƌƐ 

268



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϵϭ 

 
 

� �+ 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&21',7,21�5(3257��(;7(51$/�3+272*5$3+6 

>ŽŽƐĞ�ƚĂĐƟůĞ�ƉĂǀŝŶŐ�Ăƚ�ůĂŶĚŝŶŐ 

^ƚĂŝƌ�ƌŝƐĞƌƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌŝŶŐ�ĐůĞĂŶŝŶŐ 

tĂƚĞƌ�ƌƵŶ-Žī�ĂŶĚ�ƐƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ďůŽĐŬǁŽƌŬ 

�ŽŵƉĂĐƚĞĚ�ŐƌĂǀĞů�ƉĂǀŝŶŐ 

�ŽŶĐƌĞƚĞ�ĞŶĐůŽƐƵƌĞƐ�ĚƵĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĐůĞĂŶŝŶŐ 

DŝƐƐŝŶŐ�ƚƌŝŵ�ƚŽ�ŐǇŵ�ĐůĂĚĚŝŶŐ 

269



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϵϮ 

� �, 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&21',7,21�5(3257��(;7(51$/�3+272*5$3+6 

^ůŽǁ�ĚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƌŽŽĨ�ŐƵůůĞǇ 
�ƵŝůĚ-ƵƉ�ŽĨ�ĚĞƚƌŝƚƵƐ 

�ŝƐƉůĂĐĞĚ�ĐĂďůĞ�ƚƌĂǇ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ ^ĐƌĞǁ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚƌĂǇ�ƚŽƵĐŚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďƌĂŶĞ WŽŶĚŝŶŐ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞƚƌŝƚƵƐ 

270



��������587/$1'�6&+22/6����67$*(���5(3257 �ϵϯ 

 � �+ 
 

$33(1',&(6  
&21',7,21�5(3257��(;7(51$/�3+272*5$3+6 

�ƌŽŬĞŶ�ĂŶƟ-ďŝƌĚ�ǁŝƌĞƐ 'ĞŶĞƌĂů�ǀŝĞǁ—ǁĂƚĞƌ�ůĂǇŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�ƌŽŽĨ 

�ůŽĐŬĞĚ�ŽƵƚůĞƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƉŽŶĚŝŶŐ 

271



 

d,�E<�zKh  
 

272



Ref Date Raised
Type of risk 

or issue
Risk or Issue Description

Ri
sk

 o
r I

ss
ue

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Im
pa

ct

Se
ve

rit
y

Mitigation or Action Plan Owner Status Date Closed

SCP-RI-001 22/10/20 CC
Catmose College decide not to 
proceed

Risk 1 3 3

Catmose keen to proceed and now awaiting legal agreements to 
be finalised. Current actions and timelines include approval at 
Cabinet, Full Council and Catmose Board. These are due to be 
completed by the 25th March 2021.

Robert Shore Open

SCP-RI-002 22/10/20 RCC
Cabinet or Council do not approve 
project

Risk 2 3 6

This is an item on the agenda for Cabinet for February and 
Council in March. It shpuld be noted that we need to carry out 
these works to meet statutory obligations and funding is in 
place.

Robert Shore Open

SCP-RI-003 22/10/20 Both
Phase 2 feasibility determine costs 
higher than grant

Risk 2 3 6

Phase 2 feasibilty has been received with predicted costs at 
£5.5m. We have agreed with Catmose to value engineer the 
project down to £5.25m. All parties believe this is realistic. NPS 
were aware of the total of the funding pot.

Robert Shore Open

SCP-RI-004 22/10/20 Both Legal agreements are delayed Risk 1 3 3
Legal agreements have commenced preperation ahead of 
schedule

Robert Shore Open

SCP-RI-005 22/10/20 RCC Brightways do not move Risk 1 3 3
Decision to move Brightways has been approved by Director and 
portfolio holder with new premises agreed.

Robert Shore Open

SCP-RI-006 22/10/20 RCC
Brightways staff consultation raises 
issues with staff work terms and 
conditions

Risk 1 3 3

Communications plans are in place. Consultations with service 
users carried out. Consultation with staff ongoing as this will 
involve a change in contracts from a five day sevice to a seven 
day service. HR involved throughout the process.

Rober Shore Open

SCP-RI-007 22/10/20 RCC Funding for Brightways move Risk 1 3 3
Funding has been allocated for this however it is finite and RCC 
team to ensure no overspend. Allocation is awaiting Council 
approvals.

Robert Shore Open

SCP-RI-008 22/10/20 Both
Planning / building regulations 
permission not approved for 
Brightways.

Risk 1 3 3

Planning permissions to commence as soon as final drawings 
and refurbishment plans are agreed. NB we are waiting for 
approval from Council however we anticipate being at tender 
stage awaiting orders by mid-March. If there was an issue with 
Planning then this could have an adverse effect on timescales.

Robert Shore Open

SCP-RI-009 22/10/20 CC

There is a risk that the site  chosen 
to progress applies to RCC for 
additional funding (over that 
Granted) to manage any overspend

Risk 2 5 10

The legal agreement will set out the limits of the funding. This 
will not fully mitigate the risk of the situation arising but will 
clearly set out that no additional funds are available.
Legal agreement to  cover this and value engineering to be 
applied prior to construction. Grant of covenant if accepted in 
the legal agreement with mitigate this.

Robert Shore Open

SCP-RI-010 22/10/20 CC
The school site has to be capable of 
delivering additional numbers 
within the agreed  budget

Risk 1 5 5
Provision specification is in development and commitment to 
use the space to be built to deliver the provision to form part of 
the legal governance agreement.

Robert Shore Open

SCP-RI-011 22/10/20 CC
The Academy Trust Governing Body 
needs to continue to support the 
development of the provision

Risk 1 3 3

Intention to Progress letter received, work closely with the 
Governing body to ensure any risks are understood and issues 
resolved. Legal agreement will help to mitigate this. Project 
board for Catmose is scheduled for just after full council in 
March.

Robert Shore Open

SCP-RI-012 22/10/20 CC
The School Head teacher /Principal 
needs to work with RCC to Progress 
the project.

Risk 1 3 3
Intention to Progress letter received and regular meetings in 
place to drive progress.Legal agreement will help to mitigate 
this.  SPOC for Catmose to be provided. Currently N Ray.

Robert Shore Open

SCP-RI-013 22/10/20 CC
There is a risk that the Capital build 
is completed but the school do not 
sustain places

Risk 1 3 3
Legal Governance documents to be approved at Board . Final 
draft legal agreement should be signed by both parties.

Robert Shore Open

SCP-RI-014 22/10/20 RCC
There is a risk that RCC is unable to 
claw back funding if the school do 
not sustain places

Risk 1 3 3 Legal Governance documents to be include caveat. Robert Shore Open

SCP-RI-015 22/10/20 Both
There is a risk that the programme is 
either delayed or negatively 
impacted.

Risk 2 5 10
Legal Governance documents to be approved  will cover this 
risk. Temporary accommodation to be used if required.

Robert Shore Open

SCP-RI-016 22/10/20 CC

There is a risk of low or inconsistent 
numbers of children predicted in 
some years, and assumptions made 
in the model  for financing

Risk 1 3 3 Unlikely at this stage in line with SCAP reports. Robert Shore Open

SCP-RI-017 22/10/20 CC

There is a risk that Catmose will 
request start up revenue costs that 
cannot be funded within the funding 
envelope

Risk 2 5 10
The legal agreement needs to ensure that all aspects of funding 
for this project are determined and outlined

Robert Shore Open

SCP-RI-018 22/10/20 Both Adverse publicity for the project Risk 1 5 5

A communications outline plan to be agreed with this action 
overseen by the Head of Communications for RCC from January 
2021 for the life of the project. If there was a change in Ofsted 
grading, it may have an impact on pupil numbers.

Robert Shore Open

SCP-RI-019 22/10/20 Both
Project delivery to timescales and 
budget

Risk 2 5 10

Project board to be established to ensure that expectations are 
clearly defined and delivered. Stage 2 report includes a Gantt 
chart which clearly shows completion of internal works in time 
to allow for 2022 intake and external works in time for 2023. 
This will allow us to have full 8FE as planned.

Robert Shore Open

SCP-RI-020 22/10/20 RCC
Project lead requirement as 
opposed to competing with other 
responsibilities

Risk 1 3 3

Project requires a programme lead for two days per week whose 
sole task is dedicated to managing the project.  R Shore 
appointed as Project Lead for the period covered by Catmose 
Expansion Project.

Robert Shore Open

SCP-RI-021 22/10/20 Both

There is a risk that arrangements for 
exiting the European Union, 
negatively affect the building 
programme costs of timeline 
(Supply of goods and labour is 
impacted)

Risk 1 5 5 Legal agreement to cover this. Robert Shore Open

Project Name: Schools Capital Programme - Catmose College
Risk & Issues 
Last Reviewed by the Board: 13th Jan 2021
Risk refers to the combined likelihood the event will occur and the impact on the project if it does occur

273



This page is intentionally left blank



 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rutland County Council 

Project Initiation Document (PID) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Document Owner:  Dawn Godfrey 

Interim Director Childrens Services 
Rutland County Council 
 

Author:  Robert Shore 
Programme Manager 
Rutland County Council  
 

Version:  0.2 
 

Date:  16th November 2020 
 

Classification  NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED  
 

 

  

275



Rutland County Council - Schools Capital Programme – Catmose Extension Project 
 

Page 2 of 7 
 

Contents 

 

Contents ............................................................................................................................ 2 

Document Control, Approval and Distribution .................................................................... 2 

Version Control ................................................................................................................. 2 

Document Approval ........................................................................................................... 2 

Document Distribution ....................................................................................................... 2 

Introduction ....................................................................................................................... 3 

Project Details .................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Next Steps ........................................................................................................................ 7 

 

Document Control, Approval and Distribution 

Version Control 

This document should be updated with any amendments: 

Version Date Notes 

0.1 27th October 2020 Initial draft prepared 

0.2 16th November 2020 2nd Draft prepared 

   

 

Document Approval 

This document requires the following approvals: 

Sponsor Approval Name Date 

 Dawn Godfrey  

 

Document Distribution 

This document will be distributed to: 

Name Method Date 

Programme Board E Mail 

V1 to be sent prior to programme 

board 

 

 

 

 

  

276



Rutland County Council - Schools Capital Programme – Catmose Extension Project 
 

Page 3 of 7 
 

Introduction 

The purpose of this document is to set out the proposals for meeting the authority’s statutory obligation to 

provide sufficient secondary schools places and to determine the viability of the proposed expansion of 

Catmose College. 

Rutland County Council will establish a Programme Board with associated and sufficient governance 

structures, to oversee the use of basic needs capital funding within a maximum limit of £5,500,000 to provide 

an eight form entry (8FE) at Catmose College increasing the overall sufficiency by an additional 30 places per 

academic year from September 2022. 

Project Catmose Expansion Project (CEP)o 

Background 

 

Cabinet approved the undertaking of a two stage feasibility study for school 

expansion across all of the secondary provision in Rutland in February 2020.  On 31 

July 2020, Cabinet further approved to undertake Stage Two of the feasibility study 

for school expansion at the preferred site of Catmose College, Oakham to deliver 

30 additional places through the development of an 8 Form Entry secondary school 

as identified through Stage One of the study. 

Funding to deliver the programme is held by Rutland County Council having been 

provided by Central Government via basic needs funding. 

DfE have not provided revenue funding. 

Project Objectives 

Utilise the funding available from basic needs and schools capital maintenance 

funds to provide an eight form entry at Catmose College to meet sufficiency of 

secondary school places in line with the Schools Capacity Assessment (SCAP). 

This will enable 

 Increase of local provision by 30 additional secondary school places for 

each academic year giving a total of 150 places between years seven and 

eleven. 

 RCC meeting duty to provide sufficient high quality educational places in 

Rutland 

 Children receiving educational placements in-county. 

 Management of the flow of young people into secondary education and 

ensure they  experience a supportive mainstream curriculum. 

In order to meet these objectives, a key dependency also forms part of the 

objectives for the programme  

 Relocation of Brightways facility to another site to free onsite capacity and 

to aid transformation of Adult day provision service model 

277



Rutland County Council - Schools Capital Programme – Catmose Extension Project 
 

Page 4 of 7 
 

Activities / Scope 

RCC commissioned NPS to prepare an initial Feasibility Study for Secondary School 
Expansion in Rutland.  The work comprised two stages: 

 Stage 1 study examining possibilities for expansion at the three Rutland 
Secondary school sites 

 Stage 2 study scoping options for the preferred Secondary site 
 
Cabinet on 31 July 2020 approved the recommendation to undertake Stage Two of 
the feasibility study for school expansion at the preferred site of Catmose College, 
Oakham to deliver 30 additional places through the development of an 8 Form 
Entry secondary school as identified through Stage One of the study. 
 
The Stage 2 feasibility study brief is due to be completed by the end of November 

2020 and will build on the Stage 1 feasiblity work.  It will: 

Include: 
a.  A review of available information 

b. Developing architectural sketch proposals for the expansion options 

c. Provision of a wider understanding of the overall condition of the 

asset. 

d. Developing strategies for mechanical & electrical, structural and 

sustainability approaches 

e. Analysis of site constraints and opportunities 

f. Cost estimates for the expansion options 

g. Identification of key risks including planning risk and potential 

implications for project performance 

h. Analysis of external areas in accordance with current guidelines 

i. Developing procurement strategy and programme 

RCC intend relocating Brightways Day Centre to an alternative location. The 

preferred new property will be within RCC’s existing portfolio. RCC will manage the 

relocation and all other matters, to enable the planned extension of Catmose 

College within the school expansion scales. It is anticipated that work to complete 

the move of Brightways will be completed by July 2021. 

RCC will keep Catmose College and NPS updated about activity and progress for 

Brightways, along with any impact arising from issues that may impact on the 

planned extension of Catmose College. The Brightways premises are therefore 

expected to be available to support the expansion of Catmose College.  

It is proposed to commence Phase 1 of the Project, which includes procurement 

and project start up, in March 2021; with a completion of the building works and 

refurbishment of Catmose College to be by July 2022. 

278



Rutland County Council - Schools Capital Programme – Catmose Extension Project 
 

Page 5 of 7 
 

Deliverables 

The programme will deliver an increased number of local secondary educational 

placements within county to meet statutory requirements and provide 

transformation opportunities for Brightways to deliver a community based seven 

days per week service. 

RCC will meet its statutory obligations for schools places through delivery of a 

Capital project underpinned by a legal agreement with Catmose College to provide: 

 An agreed square meterage of   new build at Catmose as highlighted in 

Phase 2 of the feasibility study. 

 An agreed square meterage of refurbished / remodeled accommodation as 

indicate in Phase 2 of the feasibility process. 

 Eight form entry providing an extra 30 places for each academic year giving 

a total of 150 places between years seven and eleven. 

There will be an associated project providing the opportunity to aid transformation 

of services at Brightways. 

Timing 

The Stage 2 feasibility options report to be completed by December 1st 2020 

assuming all parties co-operate with tight timelines. 

Cabinet approval for project initiation to be sought January 12thth 2021 followed by 

full Council approval on the 22nd February 2021 

Procurement and project start up to commence March 2021. 

Brightways relocation to commence May 2021 and be completed by July 2021. 

Completion of building works including refurbished areas to be by July 2022. 

New intake start in September 2022. 

Exclusions 

The DfE Funding criteria stipulates that it cannot be used for: 

- Age 18 and over 

- Higher education 

- Revenue expenditure 

Dependencies & 

Assumptions 

The Programme will utilise Capital spend to move Brightways to other suitable 

accommodation to allow for the spaces vacated to be refurbished for Catmose 

College needs. 

There will be dependencies across many areas of the council including (but not 

exclusive to): 

IT, Property Services, Planning, Finance, Learning and Skills, School Admissions, 

Governance Services, including Legal Services. 

279



Rutland County Council - Schools Capital Programme – Catmose Extension Project 
 

Page 6 of 7 
 

Resources 

The Schools Capital Programme Board will manage spend, oversee the work of the 

project board and provide leadership in delivering the project. 

The board will fulfil their leadership role by: 

 Taking strategic decisions at the Schools Capital Programme to manage and 

mitigate risk and help determine how it will impact on the Council. 

 Effectively allocating and managing resources for the Programme 

 Monitoring the budget position and taking responsibility for the Programme 

spend. However, once the budget is delegated to Catmose Trust, The Trust  

will assume responsibility for the programme spend,  monitor the budget 

position and provide financial updates at each meeting. 

 Communicating the purpose of the board to staff and other stakeholders 

 Monitoring the programme implementation and improving its effectiveness 

as required 

 

The following people will be in involved in the Programme Board: 

- Dawn Godfrey,  Interim Director for Childrens Services (DG) (Senior 

Responsible Officer) 

- Mona Walsh, Head of Property Services (MW) 

- Gill Curtis (Head of Learning and Skills) (GC) 

- Andrew Merry (Finance Manager) (AM) 

- Robert Shore (Schools Capital Programme Manager) (RS) 

- Dee Rajput (Programme Manager) (DR) 

- Cllr David Wilby (Portfolio Holder for Lifelong Learning, Early Years, Special 

Educational Needs & Disabilities, Inclusion, and Safeguarding – Children & 

Young People) (DW) 

- Cllr Oliver Helmsley (Leader of the Council, and with responsibility for the 

Property Portfolio) (OH) 

Other professionals with specific expertise as required by the Board will be invited 

to contribute. 

There will also be a Project Team established to drive actions as required; this will 

be led by Catmose College with a clear communication line to the Programme Board.  

This will be a function of the existing Catmose Campus Board which already includes 

RCC representatives and elected members . 

-  

The Campus Board fulfils its role by: 

 Reporting to the Rutland County Council CEP Capital Programme Board as 

required (through updates and exception reporting and presentation of risk 

and issues logs and management of the change control process) 

 Effectively allocating and managing resources for the Project including 

determining how to contract alongside the design and build.  

280



Rutland County Council - Schools Capital Programme – Catmose Extension Project 
 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 Monitoring the budget position and taking responsibility for ensuring the 

Project remains in scope, on time and in budget 

 Communicating the purpose of the board to staff and other stakeholders 

 Monitoring the project implementation and improving its effectiveness as 

required 

 Fulfilling the terms of the governance and legal agreement put in place 

between RCC and Catmose College 

Notes for each part of the meeting will be taken as follows; 

1. Design Team Building project aims will be taken by the Architect and fed into 

the Catmose Project Board meetings and decision making process. 

2. Catmose College will provide oversight of construction and provide project 

management expertise, operational business planning and reporting to the 

Programme Board.  

Estimated Cost 

The overall funding cost of the project will operate within the funding envelope of 

£5,500,000 provided by a combination of basic needs funding and schools capital 

maintenance monies. At this stage it is likely to fall under the following heads of 

account: 

- £100,000 to allow Brightways to move to alternative premises and amends 

to buildings to replace like for like to meet future needs 

- £5,212,000 to meet costs of the new facility and refurbishment at Catmose 

College (Options paper estimates) 

- The remainder to be made available as a resourcing for the project. 

 

 

Next Steps 

 

Programme Board to be mandated by Cabinet/SMT and established in December 2020 

PID to be approved by both cabinet and full Council in February 2021. 

281



This page is intentionally left blank



 

[Type here] 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rutland County Council 

Schools Capital Programme Board 

Terms of Reference 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Document Owner:  Dawn Godfrey 

Interim Director for Childrens Services 
Rutland County Council 
 

Author:  Robert Shore 
Service Manager 
 

Version:  One 
 

Date:  01 December 2020 
Classification  NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED  

 

283



[Type here] 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 

 

 

Contents 

 

Contents ............................................................................................................................ 2 

Document Control, Approval and Distribution ..................................................................... 2 

Version Control .................................................................................................................. 2 

Document Approval ........................................................................................................... 2 

Document Distribution ........................................................................................................ 2 

Introduction ........................................................................................................................ 2 

Membership & Chairing ...................................................................................................... 3 

Frequency of the Board ...................................................................................................... 3 

Responsibilities of the Board .............................................................................................. 3 

Reporting ........................................................................................................................... 3 

Papers ............................................................................................................................... 4 

 

 

 

Document Control, Approval and Distribution 

Version Control 

This document should be updated with any amendments: 

Version Date Notes 

0.1 01 December 2020 Document Created 

 

Document Approval 

This document requires the following approvals: 

Sponsor Approval Name Date 

Project Sponsor Dawn Godfrey 01 December 2020 

 

Document Distribution 

This document will be distributed to: 

Name Method Date 

Project Board Email 01 December 2020 

 

Introduction 

The purpose of this terms of reference document is to state the responsibilities of the Schools Capital  Programme 

Board and to provide leadership in delivering the project required within the Council. 

 

284



[Type here] 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Membership & Chairing 

The Board will be chaired by the Interim Director for Childrens Services. In the absence of the Chair, the meeting 

membership may elect any other member to act as Chair for that meeting. 

Membership of the Board has been agreed by the Chair.  The composition of this Board and team members who are 

required to attend, will be done so by invitation.  This is: 

- Dawn Godfrey,  Interim Director for Childrens Services (DG) 

- Mona Walsh, Head of Property Services 

- Gill Curtis (Head of Learning and Skills) (GC) 

- Andrew Merry (Finance Manager) (AM) 

- Robert Shore (Schools Capital Programme Manager) (RS) 

- Dee Rajput (Programme Manager) (DR) 

- Cllr David Wilby (Portfolio Holder for Lifelong Learning, Early Years, Special Educational Needs & Disabilities, 

Inclusion, and Safeguarding – Children & Young People) (DW) 

- Cllr Oliver Helmsley (Leader of the Council) (OH) 

 

Members may send deputies by exception only.  The Programme t Manager (RS) will support the provision and running 

of this Board.  Other professionals with specific expertise as required by the Board will be invited to contribute. 

There will also be a Project Team established to drive actions as required, this will be led by Catmose College with clear 

communication line to the Programme Board.  Membership is likely to include:  

- Catmose College (Chair) 

- Robert Shore (CEP Capital Programme Manager) 

- Dee Rajput (Programme Manager) 

- Lewis Hopcroft (Surveyor) 

- Laura Daughtry (Finance Accountant) 

Frequency of the Board 

Meetings will be held as per the Governance arrangements. Ad-hoc meetings may be held by agreement of the Chair 

as and when required. Meetings may, exceptionally, be cancelled by the Chair. 

Responsibilities of the Board 

The board fulfils their leadership role by: 

 Taking strategic decisions on the Schools Capital Programme and how it will impact on the Council 

 Effectively allocating and managing resources for the Programme 

 Monitoring the budget position and taking responsibility for the Programme spend 

 Communicating the purpose of the board to staff and other stakeholders 

 Monitoring the programme implementation and improving its effectiveness as required 

 

Reporting 

The board members shall draw to the attention of this Board, any issues that require further action or disclosure to 

the relevant management structures.  In exceptional cases any members of the Board may escalate issues to the Senior 

Management Team.  

The meeting records of these meetings will be formally recorded and available to Board members. When approved by 

the Board the minutes will be published to all. 

285



[Type here] 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 

Papers for the Board 

Agenda items may be raised by any member of the Board and should be communicated to the Programme Manager 

at least 7 working days in advance of any meeting. 

Draft meeting record of each meeting will be circulated within 7 working days to Board Members for comment and 

will provide a clear record of decisions reached and actions agreed. 

The meeting record will be formally approved by the Board at the subsequent meeting. The Programme Manager will 

maintain a Risk and Action Log, which will be reviewed at each meeting. 

 

Decision making between Board meetings 

It may sometimes be necessary for decisions to be taken between meetings due to the pressing timescales associated 

with the grant conditions, in cases where this is necessary, papers will be distributed by the Programme Manager 

according to the protocols agreed by members of the Board. Deadlines for responses will be set and decisions 

progressed by the Chair taking into consideration comments by Board members. 

Final decisions in these circumstances will be ratified and recorded at the next Programme Board meeting. 

 

 

286



[Type here] 
 

1 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Rutland County Council 

Catmose Expansion Project (CEP) 

Capital Project Board 

Terms of Reference 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Document Owner:  Robert Shore 

Rutland County Council 
 

Version:  V1 
 

Date:  01 December 2020 
 

 

  

287



[Type here] 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 

 

Contents 

 

Contents ............................................................................................................................ 2 

Document Control, Approval and Distribution ..................................................................... 2 

Version Control .................................................................................................................. 2 

Document Approval ........................................................................................................... 2 

Document Distribution ........................................................................................................ 2 

Introduction ........................................................................................................................ 4 

Membership & Chairing ...................................................................................................... 4 

Frequency of the Board ...................................................................................................... 4 

Responsibilities of the Board .............................................................................................. 4 

Reporting ........................................................................................................................... 4 

Papers ............................................................................................................................... 5 

 

 

Document Control, Approval and Distribution 

Version Control 

This document should be updated with any amendments: 

Version Date Notes 

0.1 01 December 2020 Draft Document Created 

V1.0 12th January 2021 Approved by Cabinet 

V1.1 22 February 2021 
To be Adopted by Rutland County Council following agreement 

and amends 

 

Document Approval 

This document requires the following approvals: 

Sponsor Approval Name Date 

Project Sponsor Dawn Godfrey 01 December 2020 

Sign off by Campus Board    

 

Document Distribution 

This document will be distributed to: 

Name Method Date 

Campus Board TBA 

 

 

 

288



[Type here] 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Voting members in Blue 

 

Portfolio holder for Children’s Services 

Principal of Catmose College 

One member of the Board of Trustees of Rutland & District Schools’ Federation 

Two further representatives of the Council 

Two further representatives of representatives of Rutland and District Schools’ Federation 

Two representatives of the Contractor 

A maximum of four representatives from users and other groups 

 

  

289



[Type here] 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Introduction 

The purpose of this terms of reference document is to state the responsibilities of the Campus Board which acts as a 

Project Board for delivery of the Building programme associated with CEP Capital development and to provide 

leadership in delivering the project required. 

 

Membership & Chairing 

The Board will be chaired by the Principal of Catmose College. In the absence of the Chair, the meeting membership 

may elect any other Catmose Campus Board member to act as Chair for that meeting. 

The Board business will be grouped to suit the two key purposes of the project to deliver; 

1. Design Team Building project aims  

2. Provide operational business planning oversight. 

Core membership of the Board has been agreed by the Chair.  The composition of this Board is as shown previously 

Members may send deputies by exception only.  Catmose College will support the running of this Board with assistance 

from RCC. 

There may also be time limited task and finish groups established to drive actions as required, membership will be 

agreed by the Campus board . 

 

 

Frequency of the Board 

Meetings will be held as per the published schedule. Ad-hoc meetings may be held by agreement of the Chair as and 

when required. Meetings may, exceptionally, be cancelled by the Chair. 

Responsibilities of the Board 

The board fulfils its  role by: 

 Reporting to the Rutland County Council CEP Capital Programme Board as required (through updates and 

exception reporting and presentation of risk and issues logs) 

 Effectively allocating and managing resources for the Project 

 Monitoring the budget position and taking responsibility for ensuring the Project remains in budget 

 Communicating the purpose of the board to staff and other stakeholders 

 Monitoring the project implementation and improving its effectiveness as required 

 Fulfilling the terms of the governance agreement put in place by RCC/Catmose College 

Notes for each part of the meeting will be taken as follows; 

1. Design Team Building project aims (notes for which will be taken by the Architect) 

2. Provide operational business planning oversight (notes for which will be taken by Catmose College) 

 

Reporting 

The Board reports to the  RCC CEP Capital Programme Board. 

290



[Type here] 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

The board members shall draw to the attention of this Project Board, any issues that require further action or 

disclosure to the relevant management structures.  In exceptional cases any members of the Board may escalate issues 

to their Senior Management Team.  

The minutes of these meetings will be formally recorded and available to Board members and Programme Board 

members. When approved by the Chair the minutes will be published to all. 

Papers for the Board 

Agenda items may be raised by any member of the Board and should be communicated to Catmose College designated 

lead at least 7 working days in advance of any meeting. The agenda will be agreed with the Chair. 

Draft minutes of each meeting will be circulated within 7 working days to Board Members for comment and will 

provide a clear record of decisions reached and actions agreed. 

Minutes will be formally approved by the Board at the subsequent meeting. Designated Lead from Catmose College 

will maintain an Action Log, which will be reviewed at each meeting. 

Decision making between Board meetings 

It may sometimes be necessary for decisions to be taken between meetings due to the pressing timescales associated 

with the grant conditions, in cases where this is necessary, papers will be distributed by the Designated Lead from 

Catmose College according to the protocols agreed by members of the Board. Deadlines for responses will be set and 

decisions progressed by the Chair taking into consideration comments by Board members. 

Final decisions in these circumstances will be ratified and recorded at the next Programme Board meeting. 

291



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 EMERGENCY POWERS - COVID 19
	7 PUBLIC BUS SERVICE CONTRACT AWARD
	8 INTEGRATED TRANSPORT CAPITAL PROGRAMME
	Appendix A - programme of works - Copy - 18

	9 HOME TO SCHOOL TRANSPORT AWARD
	10 QUARTER 3 - FINANCE REPORT
	11 UPDATE ON CHILDREN'S SERVICES IMPROVEMENT PLAN
	Appendix A- Rutland TOR - Children's Services Improvement Board
	Appendix B Children's Services Improvement Plan Tracker - 01.12.20

	12 CLEANING SERVICES CONTRACT FOR COUNCIL PROPERTIES
	13 ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES RE-PROCUREMENT PROJECT
	Appendix B1
	Risks & Issues Log

	Appendix B2
	Milestones


	14 FINAL BUDGET 2021/21
	15 SCHOOL CAPITAL PROGRAMME
	Appendix A - Stage2 Feasibility report
	Appendix B Schools Capital Programme - RAID Log V1.3
	Risks & Issues Log

	Appendix C Schools Capital Programme - PID
	Appendix D -  Schools Capital Programme - Board ToR
	Appendix E - Schools Capital Programme - Project Board ToR


